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The registrant hereby amends this registration stament on such date or dates as may be necessargléday its effective date until the
registrant shall file a further amendment which speifically states that this registration statement ball thereafter become effective in
accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Aof 1933 or until the registration statement shall Bcome effective on such date as the
Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), ay determine.




The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities
and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JUNE 3, 2008

Shares

CHIMERA

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Common Stock

Chimera Investment Corporation is a Maryland corporation that invests in residential mortgage loans, residential mortgage-
backed securities, real estate-related securities and various other asset classes. We are externally managed and advised by Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company, which we refer to as FIDAC or our Manager, an investment adviser registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., which we refer to
as Annaly, a New York Stock Exchange-listed real estate investment trust.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CIM”. The closing price on the New York
Stock Exchange on June , 2008 was $ per share.

The underwriters have an option to purchase a maximum of  additional shares to cover overallotments of shares

Concurrent with this offering, we will sell to Annaly  shares of our common stock in a private offering at the same price per
share as the price per share of this public offering. Upon completion of this offering, Annaly will own approximately % of our
outstanding common stock (which percentage excludes shares to be sold pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option and shares of our restricted common stock granted to our executive officers and employees of our Manager or
its affiliates).

We intend to elect and qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust, or REIT, for federal income tax purposes
commencing with our taxable year ending on December 31, 2007. To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, ownership of our common
stock by any person is generally limited to 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of any class or
series of the outstanding shares of our capital stock. In addition, our charter contains various other restrictions on the ownership
and transfer of our common stock, see “Description of Capital Stock—Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer.”

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See “ Risk Factors” beginning on page 18.
Underwriting
Price to Discounts and Proceeds to
Public Commissions Issuer
Per Share $ $ $
Total $ $ $

Delivery of shares will be made on or about , 2008.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these
securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Credit Suisse Merrill Lynch & Co.
Deutsche Bank Securities
JPMorgan
Citi



UBS Investment Bank

The date of this prospectus is , 2008.
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You should rely only on information contained in this prospectus, any free writing prospectus preparetdy us or information to

which we have referred you. We have not, and the aerwriters have not, authorized anyone to provide gu with different information.
This prospectus may only be used where it is legtd sell these securities, and this prospectus istren offer to sell or a solicitation of an

offer to buy shares in any state or jurisdiction wkere an offer or sale of shares would be unlawful. e information in this prospectus
and any free writing prospectus prepared by us mape accurate only as of their respective dates.



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights some of the imi@tion in this prospectus. It is not complete andsinot contain all of the information
that you should consider before investing in ounowon stock. You should read carefully the moreiléetanformation set forth under
“Risk Factors” and the other information included this prospectus. Except where the context suggéserwise, the terms
“Chimera,” “company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Chimera Investment Corporation; “our Manager” afiEIDAC” refer to
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, our extemmanager; and “Annaly” refers to Annaly Capital Magement, Inc., the
parent company of FIDAC. Unless indicated otherwiise information in this prospectus assumes &)abmmon stock to be sold in
this offering is to be sold at$  per shar@,tfie concurrent offering to Annaly of  shaodur common stock, and (iii) no

exercise by the underwriters of their overallotmeption to purchase or place up to an additional shares of our common stock.
Our Company

We are a specialty finance company tmatsts in residential mortgage loans, resident@tgage-backed securities, or RMBS,
real estate-related securities and various otteat@atasses. We intend to elect and qualify taaked as a real estate investment trust,
or REIT, for federal income tax purposes commenaiit our taxable year ending on December 31, 2(0¥e qualify for taxation
as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to fallencome tax on our taxable income that is disiied to our stockholders. We
commenced operations in November 2007.

We are externally managed by Fixed Inc@iseount Advisory Company, which we refer to as Blanager or FIDAC. Our
Manager is an investment advisor registered wighSbcurities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. fdaily, our Manager is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Annaly, a New York Stogkchange-listed REIT, which has a long track rdag@frmanaging investments
in U.S. government agency mortgage-backed seaurifiencurrent with this offering, we will sell tonAaly shares of common
stock in a private offering at the same price pears as the price per share of this public offer®gncurrent with our initial public
offering, in a private offering we sold to Annalg@oximately 3.6 million shares of our common statkhe same price per share as
the price per share of our initial public offerifay aggregate proceeds of approximately $54.3 omllUpon completion of this
offering, Annaly will own approximately o our outstanding common stock (which percengdudes shares to be sold
pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters’ di@raent option and shares of our restricted comstogk granted to our executive
officers and employees of our Manager or its affds).

Our objective is to provide attractivekrdadjusted returns to our investors over the lemgy, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We inteméchieve this objective by investing in a bratabs of financial assets to
construct an investment portfolio that is desigteedchieve attractive risk-adjusted returns andithstructured to comply with the
various federal income tax requirements for REEELs and to maintain our exemption from registratinder the Investment
Company Act of 1940, or 1940 Act.

We recognize that investing in our taegledsset classes is highly competitive, and thalManager competes with many other
investment managers for profitable investment opymities in these areas. Annaly and our Managee loénse relationships with a
diverse group of financial intermediaries, rangiram primary dealers, major investment banks armdkénage firms to leading
mortgage originators, specialty investment dealarsfinancial sponsors. In addition, we have bésgfand expect to continue to
benefit from our Manager’s analytical and portfali@nagement expertise and technology. We belieatetl combined and
complementary strengths of Annaly and our Manager gs a competitive advantage over REITs withalar focus to ours.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advisedIDAC pursuant to a management agreement. All ofofficers are employees of
our Manager or its affiliates. Our Manager is a&flxncome investment management company speciglizimanaging investments in
U.S. government agency residential mortgage-baskedrities, or Agency RMBS, which are mortgage {lassugh certificates,
collateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOs, atifteomortgage-backed securities representing istieie or obligations backed by
pools of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed blelderal National Mortgage Association, or FanneeMhe Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, or Freddie Mac, and the Gowvient National Mortgage Association, or Ginnie Maer Manager also has
experience in managing investments in non-AgencyBBMnd collateralized debt obligations, or CDOa| estate-related securities;
and managing interest rate-sensitive investmeategfies. Our Manager commenced




active investment management operations in 199Makth 31, 2008, our Manager was the adviser oraglMiser for funds with
approximately $3.2 billion in net assets and $12llibn in gross assets, and which consisted prédamnily of Agency RMBS.

Our Manager is responsible for adminietgour business activities and day-to-day openati®Ve have no employees other
than our officers. Pursuant to the terms of theagament agreement, our Manager provides us witmamagement team, including
our officers, along with appropriate support persinOur Manager is at all times subject to theesuigion and oversight of our board
of directors and has only such functions and aitthas we delegate to it.

Our Manager has well-respected and astadul portfolio management resources for each ofaygeted asset classes and a
sophisticated infrastructure supporting those resasy including investment professionals focusingesidential mortgage loans,
Agency and non-Agency RMBS and other asset-backedrsies. Additionally, we have benefited and etfe continue to benefit
from our Manager’s finance and administration fiores, which address legal, compliance, investati@hs and operational matters,
including portfolio management, trade allocation @xecution, securities valuation, risk managemaedtinformation technologies in
connection with the performance of its duties.

We do not pay any of our officers anytcasmpensation. Rather, we pay our Manager a basagement fee and incentive
compensation based on performance pursuant tetims f the management agreement.

Annaly Capital Management, Inc.

Annaly, which at March 31, 2008 owned amthaged a portfolio of approximately $56.9 billipnimarily in Agency RMBS,
commenced its operations on February 18, 1997ywamd public on October 20, 1997. Annaly tradeshenNew York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “NLY”. Annaly managestsen behalf of institutional and individual int@s worldwide directly
through Annaly and through the funds managed byA&1D

Annaly is primarily engaged in the busisef investing, on a leveraged basis, in AgencyBRMAnnaly also invests in Federal
Home Loan Bank, Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae debesiténnaly’s principal business objective is tograte net income for
distribution to investors from the spread betwdeninterest income on its securities and the dosbwowing to finance their
acquisition and from dividends it receives from RID.

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractivekradjusted returns to our investors over the l@mgy, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We intemechieve this objective by investing in a diviéed investment portfolio of
residential mortgage loans, RMBS, real estategdlaecurities and real estate loans, as well &@usaother asset classes, subject to
maintaining our REIT status and exemption fromsegtion under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, asset baskedrities, or ABS,
commercial mortgage backed securities, or CMBS,@D®s we purchase may include investment-gradenandnvestment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and ndedralasses.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise imiifging assets within our target asset classes.Manager makes investment
decisions based on various factors, including etgaecash yield, relative value, risk-adjusted metycurrent and projected credit
fundamentals, current and projected macroeconoatisiderations, current and projected supply andasheincredit and market risk
concentration limits, liquidity, cost of financiramnd financing availability, as well as maintainimgr REIT qualification and our
exemption from registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investmeaitocation strategy as market conditions changeetek to maximize the returns from
our investment portfolio. We believe this strategymbined with our Manager’'s experience, will eealns to pay dividends and
achieve capital appreciation throughout changitgrést rate and credit cycles and provide attradtimg-term returns to investors.

Our targeted asset classes and the pahicivestments we expect to make in each arellasvi




Asset Class Principal Investments

Residential Mortgage Loal . Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loanscthre#form to
the underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddiac,
which we refer to as Agency Guidelines; and jumbme
mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that confo the
Agency Guidelines except as to loan s

. Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have
been originated using documentation standardsatiedess
stringent than the documentation standards appljezkrtain othe
first lien mortgage loan purchase programs, suche#égency
Guidelines, but have one or more compensating fastach as a
borrower with a strong credit or mortgage histongignificant
assets

Residential Mortgac-Backed Securities, or RME . Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-
investment grade classes, including the BB-raterhtBd and non-
rated classe:

. Agency RMBS.

Other Asset-Backed Securities, or ABS . Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaltions, or
CDOs.
. Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CMB
. Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesde

and non-investment grade classes, including the®&d, B-rated
and nor-rated classe:

Since we commenced operations in NoverBber, we have focused our investment activitiepunchasing residential
mortgage loans that have been originated by skightquality originators, including the retail lénd operations of leading
commercial banks, and non-Agency RMBS. This isdntast to Annaly’s strategy which concentrateg\gency RMBS. As the
diligence and acquisition lead times for residémtiartgage loans are longer than for non-Agency FBBirchases, our investment
portfolio at March 31, 2008 was weighted toward #arency RMBS. After the consummation of this offeyj we expect that over the
near term our investment portfolio will continuelte weighted toward non-Agency RMBS, subject tomaaning our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption, which mdgpending on the composition of our investmemtfplio, require us to
purchase Agency RMBS or other qualifying assetaddition, we anticipate engaging in transactioith vesidential mortgage
lending operations of leading commercial banks@hér high-quality originators in which we identidynd re-underwrite residential
mortgage loans owned by such entities, and raltar purchasing and securitizing such residentiatgage loans ourselves, we and
the originator will structure the securitizatiordame will purchase the resulting mezzanine and slibate non-Agency RMBS. We
may also engage in similar transactions with noesay RMBS in which we would acquire AAA-rated nogexcy RMBS and
immediately re-securitize those securities. We wadll the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS agtain the AAA-rated
mezzanine RMBS. Over time we expect that our imaest portfolio will become more weighted towardidesitial mortgage loans.
Our investment decisions, however, will depend m@vailing market conditions and will change overdi As a result, we cannot
predict the percentage of our assets that wilhlvested in each asset class or whether we wilkinveother classes of investments.
We may change our investment strategy and polieittout a vote of our stockholders.




We intend to elect and qualify to be thas a REIT commencing with our taxable year enBiagember 31, 2007 and to
operate our business so as to be exempt from ratigst under the 1940 Act, and therefore we wilkéguired to invest a substantial
majority of our assets in loans secured by mortgagereal estate and real estate-related assdfgcto maintaining our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption, we do hate any limitations on the amounts we may inireany of our targeted asset
classes.

Our Investment Portfolio

As of March 31, 2008, our investment fmid consisted of the following (dollars in thounks):

Estimated Fair Percent of Total Weighted Average
Amortized Cost  Value Portfolio(1) Coupon(1)
Residential Mortgage Loans( $ 362,85! $ 361,59 22.7% 6.13%
RMBS $ 1,275,060 $ 1,229,78I 77.3% 6.27%
Total $ 163791 $ 1,591,37 100%

(1) Based on estimated fair value.

(2) On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $619.7 millsecuritization, which was structured as a lomgrtinancing transaction. See “— Recent Developmésiince the
securitization was structured as a financing, titstanding principal balance of the mortgage loaasecuritized will remain on our books as an assdtthe outstanding
principal balance of the notes issued by the tuilsbe recorded on our books as a liability.

Financing and Hedging Strategy

We use leverage to increase potentiatmstto our stockholders. We generate income graigi from the spread between yields
on our investments and our cost of borrowing arafjhmy activities. Subject to our maintaining oualification as a REIT, we expect
to use a number of sources to finance our invedsnercluding repurchase agreements, warehoudéiés;isecuritizations,
commercial paper and term financing CDOs. We ateetuired to maintain any specific debt-to-equ#tio as we believe the
appropriate leverage for the particular assetsredimancing depends on the credit quality and osthose assets. As of March 31,
2008 our leverage was 3.4:1. We expect our leveratigeto fluctuate from time to time based upampag other things, our assets,
market conditions and conditions and availabilitfimancings.

Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, we may from time to time utilize derivatfinancial instruments, including,
among others, interest rate swaps, interest ratg @ad interest rate floors to hedge all or aigorf the interest rate risk associated
with the financing of our portfolio. Specificallye will seek to hedge our exposure to potentiaredt rate mismatches between the
interest we earn on our investments and our bormgwosts caused by fluctuations in short-term @gerates. In utilizing leverage and
interest rate hedges, our objectives are to impriskeadjusted returns and, where possible, to Iockn a long-term basis, a spread
between the yield on our assets and the cost dirmamcing.

The table below summarizes our financiagef March 31, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Estimated
Outstanding Weighted Average Weighted Average Fair Value of
Borrowing Borrowing Rate Remaining Maturity Collateral
Repurchase Agreements: RMI $ 1,000,001 4.7¢% 54 day: $ 1,100,00i(1)
Repurchase Agreements: Mortgage La $  487,00((2) 4.41% 399 day $  433,30((3)

Securitizations(4 — — — —

(1) Based on an estimate of fair value.

(2) Includes $55.2 million of loans for RMBS purshka.




(3) Based on carrying value.

(4) On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $619.7 milléecuritization, which was structured as a lomgrtinancing transaction. See “— Recent Developmésiince the
securitization was structured as a financing, thistanding principal balance of the mortgage losesecuritized will remain on our books as an aasdtthe outstanding
principal balance of the notes issued by the tuilsbe recorded on our books as a liability.

The table below summarizes our interats swaps outstanding at March 31, 2008 (dollatednsands):

Weighted Weighted Net Estimated
Notional Amount Average Pay Rate Average Receive Rate Fair Value/Carrying Value
$1,626,377 3.78% 2.66% ($35,649)

All of our repurchase agreements andésterate swap agreements are subject to bilatexadin calls in the event that the
collateral securing our obligations under thosdlifees exceeds or does not meet our collaterdbratequirements. We analyze the
sufficiency of our collateralization daily, and @sMarch 31, 2008, on a net basis, the fair valiuhe collateral, including restricted
cash, securing our obligations under repurchasseagents exceeded the amount of such obligatioappsoximately $202.5 million.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, due tal#terioration in the market value of our assetsy@ceived margin calls under our
repurchase agreements, which resulted in our hagiagnend our liquidity covenants in one facilitptain additional funding from
third parties, including from Annaly (See “Cert&elationships and Related Transactions”), and ¢éfker steps to increase our
liquidity. Additionally, the disruptions during thiguarter resulted in us not being in compliandé thie net income covenant in our
other facility. We currently have no borrowings enthat facility and are negotiating an amendmétti@net income covenant.
Should we receive additional margin calls, we malylre able to amend the liquidity covenants or iobdéher funding. If we were
unable to post additional collateral, we would htveell the assets at a time when we might natretise choose to do so and such
sales may be at a loss. A reduction in credit abél may reduce our earnings and, in turn, castasl@for distribution to
stockholders.

Our Competitive Advantages
We believe that our competitive advansaigelude the following:
Investment Strategy Designed to Perform in a Vayief Interest Rate and Credit Environments

We seek to manage our investment strategplance both interest rate risk and credit gk believe this strategy is designed
to generate attractive, risk-adjusted returnsvaréety of market conditions because operating tmms in which either of these risks
are increased, or decreased, may occur at diffegnts in the economic cycle. For example, theay tve periods when interest-rate
sensitive strategies outperform credit-sensitivatsgies whereby we would receive increased incovee our cost of financing, in
which case our portfolio’s increased exposure i®risk would be beneficial. There may be otheiqus when credit-sensitive
strategies outperform interest-rate sensitiveegias. Although we will face interest rate risk aneldit risk, we believe that with
appropriate hedging strategies, as well as ouityalil evaluate the quality of targeted asset itmesit opportunities, we can reduce
these risks and provide attractive risk-adjustédrns.

Credit-Oriented Investment Approach

We seek to minimize principal loss whitlaximizing risk-adjusted returns through our Manmageredit-based investment
approach, which is based on rigorous quantitaticequalitative analysis.

Experienced Investment Advisor

Our Manager has a long history of strpagormance across a broad range of fixed-incorseta.sOur Manager's most senior
investment professionals have a long history oéstiwng in a variety of mortgage and real estatetedl securities and structuring and
marketing CDOs. Investments are overseen by arstment Committee of our Manager’s professionalasisting of Michael A.J.
Farrell, Wellington J. Denahan-Norris, James Ptdsmue, Kristopher Konrad, Rose-Marie Lyght, Roné&ddel, Jeremy Diamond,
Eric Szabo and Matthew Lambiase.

Access to Annaly’s and Our Manager’s Relationships




Annaly and our Manager have developed-@nm relationships with a number of commercial arwvestment banks and other
financial intermediaries. We believe these relaiops provide us with a range of high-quality irwesnt opportunities.

Access to Our Manager’s Systems and Infrastructure

Our Manager has created a proprietartffgmr management system, which we believe provigesiith a competitive
advantage. Our Manager’s personnel have createthprehensive finance and administrative infrastmgtan important component
of a complex investment vehicle such as a REITaddition, most of our Manager’s personnel are Alsoaly’s personnel; therefore,
they have had extensive experience managing Anndlich is a REIT.

Alignment of Interests between Annaly, Our Managand Our Investors

Concurrent with this offering, we willls® Annaly shares of our common stock ipravate offering at the same price per
share as the price per share of this public offer@oncurrent with our initial public offering, aprivate offering we sold to Annaly
approximately 3.6 million shares of our common ktatthe same price per share as the price pee sti@ur initial public offering for
aggregate proceeds of approximately $54.3 millimon completion of this offering, Annaly will owrpproximately % of our
outstanding common stock (which percentage excladases to be sold pursuant to the exercise afrilerwriters’ overallotment
option and shares of our restricted common stoaktgd to our executive officers and employees oManager or its affiliates).

Moreover, a portion of the fees that rhbayearned by our Manager consists of incentive emsgttion that is based on the
amount that a measure of our earnings exceedscdisgehreshold. We believe that Annaly’s investrhand our Manager’s ability to
earn performance fees align our Manager’s interggtsour interests.

Summary Risk Factors

An investment in shares of our commorelsiavolves various risks. You should consider @dhg the risks discussed below and
under “Risk Factors” before purchasing our comntocls

. Continued weakness in the mortgage market may caasket losses related to our holdin

. We are dependent on our Manager and its key peeséommour success and such personnel may leaventipdoyment o
our Manager or otherwise become no longer availebles.

. There are various conflicts of interest in our tielaship with our Manager and Annaly, which cougult in decision
that are not in your best interests, including ¢éhoated by our financing arrangements with Anaaly by our
Manager’s compensation whereby it is entitled teiee a base management fee, which is not tielet@erformance of
our portfolio, and incentive compensation basedwnportfolio’s performance, which may lead it fage emphasis on
the short-term maximization of net income, and geateral of our officers and directors are alsolegges of Annaly
which may result in conflicts between their dutiesis and to Annaly

. The management agreement with our Manager wasegattiated on an ar s-length basis and may not be as favorah
us as if it had been negotiated with an unaffiiatard party and may be difficult and costly tonténate.

. Our board of directors has approved very broadstment guidelines for our Manager and will not appreach
investment decision made by our Manager. We magpgdhaur investment strategy, asset allocationnamiting plans
without stockholder consent, which may result gkier investments

. Failure to obtain adequate capital and fundingamoffable terms, or at all, would adversely affect @sults and may, |
turn, negatively affect the market price of sharesur common stock and our ability to distributeidends to our
stockholders

. We have limited operating history and may not ofgesaiccessfully. We operate in a highly competitharket for
investment opportunities. Our financial conditiordaesults of operation will depend on our abitiynanage future
growth effectively.




Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely effes and negatively affect our stock price andatility to
distribute dividends to our stockholders and coekllt in the termination of the management agre¢mih our
Manager. In addition, the assets we may acquiréiraied by the provisions of the 1940 Act and thées and
regulations promulgated thereunder which may, mescases, preclude us from pursuing the most edoatyn
beneficial investment alternative

We use leverage to fund the acquisition of ourtasseénich may adversely affect our return on owestments and may
reduce cash available for distribution to our stud#lers.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative toititerest we receive on our assets may adversedgtadiur profitability,
and thus our cash available for distribution to stackholders

Increases in interest rates could negatively affexztvalue of our investments, which could resultsiduced earnings
losses and negatively affect the cash availablditribution to our stockholder

Our hedging transactions may not completely ingulistfrom interest rate risk. Hedging against agerate exposul
may adversely affect our earnings, which could cedour cash available for distribution to our stualklers.

Prepayment rates could negatively affect the vafumur residential mortgage loans and our RMBS clvltiould result i
reduced earnings or losses and negatively affeatdlsh available for distribution to our stockhod

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are genenaltiie “first loss” position and our investmentgli® mezzanine
RMBS are generally in th*second lo<” position and therefore subject to loss

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgageslainderlying the mortgage and a-backed securities we invest
are subject to delinquency, foreclosure and losschvcould result in losses to us. We may be regutio repurchase
mortgage loans or indemnify investors if we breggresentations and warranties, which could harmmeatnings

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us tdeimal income tax, which would reduce the cash akbelfor
distribution to our stockholder

The REIT qualification rules impose limitations thre types of investments and hedging, financing,aher activities
which we may undertake, and these limitations nmagpme cases, preclude us from pursuing the noostoenically
beneficial investment, hedging, financing and otideernatives

Continued adverse developments in the residentiaigage market could make it difficult for us torkmaw money tc
acquire investments on a leveraged basis, whicld@mlversely affect our profitabilit

Interest rate mismatches between our investmet®anborrowings used to fund our purchases ofetlassets may
reduce our income during periods of changing irsterates




Our Structure

We were formed by Annaly as a Marylanthooation on June 1, 2007. The following chart sb@ur structure after giving
effect to this offering (excluding shares sold puanrst to the exercise of the underwriters’ overatient option):

Annaly Capital

Management, Ine, Management
I'll'l
[T o5
Manzgemem :
FIDAC Aerecment Chymera Invesiment
{(Cur Manager) ) Corporation
1) Includes shares of restricted common stock apprasegtants under our equity incentive plan to secative officers and other employees of our Managéts

affiliates, which vest quarterly over a-year period beginning January 1, 2008 and to alependent directors, which fully vested on Jan@ai3008.
Our Relationship with Our Manager

We are externally managed and advisedupWManager. We benefit from the personnel, infrattire, relationships, and
experience of our Manager to enhance the growtdupobusiness. Each of our officers is also an eygd®f our Manager or its
affiliates. We have no employees other than oucefé. Our Manager is not obligated to dedicattageof its employees exclusively
to us, nor is it or its employees obligated to daté any specific portion of its time to our busseNe expect, however, that Christian
J. Woschenko, our Head of Investments and our Mermgxecutive Vice President, and William B. Dyeuy Head of Underwriting
and our Manager’s Executive Vice President, wilithoue to devote a substantial portion of theiretita our business.

We have entered into a management agraesith our Manager with an initial term ending Becember 31, 2010, with
automatic, one-year renewals at the end of ea@mdat year following the initial term, subject éorhination by us, in connection with
the annual reviews of our Manager’s performanceraadagement fees by the vote of two-thirds of tiiependent directors or a
majority of our stockholders. Under the managemagnéement, our Manager implements our businegegjyrand performs certain
services for us, subject to oversight by our badrdirectors. Our Manager is responsible for, amotigr things, performing all of our
day-to-day functions; determining investment ciéén conjunction with our board of directors; scing, analyzing and executing
investments; asset sales and financings; and jparfgrasset management duties.

Our independent directors will review dlanager’s performance annually, and followingitiigal term, the management
agreement may be terminated annually by us witbause upon the affirmative vote of at least tweoethbf our independent directors,
or by a vote of the holders of at least a majasftthe outstanding shares of our common stock (dtten shares held by Annaly or its
affiliates), based upon: (i) our Manager’s unsatisry performance that is materially detrimentali$, or (ii) our determination that
the management fees payable to our Manager afainatubject to our Manager’s right to preventrieration based on unfair fees by
accepting a reduction of management fees agreley &b least two-thirds of our independent directiéve will provide our Manager
with 180-days’ prior notice of such termination.dsiptermination without cause, we will pay our Maeag substantial termination
fee. We may also terminate the management agreemithn30 days’ prior notice from our board of ditexs, without payment of a
termination fee, for cause or upon a change ofrobaf Annaly or our Manager, each as defined mrttenagement agreement. Our
Manager may terminate the management agreemestliiesome required to register as an investment aoynpnder the 1940 Act,
with such




termination deemed to occur immediately before swdnt, in which case we would not be requireday @ termination fee. Our
Manager may also decline to renew the managemeeéignt by providing us with 180-days’ written wetiin which case we would
not be required to pay a termination fee.

The following table summarizes the feed expense reimbursements and other amounts thatl\wey to our Manager:

Type Description Payment

Base management fee: 1.75% per annum, calculated quarterly, of our Quarterly in cash.
stockholders’ equity. For purposes of calculatimg t
base management fee, our stockholders’ equity means
the sum of the net proceeds from any issuancearof o
equity securities since inception (allocated omaarpta
daily basis for such issuances during the fiscakigu
of any such issuance), plus our retained earnintiea
end of such quarter (without taking into account an
non-cash equity compensation expense incurred in
current or prior periods), less any amount thapas
for repurchases of our common stock, and less any
unrealized gains, losses or other items that daffiett
realized net income (regardless of whether suchste
are included in other comprehensive income or loss,
in net income). This amount will be adjusted tolede
one-time events pursuant to changes in accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States,
GAAP, and certain non-cash charges after discussion
between our Manager and our independent directors
and approved by a majority of our independent
directors. The base management fee will be reduced,
but not below zero, by our proportionate sharengf a
CDO base management fees FIDAC receives in
connection with the CDOs in which we invest, basa
the percentage of equity we hold in such CC

Incentive management fee: Quarterly fee equal to 20% of the dollar amount by Quatrterly in cash, subject to certain
which Core Earnings, on a rolling four-quarter basi limitations.
and before the incentive management fee, exceeds th
product of (1) the weighted average of the issirepr
per share of all of our public offerings multipliegt the
weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding in such quarter and (2) 0.50% plus one-
fourth of the average of the one month LIBOR rate f
such quarter and the previous three quarters.heor t
initial four quarters following this offering, Core
Earnings and the LIBOR rate will be calculated loa t
basis of each of the previously completed quadars
an annualized basis. Core Earnings and the LIB@R ra
for the initial quarter will each be calculatedrfrahe
settlement date of this offering on an annualizasit
Core Earnings is a non-GAAP measure and is defined
as GAAP net income (loss) excluding non-cash equity
compensation expense, excluding any unrealizedsgain
losses or other items that do not affect realizetd n
income (regardless of whether such items




included in other comprehensive income or los#
net income). The amount will be adjusted to exclude
one-time events pursuant to changes in GAAP and
certain non-cash charges after discussions betogen
Manager and our independent directors and approved
by a majority of our independent directors. The
incentive management fee will be reduced, but not
below zero, by our proportionate share of any CDO
incentive management fees FIDAC receives in
connection with the CDOs in which we invest, basa
the percentage of equity we hold in such CC

Expense reimbursemel Reimbursement of expenses related to Chir Quarterly in casr
incurred by our Manager, including legal, accoumtin
due diligence and other services, but excluding the
salaries and other compensation of our Manager’'s
employees

Termination fee: Termination fee equal to three times the sum ofH@) Upon termination of the management
average annual base management fee and (b) the agreement by us without cause or by
average annual incentive compensation earned by our Manager if we materially breach the
Manager during the prior 2dronth period prior to suc  management agreement.
termination, calculated as of the end of the most
recently completed fiscal quarts

From November 21, 2007, the date we conuee operations, through December 31, 2007, outafemnearned base
management fees of approximately $1.2 million,meehtive compensation fees, and expense reimbuntéemieapproximately $719
thousand. For the three months ended March 31,,2Q08/lanager earned base management fees of amaiteky $2.2 million and
no incentive compensation fees. Currently, our M@ndas waived its right to require us to pay aorrata portion of rent, telephone,
utilities, office furniture, equipment, machinemychother office, internal and overhead expensesipManager and its affiliates
required for our operations.

Conflicts of Interest

We are dependent on our Manager for ayrtd-day management and do not have any indepenffexers or employees. Our
officers, and our non-independent directors, atsgesas employees of our Manager and its affiliades management agreement with
our Manager was negotiated between related pamigsts terms, including fees payable, may notdfaeorable to us as if it had been
negotiated at arm’s length with an unaffiliateddhparty. In addition, the ability of our Managedaits officers and employees to
engage in other business activities may reducérteour Manager and its officers and employeesdpeanaging us.

Our Manager has discretionary investnaemiority over a number of different funds and ars. Although currently none of
these funds or accounts have investment objedtingsnaterially overlap with ours, it is possittetihe future that our Manager may
manage funds and accounts that may compete wiibr isvestment opportunities. Also, to the exteat Manager manages
investment vehicles (other than CDOs) that meefrougstment objectives, our Manager will have aremtive to invest our funds in
such investment vehicles because of the possiloiigenerating an additional, incremental managerigen Our Manager may also
invest in CDOs managed by it that could resultanfticts with us, particularly if we invest in a pion of the equity securities and
there is a deterioration of value of such CDO befdosing we could suffer an immediate loss equ#hé decrease in the market value
of the underlying investment. In addition, to theemt we seek to invest in Agency RMBS, we may cetagor investment
opportunities with Annaly. Our Manager has an itwesnt allocation policy in place so that we mayrshequitably with other client
accounts of our Manager and Annaly in all investhmgportunities, particularly those involving arseswith limited supply, that may
be suitable for our account and
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such other accounts. Our Manager’s policy alsauthes other controls designed to monitor and preaeyiparticular account or
Annaly from receiving favorable treatment over atiyer fund or account. This investment policy mayamended by our Manager at
any time without our consent. To the extent FIDA@&analy’s, or our business evolves in such a veagite rise to conflicts not
currently addressed by our Manager’s investmentation policy, our Manager may need to refingp@hcy to handle any such
situations. To avoid any actual or perceived cotslof interest with our Manager, an investmerarig security structured or managed
by our Manager will be approved by a majority of mdependent directors.

It is difficult and costly to terminatieet management agreement without cause. We mayemiynate the management
agreement without cause after the initial termdnrection with the annual review of our Managegsfgrmance and the management
fees and only with the approval of two-thirds of cwdependent directors or a majority of our staillers (other than those shares
held by Annaly or its affiliates), and upon the pent of a substantial termination fee. These carditmay adversely affect our
ability to terminate our Manager without cause. Fare information please see “Business — Conft€tisterest” and “Our Manager
and the Management Agreement — Management Agreéhheiaiddition, we have entered into a repurchggea@ment with Annaly,
our Manager’s parent, to finance our RMBS. Thisificing arrangement may make us less likely to teateiour Manager. It could
also give rise to further conflicts because Anmaby be a creditor of ours. As one of our credit@rsmaly’s interests may diverge
from the interests of our stockholders.

We have agreed to pay our Manager a masmgement fee that is not tied to our performamckincentive compensation that is
based entirely on our performance. This compensati;mngement may cause our Manager to make lsglinrestments. Investments
with higher yield potential are generally riskiermore speculative. The base management fee comporag not sufficiently
incentivize our Manager to generate attractive-adjusted returns for us. The incentive compensat@mponent may cause our
Manager to place undue emphasis on the maximizafioet income at the expense of other criteriahsas preservation of capital, to
achieve higher incentive compensation. This coefuilt in increased risk to the value of our investtrportfolio.

Distribution Policy

To satisfy the requirements to qualifygaREIT and generally not be subject to federabime and excise tax, we intend to make
regular quarterly distributions of all or substaiisi all of our REIT taxable income to holders afr@ommon stock out of assets legally
available therefor. On December 20, 2007, our boarirectors declared a quarterly distributiors6f9 million, or $0.025 per share
of our common stock. This dividend was paid on dan25, 2008 to stockholders of record on Decer3tie2007. On March 19,

2008, our board of directors declared a quartedgridution of $9.8 million, or $0.26 per shareafr common stock. This dividend
was paid on April 30, 2008 to stockholders of recon March 31, 2008. Our GAAP net loss for the tpraended March 31, 2008 was
$54.9 million and our Core Earnings was $10.1 omlliOn June 2, 2008, our board of directors dedlarguarterly distribution of $6.0
million, or $0.16 per share of our common stockisTdividend will be paid on July 31, 2008 to stockiers of record on June 12,
2008. Purchasers in this offering will not partadi in this quarterly distribution.

Federal income tax law requires that &TREstribute with respect to each year at leag63 its REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction fordvids paid and excluding any net capital gainutfaash available for distribution
is less than 90% of our REIT taxable income, wda:be required to sell assets or borrow funds t&er@ash distributions or we may
make a portion of the required distribution in fbem of a taxable stock distribution or distributiof debt securities. To the extent we
distribute less than 90% of our REIT taxable incam2007, we will rectify this shortfall throughrbwback dividends. We anticipate
that our distributions generally will be taxableaadinary income to you, although a portion of tligributions may be designated by
us as qualified dividend income or capital gaimaty constitute a return of capital.

Operating and Regulatory Structure
REIT Qualification

We intend to elect and qualify to be teelaas a REIT under Sections 856 through 859 offeenal Revenue Code commencing
with our taxable year ending on December 31, 2QQif.qualification as a REIT depends upon our abititmeet on a continuing
basis, through actual investment and operatingtsesiarious complex requirements under the InteéRewvenue Code relating to,
among other things, the sources of our gross inctimecomposition and values of our assets, otriluligion levels and the diversity
of ownership of our
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shares. We believe that we have been organizeghifoenity with the requirements for qualificationchtaxation as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code, and that our manner of tiparanables us to meet the requirements for qoalibn and taxation as a REIT.

As a REIT, we generally will not be sulijeo federal income tax on our REIT taxable incomsedistribute to our stockholders.
If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeard do not qualify for certain statutory reliebpisions, we will be subject to federal
income tax at regular corporate rates and may édymted from qualifying as a REIT for the subseqdeunr taxable years following
the year during which we lost our REIT qualificaticcven if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, weynise subject to some federal,
state and local taxes on our income or property.

1940 Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we ammpkfrom registration under the 1940 Act, as adsteéned by the Securities and
Exchange Commission and its Division of Investmdahagement. We intend to rely on the exemption fregistration provided by
Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act, a provisionigasd for companies that do not issue redeemableites and are primarily
engaged in the business of purchasing or othemggairing mortgages and other liens on and inteiesieal estate.

To qualify for the exemption, we makedstments so that at least 55% of the assets wecomsist of qualifying mortgages and
other liens on and interests in real estate, warethcollectively referred to as “qualifying reatae assets,” and so that at least 80% of
the assets we own consist of real estate-relasstsaéncluding our qualifying real estate ass&t&).do not intend to issue redeemable
securities.

Based on no—action letters issued byStladf of the Securities and Exchange Commissionclagsify our investment in
residential mortgage loans as qualifying real esiasets, as long as the loans are “fully securgdh interest in real estate. That is, if
the loan—to-value ratio of the loan is equal téess than 100%, then we consider the mortgagedagpralifying real estate asset. We
do not consider loans with loan—to-value ratiosxoess of 100% to be qualifying real estate assetbe 55% test, but only real
estate-related assets for the 80% test.

We also consider RMBS such as certife@&sued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie M&nmie Mae that represent the
entire beneficial interest in the underlying pobhwrtgage loans, or Agency Whole Pool Certificatede qualifying real estate
assets. By contrast, an agency certificate thaesemts less than the entire beneficial interetérunderlying mortgage loans is not
considered to be a qualifying real estate assgidgroses of the 55% test, but constitutes a tateerelated asset for purposes of the
80% test.

We treat our ownership interest in padlgrhole loan RMBS, in cases in which we acquire ¢htire beneficial interest in a
particular pool, as qualifying real estate assatet on no—action positions of the Staff of theues and Exchange Commission.
We generally do not expect our investments in CMIB8 other RMBS investments to constitute qualifyiegl estate assets for the
55% test, unless such treatment is consistentguiittance of the Staff of the Securities and Exckadgmmission. Instead, these
investments generally will be classified as retdtesrelated assets for purposes of the 80% testdd\hot expect that our investments
in CDOs or other ABS will constitute qualifying tesstate assets. We may, however, treat our eguéyests in a CDO issuer that we
determine is a “majority owned subsidiary” and tisaexempt from 1940 Act registration under Sec8¢r)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act as
qualifying real estate assets, real estate-rekedts, and miscellaneous assets in the same fwopas the assets in such CDO are
qualifying real estate assets, real estate-rekdedts and miscellaneous assets. We may in thre fblwever, modify our treatment of
such CDO equity to conform to guidelines providgdhe Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commisssee “Business —
Operating and Regulatory Structure — 1940 Act’ftother information concerning our reliance on 8extion 3(c)(5)(C) exemption
from 1940 Act registration.

Restrictions on Ownership of Our Common Stock

To assist us in complying with the lintiteds on the concentration of ownership of REITreedamposed by the Internal Revenue
Code, our charter generally prohibits any stockéofcom beneficially or constructively owning, apiplg certain attribution rules
under the Internal Revenue Code, more than 9.8%lire or in number of shares, whichever is morg&iotise, of any class or series
of our capital stock. Our board of directors mawit$ sole discretion, waive the 9.8% ownershigtlinith respect to a particular
stockholder if it is presented with evidence satiffry to it that such ownership will not then oithe future jeopardize our
qualification as a REIT.
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We have granted such a waiver to Legg Mason Oppitytlirust. The ownership limit for Legg Mason Oppmity Trust has been set
at 15% of our outstanding capital stock in the aggte. Our charter also prohibits any person flammng other things:

. beneficially or constructively owning shares of @apital stock that would result in our being “@tsheld” under
Section 856(h) of the Internal Revenue Code orratise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT; i

. transferring shares of our capital stock if suamsfer would result in our capital stock being odvbg fewer than 10
persons

Our charter provides that any ownershipwported transfer of our capital stock in viaatof the foregoing restrictions will
result in the shares owned or transferred in siuaation being automatically transferred to a ctedolie trust for the benefit of a
charitable beneficiary, and the purported owndramsferee acquiring no rights in such sharestiduasfer to a charitable trust would
be ineffective for any reason to prevent a violatd the restriction, the transfer that would haesulted in such violation will be void
ab initio .

Recent Developments

On April 24, 2008 we sponsored a $619ilian securitization, a long-term financing tractan whereby we securitized our
then-current inventory of mortgage loans. In thésmsaction, we sold approximately $536.9 milliorA&fA-rated fixed and floating
rate bonds to third party investors, and retairgat@ximately $46.3 million of AAA-rated mezzaninertgs and $36.5 million in
subordinated bonds. This transaction will be actedifor as a financing pursuant to SFAS 14€;ounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmehtsabilities .

On June 2, 2008, our board of directedated a quarterly distribution of $6.0 milliom,$0.16 per share of our common stock.
This dividend will be paid on July 31, 2008 to dtbalders of record on June 12, 2008. Purchasdfssroffering will not participate
in this quarterly distribution.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selectedricial data as of and for the period indicated.daiéved the selected financial data for
the period from November 21, 2007 (commencemenpefations) through December 31, 2007 from ourtaddinancial statement
included elsewhere in this prospectus. We deritieddtita for the three months ended March 31, 2@08 6ur unaudited financial
statements included elsewhere in this prospectus sélected financial data should be read in catijumwith the more detailed
information contained in the Financial Statememid dotes thereto and “Management’s Discussion amaly&is of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations” included elsese in this prospectus.

Statement of Financial Condition Highlights

Mortgage-backed securitie
Loans held for investmel
Total asset

Repurchase agreemel
Total liabilities

Shareholdel equity

Book value per shai
Number of shares outstandi

As of March 31, As of December 31,
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Highlights
Net interest incom

Net loss

EPS (basic

EPS (diluted

Weighted average shar- basic
Weighted average shar- diluted
Taxable income per share |
Dividend declared per share |

Other Data

Average total asse

Average investment securiti

Average borrowing

Average equity

Annualized yield on average interest earning a:

Annualized cost of funds on average interest bgdiabilities

Annualized interest rate spre

Annualized net interest margin (net interest inctawerage interest earning ass!
Annualized G&A and management fee expense as pagenf average total ass
Annualized G&A and management fee expense as pagenf average equi
Return on average interest earning as

Return on average equi

(1) See reconciliation below of n-GAAP financial measurements to GAAP financial measents

(2) For the applicable perio

$ 1,229,78I $ 1,124,29i
$ 361,59 $ 162,37:
$ 1,910,04. $ 1,565,63!
$ 1,439,53 $ 270,58
$ 1,490,73. $ 1,026,74
$ 419,31: $ 538,88
$ 11.11 $ 14.2¢
37,744,91 37,705,56
For the three For the period
months ended November 21, 2007 to
March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
$ 14,17: $ 3,077
($ 54,935 ($ 2,906)
$ 1.46) $ 0.0¢)
($ 1.4€) ($ 0.0¢)
37,744,48 37,401,73
37,744,48 37,401,73
$ 0.24 $ 0.03(
$ 0.2¢€ $ 0.02¢
$ 1,737,841 $ 1,044,35!
$ 1,555,891 $ 399,73t
$ 1,325,151 $ 270,58
$ 479,10: $ 530,98:
6.6% 7.02%
4.2% 5.0&%
2.4(% 1.94%
3.6%% 6.85%
1.1% 1.5%%
4.0(% 3.05%
(14.129%) (6.47%)
(45.86%) (4.87%)
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As a REIT, we are required to distribisteur shareholders substantially all of our RElXatble income in the form of
dividends. Accordingly, we believe taxable inconee ghare is a meaningful financial measuremeninf@stors and management in
assessing our performance. A reconciliation of R&akable income per share to GAAP EPS (basic)vdlo

Reconciliation of REIT Taxable Income Per Share @AAP EPS

GAAP EPS
Unrealized loss on interest rate sw
Realized loss on sales of investme

REIT taxable income per she

As of and for the

three months For the period
ended March 31, November 21, 2007 to
2008 December 31, 2007
($ 1.46 ($ 0.09
$ 0.8: 0.11
$ 0.87 —
$ 0.24 0.0z
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Common stock offered by t

Common stock to be outstandi
after this offering

Use of proceeds

Our Distribution Policy

THE OFFERING

shares (plus up to an additional shares of our common stock that we r
issue and sell upon the exercise of the underw’ overallotment option)

shares, based upon shares ofrmmnstock outstanding as of ,
2008. Does not include up to an additional shares of our common stock that we
may issue and sell upon the exercise of the underg’roverallotment option. Does
not include 1,301,000 shares of our restricted comstock granted pursuant to our
equity incentive plan. Includes shares to be soléirtnaly concurrently with this
offering.

We intend to invest the net proceeds of this affigprimarily in prime and Alt-A
mortgage loans, non-Agency RMBS, Agency RMBS, aBSACDOs, CMBS and
other consumer or non-consumer ABS. Initially, veedfocused our investment
activities on purchasing residential mortgage Iahas have been originated by
select high-quality originators, including the fetanding operations of leading
commercial banks, and non-Agency RMBS. As the dlilite and acquisition lead
times for residential mortgage loans are longen foa non-Agency RMBS
purchases, our investment portfolio at the outsetdighted toward non-Agency
RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT qualificatiand our 1940 Act exemption,
which may, depending on the composition of our gtreent portfolio, require us to
purchase Agency RMBS or other qualifying asseter@wme we expect that our
investment portfolio will become more weighted todveesidential mortgage loans.
Until appropriate investments can be identified;, Mianager may invest these funds
in interest-bearing short-term investments, inaigdinoney market accounts, which
are consistent with our intention to qualify aslEl'R These investments are
expected to provide a lower net return than we Hoehieve from investments in
our intended use of proceeds of this offering. “Use of Proceec”

Federal income tax law requires that a REIT distétannually at least 90% of its
REIT taxable income, determined without regarchtodeduction for dividends paid
and excluding net capital gain. For more informatiplease see “Certain Federal
Income Tax Consideratior”

In connection with the REIT requirements, we intémdhake regular quarter
distributions of all or substantially all of our REtaxable income to holders of our
common stock out of assets legally available tloereény future distributions we
make will be at the discretion of our board of dices and will depend upon, among




other things, our actual results of operations.séhesults and our ability to p
distributions will be affected by various factoirs;luding the net interest and other
income from ou
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NYSE symbol

Ownership and transfer restrictio

Risk factors

portfolio, our operating expenses and any otheepdjiures. For more information,
please se“Distribution Policy”

We cannot assure you that we will make any distidims to our stockholder
“CIMH

To assist us in complying with limitations on trencentration of ownership of
REIT imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, ourtehgenerally prohibits, among
other prohibitions, any stockholder from benefigiar constructively owning more
than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whiché&senore restrictive, of any class
or series of the outstanding shares of our cagitedk. We have granted a waiver to
Legg Mason Opportunity Trust. The ownership linoit Eegg Mason Opportunity
Trust has been set at 15% of our outstanding dagbitek in the aggregate. See
“Description of Capital Sto—Restrictions on Ownership and Trang”

Investing in our common stock involves a high degvérisk. You should carefull
read and consider the information set forth unéisk Factors” and all other
information in this prospectus before investingur common stock

Unless otherwise indicated, that numbieshares of common stock does not include the shares of our common stock that
may be issued if the underwriters’ overallotmertiapis exercised in full.

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are lezhat 1211 Avenue of Americas, Suite 2902, New Yhidw York 10036. Our telephone
number is 1-866-315-9930. Our website is http://wehimerareit.com The contents of our website are not a part af phdospectus.
We have included our website address only as atiweatextual reference and do not intend it taheactive link to our website.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involvédgh degree of risk. You should carefully consither following risk factors and all other
information contained in this prospectus beforeghasing our common stock. The risks and uncertsrdiescribed below are not the only ¢
facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties tha are unaware of, or that we currently deem immigtealso may become important factc
that affect us.

If any of the following risks occur, dusiness, financial condition or results of opesas could be materially and adversely affected. In
that case, the trading price of our common stoakddecline, and you may lose some or all of youestment.

Risks Associated With Recent Adverse Developments the Mortgage Finance and Credit Markets
Continued weakness in the mortgage market may causearket losses related to our holdings.

The mortgage market, including the maf&eprime and Alt-A loans, has been severely affddy changes in the lending landscape anc
there is no assurance that these conditions habéized or that they will not worsen. The seveofythe liquidity limitation was largely
unanticipated by the markets. For now (and forftheseeable future), access to mortgages has bhbstastially limited. While the limitation
on financing was initially in the sub-prime mortgagarket, the liquidity issues have now also affégirime and Alt-A non-Agency lending,
with mortgage rates remaining much higher thaniptesly available in recent periods and many prodymts being severely curtailed. This
has an impact on new demand for homes, which witiress the home ownership rates and weigh heawifuture home price performance.
There is a strong correlation between home priogvtir rates and mortgage loan delinquencies. Th&ehdeterioration has caused us to
expect increased losses related to our holdingsasell assets at a loss.

For the quarter ended March 31, 2008hag:no impairments on RMBS or whole mortgage loBeslines in the market values of our
investments may adversely affect periodic reporésdits and credit availability, which may redueenéngs and, in turn, cash available for
distribution to our stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets dassified for accounting purposes as “availabledfale.” Changes in the market values of those
assets are directly charged or credited to stoddnslequity. As a result, a decline in values may redheebook value of our assets. Moreo
if the decline in value of an available-for-saleww#y is other than temporary, such decline watiuce earnings.

All of our repurchase agreements and-ésterate swaps are subject to bilateral margils cathe event that the collateral securing our
obligations under those facilities exceeds or dussneet our collateralization requirements. Weyargathe sufficiency of our collateralization
daily, and as of March 31, 2008, on a net basésfair value of the collateral, including restri¢teash, securing our obligations under
repurchase agreements and interest rate swapgdedthe amount of such obligations by approxing&202.5 million. During the quarter
ended March 31, 2008, due to the deterioratiohénnbarket value of our assets, we received maagjis gnder our repurchase agreements,
which resulted in our having to amend our liquidipvenants in one facility, obtain additional fumglfrom third parties, including from Ann:
(See “Certain Relationships and Related Transagtjpand take other steps to increase our liquidigditionally, the disruptions during this
guarter resulted in us not being in compliance Withnet income covenant in our other facility. Werently have no borrowings under that
facility and are negotiating an amendment of thieim@me covenant. Should we receive additionalginacalls, we may not be able to amend
the liquidity covenants or obtain other fundingwié were unable to post additional collateral, veeild have to sell the assets at a time when
we might not otherwise choose to do so and su@s sahy be at a loss. A reduction in credit avadlabay reduce our earnings and, in turn,
cash available to us for distribution to stockhotde

Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key persomhfor our success.

We have no separate offices and are categlreliant on our Manager. We have no employglesr than our officers. Our officers are
also employees of our Manager or its affiliatesiolvthas significant discretion as to the implemgaoteof our investment and operating
policies and strategies. Accordingly, we dependhendiligence, skill and network of business cotstad the senior management of our
Manager. Our Manager’s employees evaluate, negpsaucture, close and monitor our investmentsrgfore, our success will depend on our
Manager’s senior managers’ continued service. Bpadure of any of the senior managers of our Manag
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could have a material adverse effect on our pedoa. In addition, we can offer no assurance thaManager will remain our investment
manager or that we will continue to have accessitdVlanager’s senior managers. Our managementragregavith our Manager only extends
until December 31, 2010. If the management agreeia¢arminated and no suitable replacement isddormanage us, we may not be able to
execute our business plan. Moreover, our Managastiebligated to dedicate certain of its employ@adusively to us nor is it obligated to
dedicate any specific portion of its time to ousimess, and none of our Manager’'s employees ateactmally dedicated to us under our
management agreement with our Manager. The onljames of our Manager who are primarily dedicatedur operations are Christian J.
Woschenko, our Head of Investments, and WillianDBer, our Head of Underwriting.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our Manager and Annaly, which could result indecisions that are not in your bes
interests.

We are subject to potential conflictsraérest arising out of our relationship with Ampaind our Manager. An Annaly executive officer
is our Manager's sole director, two of Annaly’s dayees are our directors, and several of Annalgipleyees are officers of our Manager and
us. Specifically, each of our officers also seraesin employee of our Manager or its affiliatesaAesult, our Manager and our officers may
have conflicts between their duties to us and ttheiies to, and interests in, Annaly or our Managéere may also be conflicts in allocating
investments which are suitable both for us and Anas well as other FIDAC managed funds. Annaly roampete with us with respect to
certain investments which we may want to acquine, @s a result we may either not be presentedthatiopportunity or have to compete with
Annaly to acquire these investments. Our Managdroam officers may choose to allocate favorablegtments to Annaly instead of to us. -
ability of our Manager and its officers and empley¢o engage in other business activities may ethetime our Manager spends managing
us. Further, during turbulent conditions in the tgage industry, distress in the credit marketstbeitimes when we will need focused support
and assistance from our Manager, other entities/foch our Manager also acts as an investment neauveit] likewise require greater focus
and attention, placing our Manager’s resourcesgh Hemand. In such situations, we may not recéigenecessary support and assistance we
require or would otherwise receive if we were intdly managed or if our Manager did not act as aagar for other entities. There is no
assurance that the allocation policy that addresse® of the conflicts relating to our investmentlich is described under “Business —
Conflicts of Interest,” will be adequate to addraBf the conflicts that may arise. In additiove have entered into a repurchase agreement
with Annaly, our Manager’s parent, to finance oMBS. This financing arrangement may make us lésdylito terminate our Manager. It
could also give rise to further conflicts becausm@ly may be a creditor of ours. As one of our itees, Annaly’s interests may diverge from
the interests of our stockholders.

We pay our Manager substantial managefeestregardless of the performance of our poaf@ur Manages entitlement to substant
nonperformance-based compensation might reduagcitsitive to devote its time and effort to seekimgestments that provide attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our portfolio. This in turrutebhurt both our ability to make distributionsdar stockholders and the market price of our
common stock. Annaly owns approximately 9.6% of autstanding shares of common stock which entilem to receive quarterly
distributions based on financial performance. laleating investments and other management stratethis may lead our Manager to place
emphasis on the maximization of revenues at theresgof other criteria, such as preservation otalapnvestments with higher yield
potential are generally riskier or more speculatiMais could result in increased risk to the vadfieur invested portfolio. Annaly may sell the
shares in us purchased concurrently with our intigolic offering at any time after the earlier(@fNovember 15, 2010 or (ii) the termination
of the management agreement. Annaly may sell taeeshin us purchased concurrently with this offganany time after the earlier of (i) the
date which is three years following the date of fiospectus or (ii) the termination of the managetragreement. To the extent Annaly sells
some of its shares, its interests may be lessedigvith our interests.

Our incentive fee may induce our Manager to make c¢tain investments, including speculative investmerst

In addition to its management fee, ounbtger is entitled to receive incentive compensédtiased, in part, upon our achievement of
targeted levels of Core Earnings. In evaluatinggtments and other management strategies, thetopipto earn incentive compensation
based on net income may lead our Manager to pladeauemphasis on the maximization of net incombeexpense of other criteria, such as
preservation of capital, to achieve higher incenttempensation. Investments with higher yield ptaéare generally riskier or more
speculative. This could result in increased risth®value of our invested portfolio.
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The management agreement with our Manager was notagotiated on an arn’s-length basis and may not be as favorable to us dsti
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third pary and may be costly and difficult to terminate.

Our president, chief financial officegdd of investments, treasurer, controller, segretad head of underwriting also serve as
employees of our Manager or its affiliates. In éiddi, certain of our directors are employees of danager or its affiliates. Our management
agreement with our Manager was negotiated betwalated parties, and its terms, including fees pleyabay not be as favorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third yparermination of the management agreement withMamager without cause is difficult and
costly. Our independent directors will review ouaihger’s performance and the management fees dnrarad following the initial term, the
management agreement may be terminated annuallg fsthout cause upon the affirmative vote of astdwo-thirds of our independent
directors, or by a vote of the holders of at leastajority of the outstanding shares of our comistock (other than those shares held by An
or its affiliates), based upon: (i) our Managensatisfactory performance that is materially de¢rimal to us, or (ii) a determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npsfdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent terrtiovabased on unfair fees by accepting a
reduction of management fees agreed to by atteasthirds of our independent directors. We mustvjate our Manager with 180-days’ prior
notice of any such termination. Additionally, upsuch termination, the management agreement prothdésve will pay our Manager a
termination fee equal to three times the sum ofH{@)average annual base management fee and @yehege annual incentive compensation
earned by our Manager during the prior 24-montfiopsefore such termination, calculated as of thek & the most recently completed fiscal
quarter. These provisions may adversely affectatility to terminate our Manager without cause. ®lanager is only contractually commiti
to serve us until December 31, 2010. Thereaftermihnagement agreement is renewable on an anrsig| bawever, our Manager may
terminate the management agreement annually up@udys’ prior notice. If the management agreemeteriminated and no suitable
replacement is found to manage us, we may not leet@lexecute our business plan.

Our board of directors has approved very broad invetment guidelines for our Manager and will not appove each investment decision
made by our Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow verpad investment guidelines. Our board of direcp@nsodically reviews our investment
guidelines and our investment portfolio, but doet and is not required to, review all of our pregd investments or any type or category of
investment, except that an investment in a secstityctured or managed by our Manager must be apgroy a majority of our independent
directors. In addition, in conducting periodic r@wi, our board of directors relies primarily oroimhation provided to them by our Manager.
Furthermore, our Manager uses complex strategiestransactions entered into by our Manager magiffieult or impossible to unwind by
the time they are reviewed by our board of direct@ur Manager has great latitude within the biogdstment guidelines in determining the
types of assets it may decide are proper invessrfenus, which could result in investment retuitmest are substantially below expectations or
that result in losses, which would materially adeersely affect our business operations and redtutgher, decisions made and investments
entered into by our Manager may not be in your rgstests.

We may change our investment strategy, asset alldaan, or financing plans without stockholder conseh which may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategetaalocation, or financing plans at any time withthe consent of our stockholders, which
could result in our making investments that aréedént from, and possibly riskier than, the investits described in this prospectus. A change
in our investment strategy or financing plans nmayréase our exposure to interest rate and defaldland real estate market fluctuations.
Furthermore, a change in our asset allocation ceddlt in our making investments in asset categdatifferent from those described in this
prospectus. These changes could adversely affechéinket price of our common stock and our abiiitynake distributions to you. Our
Manager has an incentive to invest our funds ileétment vehicles managed by our Manager becaubke pbssibility of generating an
additional incremental management fee, which mdycee other investment opportunities available to us

While investments in investment vehigtesnaged by our Manager require approval by a nigjofiour independent directors, our
Manager has an incentive to invest our funds iestwment vehicles managed by our Manager becauke pbssibility of generating an
additional incremental management fee, which mdyce other investment opportunities available tdruaddition, we cannot assure you that
investments in investment vehicles managed by camader will prove beneficial to us.
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We may invest in CDOs managed by our Manager, inclling the purchase or sale of all or a portion of th equity of such CDOs, whict
may result in an immediate loss in book value andrpsent a conflict of interest between us and our Maager.

We may invest in securities of CDOs maatblgy our Manager. If all of the securities of a@Banaged by our Manager were not fully
placed as a result of our not investing, our Managald experience losses due to changes in the wdlthe underlying investments
accumulated in anticipation of the launch of suolestment vehicle. The accumulated investmentdb@ transaction are generally sold at
the price at which they were purchased and nopteeailing market price at closing. Accordingly the extent we invest in a portion of the
equity securities for which there has been a datation of value since the securities were purathase would experience an immediate loss
equal to the decrease in the market value of tdenlying investment. As a result, the interestewf Manager in our investing in such a CDO
may conflict with our interests and your interests.

Our investment focus is different from those of otbr entities that are or have been managed by our Meger.

Our investment focus is different fronosle of other entities that are or have been managedr Manager. In particular, entities
managed by our Manager have not purchased wholgag® loans or structured whole loan securitizatiém addition, our Manager has
limited experience in managing CDOs and investinGDOs, non-Agency RMBS, CMBS and other ABS whighmay pursue as part of our
investment strategy. Accordingly, our Manager’'sdrisal returns are not indicative of its perforrnarfor our investment strategy and we can
offer no assurance that our Manager will replichtehistorical performance of the Manager’s investtrprofessionals in their previous
endeavors. Our investment returns could be subsigiower than the returns achieved by our Mamagi@vestment professionals’ previous
endeavors.

We compete with investment vehicles of our Managdor access to our Manager’s resources and investmeopportunities.

Our Manager provides investment and fifgradvice to a number of investment vehicles somde of our Manager's personnel are also
employees of Annaly and in that capacity are ingdlin Annaly’s investment process. Accordingly, wi# compete with our Manager’s other
investment vehicles and with Annaly for our Manageesources. Our Manager may sponsor and manbgeiavestment vehicles with an
investment focus that overlaps with ours, whichldwasult in us competing for access to the bendfiat we expect our relationship with our
Manager will provide to us.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have limited operating history and may not operte successfully or generate sufficient revenue toake or sustain distributions to
you.

We were organized in June 2007 and cornoegenperations in November 2007 and have limitextating history. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to operate our business sisfolys or implement our operating policies and &gaes described in this prospectus. The
results of our operations depend on many factocduding the availability of opportunities for thequisition of assets, the valuation of our
assets, the level and volatility of interest rateadily accessible short and long-term financind the terms of the financing, conditions in the
financial markets and economic conditions.

Failure to procure adequate capital and funding orfavorable terms, or at all, would adversely affecbur results and may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of shares of oucommon stock and our ability to distribute dividerds to you.

We depend upon the availability of adegdanding and capital for our operations. We idtémfinance our assets over the long-term
through a variety of means, including repurchaseagents, credit facilities, securitizations, coreisg paper and CDOs. Our access to ca
depends upon a number of factors over which we litieeor no control, including:

. general market condition

. the marke’'s perception of our growth potenti

. our current and potential future earnings and cistnibutions;
. the market price of the shares of our capital stackl
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. the marke’'s view of the quality of our asse

The current situation in the sub-primertgage sector, and the current weakness in thelbraaortgage market, could adversely affect
one or more of our potential lenders and could eaune or more of our potential lenders to be uivglbr unable to provide us with financing
or require us to post additional collateral. In i@, this could potentially increase our financaugts and reduce our liquidity or require us to
sell assets at an inopportune time or price.

We expect to use a number of sourcemémée our investments, including repurchase ageatsnwarehouse facilities, securitizations,
asset-backed commercial paper and term CDOs. QGumarket conditions have affected the cost andabitity of financing from each of
these sources — and their individual providers —different degrees; some sources generally areailable, some are available but at a high
cost, and some are largely unaffected. For exariiptee repurchase agreement market, borrowers hese affected differently depending on
the type of security they are financing. Non-AgeRiyBS have been harder to finance, depending otygeeof assets collateralizing the
RMBS. The amount, term and margin requirementsciatsal with these types of financings have beemtiag)y impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finanghole loan prime residential mortgages are gdperaailable from major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and greater margin reguients than previously offered. Many major banlks dffer warehouse facilities have also
reduced the amount of capital available to newagri$rand consequently the size of those facilitfeered now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market ¢orh finance whole loans through securitizationamds issued by a CDO structure. The highly
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and 8R@@tures currently have liquidity, but at muclier spreads than issues priced earlier this
year. The junior subordinate tranches of thesettras currently have few buyers and current mar&etlitions have forced issuers to ret
these lower rated bonds rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of asset-backed commigrajzer (or ABCP) have been unable to place (dy ttodir securities, which has resulted, in
some instances, in forced sales of mortgage-basteudrities, or MBS, and other securities whichfaher negatively impacted the market
value of these assets. These market conditionfuddeand likely to change over time.

As a result, the execution of our investinstrategy may be dictated by the cost and dititijaof financing from these different sources.

If one or more major market participagsout of business or otherwise experience a ntigjoidity crisis, as was the case for Bear
Stearns in March 2008, it could adversely affeetrtiarketability of all fixed income securities ahs could negatively impact the value of the
securities we acquire, thus reducing our net baile:

Furthermore, if many of our potentialdens are unwilling or unable to provide us withefiicing, we could be forced to sell our secur
or residential mortgage loans at an inopportune tivhen prices are depressed. For example, foruheey ended March 31, 2008, we sold
assets with a carrying value of $394.2 million éoraggregate loss of $32.8 million.

We cannot assure you that these marki#iteewain an efficient source of long-term finangifor our assets. If our strategy is not viable,
we will have to find alternative forms of financifigr our assets which may not be available. Furthemla REIT, we are required to distribute
annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable incormetermined without regard to the deduction for dévids paid and excluding net capital gain,
to you and are therefore not able to retain sigaift amounts of our earnings for new investments céhnot assure you that any, or sufficient,
funding or capital will be available to us in theédre on terms that are acceptable to us. If waataobtain sufficient funding on acceptable
terms, there may be a negative impact on the market of our common stock and our ability to maigtributions to you. Moreover, our
ability to grow will be dependent on our ability poocure additional funding. To the extent we aseable to raise additional funds through the
issuance of additional equity or borrowings, owvgh will be constrained.

We operate in a highly competitive market for invesment opportunities and more established competita may be able to compete mot
effectively for investment opportunities than we ca.

A number of entities compete with us takethe types of investments that we plan to mélecompete with other REITs, public and
private funds, commercial and investment bankscmdmercial finance companies.
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Many of our competitors are substantially larged Aave considerably greater financial, technicdl marketing resources than we do. Several
other REITs have recently raised, or are expectedise, significant amounts of capital, and mayehiavestment objectives that overlap with
ours, which may create competition for investmegrgartunities. Some competitors may have a lower @bfunds and access to funding
sources that are not available to us. In addisome of our competitors may have higher risk toleea or different risk assessments, which
could allow them to consider a wider variety oféstments and establish more favorable relationgshgswe can. We cannot assure you that
the competitive pressures we face will not haveatenml adverse effect on our business, finan@abion and results of operations. Also, ¢
result of this competition, we may not be ableatketadvantage of attractive investment opportusftiem time to time, and we can offer no
assurance that we will be able to identify and makestments that are consistent with our investrobjectives.

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely aff¢ us and negatively affect the market price of stras of our common stock and our
ability to distribute dividends and could result in the termination of the management agreement withw Manager.

We operate our company so that we willberequired to register as an investment compadgr the 1940 Act because we are
“primarily engaged in the business of purchasingtherwise acquiring mortgages and other lienammhinterests in real estate.” Specifically,
our investment strategy is to invest at least 55%uo assets in mortgage loans, RMBS that reprebkergntire ownership in a pool of mortg:
loans and other qualifying interests in real essaig approximately an additional 25% of our assetdher types of mortgages, RMBS,
securities of REITs and other real estate-relagséta. As a result, we are limited in our abilityntake certain investments. If we fail to qualify
for this exemption in the future, we could be regdito restructure our activities in a manner thrat a time when we would not otherwise
choose to do so, which could negatively affectvlileie of shares of our common stock, the sustdihabf our business model, and our ability
to make distributions. For example, if the markaue of our investments in securities were to iaseeby an amount that resulted in less than
55% of our assets being invested in mortgage loaRMBS that represent the entire ownership in@ pbmortgage loans or less than 80% of
our assets being invested in real estate-relatatsasve might have to sell securities to quabiyeixemption under the 1940 Act. The sale
could occur during adverse market conditions, aaccould be forced to accept a price below that vhie believe is acceptable. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the laws and regpdaoverning REITS, including regulations issbigdhe Division of Investment
Management of the SEC, providing more specificifiedent guidance regarding the treatment of assetgualifying real estate assets or real
estate-related assets, will not change in a mahaéradversely affects our operations. A loss afik840 Act exemption would allow our
Manager to terminate the management agreemenugijtiwhich would materially adversely affect ouribess and operations.

Rapid changes in the values of our residential mogage loans, RMBS, and other real estate-related irgtments may make it more
difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potentifibaor residential mortgage loans, RMBS, and otkat estate-related investments declines as a
result of increased interest rates, prepaymens @tether factors, we may need to increase oliegtate investments and income or liquidate
our non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT dfication or our exemption from the 1940 Act. ltldecline in real estate asset values or
income occurs quickly, this may be especially diffi to accomplish. This difficulty may be exacesdzhby the illiquid nature of any non-real
estate assets we may own. We may have to maketimsesdecisions that we otherwise would not maleeabthe REIT and 1940 Act
considerations.

We leverage our investments, which may adverselyfatt our return on our investments and may reduceash available for distribution
to you.

We leverage our investments through baings, generally through the use of repurchaseemgeats, warehouse facilities, credit
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper afalds. We are not required to maintain any speciiotdo-equity ratio. The amount of levere
we use varies depending on our ability to obtagditrfacilities, the lenders’ and rating agenciestimates of the stability of the investments’
cash flow, and our assessment of the appropriateianof leverage for the particular assets we aneihg. We are required to maintain
minimum average cash balances in connection wittolxngs under our credit facilities. Our return @ur investments and cash available for
distribution to you may be reduced to the exteat tthanges in market conditions prevent us frorarkeging our investments, require us to
decrease our rate of leverage, or increase thetnobgollateral we post or increase the cost offmancing relative to the income that can be
derived from the
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assets acquired. Our debt service payments willaedash flow available for distributions to yolhigh could adversely affect the price of our
common stock. We may not be able to meet our dalitce obligations, and, to the extent that we cénwe risk the loss of some or all of our
assets to foreclosure or sale to satisfy the ofitiga. We leverage certain of our assets througbrohase agreements. A decrease in the value
of these assets may lead to margin calls which iédave to satisfy. We may not have the funds kmdé to satisfy any such margin calls and
we may be forced to sell assets at significantlyressed prices due to market conditions or othendlibe satisfaction of such margin calls r
reduce cash flow available for distribution to yéuny reduction in distributions to you or salesaskets at inopportune times or at a loss, may
cause the value of our common stock to declinepime cases, precipitously.

We depend on warehouse and repurchase facilitiegiedit facilities and commercial paper to execute aubusiness plan, and our inability
to access funding could have a material adverse eéft on our results of operations, financial conditin and business.

Our ability to fund our investments deggto a large extent upon our ability to secureslvause, repurchase, credit, and commercial
paper financing on acceptable terms. Pending thgrisieation of a pool of mortgage loans, if anye will fund the acquisition of mortgage
loans through borrowings from warehouse, repurcherse credit facilities and commercial paper. We peovide no assurance that we will be
successful in establishing sufficient warehousgurehase, and credit facilities and issuing comimkpaper. In addition, because warehouse,
repurchase, and credit facilities and commercipkpare short-term commitments of capital, the éesdnay respond to market conditions,
which may favor an alternative investment strategythem, making it more difficult for us to securentinued financing. During certain
periods of the credit cycle such as has been ecefecently, lenders may curtail their willingnésgrovide financing. If we are not able to
renew our then existing warehouse, repurchaseci@utit facilities and issue commercial paper oamge for new financing on terms
acceptable to us, or if we default on our covenantsre otherwise unable to access funds undeoftmese facilities, we will have to curtail
our asset acquisition activities.

It is possible that the lenders that fews with financing could experience changesdirtability to advance funds to us, independent
of our performance or the performance of our inwmesits, including our mortgage loans. In additibthé regulatory capital requirements
imposed on our lenders change, they may be reqtarsiginificantly increase the cost of the wareloiagilities that they provide to us. Our
lenders also may revise their eligibility requirarteefor the types of residential mortgage loanyg #ive willing to finance or the terms of such
financings, based on, among other factors, thelagmy environment and their management of perekenisk, particularly with respect to
assignee liability. Financing of equity-based lewglifor example, may become more difficult in th&ufe. Moreover, the amount of financing
we will receive under our warehouse and repurcfexskties will be directly related to the lendersluation of the assets that secure the
outstanding borrowings. Typically warehouse, repase, and credit facilities grant the respectinelée the absolute right to reevaluate the
market value of the assets that secure outstatdirrgwings at any time. If a lender determinedsrsple discretion that the value of the assets
has decreased, it has the right to initiate a maegil. A margin call would require us to transéeiditional assets to such lender without any
advance of funds from the lender for such transfeo repay a portion of the outstanding borrowirfgsy such margin call could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatifinancial condition, business, liquidity andlapito make distributions to you, and could
cause the value of our common stock to declinenvalg be forced to sell assets at significantly deged prices to meet such margin calls and
to maintain adequate liquidity, which could causeaiincur losses. Moreover, to the extent we arestl to sell assets at such time, given
market conditions, we may be forced to sell assetise same time as others facing similar presgarssll similar assets, which could greatly
exacerbate a difficult market environment and wideohld result in our incurring significantly greatesses on our sale of such assets. In an
extreme case of market duress, a market may notlev@resent for certain of our assets at any price

The current dislocation in the spfime mortgage sector, and the current weaknetbeibroader mortgage market, could adversely
one or more of our potential lenders and could eaure or more of our potential lenders to be uivglbr unable to provide us with financing.
This could potentially increase our financing castsl reduce our liquidity. If one or more major kedrparticipants fails or otherwise
experience, a major liquidity crisis, as was thgeckmr Bear Stearns in March 2008, it could negétiimpact the marketability of all fixed
income securities, including Agency and non-AgeR8BS, residential mortgage loans and real estdaeck securities, and this could
negatively impact the value of the securities wguée, thus reducing our net book value. Furtheemifimany of our potential lenders are
unwilling or unable to provide us with financingewould be forced to sell our assets at an inoppertime when prices are depressed.
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Continued adverse developments in the residential antgage market could make it difficult for us to barow money to acquire
investments on a leveraged basis, which could adweely affect our profitability.

We intend to rely on the availabilityfofancing to acquire residential mortgage loanal estate-related securities and real estate loans
on a leveraged basis. Institutions from which wk sdek to obtain financing may have owned or foethresidential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and real estate loarshwiaive declined in value and caused them to siai§ses as a result of the recent downturn in
the residential mortgage market. If these condétipersist, these institutions may become insoleetighten their lending standards, which
could make it more difficult for us to obtain fireing on favorable terms or at all. Our profitalyilihay be adversely affected if we were unable
to obtain cost-effective financing for our investitse

Certain of our financing facilities contain covenans that restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to grow our business and
increase revenues.

Certain of our financing facilities coimaxtensive restrictions, covenants, and reprasents and warranties that, among other things,
require us to satisfy specified financial, assetligg loan eligibility and loan performance tedfswe fail to meet or satisfy any of these
covenants or representations and warranties, wédvib@uin default under these agreements and odetsrcould elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under the agreements to be immedidtedyand payable, enforce their respective inteeggigst collateral pledged under such
agreements and restrict our ability to make additidoorrowings. Certain of our financing agreememtstain crosstefault provisions, so that
a default occurs under any one agreement, the dienaheler our other agreements could also decldedaault. The covenants and restrictions
expect in our financing facilities may restrict @bility to, among other things:

. incur or guarantee additional de

. make certain investments or acquisitic

. make distributions on or repurchase or redeem alagibck;
. engage in mergers or consolidatio

. finance mortgage loans with certain attribu

. reduce liquidity below certain level

. grant liens:

. incur operating losses for more than a specifigtbfe

. enter into transactions with affiliates; a

. hold mortgage loans for longer than establishee periods

These restrictions may interfere with ability to obtain financing, including the finamg needed to qualify as a REIT, or to engage in
other business activities, which may significamtérm our business, financial condition, liquiditydaresults of operations. A default and
resulting repayment acceleration could significantiduce our liquidity, which could require us &l ®ur assets to repay amounts due and
outstanding. This could also significantly harm business, financial condition, results of operaticand our ability to make distributions,
which could cause the value of our common stodadetdine. A default will also significantly limit adfinancing alternatives such that we will
be unable to pursue our leverage strategy, whialdamurtail our investment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities amdedit facilities and commercial paper that we us¢o finance our investments may
require us to provide additional collateral and mayrestrict us from leveraging our assets as fully adesired.

We will use repurchase agreements, waishacilities, credit facilities and commerciappato finance our investments. We currently
have repurchase agreements with 13 counterpart@gding Annaly, for financing our RMBS and twgorechase agreements with two
counterparties for financing our residential mogtgdoans. If the market value of the loans or sdeamledged or sold by us to a funding
source decline in value, we may be required byehding institution to provide additional collateca pay down a portion of the funds
advanced, but we may not have the funds availabii® tso. Posting additional collateral will redwee liquidity and limit our ability to
leverage our assets, which could adversely affecbasiness. In the event we do not have sufficient
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liguidity to meet such requirements, lending ingi@ns can accelerate repayment of our indebtediresgase our borrowing rates, liquidate
our collateral or terminate our ability to borro8uch a situation would likely result in a rapidet@ration of our financial condition and
possibly necessitate a filing for protection unter U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Further, financial ingt@ins may require us to maintain a certain
amount of cash that is not invested or to set asittelevered assets sufficient to maintain a sftifquidity position which would allow us to
satisfy our collateral obligations. As a result, nvay not be able to leverage our assets as fullyeasould choose, which could reduce our
return on equity. If we are unable to meet thedlateval obligations, then, as described above fioancial condition could deteriorate rapidly.

If the counterparty to our repurchase transactionsdefaults on its obligation to resell the underlyingsecurity back to us at the end of the
transaction term, or if the value of the underlyingsecurity has declined as of the end of that termraf we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will lose monen our repurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaati® generally sell securities to the transaatiounterparty and receive cash from the
counterparty. The counterparty is obligated toltéle securities back to us at the end of the tefithe transaction, which is typically 30-90
days. Because the cash we receive from the coantgnphen we initially sell the securities to trmuaterparty is less than the value of those
securities (this difference is referred to as thiedut), if the counterparty defaults on its obtiga to resell the securities back to us we would
incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amolitite haircut (assuming there was no changedivaitue of the securities). For example, |
Stearns is one of our counterparties under a repgecagreement for financing our RMBS. In March@®kar Stearns experienced financial
difficulties and on March 16, 2008, Bear Stearng #Morgan Chase & Co. entered into a merger agnegpursuant to which Bear Stearns
will become a subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase. AsuokR2, 2008 we had no amounts outstanding underepurchase agreement with Bear
Stearns.

We would also lose money on a repurclrasesaction if the value of the underlying secasithas declined as of the end of the transe
term, as we would have to repurchase the secufitigheir initial value but would receive secuggtiworth less than that amount. Any losse
incur on our repurchase transactions could adweestdct our earnings, and thus our cash availfsldistribution to you. If we default on one
of our obligations under a repurchase transacti@counterparty can terminate the transactionceade entering into any other repurchase
transactions with us. In that case, we would likeded to establish a replacement repurchase yawilih another repurchase dealer in order to
continue to leverage our portfolio and carry out iowestment strategy. There is no assurance wédidmmiable to establish a suitable
replacement facility.

Our rights under our repurchase agreements will besubject to the effects of the bankruptcy laws in tb event of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of us or our lenders under the repurchasagreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankoyp certain repurchase agreements may qualifggecial treatment under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, the effect of which, among other things, wdg to allow the lender under the applicable relpase agreement to avoid the automatic
stay provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code anfibteclose on the collateral agreement without ddlayhe event of the insolvency or
bankruptcy of a lender during the term of a repasehagreement, the lender may be permitted, upgdicable insolvency laws, to repudiate
the contract, and our claim against the lended&nages may be treated simply as an unsecuredocrédiaddition, if the lender is a broker
dealer subject to the Securities Investor Protactiot of 1970, or an insured depository institutgabject to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
our ability to exercise our rights to recover oecwrities under a repurchase agreement or to bpexsated for any damages resulting from
lender’s insolvency may be further limited by thasatutes. These claims would be subject to sigiti delay and, if and when received, may
be substantially less than the damages we actinally.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to thénterest we receive on our assets may adversely edf our profitability, and thus our
cash available for distribution to you.

As our repurchase agreements and otleet-sdrm borrowings mature, we will be requiredheitto enter into new borrowings or to sell
certain of our investments. An increase in shamtaterest rates at the time that we seek to éntemew borrowings would reduce the spread
between our returns on our assets and the costrdfasrowings. This would adversely affect our rauon our assets that are subject to
prepayment risk, including our mortgage-backed stes, which might reduce earnings and, in tuastcavailable for distribution to you.
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If we issue senior securities we will be exposed aalditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securitiethe future, it is likely that they will be govesth by an indenture or other instrument containing
covenants restricting our operating flexibility. ditionally, any convertible or exchangeable se@sithat we issue in the future may have
rights, preferences and privileges more favoratéa those of our common stock and may result utidih to owners of our common stock. '
and, indirectly, you, will bear the cost of issuigd servicing such securities.

Our securitizations will expose us to additional $ks.

On April 24, 2008 we sponsored a $619illilan securitization, a long-term financing trastian whereby we securitized our then-
current inventory of mortgage loans. We have stingct and expect to continue to structure thessactions so that they are treated as
financing transactions, and not as sales, for t@decome tax purposes. In each such transactienweuld convey a pool of assets to a special
purpose vehicle, the issuing entity, and the iggeintity would issue one or more classes of nootnee notes pursuant to the terms of an
indenture. The notes would be secured by the ploadsets. In exchange for the transfer of asseteetssuing entity, we would receive the
cash proceeds of the sale of hon-recourse notea 408% interest in the equity of the issuing gnfihe securitization of our portfolio
investments might magnify our exposure to lossethose portfolio investments because any equitrést we retain in the issuing entity
would be subordinate to the notes issued to investod we would, therefore, absorb all of the Isssestained with respect to a securitized
of assets before the owners of the notes experemgéosses. Moreover, we cannot be assured thatilvee able to access the securitization
market, or be able to do so at favorable rates.iffduglity to securitize our portfolio could hurtioperformance and our ability to grow our
business.

The use of CDO financings with over-collateralizathn requirements may have a negative impact on outash flow.

We expect that the terms of CDOs we npensor will generally provide that the principal@mt of assets must exceed the principal
balance of the related bonds by a certain amoonipwnly referred to as “over-collateralizationWe anticipate that the CDO terms will
provide that, if certain delinquencies or losseseexl the specified levels based on the analysikebgating agencies (or any financial guaranty
insurer) of the characteristics of the assets tldizing the bonds, the required level of oveltateralization may be increased or may be
prevented from decreasing as would otherwise bmifted if losses or delinquencies did not exceeddhlevels. Other tests (based on
delinquency levels or other criteria) may restoat ability to receive net income from assets ¢ettaizing the obligations. We cannot assure
you that the performance tests will be satisfiacadvance of completing negotiations with the gatigencies or other key transaction partie
our future CDO financings, we cannot assure yothefactual terms of the CDO delinquency tests,-cedlateralization terms, cash flow
release mechanisms or other significant factorardigg the calculation of net income to us. Givecent volatility in the CDO market, rating
agencies may depart from historic practices for db@ncings, making them more costly for us. F&lto obtain favorable terms with regard
to these matters may materially and adversely effecavailability of net income to us. If our assfail to perform as anticipated, our over-
collateralization or other credit enhancement espassociated with our CDO financings will increase

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adversehffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to you.

Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, we utilize various hedging strategiesetek to reduce our exposure to losses from
adverse changes in interest rates. Our hedgingtgiotaries in scope based on the level and vdthatiif interest rates, the type of assets held
and other changing market conditions. Interesthatiging may fail to protect or could adverselyaffus because, among other things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, partigutarting periods of rising and volatile interesiesg
. available interest rate hedges may not correspoadtly with the interest rate risk for which prot®n is sought
. the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdhe related liability

. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from rdzansactions (other than through taxable REilds&liaries, or TRSs) to
offset interest rate losses is limited by fedeaalprovisions governing REIT
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. the credit quality of the party owing money on Heglge may be downgraded to such an extent thapdirs our ability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

. the party owing money in the hedging transactioy gefault on its obligation to pa

Our hedging transactions, which are idézhto limit losses, may actually limit gains andrease our exposure to losses. For exampl
suffered unrealized losses from hedges in the guartded March 31, 2008. As a result, our hedgitigity may adversely affect our earnings,
which could reduce our cash available for distidouto you. In addition, hedging instruments inv@hsk since they often are not traded on
regulated exchanges, guaranteed by an exchangeaearing house, or regulated by any U.S. onidorgovernmental authorities.
Consequently, there are no requirements with rédpeecord keeping, financial responsibility ogsegation of customer funds and positions.
Furthermore, the enforceability of agreements ugitey derivative transactions may depend on commgpkawith applicable statutory and
commodity and other regulatory requirements andedding on the identity of the counterparty, a@iie international requirements. The
business failure of a hedging counterparty with mhee enter into a hedging transaction will mosglykresult in its default. Default by a party
with whom we enter into a hedging transaction mesplt in the loss of unrealized profits and forsdaicover our commitments, if any, at the
then current market price. Although generally w# seek to reserve the right to terminate our hedgiositions, it may not always be possible
to dispose of or close out a hedging position wittthe consent of the hedging counterparty, andnag not be able to enter into an offsetting
contract in order to cover our risk. We cannot esgou that a liquid secondary market will exist iedging instruments purchased or sold,
we may be required to maintain a position untilreige or expiration, which could result in losses.

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in ngating the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax rearments, we have employed and intend to contingentgloy techniques that limit, or “hedge,”
the adverse effects of rising interest rates onshort-term repurchase agreements. In generaheaiging strategy depends on our view of our
entire portfolio, consisting of assets, liabiliti@sd derivative instruments, in light of prevailingirket conditions. We could misjudge the
condition of our investment portfolio or the market

Our hedging activity will vary in scopaded on the level and volatility of interest reded principal repayments, the type of securities
held and other changing market conditions. Ouradtadging decisions will be determined in lightted facts and circumstances existing at
the time and may differ from our currently antidigéh hedging strategy. These techniques may in@utiring into interest rate caps, collars,
floors, forward contracts, futures or swap agregmeite may conduct certain hedging transactiorsutfin a TRS, which will be subject to
federal, state and, if applicable, local income tax

There are no perfect hedging strategied,interest rate hedging may fail to protect osffoss. Alternatively, we may fail to properly
assess a risk to our investment portfolio or méytdarecognize a risk entirely leaving us exposetbsses without the benefit of any offsetting
hedging activities. The derivative financial instrents we select may not have the effect of redusurgnterest rate risk. The nature and tin
of hedging transactions may influence the effectdss of these strategies. Poorly designed strategienproperly executed transactions could
actually increase our risk and losses. In additi@uging activities could result in losses if tert against which we hedge does not occur
example, interest rate hedging could fail to protecor adversely affect us because, among otivegsth

. available interest rate hedging may not corresptiregttly with the interest rate risk for which peotion is sought
. the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdhe related liability

. as explained in further detail in the risk factmmediately below, the party owing money in the hedgransaction may defat
on its obligation to pay

. the credit quality of the party owing money on tieglge may be downgraded to such an extent thrapdirs our ability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

. the value of derivatives used for hedging may hasted from time to time in accordance with accontules to reflect chang
in fair value. Downward adjustments,“mark-to-market losse” would reduce our stockhold’ equity.
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Whether the derivatives we acquire acghieedge accounting treatment under Statement ahEial Accounting Standards No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirdivities, or SFAS 133, or not, hedging generally involvests and risks. Our hedging
strategies may adversely affect us because hedgingties involve costs that we will incur regaegs of the effectiveness of the hedging
activity. Those costs may be higher in periods afket volatility, both because the counterpartiesur derivative agreements may demand a
higher payment for taking risks, and because repeadjustments of our hedges during periods ofésteate changes also may increase costs.
Especially if our hedging strategies are not effectwe could incur significant hedging-relatedtsosithout any corresponding economic
benefits.

We have elected not to qualify for hedge accountingeatment.

We record derivative and hedge transastin accordance with SFAS 133. We have electedongpaalify for hedge accounting
treatment. As a result, our operating results méfesbecause losses on the derivatives that wer @rtb may not be offset by a change in the
fair value of the related hedged transaction.

Declines in the market values of our investments nyaadversely affect periodic reported results and adit availability, which may
reduce earnings and, in turn, cash available for ditribution to you.

A substantial portion of our assets dassified for accounting purposes as “availablegfale” and carried at fair value. Changes in the
market values of those assets will be directly gadror credited to other comprehensive incomedtition, a decline in values will reduce the
book value of our assets. A decline in the markdtier of our assets may adversely affect us, péatigun instances where we have borrowed
money based on the market value of those asséite harket value of those assets declines, thlietanay require us to post additional
collateral to support the loan. If we were unabl@adst the additional collateral, we would haveet the assets at a time when we might not
otherwise choose to do so and such sales mayamss. A reduction in credit available may redageearnings and, in turn, cash available
distribution to you.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

We have invested and may continue toshiresecurities or other instruments that ardigatd. It may be difficult or impossible to
obtain third party pricing on the investments weghase. llliquid investments typically experienceajer price volatility as a ready market
does not exist. In addition, validating third paptycing for illiquid investments may be more suttjee than more liquid investments. The
illiquidity of our investments may make it diffidufior us to sell such investments if the need @irdearises. In addition, if we are required to
liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quicklye may realize significantly less than the vatierhich we have previously recorded our
investments. As a result, our ability to vary oortfolio in response to changes in economic androtbnditions may be relatively limited,
which could adversely affect our results of operatiand financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systems anthird parties, and systems failures could significatly disrupt our business, which
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofour common stock and our ability to pay dividendgo you.

Our business is highly dependent on comaations and information systems. Any failurertterruption of our systems could cause
delays or other problems in our securities tradiativities, including mortgage-backed securitiesling activities, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results and neglgitaffect the market price of our common stock eandability to pay dividends to you.

We are required to obtain various state licenses iarder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondamarket and there is no assurance
we will be able to obtain or maintain those license

While we are not required to obtain lisesito purchase mortgage-backed securities, weaguéed to obtain various state licenses to
purchase mortgage loans in the secondary markehaWe applied for these licenses and expect thisgss could take several months. The
no assurance that we will obtain all of the licenget we desire or that we will not experiencaifigant delays in seeking these licenses.
Furthermore, we will be subject to various inforroatand other requirements to maintain these liegnand there is no assurance that we will
satisfy those requirements. Our failure to obtaimaintain licenses will restrict our investmentiops and could harm our business.
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We may be subject to liability for potential violatons of predatory lending laws, which could adverdg impact our results of operations,
financial condition and business.

Various federal, state and local lawsehbgen enacted that are designed to discouragatpredending practices. The federal Home
Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994, or HG¥ prohibits inclusion of certain provisions irsigential mortgage loans that have
mortgage rates or origination costs in excess esqgibed levels and requires that borrowers bengieetain disclosures prior to origination.
Some states have enacted, or may enact, similardanegulations, which in some cases impose céisins and requirements greater than tl
in HOEPA. In addition, under the anti-predatoryding laws of some states, the origination of cartasidential mortgage loans, including
loans that are not classified as “high cost” loander applicable law, must satisfy a net tangileledfits test with respect to the related
borrower. This test may be highly subjective androfp interpretation. As a result, a court may ieiiee that a residential mortgage loan, for
example, does not meet the test even if the retatgthator reasonably believed that the test vetisfeed. Failure of residential mortgage loan
originators or servicers to comply with these lateshe extent any of their residential mortgagmbbecome part of our mortgaged-related
assets, could subject us, as an assignee or pardbabe related residential mortgage loans, toetary penalties and could result in the
borrowers rescinding the affected residential magggloans. Lawsuits have been brought in variatesinaking claims against assignees or
purchasers of high cost loans for violations ofestaw. Named defendants in these cases have etthmdmerous participants within the
secondary mortgage market. If the loans are foarithve been originated in violation of predatorgbusive lending laws, we could incur
losses, which could adversely impact our resulspefrations, financial condition and business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or wamay affect the market for our common stock, the idustry in which we conduct our
operations and our profitability.

Terrorist attacks may harm our resultemdrations and your investment. We cannot assauehat there will not be further terrorist
attacks against the United States or U.S. busise$éese attacks or armed conflicts may directlyaiot the property underlying our asset-
based securities or the securities markets in gérlaysses resulting from these types of eventsiaiesurable. More generally, any of these
events could cause consumer confidence and spettdderrease or result in increased volatilityhie United States and worldwide financial
markets and economies. Adverse economic conditionkl harm the value of the property underlying asset-backed securities or the
securities markets in general which could harmaparating results and revenues and may resuleirdhatility of the value of our securities.

We are subject to the requirements of the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

As we are a public company, our managefnsaequired to deliver a report that assessesgffieetiveness of our internal controls over
financial reporting, pursuant to Section 302 of #zebanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley 8ettion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requires an independent registered public accogfitim to deliver an attestation report on managarseassessment of, and the operating
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting in conjunction with their opinion onrcaudited financial statements beginning
with the year ending December 31, 2008. Substantak on our part is required to implement appragariprocesses, document the system of
internal control over key processes, assess thsigd, remediate any deficiencies identified astitteeir operation. This process is both costly
and challenging. We cannot give any assurancesrtatarial weaknesses will not be identified in filiare in connection with our compliance
with the provisions of Sections 302 and 404 of$lagbane®©xley Act. The existence of any material weaknesscdbed above would preclu
a conclusion by management and our independentoasidivat we maintained effective internal contreér financial reporting. Our
management may be required to devote significer# ind expense to remediate any material weaknttgdanay be discovered and may not
be able to remediate all material weaknessesimedyt manner. The existence of any material weake®s our internal control over financial
reporting could also result in errors in our finehstatements that could require us to restatdipancial statements, cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations and cause investors $e kwonfidence in our reported financial informatiath of which could lead to a decline in the
trading price of our common stock.

The increasing number of proposed federal, state @local laws may increase our risk of liability wit respect to certain mortgage loans
and could increase our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and variaite sind local legislatures are considering leg@iatvhich, among other provisions, would
permit limited assignee liability for certain vitilans in the mortgage loan origination process.oAfenot predict whether or in what form
Congress or the various state and local legislature
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may enact legislation affecting our business. Weesaluating the potential impact of these initiasi, if enacted, on our practices and resul
operations. As a result of these and other inititi we are unable to predict whether federale statocal authorities will require changes in
practices in the future. These changes, if requizedld adversely affect our profitability, partiatly if we make such changes in response to
new or amended laws, regulations or ordinancesyrstate where we acquire a significant portionwf mortgage loans, or if such changes
result in us being held responsible for any violasiin the mortgage loan origination process.

Changes in accounting treatment may adversely affeour profitability.

In February 2008, the Financial AccougtBtandards Board, or FASB, issued final guidaeganding the accounting and financial
statement presentation for transactions which ivtihe acquisition of residential mortgage loana) estate-related securities and real estate
loans from a counterparty and the subsequent fingraf these residential mortgage loans, real estdtited securities and real estate loans
through repurchase agreements with the same cpantgr\We are evaluating our position based orfitte guidance issued by the FASB. If
we do not meet the criteria under the final guidattcaccount for the transactions on a gross basisaccounting treatment would not affect
the economics of these transactions, but wouldctffew these transactions are reported in our &iighistatements. If we are not able to cor
with the criteria under this final guidance for saparty transactions we would be precluded fronsggng residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and real estate loanthanmelated financings, as well as the relateer@st income and interest expense, on a gross
basis in our financial statements. Instead, we dibel required to account for the purchase commitzed related repurchase agreement on a
net basis and record a forward commitment to puehasidential mortgage loans, real estate-retaedrities and real estate loans as a
derivative instrument. Such forward commitments Mdie recorded at fair value with subsequent chaimgéair value recognized in earnings.
Additionally, we would record the cash portion ofr investment in residential mortgage loans, retdterelated securities and real estate Ic
as a mortgageelated receivable from the counterparty on ouamed sheet. Although we would not expect this changresentation to have
material impact on our net income, it could havedwerse impact on our operations. It could haviengract on our ability to include certain
residential mortgage loans, real estate-relatedrigies and real estate loans purchased and sinadtssly financed from the same counterparty
as qualifying real estate interests or real eseltded assets used to qualify under the exempiioot have to register as an investment
company under the 1940 Act. It could also limit owestment opportunities as we may need to limitmurchases of residential mortgage
loans, real estate-related securities and redkedsi@ns that are simultaneously financed withsérme counterparty.

Risks Related To Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mortgge loans, mortgage-backed securities and other instenents that meet our
investment criteria or at favorable spreads over ouborrowing costs.

Our net income depends on our abilitaequire residential mortgage loans, mortgage-baskedrities and other investments at
favorable spreads over our borrowing costs. Ougstments are selected by our Manager, and younatilhave input into such investment
decisions. Until appropriate investments can batifled, our Manager may invest the net proceedsigfoffering and the concurrent sale of
shares to Annaly in interest-bearing short-ternegtments, including money market accounts that@nsistent with our intention to qualify as
a REIT. These investments are expected to provide@r net return than we hope to achieve from stwents in our intended use of proceeds
of this offering. Our Manager intends to conduce diiligence with respect to each investment an@Blg& investment opportunities may not be
immediately available. Even if opportunities araitable, there can be no assurance, however, tidtlanager’s due diligence processes will
uncover all relevant facts or that any investmeititbe successful.

We may allocate the net proceeds from this offeringp investments with which you may not agree.

We will have significant flexibility imivesting the net proceeds of this offering. You té unable to evaluate the manner in which the
net proceeds of this offering will be investedloe economic merit of our expected investments asd, result, we may use the net proceeds
from this offering to invest in investments with ieh you may not agree. The failure of our managdrteapply these proceeds effectively or
find investments that meet our investment criteriaufficient time or on acceptable terms couldifein unfavorable returns, could cause a
material adverse effect on you, and could causgdhes of our common stock to decline.
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We may not realize income or gains from our investents.

We invest to generate both current incame: capital appreciation. The investments we invesiay, however, not appreciate in value
and, in fact, may decline in value, and the debtigges we invest in may default on interest dngipal payments. Accordingly, we may not
able to realize income or gains from our investraeAny gains that we do realize may not be sufficte offset any other losses we experie
Any income that we realize may not be sufficienbtiset our expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will be syéct to risk of default.

While we intend to diversify our portfolof investments in the manner described in thisjpectus, we are not required to observe
specific diversification criteria. To the extenattour portfolio is concentrated in any one geolgi@pegion or type of security, downturns
relating generally to such region or type of sdguray result in defaults on a number of our inmestts within a short time period, which may
reduce our net income and the value of our shar@secordingly may reduce our ability to pay divide to you.

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are generallyn the “first loss” position and our investments inthe mezzanine RMBS are
generally in the “second loss” position and therefie subject to losses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loaldied in a securitization will be borne first byetaquity holder of the issuing trust, and then by
the “first loss” subordinated security holder ahdrt by the “second loss” mezzanine holder. In treneof default and the exhaustion of any
classes of securities junior to those in which me=st and there is any further loss, we will noabée to recover all of our investment in the
securities we purchase. In addition, if the undedymortgage portfolio has been overvalued by ttgrmator, or if the values subsequently
decline and, as a result, less collateral is abklto satisfy interest and principal payments do¢he related RMBS, the securities in which we
invest may effectively become the “first loss” gasi behind the more senior securities, which megult in significant losses to us. The prices
of lower credit quality securities are generallgdeensitive to interest rate changes than motgyhigted investments, but more sensitive to
adverse economic downturns or individual issueetigpments. A projection of an economic downturm,geample, could cause a decline in
the price of lower credit quality securities beatlse ability of obligors of mortgages underlyingIBS to make principal and interest
payments may be impaired. In such event, existinditsupport in the securitization structure mayirsufficient to protect us against loss of
our principal on these securities.

Increases in interest rates could negatively affe¢he value of our investments, which could resulinireduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distributbn to you.

We have instead and will continue to Btvia real estate-related assets by investing tljrectresidential mortgage loans and indirectly
by purchasing RMBS, CMBS and CDOs backed by rdateselated assets. Under a normal yield curvénastment in these assets will
decline in value if long-term interest rates ina@aDeclines in market value may ultimately rede@eings or result in losses to us, which may
negatively affect cash available for distributienybu. A significant risk associated with theseeistiments is the risk that both long-term and
short-term interest rates will increase signifitanf long-term rates were to increase signifidgnthe market value of these investments would
decline, and the duration and weighted averagefitbe investments would increase. We could reaitoss if these assets were sold. At the
same time, an increase in short-term interest moesd increase the amount of interest owed orreparchase agreements or other adjustable
rate financings we may enter into to finance theclpase of these assets. Market values of our imesgs may decline without any general
increase in interest rates for a number of reasutd) as increases in defaults, increases in \alyuprepayments for those investments that are
subject to prepayment risk and widening of creglieads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our interestexpense could increase while the interest we earn our fixed-rate assets would not
change, which would adversely affect our profitabity.

Our operating results will depend in Egart on the differences between the income fromassets, net of credit losses and financing
costs. We anticipate that, in most cases, the iedoom such assets will respond more slowly torggerate fluctuations than the cost of our
borrowings. Consequently, changes in interest ra@sicularly short-term interest rates, may digantly influence our net income. Increases
in these rates will tend to decrease our net incantemarket value of our assets. Interest ratéuftions resulting in our interest expense
exceeding our interest income would result in ofyegdosses for us and may limit or eliminate obility to make distributions to you.
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Interest rate mismatches between our investments drour borrowings used to fund our purchases of thesassets may reduce ot
income during periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund most of our acquisiiaf residential mortgage loans, real estate-reéls¢eurities and real estate loans with
borrowings that have interest rates based on iedioe repricing terms with shorter maturities ttteninterest rate indices and repricing terms
of our adjustable-rate assets. Accordingly, if shem interest rates increase, this may harm oofitpbility.

Some of the residential mortgage loaeal, estate-related securities and real estate warequire are and will be fixed-rate securities.
This means that their interest rates will not vawver time based upon changes in a short-term sttesée index. Therefore, the interest rate
indices and repricing terms of the assets thategeiiee and their funding sources will create amri@st rate mismatch between our assets and
liabilities. During periods of changing interestas, these mismatches could reduce our net inodiwidend yield and the market price of our
stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising intsteaates, we could experience a decrease in n@nieor a net loss because the interest rates «
borrowings adjust whereas the interest rates offixenl-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable rate RMBS maydversely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically subjecperiodic and lifetime interest rate caps. &id interest rate caps limit the amount an
interest rate can increase during any given petiddtime interest rate caps limit the amount aetiest rate can increase over the life of the
security. Our borrowings typically will not be sebj to similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a pedtiof rapidly increasing interest rates, the
interest rates paid on our borrowings could inaeeeaghout limitation while caps could limit the erest rates on our adjustable-rate RMBS.
This problem is magnified for hybrid adjustableerand adjustable-rate RMBS that are not fully irdexFurther, some hybrid adjustable-rate
and adjustable-rate RMBS may be subject to peripdjenent caps that result in a portion of the egebeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. As a result, we may recé@as cash income on hybrid adjustable-rate ancstadjle-rate RMBS than we need to pay
interest on our related borrowings. These factortdccreduce our net interest income and cause sisfter a loss.

A significant portion of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value, as determined in acordance with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors and, as a resujtthere will be uncertainty as to the value of thesinvestments.

A significant portion of our portfolio dfivestments is in the form of securities thatrasepublicly traded. The fair value of securitiesl
other investments that are not publicly traded matybe readily determinable. It may be difficultimpossible to obtain third party pricing on
the investments we purchase. We value these ineassnquarterly at fair value, as determined in edaace with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors. Because sulttatians are inherently uncertain, may fluctuaterashort periods of time and may be based
on estimates, our determinations of fair value wiffer materially from the values that would hawveeh used if a ready market for these
securities existed. The value of our common staakdtbe adversely affected if our determinatiorgarding the fair value of these investme
were materially higher than the values that wemdtely realize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or datlg real estate values could impair our investmestand harm our operating
results.

Many of our investments are susceptibledonomic slowdowns or recessions, which could tedinancial losses in our investments
a decrease in revenues, net income and assetsdgaifée economic conditions also could increasefaling costs, limit our access to the
capital markets, result in a decision by lendetst@@xtend credit to us, or force us to sell asaetn inopportune time and for a loss. These
events could prevent us from increasing investmandshave an adverse effect on our operating sesult

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affethe value of our investment portfolio, which couldresult in reduced earnings or
losses and negatively affect the cash available fdistribution to you.

There are seldom any restrictions ondwers’ abilities to prepay their residential moggdoans. Homeowners tend to prepay mortgage
loans faster when interest rates decline. Conselyuemwners of the loans have to reinvest the maeegived from the prepayments at the
lower prevailing interest rates. Conversely,
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homeowners tend not to prepay mortgage loans witerest rates increase. Consequently, owners db#ims are unable to reinvest money
would have otherwise been received from prepayneritse higher prevailing interest rates. This titifa in prepayment rates may affect our
ability to maintain targeted amounts of leverageonportfolio of residential mortgage loans, RMB8d CDOs backed by real estate-related
assets and may result in reduced earnings or léssas and negatively affect the cash availabiedfstribution to you.

To the extent our investments are puretias a premium, faster than expected prepaymesistiin a faster than expected amortization
of the premium paid, which would adversely affeat earnings. Conversely, if these investments ywarehased at a discount, faster than
expected prepayments accelerate our recognitiamcofme.

A decrease in prepayment rates may adversely affeotir profitability.

When borrowers prepay their mortgage $catrslower than expected rates, prepayments arlidited residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and real estate loansdmalower than expected. These slower than exgphpetgments may adversely affect our
profitability.

We may purchase residential mortgagedpaeal estate-related securities and real estates lthat have a lower interest rate than the ther
prevailing market interest rate. In exchange f@s tbwer interest rate, we may pay a discount tovpéue to acquire the investment. In
accordance with accounting rules, we will accrbtg discount over the expected term of the investrhased on our prepayment assumptions.
If the investment is prepaid at a slower than etqmbcate, however, we must accrete the remainimgopoof the discount at a slower than
expected rate. This will extend the expected Iffthe portfolio and result in a lower than expecyézld on investment purchased at a discount
to par.

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagedas underlying the mortgage and asset-backed sectieis we invest in are subject to
delinquency, foreclosure and loss, which could reftun losses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typicsdlgured by single-family residential property arelsubject to risks of delinquency and
foreclosure and risks of loss. The ability of arbarer to repay a loan secured by a residentialgntgps dependent upon the income or asst
the borrower. A number of factors, including a gaheconomic downturn, acts of God, terrorism, abenrest and civil disturbances, may
impair borrowers’ abilities to repay their loans.dddition, we invest in non-Agency RMBS, which beezked by residential real property but,
in contrast to Agency RMBS, their principal anckimgst is not guaranteed by federally charterediemtuch as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and, in the case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. governmfsget-backed securities are bonds or notes bdpkémhns or other financial assets. The
ability of a borrower to repay these loans or offreancial assets is dependent upon the incomessata of these borrowers. Commercial
mortgage loans are secured by multifamily or conmiaéproperty and are subject to risks of delinguyeand foreclosure, and risks of loss that
are greater than similar risks associated withdaaade on the security of sindlemily residential property. The ability of a bower to repay
loan secured by an income-producing property tylyiésdependent primarily upon the successful afien of such property rather than upon
the existence of independent income or assetedidirower. If the net operating income of the prtyis reduced, the borrower’s ability to
repay the loan may be impaired. Net operating ireofran income producing property can be affeciegimong other things, tenant mix,
success of tenant businesses, property manageewmsioths, property location and condition, compmtifrom comparable types of properties,
changes in laws that increase operating expenémibrents that may be charged, any need to addgagironmental contamination at the
property, the occurrence of any uninsured casagltiye property, changes in national, regionaboal economic conditions or specific indut
segments, declines in regional or local real estaliges, declines in regional or local rental arwggancy rates, increases in interest rates, real
estate tax rates and other operating expensesyehamgovernmental rules, regulations and fisoties, including environmental legislation,
acts of God, terrorism, social unrest and civitulisgances. In the event of any default under agage loan held directly by us, we will bear a
risk of loss of principal to the extent of any @éfncy between the value of the collateral andotiirecipal and accrued interest of the mortgage
loan, which could have a material adverse effeatancash flow from operations. In the event oflthekruptcy of a mortgage loan borrower,
the mortgage loan to such borrower will be deemdaktsecured only to the extent of the value oltiderlying collateral at the time of
bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy coart, the lien securing the mortgage loan will bgjestt to the avoidance powers of the
bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-possession to xtene the lien is unenforceable under state laweélosure of a mortgage loan can be an
expensive and lengthy process which could havédstantial negative effect on our anticipated retumrihe foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS
evidence interests in or are secured by poolssideatial mortgage loans and CMBS evidence
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interests in or are secured by a single commemoiatgage loan or a pool of commercial mortgage doawecordingly, the RMBS and CMBS
we invest in are subject to all of the risks of thspective underlying mortgage loans.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans andemnify investors if we breach representations ashwarranties, which could
harm our earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be requiredritake customary representations and warrantiest abioh loans to the loan purchaser. Our
residential mortgage loan sale agreements willirequs to repurchase or substitute loans in thatewe breach a representation or warranty
given to the loan purchaser. In addition, we maydogiired to repurchase loans as a result of bardéwud or in the event of early payment
default on a mortgage loan. Likewise, we are resgliio repurchase or substitute loans if we breaelpresentation or warranty in connection
with our securitizations. The remedies availabla furchaser of mortgage loans are generally brabhda those available to us against the
originating broker or correspondent. Further, ffurchaser enforces its remedies against us, wenwtaye able to enforce the remedies we |
against the sellers. The repurchased loans typicah only be financed at a steep discount to tlepiurchase price, if at all. They are also
typically sold at a significant discount to the aigprincipal balance. Significant repurchase étyticould harm our cash flow, results of
operations, financial condition and business protspe

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, part of our investment strategy involetering into derivative contracts that could
require us to fund cash payments in certain ciréantes. These potential payments will be continfiebilities and therefore may not appear
on our statement of financial condition. Our aitib fund these contingent liabilities will depeow the liquidity of our assets and access to
capital at the time, and the need to fund thesé&rogent liabilities could adversely impact our firtgal condition.

Our Manager’s due diligence of potential investmers may not reveal all of the liabilities associatedith such investments and may not
reveal other weaknesses in such investments, whicbuld lead to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Managsesses the strengths and weaknesses of theatoigin issuer of the asset as well as other
factors and characteristics that are material égpirformance of the investment. In making thessssent and otherwise conducting customary
due diligence, our Manager relies on resourcedablaito it and, in some cases, an investigatiothbrg parties. This process is particularly
important with respect to newly formed originatordssuers with unrated and other subordinatechas of MBS and ABS because there may
be little or no information publicly available alidhese entities and investments. There can baswrance that our Manager’s due diligence
process will uncover all relevant facts or that angestment will be successful.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks ptcular to real property.

We own assets secured by real estatenagcdwn real estate directly in the future, eititeough direct investments or upon a default of
mortgage loans. Real estate investments are subjeatious risks, including:

. acts of God, including earthquakes, floods andrathéural disasters, which may result in uninsuosdes

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafderrorist attacks, such as those that occume8ieptember 11, 200

. adverse changes in national and local economicrearlet conditions

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, |ffgalicies and zoning ordinances and the relatestiscof compliance with law
and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinant

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold;

. the potential for uninsured or un~insured property losse

If any of these or similar events occitrsjay reduce our return from an affected propertinvestment and reduce or eliminate our
ability to make distributions to you.
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We may be exposed to environmental liabilities witliespect to properties to which we take title

In the course of our business, we mag tdle to real estate, and, if we do take title, @ould be subject to environmental liabilitiestwit
respect to these properties. In such a circumstaveenay be held liable to a governmental entityodhird parties for property damage,
personal injury, investigation, and clean-up castsirred by these parties in connection with envinental contamination, or may be required
to investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic sulzsts, or chemical releases at a property. The assbciated with investigation or
remediation activities could be substantial. If ewer become subject to significant environmenédiilities, our business, financial condition,
liquidity, and results of operations could be mialgr and adversely affected.

We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizedby subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to oreased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS batkgy collateral pools of subprime residential mageg loans. “Subprimehortgage loans ref
to mortgage loans that have been originated usidgmwriting standards that are less restrictiva the& underwriting requirements used as
standards for other first and junior lien mortgémgn purchase programs, such as the programs ofd-Btae and Freddie Mac. These lower
standards include mortgage loans made to borrowesisg imperfect or impaired credit histories (uaihg outstanding judgments or prior
bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amoutteofdan at origination is 80% or more of the vadfiehe mortgage property, mortgage loans
made to borrowers with low credit scores, mortgages made to borrowers who have other debt tipaésents a large portion of their income
and mortgage loans made to borrowers whose incemetirequired to be disclosed or verified. Duedonomic conditions, including
increased interest rates and lower home pricesegli®is aggressive lending practices, subprime gage loans have in recent periods
experienced increased rates of delinquency, fosecky bankruptcy and loss, and they are likelyotttioue to experience delinquency,
foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rates that areenjgand that may be substantially higher, thasdhexperienced by mortgage loans
underwritten in a more traditional manner. Thusduse of the higher delinquency rates and lossegiased with subprime mortgage loans,
the performance of RMBS backed by subprime mortdaaes in which we may invest could be correspoglgiadversely affected, which
could adversely impact our results of operatioimgrfcial condition and business.

To the extent that we invest in Agency RMBS that & guaranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, we asebject to the risk that these
U.S. Government-sponsored entities may not be able fully satisfy their guarantee obligations, whichmay adversely affect the value of
our investment portfolio and our ability to sell or finance these securities.

The interest and principal payments wgeekto receive on the mortgage-backed securitiggich we intend to invest will be
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie.Nalike the Ginnie Mae certificates in which wayninvest, the principal and interest
on securities issued by Fannie Mae and Freddiedvaaot guaranteed by the U.S. government. AlAthpency RMBS in which we invest
depend on a steady stream of payments on the rgeggmderlying the securities.

The recent economic challenges in thieleasial mortgage market have affected the findrreisults of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.
the year ended 2007, both Fannie Mae and Freddeerdfemrted substantial losses. Fannie Mae hagesoted a net loss of $2.2 billion in the
first quarter 2008, compared with a fourth qua2@®7 net loss of $3.6 billion. Fannie Mae recestbted that it expects severe weakness in the
housing market to continue in 2008. Freddie Macdaiss reported a net loss of $151 million in thstfquarter 2008, compared with a fourth
quarter 2007 net loss of $2.5 billion. If FanniesMand Freddie Mac continue to suffer significassks, their ability to honor their respective
Agency RMBS guarantees may be adversely affectedhé&r, any actual or perceived financial challengeeither Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac
could cause the rating agencies to downgrade ttporate credit ratings of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mavy failure to honor guarantees on
Agency RMBS by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac or any mignade of securities issued by Fannie Mae or Feellidic by the rating agencies
could cause a significant decline in the cash flawn, and the value of, any Agency RMBS we may @nd the market for these securities
may be adversely affected for a significant penbtime. We may be unable to sell or finance AgeR&¥BS on favorable terms or at all and
our financial position and results of operationsldde adversely affected.
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New laws may be passed affecting the relationshipetween Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, on the one hanadnd the U.S. government, ol
the other, which could adversely affect the availabty and pricing of Agency RMBS.

Legislation has been or may be proposethénge the relationship between Fannie Mae asddie Mac, on the one hand, and the U.S.
government, on the other hand, or that requiresieadviae and Freddie Mac to reduce the amount ofgages they own or limit the amount
securities they guarantee. To the extent we innwe&gency RMBS, if any such legislation is enaciet law, it may lead to market uncertainty
and the actual or perceived impairment in the ¢repalility of securities issued by Fannie Mae oidBie Mac. This may increase the risk of |
from investments in securities issued by Fannie Btefor Freddie Mac. Any legislation requiring Fenklae or Freddie Mac to reduce the
amount of mortgages they own or for which they gatge payments on Agency RMBS could adversely ttffecavailability and pricing of
Agency RMBS and therefore, adversely affect ouiiress prospects.

Exchange rate fluctuations may limit gains or resulin losses.

If we directly or indirectly hold assetsnominated in currencies other than U.S. doliaeswill be exposed to currency risk that may
adversely affect performance. Changes in the Wblars rate of exchange with other currencies rafigct the value of investments in our
portfolio and the income that we receive in respécuch investments. In addition, we may incut€@s connection with conversion between
various currencies, which may reduce our net incanttaccordingly may reduce our ability to payristtions to you.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock

Annaly owns a significant percentage of our commostock, which could result in significant influenceover the outcome of matters
submitted to the vote of our stockholders.

Annaly owns approximately 9.6% of ourstahding common stock and is expected to contimwsvh a similar percentage following t
offering and the concurrent private placement made As a result, Annaly may have significantu@&hce over the outcome of matters
submitted to a vote of our stockholders, includimg election of our directors or transactions imirgd a change in control. The interests of
Annaly may conflict with, or differ from, the intests of other holders of our common stock, pamidylas Annaly is also a creditor of ours. So
long as Annaly continues to own a significant patage of shares of our common stock, it will signaifitly influence all our corporate
decisions submitted to our stockholders for approegardless of whether we terminate the manageageement with our Manager.

We issued common stock on the New York Stock Exchga on November 16, 2007.

Our shares of common stock are newlyedsecurities for which there was no trading mapkietr to November 2007. The market price
of our common stock may be highly volatile and ddoé subject to wide fluctuations as has beendle due to the adverse conditions in the
mortgage industry and credit markets. There isssui@nce that our stock price will not continuexperience significant volatility in the
current environment.

Some additional factors that could negatively dftaa share price includ:

. actual or anticipated variations in our quartegeating results
. changes in our earnings estimates or publicatimes#arch reports about us or the real estatetinyd
. increases in market interest rates that may leachpgers of our shares to demand a higher y
. changes in market valuations of similar compar
. adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the futurt
. additions or departures of our Mané's key personne
. actions by stockholder
. speculation in the press or investment communitg;
. general market and economic conditic
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Common stock eligible for future sale may have advee effects on our share price

We cannot predict the effect, if anyfutfire sales of common stock, or the availabilitgloares for future sales, on the market price of
the common stock. Sales of substantial amountsmhwon stock, or the perception that such salesiamedur, may adversely affect prevailing
market prices for the common stock. At March 31020w~ve had 37,744,918 shares of common stock issugdutstanding. In addition,
Annaly holds approximately 9.6% of our outstandshgres of common stock as of March 31, 2008. Quityeopcentive plan provides for
grants of restricted common stock and other edudtyed awards up to an aggregate of 8% of the ismutdutstanding shares of our common
stock (on a fully diluted basis and including sisaseld to Annaly concurrently with this offeringdatine initial public offering and shares sold
pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of theirraltetment option) at the time of the award, subjea ceiling of 40,000,000 shares available
for issuance under the plan. On January 2, 2008sxecutive officers and other employees of our &gem and our independent directors were
granted, as a group, 1,301,000 shares of ourgestrcommon stock. The restricted common stocktgdato our independent directors vested
on January 2, 2008 and those to our executiveesfiand other employees of our Manager or itsati vest in equal installments on the first
business day of each fiscal quarter over a peridd gears beginning on January 1, 2008. The mstticommon stock approved as grants to
our executive officers and other employees of oaniger or its affiliates that remain outstanding are unvested will fully vest on the death
of the individual. The 1,301,000 shares of ourrietstd common stock granted to our executive offi@nd other employees of our Manager
and to our independent directors represent appeteiyn % of the issued and outstanding sharesrocommon stock (on a fully diluted
basis after giving effect to the shares issuetli;mdffering and including shares to be sold to &grconcurrently with this offering but
excluding any shares to be sold pursuant to theceeeof the underwriters’ overallotment option. Wil not make distributions on shares of
restricted stock that have not vested. We, Anrealgl, our officers and directors have agreed withutigerwriters to a 90-day lock-up period
(subject to extensions), meaning that, until the @inthe 90-day lock-up period, we and they wilt,reubject to certain exceptions, sell or
transfer any shares of common stock without theronsent of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LL@dlt Suisse Securities (USA) LLC m.
in its sole discretion, at any time from time tméi and without notice, waive the terms and conuiitiof the lock-up agreements to which itis a
party. Additionally, Annaly has agreed with us tluether lock-up period in connection with the gfmpurchased by Annaly concurrently with
our initial public offering that will expire at thearlier of (i) November 15, 2010 or (ii) the temation of the management agreement. Annaly
has further agreed with us to a further lock-upqeein connection with the shares purchased by Ano@ncurrently with this offering that will
expire at the earlier of (i) the date which is thyears following the date of this prospectus iptife termination of the management agreement.
When the lock-up periods expire, these common shailebecome eligible for sale, in some casesexttiip the requirements of Rule 144
under the Securities Act of 1933, or the Securifies which are described under “Shares EligibleFature Sale.” The market price of our
common stock may decline significantly when therietions on resale by certain of our stockholdapse. Sales of substantial amounts of
common stock or the perception that such saleslamdur may adversely affect the prevailing magtete for our common stock.

There is a risk that you may not receive distributons or that distributions may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a tgerly basis out of assets legally available tharedomur stockholders in amounts such that all or
substantially all of our REIT taxable income in legear is distributed. We have not establishedrarmim distribution payment level and our
ability to pay distributions may be adversely aféetby a number of factors, including the risk émstdescribed in this prospectus. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dward of directors and will depend on our earnjiogs financial condition, maintenance of
REIT status and other factors as our board of tirsanay deem relevant from time to time. Amongfttetors that could adversely affect our
results of operations and impair our ability to mhstributions to our stockholders are:

. the profitability of the investment of the net peeds of the initial public offering and this offeg;

. our ability to make profitable investmen
. margin calls or other expenses that reduce our foash
. defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases irviiee of our portfolio; an
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. the fact that anticipated operating expense lawalg not provide accurate, as actual results may fram estimates

A change in any one of these factorsaaffiect our ability to make distributions. We cahassure you that we will achieve investment
results that will allow us to make a specified lesfecash distributions or year-to-year increasesash distributions.

Market interest rates may have an effect on the trding value of our shares.

One of the factors that investors maysader in deciding whether to buy or sell our shasesur distribution rate as a percentage of our
share price relative to market interest rates.dfkat interest rates increase, prospective investay demand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendgmrest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eapital market conditions can affect the
market value of our shares. For instance, if irstierates rise, it is likely that the market prideor shares will decrease as market rates on
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degreef aisk.

The investments we make in accordande et investment objectives may result in a higloant of risk when compared to alternative
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aggressive, are subject to credit risk,
interest rate, and market value risks, among otlaeis therefore an investment in our shares mapaasuitable for someone with lower risk
tolerance.

Broad market fluctuations could negatively impact he market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extqgmee and volume fluctuations that have affectedrttarket price of many companies in
industries similar or related to ours and that Hasen unrelated to these companies’ operating ipeaitces. These broad market fluctuations
could reduce the market price of our common stBakthermore, our operating results and prospecislmdelow the expectations of public
market analysts and investors or may be lower thase of companies with comparable market capétdins, which could lead to a material
decline in the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse consequenfm investors.

We may issue additional shares in subssigqoublic offerings or private placements to ma&e investments or for other purposes. We
are not required to offer any such shares to exjgttockholders on a pre-emptive basis. Therefoneay not be possible for existing
stockholders to participate in such future shagseds, which may dilute the existing stockholdentliests in us. Annaly will own
approximately 9.6% of our shares of common stoosfdlse closing of this offering excluding sharefdspursuant to the underwriteresxercise
of their overallotment option. Annaly will be petteid, subject to the requirements of Rule 144 utitdeSecurities Act, to sell such shares
upon the earlier of (i) (a) November 15, 2010 wehpect to shares acquired concurrently with atiairpublic offering and (b) the date which
is three years after the date of this prospecttis spect to shares being acquired concurrently this offering or (ii) the termination of the
management agreement.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that mayinhibit potential acquisition bids that you may corsider favorable, and the market
price of our common stock may be lower as a result.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisitheg have an anti-takeover effect and inhibit angfe in our board of directors. These
provisions include the following:

. There are ownership limits and restrictions on sfarability and ownership in our chart. To qualify as a REIT for eac
taxable year after 2007, not more than 50% of tiieevof our outstanding stock may be owned, diyemticonstructively, by fivi
or fewer individuals during the second half of aayendar year. In addition, our shares must beflméaléy owned by 100 or
more persons during at least 335 days of a taxedaleof 12 months or during a proportionate pae ehorter taxable year for
each taxable year after 2007. To assist us infgatisthese tests, our charter generally prohihitg person from beneficially or
constructively owning more than 9.8% in value omier of shares, whichever is more restrictive,mf elass or series of our
outstanding capital stock. These restrictions magalirage a tender offer or other transactionsaraage in the composition of
our board o
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directors or control that might involve a premiunicp for our shares or otherwise be in your begtrésts and any shares issi
or transferred in violation of such restrictionsrigeautomatically transferred to a trust for a dadéte beneficiary, thereby
resulting in a forfeiture of the additional shat



Our charter permits our board of directors to isssteck with terms that may discourage a third pémyn acquiring us Our
charter permits our board of directors to amencctiaeter without stockholder approval to incredmetbtal number of authoriz
shares of stock or the number of shares of ang daseries and to issue common or preferred staskng preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, restits, limitations as to dividends or other disttibas, qualifications, or terms or
conditions of redemption as determined by our boahdis, our board could authorize the issuancéoaksvith terms and
conditions that could have the effect of discoungg takeover or other transaction in which holdéisome or a majority of our
shares might receive a premium for their shares thethe-prevailing market price of our shar

Maryland Control Share Acquisition A. Maryland law provides thi‘control share’’ of a corporation acquired in‘‘ control
share acquisition” will have no voting rights eptéo the extent approved by a vote of two-thirfithe votes eligible to be cast
on the matter under the Maryland Control Share Asition Act. “Control shares” means voting shamsstock that, if
aggregated with all other shares of stock ownethbyacquirer or in respect of which the acquiretike to exercise or direct the
exercise of voting power (except solely by a rebdegroxy), would entitle the acquirer to exeroiséing power in electing
directors within one of the following ranges of gt power: one-tenth or more but less than onettline-third or more but less
than a majority, or a majority or more of all vagipower. A “control share acquisition” means theqguisition of control shares,
subject to certain exceptior

If voting rights or control shares acquired in atrol share acquisition are not approved at a $tolclers’ meeting, or if the
acquiring person does not deliver an acquiringgestatement as required by the Maryland Contrar&RAcquisition Act, then,
subject to certain conditions and limitations, ifgier may redeem any or all of the control shimefair value. If voting rights

of such control shares are approved at a stocki®laeeeting and the acquirer becomes entitled to votajarity of the shares
stock entitled to vote, all other stockholders reagrcise appraisal rights. Our bylaws contain aipron exempting acquisitions
of our shares from the Maryland Control Share Asigioin Act. However, our board of directors may aheur bylaws in the
future to repeal or modify this exemption, in whizdise any control shares of our company acquiradciontrol share acquisition
will be subject to the Maryland Control Share Aditibn Act.

Business Combinatior. Under Maryland law, ““business combinations” Wween a Maryland corporation and an interested
stockholder or an affiliate of an interested stadler are prohibited for five years after the mestent date on which the
interested stockholder becomes an interested swtadeth These business combinations include a metgasolidation, share
exchange or, in circumstances specified in theitgtaain asset transfer or issuance or reclassiiicaf equity securities. An
interested stockholder is defined

o} any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubing power of the corporati’'s shares; ¢

o] an affiliate or associate of the corporation wharey time within the two-year period before théeda question,
was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of thengtpower of the then outstanding voting stock ef th
corporation

A person is not an interested stockholder undesthtite if the board of directors approved in adesthe transaction by whi
such person otherwise would have become an ingetasbckholder. However, in approving a transactioa board of directors
may provide that its approval is subject to comqii at or after the time of approval, with anyrterand conditions determined
by the board. After the five-year prohibition, amysiness combination between the Maryland corpmratind an interested
stockholder generally must be recommended by thedbaf directors of the corporation and approvedhegyaffirmative vote of
at least:
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o] 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdemsutétanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

o] two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by hold#ngoting stock of the corporation, other than sisdneld by th
interested stockholder with whom or with whoseliafe the business combination is to be effecteldetd by an
affiliate or associate of the interested stockhol

These super-majority vote requirements do not afiphe corporation’s common stockholders receiveiaimum price, as
defined under Maryland law, for their shares infitven of cash or other consideration in the sanmefas previously paid by the
interested stockholder for its shares. The stgtetenits various exemptions from its provisions/undag business combinations
that are exempted by the board of directors befwrdime that the interested stockholder becomestarested stockholder. Our
board of directors has adopted a resolution whiclrides that any business combination between dsay other person is
exempted from the provisions of the Maryland Cdn®loare Acquisition Act, provided that the businessbination is first
approved by the board of directors. This resolytimwever, may be altered or repealed in whole @airt at any time. If this
resolution is repealed, or the board of directassthot otherwise approve a business combinatienstatute may discourage
others from trying to acquire control of us andréase the difficulty of consummating any off

Staggered boardOur board of directors is divided into three sksof directors. The current terms of the direcéopire in
2009, 2010, and 2011respectively. Directors of edass are chosen for three-year terms upon thieagiom of their current
terms, and each year one class of directors iseeldry the stockholders. The staggered terms ofliveictors may reduce the
possibility of a tender offer or an attempt at arde in control, even though a tender offer or ghan control might be in your



best interests

. Our charter and bylaws contain other possible aakieover provisionsOur charter and bylaws contain other provisidrad t
may have the effect of delaying, deferring or préirgy a change in control of us or the removaba$ting directors and, as a
result, could prevent you from being paid a premfomyour common stock over the then- prevailingkeaprice. See
“Description of Capital Sto” and“Certain Provisions of Maryland General Corporatiawv and Our Charter and Byla\”

Our rights and your rights to take action against air directors and officers are limited, which couldlimit your recourse in the event of
actions not in your best interests.

Our charter limits the liability of ouirdctors and officers to us and you for money dagsagxcept for liability resulting from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services;

. a final judgment based upon a finding of active daliberate dishonesty by the director or offiteattwas material to the cause
of action adjudicate

for which Maryland law prohibits such exemptionrfrdiability.

In addition, our charter authorizes usiitigate our company to indemnify our present nmcher directors and officers for actions taken
by them in those capacities to the maximum exteningited by Maryland law. Our bylaws require usngemnify each present or former
director or officer, to the maximum extent permittey Maryland law, in the defense of any proceedinghich he or she is made, or
threatened to be made, a party because of his@ehéce to us. In addition, we may be obligateélind the defense costs incurred by our
directors and officers. See “Limitation on Liabjlibf Directors and Officers and Indemnification ahdivance of Expenses.”

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income tax risk

This summary of certain tax risks is liedi to the federal tax risks addressed below. Aatdit risks or issues may exist that are not
addressed in this prospectus and that could afiediederal tax treatment of us or you.
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Because this prospectus was written in connectitimtive marketing of our common stock, it is ndeimded to be used and cannot be used by
you to avoid penalties that may be imposed on stoiders under the Internal Revenue Code, or thee Qo strongly urge you to revie
carefully the discussion under “Certain Federabme Tax Considerations” and to seek advice basa@wonparticular circumstances from an
independent tax advisor concerning the effectedéfal, state and local income tax law on an imvest in our common stock and on your
individual tax situation.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal incona& purposes, we must continually satisfy variogssteegarding the sources of our income, the
nature and diversification of our assets, the arfsowe distribute to stockholders and the ownershipur stock. To meet these tests, we me
required to forego investments we might otherwis&ken We may be required to make distributions 10 gbdisadvantageous times or wher
do not have funds readily available for distribatidhus, compliance with the REIT requirements thiaigler our investment performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to lguidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally mussw@re that at the end of each calendar quarteaat ¥5% of the value of our total assets
consists of cash, cash items, government secuaitigsjualified REIT real estate assets, includergain mortgage loans and mortgage-backed
securities. The remainder of our investment in gdes (other than government securities and qyialif real estate assets) generally cannot
include more than 10% of the outstanding votingigées of any one issuer or more than 10% of thel tvalue of the outstanding securities of
any one issuer. In addition, in general, no moaa th% of the value of our assets (other than gowent securities and qualifying real estate
assets) can consist of the securities of any aueisand no more than 20% of the value of out s&teurities can be represented by securities
of one or more TRSs. See “Certain Federal IncomeCansiderations — Taxation of Our Company — A3sasts.” If we fail to comply with
these requirements at the end of any quarter, wst courect the failure within 30 days after the ehduch calendar quarter or qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losimgr REIT status and suffering adverse tax consezpse As a result, we may be required to
liquidate from our portfolio otherwise attractivevestments. These actions could have the effegidafcing our income and amounts available
for distribution to you.

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets atbject to the rules relating to taxable mortgagels, (2) we are a “pension-held REIT,” (3) ata
exempt stockholder has incurred debt to purchad®lodrour common stock, or (4) the residual ReghtesMortgage Investment Conduit
interests, or REMICs, we buy generate “excesagion income,” then a portion of the distributicsand, in the case of a stockholder
described in clause (3), gains realized on theafatlemmon stock by such tax-exempt stockholder bragubject to federal income tax as
unrelated business taxable income under the IftB®zenue Code. See “Certain Federal Income Tasiderations — Taxation of Our
Company — Taxable Mortgage Pools.”

Classification of a securitization or financing arangement we enter into as a taxable mortgage poawd subject us or certain of you to
increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitizatiord financing arrangements as to not create dl@xaortgage pool. However, if we have
borrowings with two or more maturities and (1) tad®rrowings are secured by mortgages or mortgagkell securities and (2) the payments
made on the borrowings are related to the paynrentsved on the underlying assets, then the bongsvand the pool of mortgages or
mortgage-backed securities to which such borromietzge may be classified as a taxable mortgagepater the Internal Revenue Code. If
any part of our investments were to be treatedtazable mortgage pool, then our REIT status waowldbe impaired, but a portion of the
taxable income we recognize may, under regulatiof® issued by the Treasury Department, be claraetl as “excess inclusion” income
and allocated among our stockholders to the extieaihd generally in proportion to the distributiome make to each stockholder. Any excess
inclusion income would:

. not be allowed to be offset by a stockho’s net operating losse
. be subject to a tax as unrelated business incometidckholder were a 1-exempt stockholde
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. be subject to the application of federal incomewékholding at the maximum rate (without reductfon any otherwise
applicable income tax treaty) with respect to anteatiocable to foreign stockholders; ¢

. be taxable (at the highest corporate tax rateytoather than to you, to the extent the excedasion income relates to stock
held by disqualified organizations (generally, tsempt companies not subject to tax on unrelatsthbas income, including
governmental organization:

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to feleral income tax, which would reduce the cash avaible for distribution to you.

We intend to operate in a manner thattended to cause us to qualify as a REIT for faldiecome tax purposes commencing with our
taxable year ending on December 31, 2007. Howdherfederal income tax laws governing REITs aresgmely complex, and interpretations
of the federal income tax laws governing qualifizatas a REIT are limited. Qualifying as a REITuigs us to meet various tests regardiny
nature of our assets and our income, the owneddtopr outstanding stock, and the amount of ouriigtions on an ongoing basis. While we
intend to operate so that we will qualify as a REJiwen the highly complex nature of the rules goiregy REITS, the ongoing importance of
factual determinations, including the tax treatnmntertain investments we may make, and the pilisgibf future changes in our
circumstances, no assurance can be given that leowjualify for any particular year. If we fad gualify as a REIT in any calendar year and
we do not qualify for certain statutory relief prgiens, we would be required to pay federal incaaxeon our taxable income. We might need
to borrow money or sell assets to pay that tax. g2ayment of income tax would decrease the amouatioincome available for distribution to
you. Furthermore, if we fail to maintain our quiliftion as a REIT and we do not qualify for certstiatutory relief provisions, we no long
would be required to distribute substantially dlbar REIT taxable income to our stockholders. Wsleur failure to qualify as a REIT were
excused under federal tax laws, we would be disiigdifrom taxation as a REIT for the four taxalkears following the year during which
qualification was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjed us to tax, which would reduce the cash availabl®r distribution to you.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribtdeour stockholders each calendar year at least®@08ar REIT taxable income (including
certain items of non-cash income), determined witlegard to the deduction for dividends paid axawgling net capital gain. To the extent
that we satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, distribute less than 100% of our taxable incomewill be subject to federal corporate
income tax on our undistributed income. In additiwe will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax oa #mount, if any, by which our
distributions in any calendar year are less tharstim of:

. 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that ye
. 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaageand
. any undistributed taxable income from prior ye

We intend to distribute our REIT taxalsleome to our stockholders in a manner intendeshtisfy the 90% distribution requirement and
to avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nduadlible excise tax. However, there is no requineintieat TRSs distribute their after-tax
net income to their parent REIT or their stockhadd®©ur taxable income may substantially exceechetiincome as determined based on
generally accepted accounting principles, or GAB&Gause, for example, realized capital lossesbaiieducted in determining our GAAP net
income, but may not be deductible in computingtaxable income. In addition, we may invest in as#edt generate taxable income in excess
of economic income or in advance of the correspundash flow from the assets. To the extent thageveerate such non-cash taxable income
in a taxable year, we may incur corporate incomeatal the 4% nondeductible excise tax on that irecdwe do not distribute such income to
our stockholders in that year. As a result of hredoing, we may generate less cash flow than teciatome in a particular year. In that event,
we may be required to use cash reserves, incuy deliquidate non-cash assets at rates or at tihegsve regard as unfavorable to satisfy the
distribution requirement and to avoid corporateome tax and the 4% nondeductible excise tax inytbat. Moreover, our ability to distribute
cash is restricted by our financing facilities
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Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which ya might receive a premium for
their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT &ach taxable year after 2007, no more than 50%lurevof our outstanding capital stock may be
owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer iimitluals during the last half of any calendar ye#mdividuals” for this purpose include
natural persons, private foundations, some emplbgeefit plans and trusts, and some charitabléstrli® preserve our REIT qualification, our
charter generally prohibits any person from diseotl indirectly owning more than 9.8% in value nmumber of shares, whichever is more
restrictive, of any class or series of the outstagghares of our capital stock. This ownershigtition could have the effect of discouraging a
takeover or other transaction in which holderswf@mmon stock might receive a premium for thbarss over the then prevailing market
price or which holders might believe to be otheeniistheir best interests.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whit we may form or acquire in the future will be limited, and a failure to comply
with the limits would jeopardize our REIT status and may result in the application of a 100% excise ta

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stoclook or more TRSs. A TRS may earn income that woatde qualifying income if earned
directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiarg éime REIT must jointly elect to treat the subgigias a TRS. Overall, no more than 20% of
the value of a REIE assets may consist of stock or securities ofbomeore TRSs. A TRS will pay federal, state analdccome tax at regul
corporate rates on any income that it earns. litiadgdthe TRS rules impose a 100% excise tax otatetransactions between a TRS and its
parent REIT that are not conducted on an arm’stlebgsis. The TRS that we may form in the futurelgay federal, state and local income
tax on its taxable income, and its after-tax nebine would be available for distribution to us tmatuld not be required to be distributed to us.
We anticipate that the aggregate value of the TtB&sand securities owned by us will be less tha#b f the value of our total assets
(including the TRS stock and securities). Furtheemwe will monitor the value of our investmentimr TRSs to ensure compliance with the
rule that no more than 20% of the value of ourtassmy consist of TRS stock and securities (whscpiplied at the end of each calendar
guarter). In addition, we will scrutinize all of otransactions with taxable REIT subsidiaries teuga that they are entered into on arm’s-length
terms to avoid incurring the 100% excise tax désctiabove. There can be no assurance, howevewehail be able to comply with the 20%
limitation discussed above or to avoid applicatibthe 100% excise tax discussed above.

We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could becme subject to a penalty tax if income we recognifeom certain investments that are
treated or could be treated as equity interests ia foreign corporation exceeds 5% of our gross incoenin a taxable year.

We may invest in securities, such as alibated interests in certain CDO offerings, thattaeated or could be treated for federal (and
applicable state and local) corporate income tap@aes as equity interests in foreign corporatiQagegories of income that qualify for the
95% gross income test include dividends, interrdtcertain other enumerated classes of passivenecdnder certain circumstances, the
federal income tax rules concerning controlled ifpmecorporations and passive foreign investmentgamies require that the owner of an
equity interest in a foreign corporation includecamts in income without regard to the owner’s rptef any distributions from the foreign
corporation. Amounts required to be included iroime under those rules are technically neither a&diulends nor any of the other
enumerated categories of passive income specifidttki 95% gross income test. Furthermore, theme idear precedent with respect to the
qualification of such income under the 95% grossine test. Due to this uncertainty, we intendratlour direct investment in securities that
are or could be treated as equity interests imeidn corporation such that the sum of the amowetsire required to include in income with
respect to such securities and other amounts ofjoalifying income do not exceed 5% of our gros®ime. We cannot assure you that we
be successful in this regard. To avoid any ristadiing the 95% gross income test, we may be reguio invest only indirectly, through a
domestic TRS, in any securities that are or coelddnsidered to be equity interests in a foreigpa@tion. This, of course, will result in any
income recognized from any such investment to Ibgestito federal income tax in the hands of the TiRISch may, in turn, reduce our yield
on the investment.

Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our REIT aialification.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply wilguirements regarding our assets and our soafdéesome. If we are compelled to liquidate
our investments to repay obligations to our lendeesmay be unable to comply
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with these requirements, ultimately jeopardizing gualification as a REIT, or we may be subjeca tt00% tax on any resultant gain if we sell
assets in transactions that are considered todbehited transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for federal @@me tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited tracsions is subject to a 100% tax. In general, fitdd transactions are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosureperty, but including mortgage loans, held prinyaidr sale to customers in the ordinary
course of business. We might be subject to thisftax sold or securitized our assets in a man&trwas treated as a sale for federal income
tax purposes. Therefore, to avoid the prohibitaddactions tax, we may choose not to engage iaicevdles of assets at the REIT level and
may securitize assets only in transactions thatrasted as financing transactions and not as &aléax purposes even though such
transactions may not be the optimal execution preaax basis. We could avoid any prohibited tratisas tax concerns by engaging in
securitization transactions through a TRS, sulifecertain limitations described above. To the eitkat we engage in such activities through
domestic TRSs, the income associated with suchities will be subject to federal (and applicabigts and local) corporate income tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements we &t into to finance our investments as sales for fapurposes rather than as secured
lending transactions would adversely affect our altity to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter irgpurchase agreements with a variety of counteesatid achieve our desired amount of leverage
for the assets in which we invest. When we enterarepurchase agreement, we generally sell assets counterparty to the agreement and
receive cash from the counterparty. The counteypsutbligated to resell the assets back to useaehd of the term of the transaction, which is
typically 30-90 days. We believe that for federaldme tax purposes we will be treated as the owitre assets that are the subject of
repurchase agreements and that the repurchasereggrisewill be treated as secured lending transastiotwithstanding that such agreement
may transfer record ownership of the assets tadaterparty during the term of the agreemens ftassible, however, that the IRS could
successfully assert that we did not own these sigseing the term of the repurchase agreementghich case we could fail to qualify as a
REIT.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal RewverCode substantially limit our ability to hedgertgage-backed securities and related
borrowings. Under these provisions, our annualgilesome from qualifying and non-qualifying hedgegiether with any other income not
generated from qualifying real estate assets, daxueed 25% of our gross income. In addition,aggregate gross income from non-
qualifying hedges, fees, and certain other nonifyirady sources cannot exceed 5% of our annual grassme. As a result, we might have to
limit our use of advantageous hedging techniquesipfement those hedges through a TRS, which weforay in the future. This could
increase the cost of our hedging activities or eepgs to greater risks associated with changederesst rates than we would otherwise want to
bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could reduce the market pricef our common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax lawsegulations governing REITs or the administraiivterpretations of those laws or regulations
may be amended. We cannot predict when or if amyfaderal income tax law, regulation or administinterpretation, or any amendmer
any existing federal income tax law, regulatioradministrative interpretation, will be adopted, prdgated or become effective and any such
law, regulation or interpretation may take effesttoactively. We and you could be adversely afétig any such change in, or any new,
federal income tax law, regulation or administratinterpretation.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the educed tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generallyucs the maximum tax rate for dividends payabiotoestic stockholders that are individuals,
trusts and estates from 38.6% to 15% (through 2@i®)dends payable by REITs, however, are generail eligible for the reduced rates.
Although this legislation does not adversely aftbet taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REI#¥& more favorable rates applicable to
regular corporate dividends could cause investdrs are individuals, trusts and estates to perdawestments in REITs to be relatively less
attractive than investments in stock of non-RElTpooations that pay dividends, which could adversdiect the value of the stock of REITS,
including our common stock.
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FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements iis firiospectus that are subject to risks and unoé&dsi These forward-looking statements
include information about possible or assumed &utesults of our business, financial conditionyiliity, results of operations, plans and
objectives. When we use the words “believe,” “expeéanticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,”ihtend,” “should,” “may,” “would,” “will”
or similar expressions, we intend to identify forddooking statements. Statements regarding tHewiahg subjects, among others, are
forward-looking by their nature:

our business and investment strate

our projected operating resul

our ability to obtain future financing arrangemeatsl the terms of such arrangeme

general volatility of the securities markets in ethive invest

our expected investmen

changes in the value of our investme

interest rate mismatches between our mort-backed securities and our borrowings used to fuetd purchase:
changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayatst;

effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate mortgag-backed securitie:

rates of default or decreased recovery rates omgastments

prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgag-backed or other as-backed securitie:
the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatili

changes in governmental regulations, tax law atebrand similar matter

availability of investment opportunities in reatage-related and other securitie

availability of qualified personne

estimates relating to our ability to make distribas to you in the future

our understanding of our competitic

market trends in our industry, interest rates,dblet securities markets or the general economy

use of the proceeds of this offerit

The forward-looking statements are basedur beliefs, assumptions and expectations ofudure performance, taking into account all

information currently available to us. You shoulnt place undue reliance on these forward-lookiatestents. These beliefs, assumptions and

expectations can change as a result of many pessifeints or factors, not all of which are knownisoSome of these factors are described in
this prospectus under the headings “Summary,” “Ria&tors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysifiofincial Condition and Results of
Operations” and “Business.” If a change occurs,business, financial condition, liquidity and réswf operations may vary materially from
those expressed in our forward-looking statemenyg.forward{ooking statement speaks only as of the date octwihis made. New risks a

uncertainties arise from time to time, and it ipossible for us to predict those events or how thay affect us. Except as required by law, we
are not obligated to, and do not intend to, updatevise any forward-looking statements, whetfsea aesult of new information, future events
or otherwise.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that our net proceeds framphblic offering of our shares of common stodkeradeducting the underwriting discount and
our estimated offering expenses, will be approxatyas million (based on the praethe cover of this prospectus). We estimate
that our net proceeds will be approximately $ million if the underwriters exercigeetr overallotment option in full. In addition, we
may at our option pay the underwriters an aggregieieunt of up to 0.25% of the aggregate proceadsddrom sales of shares sold in this
offering based on the underwriters’ performanceelation to this offering.

Concurrent with this offering, we willlse® Annaly shares of common stoclaiprivate offering at the same price per share as
the price per share of this public offering. Upampletion of this offering, Annaly will own apprarately % of our outstanding
common stock (which percentage excludes shares sold pursuant to the exercise of the underwritessrallotment option and shares of our
restricted common stock granted to our executifieexs and employees of our Manager or its afét We will not pay any underwriting
fees, commissions or discounts with respect tskiz@es we sell to Annaly. We plan to invest thepneteeds of this offering and the
concurrent sale of shares to Annaly in accordaritteaur investment objectives and the strategiesdeed in this prospectus. See “Business—
Our Investment Strategy.”

We intend to use the net proceeds ofdtiexing to finance the acquisition of additiomaime and Alt-A mortgage loans, non-Agency
RMBS, Agency RMBS and ABS, CDOs, CMBS and otherstmner or non-consumer ABS. We may also use theepdscfor other general
corporate purposes such as repayment of outstaimtiegtedness, working capital, and for liquidigeds. Pending any such uses, we may
invest the net proceeds from the sale of any siesi6r may use them to reduce short term indeltginWe expect to continue to focus our
investment activities on purchasing residential tgege loans that have been originated by selebtdpimlity originators, including the retail
lending operations of leading commercial banks, rmtAgency RMBS. We expect that over the near uminvestment portfolio will
continue to be weighted toward non-Agency RMBSjettito maintaining our REIT qualification and d#40 Act exemption, which may,
depending on the composition of our investmentfpliot require us to purchase Agency RMBS or otlpgalifying assets. Over time we exp
that our investment portfolio will become more wdigd toward residential mortgage loans. Until apgede investments can be identified, our
Manager may invest the net proceeds of this offieaind the concurrent sale of shares to Annalyterést-bearing short-term investments,
including money market accounts, that are condistéh our intention to qualify as a REIT. Thesgéstments are expected to provide a lower
net return than we hope to achieve from investmientsir intended use of proceeds of this offeridgr Manager intends to conduct due
diligence with respect to each investment and bldtenvestment opportunities may not be immediateigilable. To the extent we raise more
proceeds in this offering, we will make more invashts. To the extent we raise less proceeds irotfésng, we will make fewer investments.
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DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We intend to elect and qualify to be thes a REIT for federal income tax purposes comimgneith our taxable year ending on
December 31, 2007. Federal income tax law reqtiiretsa REIT distribute with respect to each yedeast 90% of its REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction fordkvids paid and excluding any net capital gainutfaash available for distribution is less
than 90% of our REIT taxable income, we could lmpied to sell assets or borrow funds to make désthibutions or we may make a portion
of the required distribution in the form of a talebtock distribution or distribution of debt seities. To the extent we distribute less than 90%
of our REIT taxable income in 2007, then we wilttiy this shortfall through throwback dividends.ewill not be required to make
distributions with respect to activities conductebugh the TRS which we may form in the futurer Fmre information, please see “Certain
Federal Income Tax Considerations—Taxation of Com@any.”

To satisfy the requirements to qualifygaREIT and generally not be subject to federabime and excise tax, we intend to make regular
quarterly distributions of all or substantially eflour REIT taxable income to holders of our conmnstock out of assets legally available
therefor. On December 20, 2007, our board of dirsadeclared a quarterly distribution of $0.9 roitlj or $0.025 per share of our common
stock. This dividend was paid on January 25, 200&dckholders of record on December 31, 2007. @rcM19, 2008, our board of directors
declared a quarterly distribution of $9.8 milliar,$0.26 per share of our common stock. This divitdeas paid on April 30, 2008 to
stockholders of record on March 31, 2008. Our GA¥%Ploss for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 VBds9$million and our Core Earnings
was $10.1 million. On June 2, 2008, our board oéators declared a quarterly distribution of $6i0iom, or $0.16 per share of our common
stock, payable on July 31, 2008 to stockholdergodrd on June 12, 2008. Purchasers in this offewiifi not participate in this quarterly
distribution. Any future distributions we make wlilé at the discretion of our board of directors ailtldepend upon our earnings and financial
condition, maintenance of our REIT status, appliegovisions of the Maryland General Corporati@w, or MGCL, and such other factors
our board of directors deems relevant. Our earrémgkfinancial condition will be affected by vargofactors, including the net interest and
other income from our portfolio, our operating enpes and any other expenditures. For more infoomagarding risk factors that could
materially adversely affect our earnings and finanoondition, please see “Risk Factors.”

We anticipate that our distributions gaiig will be taxable as ordinary income to youthalgh a portion of the distributions may be
designated by us as qualified dividend income pitahgain or may constitute a return of capitak Will furnish annually to each of you a
statement setting forth distributions paid durihg preceding year and their characterization asarglincome, return of capital, qualified
dividend income or capital gain. For more inforroatiplease see “Certain Federal Income Tax Coretides—Taxation of Stockholders.”
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PRICE RANGE OF OUR COMMON STOCK AND DISTRIBUTIONS

Our common stock began trading publiciyNobvember 16, 2007 and is traded on the New Y tokiSExchange under the trading
symbol “CIM”". As of June 2, 2008, we had 37,744,918 shares ofrmamstock issued and outstanding which were heldpgpyoximately 5,23
beneficial holders. The following table sets fofftir, the periods indicated, the high, low, and tigssales prices per share of our common ¢
as reported on the New York Stock Exchange compdajte and the cash dividends declared per shawg a@bmmon stock.

Stock Prices

High Low
January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C $19.7¢ $ 11.1C
November 16, 2007 to December 31, 2i $178t $ 14.1C

Common Dividends
Declared Per Share

January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C $ 0.2¢
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2! $ 0.02¢

On June 2, 2008, our board of direct@dated a quarterly distribution of $6.0 milliom,$0.16 per share of our common stock. This
dividend will be paid on July 31, 2008 to stocktesklof record on June 12, 2008. Purchasers iroffésng will not participate in this quartel
distribution.

The closing sales price of our commotlstin June 2, 2008 was $13.81 per share.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth (1) outwal capitalization at March 31, 2008 and (2) capitalization as adjusted to reflect the effects of
the sale of our common stock in this offering abéfering price of $  per share after deductimg underwriters’ commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by us and the concuoféring to Annaly of  shares of our common &tota private offering at the price per
share of this public offering. You should read tiaisle together with “Use of Proceeds” includecelsere in this prospectus.

As of March 31, 2008

Actual(1) As Adjusted(1)(2)(3)

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 500,00G08fes authorized, 37,744,918 shares issued and

outstanding actual and  shares issued andaodisg, as adjusted ( $ 377
Additional paic-in-capital 532,81¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince (45,28")
Accumulated defici (68,599

Total stockholder’ equity $419,31.

(1) Does notinclude 1,301,000 shares of restrictedneomstock approved as grants pursuant to our eguigntive plan

(2) Includes  shares which will be sold in thiseoiiig at an offering price of $ per share fet proceeds of approximately $  milli
after deducting the underwriters’ commission artdrested offering expenses of approximately $ lliom and the concurrent offering
to Annaly of  shares of our common stock iniggie offering at the price per share of this puiblifering. The shares sold to Annaly
will be sold at the offering price without paymerfitany underwriter commission. Se“Use of Proceec”

(3) Does not include the underwrit’ option to purchase or place up to  additionarss.
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MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financ@ndition and results of operations should be reatnjunction with the financial statements
and notes to those statements included in thippaiss. The discussion may contain certain forvi@o#ting statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are thiostare not historical in nature. As a resultnainy factors, such as those set forth under
“Risk Factors” in this prospectus, our actual resmay differ materially from those anticipatedsirch forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company timagsts in residential mortgage loans, resident@tgage-backed securities, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextgmally managed by FIDAC. We intend to elect qudlify to be taxed as a REIT for fede
income tax purposes commencing with our taxable geding on December 31, 2007. Our targeted atstas and the principal investments
we expect to make in each are as follows:

. Whole mortgage loans, consisting
o} Prime mortgage loar
o] Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o] Alt-A mortgage loan

. RMBS, consisting of

o] Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc¢-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-ratec
and nor-rated classe

o] Agency RMBS

. ABS, consisting of

o] Debt and equity tranches of CDr
o} CMBS
o] Consumer and ni-consumer ABS, including investm«-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including

BB-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

We completed our initial public offeriog November 21, 2007. In that offering and in aatorent private offering we raised net
proceeds before offering expenses of approxim&®&B8.6 million. We have commenced investing thesegeds and, as of March 31, 2008,
had a portfolio of RMBS and whole mortgage loanafroximately $1.6 billion.

Our objective is to provide attractivekdadjusted returns to our investors over the lamgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to achig objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractigk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmith the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status.

Our investment strategy is intended ke tadvantage of opportunities in the current irderate and credit environment. We will adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by stgfour asset allocations across these various elssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategy,bioed with our Manager’s experience, will enablegaipay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles.éifeect to take a long-term view of assets andliieds, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finangbrting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to you over the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase aengial returns and to fund the acquisition of assets. Our income is generated primarily by
the difference, or net spread, between the incomeavn on our assets and the cost of our borrowillgsexpect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including rease agreements, warehouse facilities, secuiitica commercial paper and term financing
CDOs. We
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expect to manage our debt by utilizing interest tegdges, such as interest rate swaps, to redeiedféet of interest rate fluctuations related to
our debt.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 200fe midst of challenging market conditions whaffected the cost and availability of
financing from the facilities with which we expedt® finance our investments. These instrumentsided repurchase agreements, warehouse
facilities, securitizations, asskacked commercial paper and term CDOs. The liquiisis which commenced in August 2007 affectechea
these sources—and their individual providers—téedént degrees; some sources generally becameilaid@asome available but at a high
cost, and some were largely unaffected. For exanptbe repurchase agreement market, non-AgencB&bkecame harder to finance,
depending on the type of assets collateralizinRWBS. The amount, term and margin requirementsasted with these types of financings
were also impacted. At that time, warehouse faedlito finance whole loan prime residential morggagere generally available from major
banks, but at significantly higher cost and hadgremargin requirements than previously offeredias also extremely difficult to term
finance whole loans through securitization or boisdsed by a CDO structure. Financing using ABG@Rdras issuers became unable to place
(or roll) their securities, which has resultedsome instances, in forced sales of mortgageked securities, or MBS, and other securitiesh
has further negatively impacted the market valugne$e assets.

Although the credit markets had been mpoieag much turbulence, as we started ramping ugpottfolio, we noted a slight easing. We
entered into a number of repurchase agreementewe use to finance RMBS. In January 2008, we eqdtarto two whole mortgage loan
repurchase agreements. As we began to see thalaigilof financing, we were also seeing bettedemvriting standards used to originate r
mortgages. We commenced buying and financing RMB5adso entered into agreements to purchase wholgyage loans. We purchased
high credit quality assets which we believed we ldoe readily able to finance.

Beginning mid-February 2008, credit maskexperienced a dramatic and sudden adverse chEmgeaeverity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the markésedit once again froze, and in the mortgage mavkduations of non-Agency RMBS and
whole mortgage loans came under severe pressueeciBEdit crisis began in early February 2008, wadreavily leveraged investor announ
that it had to de-lever and liquidate a portfolfapproximately $30 billion of non-Agency RMBS. €& of these types of securities dropped
dramatically, and lenders started lowering theg®ion norAgency RMBS that they held as collateral to sethiedloan they had extended. 1
subsequent failure of a major investment bank waddhe crisis.

Like every other participant in the ficéad markets, we have not been immune to thesdqmrab Throughout this challenging
environment we have received margin calls but mageall such margin calls we have received. Sudigetines inthe valuation of investmer
can impair liquidity and make it more difficult toeet any future margin calls we may receive and raaylt in us having to sell assets at a |
To provide flexibility during this market disruptiove have amended one of our financing agreemerts to ease the liquidity covenants
contained therein. We are currently and to date leen in compliance with all provisions of oulafiicing agreements.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2@Q to the deterioration in the market value ofamsets, we received margin calls under our
repurchase agreements, which resulted in our hagiagnend our liquidity covenants in one facilidptain additional funding from third
parties, including from Annaly (See “Certain Redaships and Related Transactions”), and take atie@s to increase our liquidity.
Additionally, the disruptions during this quartesulted in us not being in compliance with theinebme covenant in our other facility. We
currently have no borrowings under that facilitylaare negotiating an amendment of the net incomerant. Subsequent to March 31, 2008,
non-Agency RMBS and whole mortgage loan valuati@msain volatile and under severe pressure. Segsititading remains limited and
mortgage securities financing markets remain chgihgg as the industry continues to report negate®s. As a result, we expect to operate
with a low level of leverage and to continue togactions that would support available cash.

On April 24, 2008 we sponsored a $619ililan securitization, a long-term financing trastian whereby we securitized our then-
current inventory of mortgage loans. In this tratisa, we sold approximately $536.9 million of AArted fixed and floating rate bonds to
third party investors, and retained approximatel§.8 million of AAA-rated mezzanine bonds and $3®i8lion in subordinated bonds. This
transaction will be accounted
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for as a financing pursuant to SFAS 1A@counting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilities

On June 2, 2008, our board of direct@dated a quarterly distribution of $6.0 milliom,$0.16 per share of our common stock. This
dividend will be paid July 31, 2008 to stockholdefsecord on June 12, 2008. Purchasers in thexioff will not participate in this quarterly
distribution.

Trends

We expect the results of our operatianse affected by various factors, many of whichlagond our control. Our results of operations
will primarily depend on, among other things, thed| of our net interest income, the market valueun assets, and the supply of and demand
for such assets. Our net interest income, whidecef the amortization of purchase premiums andetioo of discounts, varies primarily as a
result of changes in interest rates, borrowings;astd prepayment speeds, which is a measurembotofuickly borrowers pay down the
unpaid principal balance on their mortgage loans.

Prepayment SpeedBrepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapaynent Rate, or CPR, vary according to intesdss, the type
of investment, conditions in financial markets, @atition and other factors, none of which can kedmted with any certainty. In general,
when interest rates rise, it is relatively lessaative for borrowers to refinance their mortgaganis, and as a result, prepayment speeds tend tc
decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymentisgead to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&sinvents purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeakmedecreases because the purchase premiumdvi@ptie bonds amortizes faster than
expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymentspesdt in increased income and can extend thecever which we amortize the
purchase premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS inmvests purchased at a discount, as prepayment sipeeelase, the amount of income
earn increases because of the acceleration ottreteon of the discount into interest income. Gansely, decreases in prepayment speeds
result in decreased income and can extend thechevier which we accrete the purchase discountimévest income.

Rising Interest Rate EnvironmeAss indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease, increasing ouestter
income. Rising interest rates, however, increasdioancing costs which may result in a net negatimpact on our net interest income. In
addition, if we acquire Agency and non-Agency RM&Materalized by monthly reset adjustable-ratetgames, or ARMs, and three- and five-
year hybrid ARMs, such interest rate increasesdcegult in decreases in our net investment incaséhere could be a timing misma
between the interest rate reset dates on our RMB®po and the financing costs of these investtaeklonthly reset ARMs are ARMs on
which coupon rates reset monthly based on indigels as the one-month London Interbank Offering Rait&|IBOR. Hybrid ARMs are
mortgages that have interest rates that are figedrf initial period (typically three, five, seven10 years) and thereafter reset at regular
intervals subject to interest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investits, such interest rate increases should resuitirases in our net investment income because
our floating rate assets are greater in amounttfenelated floating rate liabilities. Similarltich an increase in interest rates should generally
result in an increase in our net investment incoméxed-rate investments made by us because xenlfate assets would be greater in am
than our fixed-rate liabilities. We expect, howeubat our fixed-rate assets would decline in vatua rising interest rate environment and that
our net interest spreads on fixed rate assets amdlihe in a rising interest rate environmenti® ¢éxtent such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit Risk.One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshamlie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy will
generally keep our credit losses and financingsclast. We retain the risk of potential credit losea all of the residential mortgage loans we
hold in our portfolio. Additionally, some of ouniastments in RMBS may be qualifying interests formpmses of maintaining our exemption
from the 1940 Act because we retain a 100% owngiiskérest in the underlying loans. If we purchalelasses of these securitizations, we
have the credit exposure on the underlying loarier B the purchase of these securities, we conadaie diligence process that allows us to
remove loans that do not meet our credit standaaded on loan-to-value ratios, borrower’s creditras, income and asset documentation and
other criteria that we believe to be important @atiions of credit risk.

Size of Investment Portfolidhe size of our investment portfolio, as measurethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of ourtgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgetgelated securities and the
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other assets we own is also a key revenue driveme@lly, as the size of our investment portfolioves, the amount of interest income we
receive increases. The larger investment portfblimyever, drives increased expenses as we incitiaadd interest expense to finance the
purchase of our assets.

Since changes in interest rates may fagnitly affect our activities, our operating resuliepend, in large part, upon our ability to
effectively manage interest rate risks and prepaymisks while maintaining our status as a REIT.

Current EnvironmeniWhile the current situation in the sub-prime moggaector may provide us opportunities, the cumeakness in
the broader mortgage market could adversely affieetor more of our potential lenders and could eaune or more of our potential lenders to
be unwilling or unable to provide us with financiagrequire us to post additional collateral. Imgeal, this could potentially increase our
financing costs and reduce our liquidity or requiseto sell assets at an inopportune time. We éxpacse a number of sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasehfacilities, securitizations, asset-backed ceroial paper and term CDOs. Current
market conditions have affected the cost and avitithaof financing from each of these sources—#émeir individual providers—to different
degrees; some sources generally are unavailaltes ace available but at a high cost, and someaagelly unaffected. For example, in the
repurchase agreement market, borrowers have bfsneaf differently depending on the type of segutity are financing. Non-Agency
RMBS have been harder to finance, depending otyfieeof assets collateralizing the RMBS. The amptenin and margin requirements
associated with these types of financings have hegatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finenghole loan prime residential mortgages are géigexraailable from major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and greater margin reguients than previously offered. Many major banks differ warehouse facilities have also
reduced the amount of capital available to newae$rand consequently the size of those facilitfeesed now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market éonh finance whole loans through securitization@nds issued by a CDO structure. The highly
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and G@@&tures currently have liquidity, but at mucidev spreads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of thesectures currently have few buyers and currentketaconditions have forced issuers to retain
these lower rated bonds rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of asset-backed commigrajzer, or ABCP, have been unable to place (& tlwir securities, which has resulted, in
some instances, in forced sales of MBS and otlenriies which has further negatively impacted ket value of these assets. These m
conditions are fluid and likely to change over timfAs a result, the execution of our investmenttegig may be dictated by the cost and
availability of financing from these different soas.

If one or more major market participafiatts, it could negatively impact the marketabildfall fixed income securities and this could
negatively impact the value of the securities wguée, thus reducing our net book value. Furtheenidmany of our potential lenders are
unwilling or unable to provide us with financingewould be forced to sell our securities or residémortgage loans at an inopportune time
when prices are depressed.

In the current market, it may be difficat impossible to obtain third party pricing oretimvestments we purchase. In addition, validating
third party pricing for our investments may be msubjective as fewer participants may be willingtovide this service to us. Moreover, the
current market is more illiquid than in recent bigtfor some of the investments we purchase. liligovestments typically experience greater
price volatility as a ready market does not eXstvolatility increases or liquidity decreases waynmave greater difficulty financing our
investments which may negatively impact our earsiaigd the execution of our investment strategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepareatoordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the United States of America. These
accounting principles may require us to make soomeptex and subjective decisions and assessmentsn@si critical accounting policies w
involve decisions and assessments that could afteateported assets and liabilities, as well aseported revenues and expenses. We believe
that all of the decisions and assessments uporhvehicfinancial statements will be based will bas@nable at the time made and based upon
information available to us at that time. At eactader end, we calculate estimated fair marketevaking a pricing model. We validate our
pricing model by obtaining independent pricing drofour assets
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and performing a verification of those sourcesuo@wn internal estimate of fair market value. Ve identified what we believe will be our
most critical accounting policies to be the follogi

Valuation of Investments

On January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS @hith defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value in accordance with
GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value nreasents. The valuation hierarchy is based upotrémsparency of inputs to the valuat
of an asset or liability as of the measurement.ddte three levels are defined as follow:

Level 1- inputs to the valuation methaxy are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identicaétsand liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methiody include quoted prices for similar assets aabllities in active markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methlody are unobservable and significant to fair value

Mortgage-backed securities and interast swaps are valued using a pricing model. The iB$ng model incorporates such factors as
coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasdrywap curves, convexity, duration, periodic lifieccaps, and credit enhancement.
Interest rate swaps are modeled by incorporatic factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,thadeceive rate on the interest rate swaps.
Management reviews the fair values determined byptiting model and compares its results to depletes received on each investment to
validate reasonableness. The dealer quotes witjrocate common market pricing methods, includispread measurement to the Treasury
curve or interest rate swap curve as well as upithgricharacteristics of the particular securityliming coupon, periodic and life caps, rate
reset period, issuer, additional credit supportexukcted life of the security.

Any changes to the valuation methodolagyreviewed by management to ensure the changegppropriate. As markets and products
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, we continue to refine our Yeloanethodologies. The methods used by
us may produce a fair value calculation that matybeadndicative of net realizable value or refleetof future fair values. Furthermore, while
we believe our valuation methods are appropriatecamsistent with other market participants, the efsdifferent methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffia@ncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. We
use inputs that are current as of the measurena¢st \which may include periods of market disloaatiduring which price transparency may
reduced. This condition could cause our financiatriiments to be reclassified from Level 2 to Le3/@i the future.

We define the fair value of our RMBS ugfthevel 2” methodology as described above.
Loans Held for Investment

We purchase residential mortgage loadsctassify them as loans held for investment orstatement of financial condition. Loans held
for investment are intended to be held to matuitgl, accordingly, are reported at the principal am@utstanding, net of provisions for loan
losses.

Loan loss provisions are examined quigrserd updated to reflect expectations of futurebable credit losses based on factors such as
originator historical losses, geographic concemnaindividual loan characteristics, experiencesses, and expectations of future loan pool
behavior. As credit losses occur, the provisiondan losses will reflect that realization.

When we determine that it is probable tuantractually due specific amounts are deemeadlleutible, the loan is considered impaired.
To measure our impairment we determine the exdatbe secorded investment amount over the netline of the collateral, as reduced by
selling costs. Any deficiency between the carryangount of an asset and the net sales price of sepsad collateral is charged to the allow
for loan losses.

An allowance for mortgage loans is maired at a level believed adequate by managemeiidorb probable losses. We may elect to
sell a loan held for investment due to adverse gbaiin credit fundamentals. Once the determindtambeen made by us that we will no
longer hold the loan for investment, we will accofar the loan at the lower of amortized cost dimeated fair value. The reclassification of
loan and recognition of impairments could adverséfgct our reported earnings.
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Valuations of Availabl-for-Sale Securitie:

We expect our investments in RMBS willdsemarily classified as available-for-sale sedastthat are carried on the statement of
financial condition at their fair value. This clé@&sation will result in changes in fair values bgirecorded as statement of financial condition
adjustments to accumulated other comprehensiveniaar loss, which is a component of stockholdegsiity.

Our available-fosale securities have fair values as determined neférence to fair values calculated using a pgichodel. Manageme
reviews the fair values generated to insure pricegeflective of the current market. We perforrahdation of the fair value calculated by the
pricing model by comparing its results to indepergeices provided by dealers in the securitieda@rithird party pricing services. If dealers
independent pricing services are unable to proaigece for an asset, or if the price providedhmsm is deemed unreliable by our Manager,
then the asset will be valued at its fair valuel@®rmined in good faith by our Manager. The pgdssubject to various assumptions which
could result in different presentations of value.

When the fair value of an available-fatessecurity is less than its amortized cost foextended period, we will consider whether there
is an other-than-temporary impairment in the vafithe security. If, based on our analysis, anmethan-temporary impairment exists, the cost
basis of the security is written down to the thenrent fair value, and the unrealized loss is tiemed from accumulated other comprehensive
loss as an immediate reduction of current earnfjagsf the loss had been realized in the periootioér-than-temporary impairment). The

determination of other-than-temporary impairmerd gubjective process, and different judgmentsaamsdmptions could affect the timing of
loss realization.

We consider the following factors whemedmining an other-than-temporary impairment feeaurity:

. The length of time and the extent to which the raaalue has been less than the amortized
. Whether the security has been downgraded by aratiency; an
. Our intent to hold the security for a period of ¢isufficient to allow for any anticipated recovamymarket value

The determination of other-than-tempoiargairment is made at least quarterly. If we deiae an impairment to be other than
temporary we will realize a loss which will negatiy impact current income.

Investment Consolidation

For each investment we make, we will eatd the underlying entity that issued the se@asritve will acquire or to which we will make a
loan to determine the appropriate accounting. hfopeing our analysis we will refer to guidanceStatement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 148¢counting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilitjiesnd FASB
Interpretation No. (FIN) 46RZonsolidation of Variable Interest Entitie§IN 46R addresses the application of Accountiegdrch Bulletin
No. 51,Consolidated Financial Statement® certain entities in which voting rights aret effective in identifying an investor with a
controlling financial interest. In variable intetestities, or VIES, an entity is subject to comdation under FIN 46R if the investors either do
not have sufficient equity at risk for the entityfinance its activities without additional subardied financial support, are unable to direct the
entity’s activities, or are not exposed to thetgigilosses or entitled to its residual returnsE¥ Wwithin the scope of FIN 46R are required to be
consolidated by their primary beneficiary. The mimbeneficiary of a VIE is determined to be thetypthat absorbs a majority of the entity’s
expected losses, its expected returns, or botls. détermination can sometimes involve complex ajestive analyses.

Interest Income Recognition

Interest income on available-for-saleus#ies and loans held for investment is recogniaeer the life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Interest income on aed for sale securities and loans held for investns recognized using the effective interest
method as described by SFAS No. Btcounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Assettiaith Originating or Acquiring Loans and Init
Direct Costs of Leas, for securities of high credit quality and Emeigissues Task Force No. 99-Fxcognition of Interest Income and
Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficiarbsgts in Securitized Financial Ass, for all other securities. Income recognition is
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managena full recovery of income and
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principal becomes doubtful. Income recognitioneisumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarehperformance is demonstrated to be
resumed.

Under SFAS No. 91 and Emerging Issue& Fasce No. 99-20, management will estimate, atithe of purchase, the future expected
cash flows and determine the effective interest batsed on these estimated cash flows and ourgsegrice. As needed, these estimated cast
flows will be updated and a revised yield computaded on the current amortized cost of the investnhe estimating these cash flows, there
will be a number of assumptions that will be subjeauncertainties and contingencies. These incthdeate and timing of principal payments
(including prepayments, repurchases, defaults ignéedations), the pass-through or coupon rate atetest rate fluctuations. In addition,
interest payment shortfalls due to delinquencietherunderlying mortgage loans, and the timinghefmagnitude of credit losses on the
mortgage loans underlying the securities have todgmentally estimated. These uncertainties amtiregencies are difficult to predict and :
subject to future events that may impact managemestimates and our interest income.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments

Our policies permit us to enter into gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of mitigating our
interest rate risk. We intend to use interest datévative instruments to mitigate interest rask rather than to enhance returns.

We account for derivative financial instrents in accordance with SFAS No. 188¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, as amended and interpreted. SFAS No. 133 reqaiiresitity to recognize all derivatives as eithesess or liabilities in the statement
of financial condition and to measure those instnts at fair value. Additionally, the fair valugjastments will affect either other
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity uhtl hedged item is recognized in earnings or reetne depending on whether the
derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for aotiog purposes and, if so, the nature of the megdgctivity.

In the normal course of business, we ms®ya variety of derivative financial instrumemtsrtanage, or hedge, interest rate risk. These
derivative financial instruments must be effecliveeducing our interest rate risk exposure in otdegualify for hedge accounting. When the
terms of an underlying transaction are modifiedwben the underlying hedged item ceases to efisthanges in the fair value of the
instrument are included in net income for eachqeetintil the derivative instrument matures or igled. Any derivative instrument used for
risk management that does not meet the hedgirgrieris carried at fair value with the changesaftue included in net income.

Derivatives will be used for hedging pesps rather than speculation. We will rely on gtimts from third parties to determine fair
values. If our hedging activities do not achieve @esired results, our reported earnings may beradiy affected.

Reserve for Possible Credit Losses

The expense for possible credit lossepimection with debt investments is the chargeatmings to increase the allowance for possible
credit losses to the level that management estgniatbe adequate considering delinquencies, Igssrience and collateral quality. Other
factors considered relate to geographic trendgpandiuct diversification, the size of the portfoéind current economic conditions. Based upon
these factors, we will establish the provisiongossible credit losses by category of asset. Whisrprobable that we will be unable to collect
all amounts contractually due, the account is amrsid impaired.

Where impairment is indicated, a valuatierite-down or write-off is measured based upandhcess of the recorded investment amount
over the net fair value of the collateral, as rextlby selling costs. Any deficiency between theytag amount of an asset and the net sales
price of repossessed collateral is charged toltberance for credit losses.

Income Taxes

We intend to elect and qualify to be thas a REIT commencing with our taxable year endm@®ecember 31, 2007. Accordingly, we
will generally not be subject to corporate fedenastate income tax to the extent that we makeifyirag distributions to you, and provided we
satisfy on a continuing basis, through actual ihvesit and operating results, the REIT requiremirtisiding certain asset, income,
distribution and stock ownership tests. If we faifualify as a REIT, and do not qualify for cemtatatutory relief provisions, we will be subj
to federal, state and local income taxes and maydésauded from qualifying as a REIT for the suhssg
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four taxable years following the year in which wetlour REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failito qualify as a REIT could have a
material adverse impact on our results of operataomd amounts available for distribution to you.

The dividends paid deduction of a REITdaalifying dividends to its stockholders is cortgaliusing our taxable income as opposed to
net income reported on the financial statementsable income, generally, will differ from net incemeported on the financial statements
because the determination of taxable income iscbasdax provisions and not financial accountiniggples.

In the future, we may elect to treat aierof our subsidiaries as TRSs. In general, a ®R&rs may hold assets and engage in activities
that we cannot hold or engage in directly and gdhyemay engage in any real estate or non-reatestdated business. A TRS is subject to
federal, state and local corporate income taxes.

While any TRS we may form in the futurél wenerate net income, our TRS can declare divildeto us which will be included in our
taxable income and necessitate a distribution to gmnversely, if we retain earnings at the TR&llewo distribution is required and we can
increase book equity of the consolidated entity.

Financial Condition
At March 31, 2008, our portfolio consibief $1.2 billion of RMBS and of approximately $36Inillion of whole mortgage loans.

The following table summarizes certaiareltteristics of our portfolio at March 31, 2008 daecember 31, 2007.

March 31, December 31

2008 2007
Leverage at peri-end 3.4:1 0.5:1
Adjustablerate mortgag-backed securities as % of portfo 74.(% 81.8%
Fixec-rate mortgag-backed securities as % of portfo 4.1% 5.7%
Adjustablerate residential mortgage loans as % of portf 10.7% 3.&%
Fixec-rate residential mortgage loans as % of porti 11.2% 8.7%
Notional amount of interest rate swaps as % offpliot 99.1% 95.8%
Annualized yield on average earning assets duhiagpérioc 6.63% 7.02%
Annualized cost of funds on average repurchasenbalduring the perio 4.27% 5.08%
Annualized interest rate spread during the pe 2.4(% 1.9%%
Weighted average yield on assets at pend 6.32% 6.62%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 4.67% 5.02%
Residential Mortgac-Backed Securities

The table below summarizes our RMBS itmesits at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007:
March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Amortized cos $1,275,06! $ 1,114,13
Unrealized gain — 10,67
Unrealized losse (45,28%) (522)
Fair value $1,229,78 $ 1,124,291

As of March 31, 2008, the RMBS in ourtfaio were purchased at a net discount to theiradue. Our RMBS had a weighted average
amortized cost of 99.4% and 98.8% at March 31, 20@8December 31, 2007, respectively.

The following tables summarize certaiareteteristics of our RMBS portfolio at March 31080and December 31, 2007.

58
Weighted Averages
Estimated Value Constant
(dollars in Yield to Prepayment
thousands) (1) Coupon Maturity Rate(2)

March 31, 200¢ $ 1,229,78 6.27% 6.55% 11%



December 31, 200 $ 1,124,291 6.32% 6.87% 10%

1) All assets listed in this chart are carried atrtfeir value.

2) Represents the estimated percentage of principalill be prepaid over the next three months basetistorical principal paydown
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The table below summarizes the credibgatof our RMBS investments at December 31, 2007:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
AAA 100.0(% 100.0©6
AA — —
A — —
BBB — —
BB — —
B — —
Not rated — —
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generaliyder than stated contractual maturities, as #ieyaffected by the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of priniciaad prepayments of principal. The stated comtigdldinal maturity of the mortgage loans
underlying our portfolio of RMBS ranges up to 4@y but the expected maturity is subject to chdoaged on the prepayments of the
underlying loans. As of March 31, 2008, the averfagd contractual maturity of the RMBS portfolie 81 years, and as of December 31, 2007,
it was 29 years. The estimated weighted averagehmao maturity of the RMBS in the tables below laased upon our prepayment
expectations, which are based on both proprietadysabscription-based financial models. Our prepatmprojections consider current and
expected trends in interest rates, interest raegility, steepness of the yield curve, the mortgyaate of the outstanding loan, time to reset and
the spread margin of the reset.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPRpgits to predict the percentage of principal thidtbe prepaid over the next 3 months based on
historical principal paydowns. As interest rategrithe rate of refinancings typically declinesjolihwe expect may result in lower rates of
prepayment and, as a result, a lower portfolio OCBPéhversely, as interest rates fall, the rate fifi@acings typically increases, which we
expect may result in higher rates of prepayment as@ result, a higher portfolio CPR.

After the reset date, interest rates unhybrid adjustable rate RMBS securities adjustuafly based on spreads over various LIBOR
Treasury indices. These interest rates are sulgj@etps that limit the amount the applicable irgerate can increase during any year, known as
periodic cap, and through the maturity of the aggllle security, known as a lifetime cap. The waidhaverage periodic cap for the portfolio is
an increase of 1.93% and the weighted average nuaxilifietime increases and decreases for the partéoe 12.18%.

The following table summarizes our RMB®@ding to their estimated weighted average léssifications as of March 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007:

Fair Value
March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Less than one ye: $ — $ 45,86¢
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,229,78 1,078,42.
Greater than or equal to five yei — —
Total $1,229,78! $1,124,29
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Whole Mortgage Loan Portfolio Characteristics

The following tables present certain elageristics of our whole mortgage loan portfolicoA$/arch 31, 2008.

(dollars in thousands)

Original loan balanc $ 367,64

Unpaid principal balanc $ 358,52

Weighted average coupon rate on lo 6.11%

Weighted average original term (yea 29.1

Weighted average remaining term (ye: 28.¢

Geographic Distribution Remaining Balance
Top 5 States (dollars in thousands) % of Loan Portfolio Loan Count

CA $ 124,80: 34.81% 172
NJ 26,12 7.25% 42
NY 21,21t 5.92% 31
FL 19,67! 5.4% 30
IL 17,581 4.91% 21
Total $ 209,39¢ 58.42% 29¢

Remaining
Balance % of
(dollars in Loan Loan
Occupancy Status thousands) Portfolio Count
Owner occupie $321,06¢ 89.55% 471
Second hom 31,467 8.7¢% 42
Investor 5,991 1.67% 14
Total $358,52¢ 100.00% 527
% of Loan
Documentation Type Portfolio
Full/alternative 83.1¢%
Stated income/no rat 16.8%%
Total 100.0(%
Dollars in
Unpaid Principal Balance Thousands
$417,000 or les $ 3,95(
$417,001 to $650,0C 154,70«
$650,001 to $1,000,0( 131,20¢
$1,000,001 to $2,000,0( 66,23t
$2,000,001 to $3,000,0( 2,431
Over $3,000,00. —
Total $358,52!
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% of

Loan
Loan Purpose Portfolio
Purchast 72.59%
Cash out refinanc 15.41%
Rate and term refinant 12.0(%
100.0(%
% of
ARM
ARM Loan Type Loans
Traditional ARM loans —
Hybrid ARM loans 100.00%
Total 100.0(%
% of Loan
FICO Score Portfolio
740 and abov 64.1(%
700 to 73¢ 23.02%
660 to 69¢ 9.61%
620 to 65¢ 2.15%
Below 620 or not availabl 1.12%
Total 100.0(%
Weighted Average FICO Sco 752



% of Loan

Original Loan -to-Value Dollars in
Ratio Thousands Property Type Portfolio
80.01% and abov $ 49,77¢ Single-family 57.3%
70.01% to 80.009 210,59¢ Planned urban developme 29.72%
60.01% to 70.009 45,69: Condominium 7.6%
60.00% or les 52,46 Other residentie 5.2¢%
Total $ 358,52¢ Total 100.0(%

Weighted Average Original Lo-to-Value

Ratio 73.8%
% of ARM
Periodic Cap on Hybrid ARM Loans Loans
3.00% or les! 100.0(%
3.01% to 4.00% —
4.01% to 5.00% —
Total 100.00%

We purchase our whole mortgage loans serécing retained basis. As a result, we do eotise any loans, or receive any servicing
income.

Hedging Instrument

As of March 31, 2008 and December 31,720 had entered into hedges with a notional amofu$1.6 billion and $1.2 billion,
respectively. Our hedges at March 31, 2008 and mbee 31, 2007 were fixed-for-floating interest rateap agreements whereby we swapped
the floating rate of interest on the liabilities twedged for a fixed rate of interest. The matwitiéthese hedges range from 1 to 5 years an
5 years, as of March 31, 2008 and December 31,,286fectively. At March 31, 2008 the unrealizesklon our interest rate swap agreements
was $35.6 million. At December 31, 2007, the unizeal gain on our interest rate swap agreementsswdsmillion. In a decreasing interest
rate environment, we expect that the fair valuewsfhedges will continue to decrease. We interbtdinue to seek such hedges for our

floating rate debt in the future.

Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended March 3, 2008 as compared to the Period Ended December, 2D07.

Net Loss Summary

Our net loss for the quarter ended M&th2008 was $54.9 million, or $1.46 per averageehOur net loss for the period commencing
November 21, 2007 and ending December 31, 200B&&smillion, or $0.08 per average share. Our inedon each of these periods consit
of interest income. The table below presents théoss summary for the quarter ended March 31, 20@Bfor the period ended December 31,

2007:
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(dollars in thousands, except for per share data)

For the Period

For the November 21,
Quarter 2007 through
Ended March December 31,
31, 2008 2007
Interest incom: $ 28,19: % 3,49:
Interest expens 14,022 41F
Net interest incom 14,17: 3,07
Unrealized losses on interest rate sw (31,499 (4,156
Realized losses on sales of investm: (32,819 —
Net investment expen: (50,140 (1,079
Expense:!
Management fe 2,22 1,215
General and administrative expen 2,56¢ 60%
Total expense 4,792 1,822
Loss before income tax (54,939 (2,907
Income taxe: 3 5
Net loss $ (54,93) $ (2,906
Net loss per shar basic and dilute: $ (1.4¢) % (0.0¢)
Weighted average number of shares outstar— basic and dilute: 37,744,48 37,401,73
Comprehensive Income (Los:
Net loss $ (54,93) $ (2,906
Other comprehensive (loss) incon
Unrealized (loss) gain on availa-for-sale securitie (88,259 10,15
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossetuthed in net incom 32,81¢ —
Other comprehensive (loss) incol (55,43¢) 10,15:
Comprehensive (loss) incor $ (110,37) $ 7,247

We attribute the net loss primarily taealized losses on our interest rate swaps duatedlue adjustments and realized losses on sale:
of investments during the quarter ended March 8082

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $1iérbfbr the quarter ended March 31, 2008. Ourrggeincome was $28.2 million for the quarter
ended March 31, 2008. The yield on our portfolicwa63% for the quarter ended March 31, 2008. \Meavarage earning assets of $399.7
million for the period commencing November 21, 2@0id ending December 31, 2007. Our interest incoase$3.5 million for the period
commencing November 21, 2007 and ending Decemhet(R7. The yield on our portfolio was 7.02% foe theriod ending December 31,
2007. We attribute the increase in interest inctortbe increase in interest earning assets duniegjtiarter.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $11®hiand total interest expense of $14.0 milliontfre quarter ended March 31, 2008. Our
average cost of funds was 4.23% for the quarteeeihtiarch 31, 2008. We had average borrowed fun§20®.6 million and total intere



expense of $415 thousand for the period commerndmgmber 21, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007a@emage cost of funds was 5.0
for the period commencing November 21, 2007 andngndecember 31, 2007. We attribute the increasetérest expense to the increase in
assets we were financing. The average cost of fdadéned during the quarter in response to the ituthe Federal Funds target rate during
period.
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The table below shows our average bordofuads and average cost of funds as comparedetage one-month and average six-month

LIBOR for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 andlierperiod ending December 31, 2007.

Average Cost of Funds
(Ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 anthi® period ending December 31, 2007
have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Average
Average Average Cost Cost of
One-Month of Funds Funds
Average Average LIBOR Relative to Relative to
Average Average One- Six-Month Relative to Average Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Average Six- One-Month Six-Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
For the quarter ended March 31, 2(  $ 1,325,150  $ 14,022 4.22% 3.31% 3.1&% 0.13% 0.92% 1.05%
For the period commencing
November 21, 2007 and ending
December 31, 20C $ 270,58: $ 41¢& 5.08% 4.98% 4.84% 0.14% 0.1(% 0.24%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equalsriest income less interest expense, totaled $1dli@mfor the quarter ended March 31, 2008.
Our net interest spread, which equals the yieldwraverage assets for the period less the averagef funds for the period, was 2.40% for
the quarter ended March 31, 2008. Our net inténesime totaled $3.1 million for the period commergcNovember 21, 2007 and ending
December 31, 2007. Our net interest spread wa$4fédthe period commencing November 21, 2007 anttingg December 31, 2007. We
attribute the increase to the increase in intezasting assets in the portfolio and the decreasarirwost of funds.

The table below shows our average assdds total interest earned on assets, yield onegeeinterest earning assets, average balance o
repurchase agreements, interest expense, aversigef éonds, net interest income, and net intenast spread for the quarter ended March 31,
2008 and for the period commencing November 217 20@ ending December 31, 2007.

Net Interest Income
(Ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 anthi® period ending December 31, 2007
have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Yield on
Average Average Net
Average Interest Interest Balance of Average Net Interest
Earning Earned on Earning Repurchase Interest Cost of Interest Rate
Assets Held Assets Assets Agreements Expense Funds Income Spread
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 155589 $ 25,79( 6.65% $ 132515 $ 14,02: 4.2% $ 14,17: 2.4%
For the Period Commencing November
21, 2007 and Ending December 31,
2007 $ 399,73t  $ 3,49: 7.02% $ 270,58: $ 41¢ 5.08% $ 3,077 1.94%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Interesé Savaps

For the quarter ended March 31, 2008s@ld assets with a carrying value of $394.2 millionan aggregate loss of $32.8 million. We
did not sell any assets or realize any gain or dmsiiterest rate swaps during 2007.
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Management Fee and General and Administrative Exger

We paid FIDAC a base management fee &f 8llion for the quarter ended March 31, 2008. ®ligtnot pay an incentive fee for the
quarter ended March 31, 2008. We paid FIDAC a bameagement fee of $1.2 million for the period comaieg November 21, 2007 and
ending December 31, 2007. We did not pay an ineeffide for this period.

General and administrative (or G&A) expesiwere $2.6 million for the quarter ended Marth2B08 compared to G&A expenses of
$605 thousand for the period commencing Novembge2@7 and ending December 31, 2007. We attritheericrease to a full quarter of
expenses being accrued and the additional expaesseiated with the vesting of restricted stock gan

Total expenses as a percentage of avévtajeassets were 1.10% for the quarter ended Mait¢c 2008 compared to 1.55% for the period
commencing November 21, 2007 and ending Decemhe20817. We attribute the decrease to the increat®al assets held in the portfolio.

Currently, FIDAC has waived its rightrequire us to pay our pro rata portion of rengpélone, utilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhequbases of FIDAC and its affiliates required for operations.

The table below shows our total managerfemnand G&A expenses as compared to averageatssats and average equity for the
quarter ended March 31, 2008 and the period comimgiNovember 21, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007.

Management Fee and G&A Expenses and Operating Egpreatios
(Ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 anthi® period ending December 31, 2007
have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Total

Managemen
Total Management Total Management
Fee and Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
G&A Expenses/Average Expenses/Average
Expenses Total Assets Equity
For the Quarter ended March 31, 2( $4,792 1.1(% 4.0(%
For the Period Commencing November 21, 2007 andnigridecember
31, 2007 $1,82% 1.55% 3.05%

Net Loss and Return on Average Equity

Our net loss was $54.9 million for theagar ended March 31, 2008 compared to a net i0$8.8 million for the period commencing
November 21, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007aftkibute the increased losses to realized lossesiles of investments and unreali
losses on interest rate swaps. The table belowslownet interest income, gain (loss) on salesséts, unrealized gains (loss) on interest rate
swaps, total expenses, income tax, each as a pageeof average equity, and the return on averggiyefor the quarter ended March 31, 2(
and the period commencing November 21, 2007 anohgrigecember 31, 2007.
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Components of Return on Average Equity
(Ratios for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 anthi® period ending December 31, 2007
have been annualized)

Gain/(Loss) on Unrealized
Sale of Gain/(Loss) on Total
Net Interest Investments Interest Rate Expenses/ Income Return on
Income/Average /Average Swaps/Average Average Tax/Average Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
For the Quarter ended March 31, 2( 11.8% (27.4(%) (26.2%%) (4.00%) — (45.8t%)
For the Period Commencing
November 21, 2007 and Ending
December 31, 200 5.1€% — (6.97%0) (3.05%) (0.01%) (4.87%)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We held cash and cash equivalents ofcequpiately $91.4 million at March 31, 2008 compatedash and cash equivalents of
approximately $6.0 million at December 31, 2007. &teibute the increase to a reduction in levetagas and the termination of short term
investments in reverse repurchase agreements.

Our operating activities provided netlcag approximately $8.0 million for the quarter eddviarch 31, 2008 compared to net cash used
by operating activities of approximately $1.5 naiflifor the period commencing November 21, 2007earding December 31, 2007. We
attribute this increase to the longer operatingogeduring the quarter ended March 31, 2008 argklaportfolio we owned during that quarter.

Our investing activities used net casBDfl billion for the quarter ended March 31, 2@@8narily from the purchase of investments.
the period commencing November 21, 2007 and erideaember 31, 2007, our investing activities usddash of $795.6 million.

Our financing activities as of March 2008 consisted of proceeds from repurchase agraenWe expect to continue to borrow funds
in the form of repurchase agreements as well a ¢ypes of financing. As of March 31, 2008 we leathblished repurchase agreements for
RMBS with 13 counterparties, including Annaly. Tieems of the repurchase transaction borrowings odiemaster repurchase agreements
generally conform to the terms in the standard emaspurchase agreement as published by the Sesuritlustry and Financial Markets
Association (SIFMA) as to repayment, margin requieats and the segregation of all securities we ratrally sold under the repurchase
transaction. In addition, each lender typicallyuiegs that we include supplemental terms and cmmditto the standard master repurchase
agreement. Typical supplemental terms and conditioclude changes to the margin maintenance reqaines, required haircuts, purchase
price maintenance requirements, requirements thebrtroversies related to the repurchase agreehbeelitigated in a particular jurisdiction
and cross default provisions. These provisionsdiffer for each of our lenders and will not beetatined until we engage in a specific
repurchase transaction. We had also establishedeuochase agreements for whole mortgage loaotMarch 31, 2008.

To finance our RMBS, we had outstandiid$illion in repurchase agreements with weiglgteerage borrowing rates of 4.78% and
weighted average remaining maturities of 54 daysf &darch 31, 2008. The RMBS pledged as collateraler these repurchase agreements
had an estimated fair value of $1.1 billion at Magd, 2008. At December 31, 2007, we financed dMBR with $270.6 million in repurchase
agreements with weighted average borrowing rat&s0#% and weighted average remaining maturitiex2alays. The interest rates of these
repurchase agreements are generally indexed tntitenonth LIBOR rate and repriced accordingly.
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At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 280& repurchase agreements for RMBS had the follgpwémaining maturities:

March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Within 30 days $ 598,16¢ $ 270,58«
30 to 59 day: 384,96:¢ —
60 to 89 day: — —
90 to 119 day — —
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 24,51 —
Total $ 1,007,641 $ 270,58

During the quarter ended March 31, 2@@8entered into two master repurchase agreemergagnt to which we finance whole
mortgage loans. As of March 31, 2008, we had $4B¥#lidon borrowed against these facilities, whicttluded $55.2 million of RMBS, at an
effective rate of 4.41%. The amount borrowed onldla@s held for investment at March 31, 2008 wdksalized by mortgage loans with a
carrying value of $433.3 million, including accruieterest, and cash totaling $35.2 million.

At March 31, 2008, the repurchase agredsnfer mortgage loans had the following remainimgturities:

March 31, 2008

(dollars in

thousands)
Within 30 days $ —
30 to 59 day: —
60 to 89 day: —
90 to 119 day —
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 431,88t
Total $ 431,88t

Repurchase agreements for whole mortlysges are discussed in more detail below.

Mortgage Loan Total Outstanding
Repurchase Agreement Committed Uncommitted Facility Principal
Counterparty Amount Amount Amount Balance(1) Expiration Date

(dollars in thousands)
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital L|

2) $ 300,00( $ 200,00( $ 500,00( $ 309,06: January 16, 20(
DB Structured Products, In $ 350,00( — $ 350,000 $ 177,98 January 29, 20:
Total $ 650,00( $ 200,00( $ 850,00( $ 487,04:

(1) Asof March 31, 200¢

(2)  We are currently seeking an amendment under thiktyeof the net income covenar

Credit Suisse Repurchase Agreem&his agreement is a $500 million lending facilifywhich $200 million is on an uncommitted be
which means Credit Suisse must agree to each ngarigan financed under the agreement in exces3Qif fillion outstanding at any given
time. The facility is set to terminate on JanuaBy 2009. Under the agreement, we will sell mortgages to Credit Suisse for a purchase price
equal to the lesser of either the product of theketaralue of the purchased mortgage loans to lakrsaoltiplied by varying percentages of the
purchase price depending on the type of mortgage being financed, or the outstanding principal amohereof. In general, the price at wt
we will repurchase the mortgage loans from Credis& will equal the original purchase price plasraed but unpaid interest. Pursuant to the
terms of the facility, we will pay interest to
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Credit Suisse ranging from LIBOR plus a numberasib points depending on the type of mortgage beang financed. During the term of the
facility we are required to maintain certain levelset asset value, tangible net worth and avislainds and comply with interest coverage
ratios, leverage ratios and distribution limitagpim addition to standard representations andaméigs. We are currently not in compliance
with the net income covenant in the agreement, lwrequires that we have a positive net income alseoénd of each quarter. Accordingly, we
currently are unable to draw on this facility amd aegotiating an amendment to this covenant tblens to draw on this facility. As of June
2008, we had no outstanding balance on this facilit

Deutsche Bank Repurchase Agreemdiiite agreement is a $350 million lending facibty a committed basis. The agreement is set to
terminate on January 29, 2010. Under the facility will sell mortgage loans or residential mortgdgeked securities to Deutsche Bank for a
purchase price equal to the lesser of either tbdumt of the market value of the purchased mortdeayes or securities to be sold multiplied by
varying percentages of the purchase price deperutirthe type of mortgage loan or securities beimgriced, or the outstanding principal
amount thereof. In general, the price at which vilerepurchase the mortgage loans or securities fieutsche Bank will equal the original
purchase price plus accrued but unpaid interessuRuat to the terms of the facility, we will payérest to Deutsche Bank ranging from LIBOR
plus a number of basis points depending on the ¢fjpeortgage loan or securities being financed.aMerequired to maintain contain certain
levels of net asset value, tangible net worth armdl@ble funds and comply with interest coveragmsa leverage ratios and distribution
limitations, in addition to standard representatiand warranties, during the term of the faciNje amended this agreement twice during the
quarter ended March 31, 2008. As of June 2, 20@8had no outstanding balance on this facility.

Increases in short-term interest rateddcoegatively affect the valuation of our mortgagkated assets, which could limit our borrowing
ability or cause our lenders to initiate marginsadmounts due upon maturity of our repurchaseaagents will be funded primarily through
the rollover/reissuance of repurchase agreementsnamthly principal and interest payments receiwedur mortgage-backed securities.

For our short-term (one year or less) land-term liquidity, which includes investing andmpliance with collateralization requirements
under our repurchase agreements (if the pledgéatel decreases in value or in the event of margils created by prepayments of the
pledged collateral), we also rely on the cash flomn investments, primarily monthly principal amddrest payments to be received on our
RMBS and whole mortgage loans, cash flow from tile sf securities as well as any primary securitiésrings authorized by our board of
directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leveragio and available borrowing arrangements, weeleliour assets will be sufficient to enable us
to meet anticipated short-term (one year or légs)dity requirements such as to fund our investnaativities, pay fees under our management
agreement, fund our distributions to stockholded pay general corporate expenses. However, aedserin prepayment rates substantially
above our expectations could cause a temporariditgshortfall due to the timing of the necessargrgin calls on the financing arrangements
and the actual receipt of the cash related to pah@aydowns. If our cash resources are at ang tirsufficient to satisfy our liquidity
requirements, we may have to sell investmentssmeisiebt or additional equity securities in a comistock offering. If required, the sale of
RMBS or whole mortgage loans at prices lower theairtcarrying value would result in losses and oedlincome.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greatean one year) liquidity and capital resourceuregments will be subject to obtaining additional
debt financing and equity capital. Subject to oaintaining our qualification as a REIT, we exp&ctise a number of sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasehfacilities, securitizations, commercial pagoad term financing CDOs. Such financ
will depend on market conditions for capital raisesl for the investment of any proceeds. If wetenable to renew, replace or expand our
sources of financing on substantially similar terinenay have an adverse effect on our businessesudts of operations. Upon liquidation,
holders of our debt securities, if any, and shafgweferred stock, if any, and lenders with respeother borrowings will receive a distributi
of our available assets prior to the holders ofammmon stock.

We are not required by our investmentiglimes to maintain any specific debt-to-equityorats we believe the appropriate leverage for
the particular assets we are financing dependbeuoredit quality and risk of those assets. Howewar repurchase agreements for whole loans
require us to maintain certain debt-to-equity atidt March 31, 2008, our total debt was approxéatya$l.4 billion which represented a debt-
to-equity ratio of approximately 3.4:1.
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Stockholder Equity

During the quarter ended March 31, 20@8declared dividends to common shareholders not&9.8 million, or $0.26 per share, all of
which was paid on April 30, 2008. During the perartled December 31, 2007, we declared dividendsrtonon shareholders totaling $943
thousand or $0.025 per share, all of which was paidanuary 25, 2008.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agraesmitn FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC is entitléd receive a base management fee,
incentive compensation and, in certain circumstanag¢ermination fee and reimbursement of certgueleses as described in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not haveafixedeterminable payments. The base managemestgagable quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.75% per annum, calculated gugrtdrour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses the
proceeds from its management fee in part to paypemsation to its officers and employees who, nbisténding that certain of them also are
our officers, receive no cash compensation dirdobtiyn us. The base management fee will be redungdot below zero, by our proportionate
share of any CDO base management fees FIDAC reciivannection with the CDOs in which we investséd on the percentage of equity
we hold in such CDOs. FIDAC will receive quarteigentive compensation in an amount equal to 20%hefiollar amount by which Core
Earnings, on a rolling four-quarter basis and ketbe incentive management fee, exceeds the proél(it} the weighted average of the issue
price per share of all of our public offerings niplied by the weighted average number of share®nfmon stock outstanding in such quarter
and (2) 0.50% plus one-fourth of the average ofbtie month LIBOR rate for such quarter and theiptessthree quarters. For the initial four
guarters following this offering, Core Earnings dhd LIBOR rate will be calculated on the basigath of the previously completed quarters
on an annualized basis. Core Earnings and the LIB®&Rfor the initial quarter will each be calceldffrom the settlement date of our initial
public offering on an annualized basis. Core Eamiis a non-GAAP measure and is defined as GAAfneme (loss) excluding non-cash
equity compensation expense, excluding any unezhligains, losses or other items that do not afésdized net income (regardless of whether
such items are included in other comprehensiveniecor loss, or in net income). The amount will dpisted to exclude one-time events
pursuant to changes in GAAP and certain non-caalhgels after discussions between FIDAC and our imaeent directors and approval by a
majority of our independent directors. The incemtiranagement fee will be reduced, but not below, 28r our proportionate share of any
CDO incentive management fees FIDAC receives imeotion with the CDOs in which we invest, basedt@npercentage of equity we holc
such CDOs. We expect to enter into certain corgrett contain a variety of indemnification obligass, principally with FIDAC, brokers and
counterparties to repurchase agreements. The maxipotential future payment amount we could be meglio pay under these
indemnification obligations is unlimited.

Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBSurepase agreement with Annaly. This agreement oentaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agrasmnof March 31, 2008, we did not have any @umding obligations under the
agreement. We have, from time to time, receivedrfaing from Annaly under this facility, and as 0&ai30, 2008, we had $50 million
outstanding under the repurchase agreement witkighted average borrowing rate of 3.96%.

In March 2008, we entered into a recdisisales agreement with Annaly. This agreementighed for the sale of approximately $127
million of receivables by Chimera to Annaly of theceeds that Chimera was due to receive undentgage loan purchase and sale
agreement with a third party. Annaly paid Chimedistounted amount of such receivables due fronthtine party equal to less than one
percent of such receivables due from the thirdyparexchange for Chimera receiving the purchagseprder the receivables sales agreement
in immediately available funds from Annaly. The egment contained representations, warranties arehaats by both parties. As of March
31, 2008, each party had performed their outstandiigations under the agreement, the third pautghaser under the mortgage loan
purchase and sale agreement had paid the purctieseipder the mortgage loan purchase and salemgr&, and Chimera had remitted such
amounts to Annaly pursuant to the receivables sajesement.
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Restricted Stock Gran

During the quarter ended March 31, 2@@8granted restricted stock awards in the amoutt3d1,000 shares to FIDAC's employees
and our independent directors. The awards to thep@ndent directors vested on the date of gradttrenawards to FIDAC’s employees vest
guarterly over a period of 10 years. We did nohgemy incentive awards during the period endedebder 31, 2007.

At March 31, 2008 there are approximafe8/million unvested shares of restricted stoskésl to employees of FIDAC. For the three
months ended March 31, 2008, compensation expessgeneral and administrative costs associatbédidtamortization of the fair value of
the restricted stock totaled $697 thousand.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our coctwal obligations at March 31, 2008.

(dollars in thousands)

Greater

Than or
Equal to
Within One One to Three to Five

Contractual Obligations Year Three Years Five Years Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 95249 $ 5515t $ —  $ — $ 1,007,64
Repurchase agreements for mortgage I 309,06: 122,82¢ — — 431,88t
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemel 2,35¢ 1,96¢ — — 4,32:
Interest expense on mortgage loan repurchase agnés(h) 4,251 3,48t — — 7,74
Total $ 1,268,160 $ 18343 $ —  $ — $ 1,451,59

1) Interest is based on rates in effect as of Margi2008.

The repurchase agreements for our repsecfacilities generally do not include substanpir@visions other than those contained in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publigtied Becurities Industry and Financial Marketsokgstion. Repurchase agreements for
whole mortgage loans contain negative covenantsiniag us to maintain certain levels of net assgt®, tangible net worth and available
funds and comply with interest coverage ratiosgtage ratios and distribution limitations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships withamsolidated entities or financial partnerships hsas entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifighalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncodatd entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sectities. As such, we are not materially exposegity market, credit, liquidity or financi
risk that could arise if we had engaged in suchtieships.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay anrdigidends to our stockholders of at least 90% oftaMable income, determined without regard
to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding aet capital gains. We intend to pay regular tpubr dividends to our stockholders. Before
we pay any dividend, whether for U.S. federal inedax purposes or otherwise, which would only bid pat of available cash to the extent
permitted under our warehouse and repurchasetfesiind commercial paper, we must first meet bathoperating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our warehouse lines #red debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liab#$ are interest rate sensitive in nature. As dtrésterest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgéterest rates do not necessarily correlath inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our financial statements are prepared iardaace with
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GAAP and our distributions will be determined by dward of directors consistent with our obligattordistribute to our stockholders at least
90% of our REIT taxable income on an annual bas@der to maintain our REIT qualification; in eazdse, our activities and balance sheet
are measured with reference to historical costarfdir market value without considering inflation.

Q UANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAR KET RISK

The primary components of our market sk related to credit risk, interest rate rislkegatyment risk, market value risk and real estate
market risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk pbetely, we believe the risk can be quantified froistorical experience and we seek to
actively manage that risk, to earn sufficient congagion to justify taking those risks and to maimtzapital levels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connaetivith our investments and face more credit rislassets we own which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investmisrpertains to the ability and willingness of tleerowers to pay, which is assessed before
credit is granted or renewed and periodically rereié throughout the loan or security term. We beithat residual loan credit quality is
primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit ptedi and loan characteristics. Our Manager willasemprehensive credit review process.
Our Manager’s analysis of loans includes borrowefiles, as well as valuation and appraisal data. @anager uses compensating factors
such as liquid assets, low loan-to-value ratiosjabdstability in evaluating loans. Our Managegsaurces include a proprietary portfolio
management system, as well as third party softaygstems. Our Manager utilizes third party due dilice firms to perform an independent
underwriting review to insure compliance with ekigtguidelines. Our Manager selects loans for reeedicated on risk-based criteria such
as loan-to-value, borrower’s credit score(s) arshlsize. Our Manager also outsources underwrigngices to review higher risk loans, either
due to borrower credit profiles or collateral valoa issues. In addition to statistical samplinght@iques, our Manager creates adverse credit
and valuation samples, which we individually reviédur Manager rejects loans that fail to confornotio standards. Our Manager accepts
those loans which meet our underwriting criteriac®we own a loan, our Manager’s surveillance medecludes ongoing analysis through
our proprietary data warehouse and servicer fA@slitionally, the non-Agency RMBS and other ABS wiiniwe will acquire for our portfolio
are reviewed by FIDAC to ensure that they satisfiyrtsk based criteria. Our Manager’s review of #kaency RMBS and other ABS includes
utilizing its proprietary portfolio management srst Our Manager’s review of non-Agency RMBS andeo#BS is based on quantitative and
gualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted returnsion-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitiveriany factors, including governmental monetary xdpolicies, domestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacheyond our control. We are subject to interatst risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whighgenerally repurchase agreements, warehousgeacsecuritization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagmtsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thsk through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Ino@

Our operating results depend, in large, pa differences between the income from our $twents and our borrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderfimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détiying asset which collateralizes the financidigcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetslvéilmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshmirtterm financing, while our fixed intere
rate assets will not be match-funded. During periofdrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eaissed with our investments tend to increase
while the income earned on our fixed interest natestments may remain substantially unchanged Will result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets analngs and may even result in losses. Furthernduthis portion of the interest rate and cr
cycles, defaults could increase and result in tiedses to us, which could adversely affect ayuitlity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adweffect on the spread between interest-earnirefsaaad interest-bearing liabilities. Hedging
techniques are partly based on assumed leveleppments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustabte-mortgage loans and RMBS. If
prepayments are slower or faster than assumed,
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the life of the mortgage loans and RMBS will bedenor shorter, which would reduce the effectiverefsany hedging strategies we may use
and may cause losses on such transactions. Heslgatggies involving the use of derivative secesithire highly complex and may produce
volatile returns.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate riskhie effect changes in interest rates will havéherfair value of the assets we acquire. We face
the risk that the fair value of our assets willreese or decrease at different rates than thatrdfabilities, including our hedging instruments.
We primarily assess our interest rate risk by estimg the duration of our assets and the durati@upliabilities. Duration essentially meast
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdiaggion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologi@s produce different duration numbers for the ssevairities.

It is important to note that the impattbanging interest rates on fair value can chaigeificantly when interest rates change beyond
100 basis points from current levels. Therefore wblatility in the fair value of our assets coirldrease significantly when interest rates
change beyond 100 basis points. In addition, ddmors impact the fair value of our interest ragmsitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cunegket expectations as to future interest rate gésand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualiest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown above
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate morégglagins and RMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS ichvthe underlying mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount byoktthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgaursuant to our financing agreements will nosilgject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgerest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseewithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustable-rate morgdagns and RMBS would effectively be limited. Thisblem will be magnified to the extent
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In addititre mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodiengayt caps that result in some portion of the irstelbeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in oureigt of less cash income on our adjustable-rategages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggs€hfactors could lower our net interest incomeanise a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial dtiod, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our asifwns of hybrid adjustable-rate mortgages andB8\Wvith borrowings that, after the effect of
hedging, have interest rates based on indicesepriting terms similar to, but of somewhat shon@turities than, the interest rate indices and
repricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS. Thusdst cases the interest rate indices and reprteimgs of our mortgage assets and our
funding sources will not be identical, thereby tirggaan interest rate mismatch between assetsiaitities. Therefore, our cost of funds wo
likely rise or fall more quickly than would our e@mgs rate on assets. During periods of changitegest rates, such interest rate mismatches
could negatively impact our financial conditionshdlows and results of operations. To mitigateri@st rate mismatches, we may utilize the
hedging strategies discussed above. Our analysisksfis based on our Manager’s experience, estgnanodels and assumptions. These
analyses rely on models which utilize estimatefamfvalue and interest rate sensitivity. Actuabeomic conditions or implementation of
investment decisions by our management may procaseats that differ significantly from the estimsitend assumptions used in our models
and the projected results shown in this prospectus.

Our profitability and the value of ourrgolio (including interest rate swaps) may be adeéy affected during any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table quatithe potential changes in net interest inconteportfolio value should interest rates go up
or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuming itd gurves of the rate shocks will be parallet&xh other and the current yield curve. All
changes in income and value are measured as pageettianges from the projected net interest in@mdeportfolio value at the base interest
rate scenario. The base interest rate scenarionassinterest rates at March 31, 2008 and varidira&es regarding prepayment and all
activities are made at each level of rate shocku@laesults could differ significantly from thesstimates.
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Projected Percentage Change i Projected Percentage Change i

Change in Interest Rat Net Interest Income Portfolio Value

-75 Basis Point (16.77%) 0.24%
-50 Basis Point (11.81%) 0.05%
-25 Basis Point (6.23%) (0.12%)
Base Interest Ral

+25 Basis Point 6.35% (0.47%)
+50 Basis Point 12.73% (0.64%)
+75 Basis Point 19.09% (0.81%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principatlmse investments, premiums paid on such invesswéh be amortized against interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment wilbaccelerate the amortization of purchase prans, thereby reducing the interest income
earned on the investments. Conversely, discounssiol investments are accreted into interest incémmgeneral, an increase in prepayment
rates will accelerate the accretion of purchaseadists, thereby increasing the interest incomeeghom the investments

Extension Risk

Our Manager will compute the projectedghted-average life of our investments based onrapsions regarding the rate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required tigeinto an interest rate swap agreement or ¢tbeging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the @pdited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tielated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because thetving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi+ate portion of the related assets. Howe
if prepayment rates decrease in a rising inteestenvironment, the life of the fixed-rate portwfrthe related assets could extend beyond the
term of the swap agreement or other hedging insgtrunThis could have a negative impact on our tedtdm operations, as borrowing costs
would no longer be fixed after the end of the haggnstrument while the income earned on the hyadidstable-rate assets would remain
fixed. This situation may also cause the marketevalf our hybrid adjustable-rate assets to dedlifid, little or no offsetting gain from the
related hedging transactions. In extreme situatimesmay be forced to sell assets to maintain aatediquidity, which could cause us to incur
losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities will tedlected at their estimated fair value with utizeal gains and losses excluded from earnings anc
reported in other comprehensive income pursua8F#S No. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg8iecurities The
estimated fair value of these securities fluctuat@sarily due to changes in interest rates anérmfidfictors. Generally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these isgesi would be expected to decrease; conversely,decreasing interest rate environment
estimated fair value of these securities wouldXpeeted to increase. As market volatility increaselquidity decreases, the fair value of our
investments may be adversely impacted. If we aablento readily obtain independent pricing to valédour estimated fair value of securities
in the portfolio, the fair value gains or lossesar@led in other comprehensive income may be adyeaffected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real propedym@ay own real property directly in the future. Restial property values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a numdddactors, including, but not limited to, nateinregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@uch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indsgigynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive char
to building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseproperty values reduce the value of the caiédtand the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also causst suffer losses
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining REIT status, we will seek to manage risk exp@so protect our portfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and radatetthgainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our

by:

* monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

» attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, arpatibns and interest rate adjustment
periods;

» using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omiaraps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of our MBS and
our borrowings

» using securitization financing to lower averaget @dgunds relative to shc-term financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and un¢y dates of the investments
included in the securitization; au

» actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theastteate indices, interest rate adjustment perimud,gross reset margins of «
investments and the interest rate indices and td@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets andlitiab are concerned with the timing and magnitofi¢he repricing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with intera movements. Methods for evaluating interestrigkeinclude an analysis of our interest rate
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betwedaterest-earning assets and inteltgstring liabilities maturing or repricing withingaven time
period. A gap is considered positive when the arhofimterest-rate sensitive assets exceeds theiained interest-rate sensitive liabilities. A
gap is considered negative when the amount ofésteate sensitive liabilities exceeds interes-snsitive assets. During a period of rising
interest rates, a negative gap would tend to adeesfect net interest income, while a positive geould tend to result in an increase in net
interest income. During a period of falling intarestes, a negative gap would tend to result iilmarease in net interest income, while a
positive gap would tend to affect net interest mecadversely. Because different types of assetdiabitities with the same or similar
maturities may react differently to changes in allanarket rates or conditions, changes in inter@sts may affect net interest income
positively or negatively even if an institution weegperfectly matched in each maturity category.

The following table sets forth the estiethmaturity or repricing of our interest-earnirggets and interest-bearing liabilities at March 31,
2008. The amounts of assets and liabilities shoitimima particular period were determined in acem@k with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period incitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they mature does include the effect of the interest ratepsw@he interest rate sensitivity of our assets
and liabilities in the table could vary substamyi@ based on actual prepayment experience.
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Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than
Months 3-12 Months Years 3 Years Total
(dollars in thousands)
Rate Sensitive Asset
Investment securitie $ — 3 — $ 530,41 $ 1,111,62° $1,642,04.
Cash equivalent 91,37( — — — 91,37(
Rate Sensitive Liabilities
Repurchase Agreements, with the effect of sv (100,39 345,62: 1,067,80! 126,50( 1,439,53
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 191,76¢ $ (345,62) $ (537,39 $ 985127 $ 293,87¢
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 191,76 $ (153,859 $ (691,249 $ 293,87¢
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap as a peagg
of total rat-sensitive asse 11% (9%) (40%) 17%

Our analysis of risks is based on FIDA&kperience, estimates, models and assumptionseTralyses rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sensgjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by FIDAC may
produce results that differ significantly from thgtimates and assumptions used in our models artdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this prospectus. These analysesinamgain forward-looking statements and are sthifiethe safe harbor statement set forth

under the heading, “Forward-Looking Statements.”
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BUSINESS
Our Company

We are a specialty finance company tasts in residential mortgage loans, resident@tgage-backed securities, or RMBS, real
estate-related securities and various other aksas. We intend to elect and qualify to be tased real estate investment trust, or REIT, for
federal income tax purposes commencing with ouatibexyear ending on December 31, 2007. If we quédif taxation as a REIT, we gener:
will not be subject to federal income tax on owatale income that is distributed to our stockhadd®ve are externally managed by Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company, which we refeatoour Manager or FIDAC. Our Manager is a whollyned subsidiary of Annaly
Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly, a New Yorkckt&xchange-listed REIT, which has a long traclord®f managing investments in U.S.
government agency mortgage-backed securities. FIBA®D investment advisor registered with the Sdearand Exchange Commission, or
SEC.

Our objective is to provide attractivekdadjusted returns to our investors over the lamgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to achidgn® objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractigk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmith the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status and to maintain o@ngastion from registration under the Investment CanmypAct of 1940, or 1940 Act.

We were organized in Maryland on Jun20D7, and commenced operations on November 21, 200Wing the completion of our
initial public offering. In our initial public offeéng, including the exercise of the underwritesgerallotment option, we sold approximately 3
million shares of our common stock at $15.00 parshand raised proceeds of $479.3 million beféfieriog expenses. Concurrent with our
initial public offering, in a private offering wekl Annaly approximately 3.6 million shares of @ammon stock at $15.00 per share for
aggregate proceeds of approximately $54.3 million.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and adviseBIDAC pursuant to a management agreement. All ofofficers are employees of our
Manager or its affiliates. Our Manager is a fixadéme investment management company specializingaimaging investments in U.S.
government agency residential mortgage-backed isiesyiior Agency RMBS, which are mortgage passttglocertificates, collateralized
mortgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mortghgeked securities representing interests in ogabitins backed by pools of mortgage lo
issued or guaranteed by the Federal National Mgegessociation, or Fannie Mae, the Federal Homa IMartgage Corporation, or Freddie
Mac, and the Government National Mortgage Assamiatdr Ginnie Mae. Our Manager also has experignoganaging investments in non-
Agency RMBS and collateralized debt obligationsC&rOs; real estate-related securities; and managtagest rate-sensitive investment
strategies. Our Manager commenced active investmanagement operations in 1994. At December 317,20r Manager was the adviser or
sub-adviser for funds with approximately $3.2 bitliin net assets and $12.7 billion in gross asaatswhich consisted predominantly of
Agency RMBS.

Our Manager is responsible for adminieteour business activities and day-to-day openati®Ve have no employees other than our
officers. Pursuant to the terms of the managemgneieanent, our Manager provides us with our managetaam, including our officers, along
with appropriate support personnel. Our Managet &l times subject to the supervision and ovéitsig our board of directors and has only
such functions and authority as we delegate to it.

Our Manager has well-respected and dstadul portfolio management resources for each ofasgeted asset classes and a sophisticate
infrastructure supporting those resources, inclydivestment professionals focusing on residentiatgage loans, Agency and non-Agency
RMBS and other asset-backed securities. We alsecexp benefit from our Manager’s finance and adstiation functions, which address
legal, compliance, investor relations and operatiomatters, including portfolio management, tralfiecation and execution, securities
valuation, risk management and information techgiel®in connection with the performance of its esiti

We do not pay any of our officers anytcasmpensation. Rather, we pay our Manager a basagement fee and incentive
compensation based on performance pursuant tethms of the management agreement.
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Our Competitive Advantages
We believe that our competitive advansaigelude the following:
Investment Strategy Designed to PerformaiVariety of Interest Rate and Credit Environment

We seek to manage our investment strategglance both interest rate risk and credit N8k believe this strategy is designed to
generate attractive, risk-adjusted returns in &taof market conditions because operating comdgiin which either of these risks are
increased, or decreased, may occur at differemtgai the economic cycle. For example, there nmeapdyiods when interest-rate sensitive
strategies outperform credit-sensitive strategiksraby we would receive increased income over osir @f financing, in which case our
portfolio’s increased exposure to this risk wouldheneficial. There may be other periods when tisitive strategies outperform interest-
rate sensitive strategies. Although we will faceiiast rate risk and credit risk, we believe thilh\eppropriate hedging strategies, as well as
our ability to evaluate the quality of targetededssvestment opportunities, we can reduce thegs and provide attractive risk-adjusted
returns.

Credit-Oriented Investment Approach

We will seek to minimize principal los$ile maximizing risk-adjusted returns through ouadger’s credit-based investment approach,
which is based on rigorous quantitative and quali#aanalysis.

Experienced Investment Advisor

Our Manager has a long history of strpagormance across a broad range of fixed-incorsete.sOur Manages’most senior investme
professionals have a long history of investing iragety of mortgage and real estate-related seéesiand structuring and marketing CDOs.
Investments will be overseen by an Investment Cdtembf our Manager’s professionals, consistinlylahael A.J. Farrell, Wellington J.
Denahan-Norris, James P. Fortescue, KristopheradthmRose-Marie Lyght, Ronald Kazel, Jeremy Diamdirid; Szabo and Matthew
Lambiase.

Access to Annaly’s and Our Manager’s Reédaships

Annaly and our Manager have developed-kenm relationships with a number of commercial arvestment banks and other financial
intermediaries. We believe these relationships pvitivide us with a range of high-quality investmepportunities.

Access to Our Manager’s Systems and Isfracture

Our Manager has created a proprietartff@mr management system, which we believe provigesith a competitive advantage. Our
Manager’s personnel have created a comprehensiaede and administrative infrastructure, an impdrt@mponent of a complex investment
vehicle such as a REIT. In addition, most of oumisliger’'s personnel are also Annalyersonnel; therefore, they have had extensiverere
managing Annaly, which is a REIT.

Alignment of Interests between Annaly, OManager and Our Investors

Concurrent with this offering, we willls® Annaly shares of common stock iprivate offering at the same price per share @s th
price per share of this public offering. Concurreith our initial public offering, in a private adfing we sold Annaly approximately 3.6 milli
shares of our common stock at the same price pee st the price per share of our initial publfefg for aggregate proceeds of
approximately $54.3 million. Upon completion ofgldffering, Annaly will own approximately % of our outstanding common stock
(which percentage excludes shares to be sold purtmthe exercise of the underwriters’ overallotingption and shares of our restricted
common stock granted to our executive officers emgloyees of our Manager or its affiliates).

Moreover, a portion of the fees that rhayearned by our Manager consists of incentive emsgttion that is based on the amount that a
measure of our earnings exceeds a specified tHreshe believe that Annaly’s investment and our lsiger’s ability to earn performance fees
will align our Manager’s interests with our intet®s

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractivekradjusted returns to our investors over the l@mgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to seekdoieve this objective by investing in a diversifiavestment portfolio of residential mortgi
loans, real estate-related securities and redkdstans, as well as various other asset classbgcs to maintaining our REIT status and
exemption from
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registration under the 1940 Act. The residentiattgage backed securities, or RMBS, asset backadiges, or ABS, commercial mortgage
backed securities, or CMBS, and CDOs we purchaseimsbude investment-grade and non-investment gcdakses, including the BB-rated,
B-rated and non-rated classes. Our investmenegtyatiffers from Annaly’s in that Annaly primarilgvests in Agency RMBS.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise imitifging assets within our target asset classes.Manager makes investment decisions based
on various factors, including expected cash yiedtitive value, risk-adjusted returns, current prajected credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaojgcted supply and demand, credit and markietcasicentration limits, liquidity, cost «
financing and financing availability, as well asintaining our REIT qualification and our exemptifsam registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investmeaitocation strategy as market conditions changse&k to maximize the returns from our
investment portfolio. We believe this strategy, tdémed with our Manager’s experience, will enabldaipay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing interest rate@adit cycles and provide attractive long-term mesuto investors.

Our targeted asset classes and the pahicivestments we expect to make in each arellasvi

Asset Class Principal Investments

Residential Mortgage Loat « Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctivdbrm to the underwritin
guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, whichefer to as Agency Guidelines;
and jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are mortdgages that conform to the
Agency Guidelines except as to loan s

« Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that Imaag been originated usi
documentation standards that are less stringentttteadocumentation standards
applied by certain other first lien mortgage loamghase programs, such as the
Agency Guidelines, but have one or more compergéictors such as a borrower
with a strong credit or mortgage history or sigrafit asset:

Residential Mortga¢-Backed Securitie ¢ Non-Agency RMBS, including investme- grade and nc-investment grade classt
including the Bl-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe:

¢ Agency RMBS.
Other Asse-Backed Securitie « Debt and equity tranches of CD(
e Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CMB

¢ Consumer and n-consumer ABS, including investm-grade and nc-investmen
grade classes, including the -rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe:

We intend to invest the net proceedsisf offering primarily in the investments descrilazbve. Since we commenced operations in
November 2007, we have focused our investmentiievon purchasing residential mortgage loanshhbat been originated by select I-
quality originators, including the retail lendingearations of leading commercial banks, and non-Ag&MBS. This is in contrast to Annaly’s
strategy which concentrates on Agency RMBS. Adliligence and acquisition lead times for residdntiartgage loans are longer than for
non-Agency RMBS purchases, our investment portfatiMarch 31, 2008 was weighted toward non-Agen@iBS.
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After the consummation of this offering, we exptett over the near term our investment portfolith @ontinue to be weighted toward non-
Agency RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT quadfion and our 1940 Act exemption, which may, dejdeg on the composition of our
investment portfolio, require us to purchase AgeRMBS or other qualifying assets. In addition, wéicipate engaging in transactions with
residential mortgage lending operations of leadiognmercial banks and other high-quality originaiar&rhich we identify and re-underwrite
residential mortgage loans owned by such entiéied,rather than purchasing and securitizing susideatial mortgage loans ourselves, we
the originator will structure the securitizatiordame will purchase the resulting mezzanine and slibate non-Agency RMBS. We may also
engage in similar transactions with non-Agency RMB®hich we would acquire AAA-rated non-Agency REBBnd immediately re-
securitize those securities. We would sell thelteguAAA-rated super senior RMBS and retain the Afated mezzanine RMBS. Over time
we expect that our investment portfolio will becomere weighted toward residential mortgage loans.i@vestment decisions, however, will
depend on prevailing market conditions and willrggover time. As a result, we cannot predict #regntage of our assets that will be
invested in each asset class or whether we widshin other classes of investments. We may changavestment strategy and policies
without a vote of our stockholders.

We intend to elect and qualify to be thas a REIT commencing with our taxable year endm@®ecember 31, 2007 and to operate our
business so as to be exempt from registration uheet940 Act, and therefore we will be requiredhtgest a substantial majority of our assets
in loans secured by mortgages on real estate ahéstate-related assets. See “Operating and ReguBtructure.” Subject to maintaining our
REIT qualification and our 1940 Act exemption, weribt have any limitations on the amounts we magshin any of our targeted asset
classes.

Investment Portfolio

As of March 31, 2008, our investment folid consisted of the following (dollars in thounsts):

Percent of Total Weighted Average
Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value Portfolio(1) Coupon(1)
Residential Mortgage Loans( $ 362,85 $ 361,59: 22.1% 6.1%
RMBS $ 1,275,06! $ 1,229,78! 77.2% 6.21%
Total $ 1,637,911 $ 1,591,37 10C%

(1) Based on estimated fair valt

(2) On April 24, 2008 we sponsored a $619.7 milkeguritization, a long-term financing transactidmereby we securitized our then-current inventdrgnortgage loans. In this transaction,
we sold approximately $536.9 million of AAA-rateitéd and floating rate bonds to third party invest@and retained approximately $46.3 million of A4#ted mezzanine bonds and $36.5
million in subordinated bonds. This transaction Wwé accounted for as a financing pursuant to SEABAccounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandabkets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities .

The following briefly discusses the pipal types of investments that we have made andaxp make:
Residential Mortgage Loans

We have invested and intend to contilou@vest in residential mortgage loans (mortgagmsosecured by residential real property)
primarily through direct purchases from selecteghkguality originators. On December 14, 2007, weersd into a mortgage loan purchase
agreement with PHH Mortgage Corporation. We intenenter into additional mortgage loan purchaseeagents with a number of primary
mortgage loan originators, including mortgage basikeommercial banks, savings and loan associatimmse builders, credit unions and
mortgage conduits. We may also purchase mortgageslon the secondary market. We expect these todressecured primarily by resident
properties in the United States.

We invest primarily in residential mortgaloans underwritten to our specifications. Thiginators perform the credit review of the
borrowers, the appraisal of the properties secutiagoan, and maintain other quality control prhaes. We generally consider the purcha:
loans when the originators have verified the boexshincome and assets, verified their credit mistmnd obtained appraisals of the properties.
We or a third party perform an independent undeingireview of the processing, underwriting andil@éosing methodologies
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that the originators used in qualifying a borrodi@ra loan. Depending on the size of the loansmag not review all of the loans in a pool, but
rather select loans for underwriting review baspdruspecific risk-based criteria such as propertgation, loan size, effective loan-to-value
ratio, borrowers credit score and other criteria we believe tinfpgortant indicators of credit risk. Additionallpefore the purchase of loans,
obtain representations and warranties from eadinatior stating that each loan is underwrittenuorequirements or, in the event underwri
exceptions have been made, we are informed sovihatay evaluate whether to accept or reject thesloAn originator who breaches these
representations and warranties in making a loarvthgpurchase may be obligated to repurchase #reftom us. As added security, we use
services of a thirgharty document custodian to insure the quality acliracy of all individual mortgage loan closingdments and to hold t|
documents in safekeeping. As a result, all of ttigiral loan collateral documents that are signedhie borrower, other than the original credit
verification documents, are examined, verified hatll by the third-party document custodian.

We currently do not intend to originatentgage loans or provide other types of financmthe owners of real estate. We currently dc
intend to establish a loan servicing platform, éxpect to retain highly-rated servicers to sera@gemortgage loan portfolio. We purchase
certain residential mortgage loans on a servicatgined basis. In the future, however, we maydietn originate mortgage loans or other ty
of financing, and we may elect to service mortglag®s and other types of assets.

We expect that all servicers servicingloans will be highly rated by the rating agench& also conduct a due diligence review of ¢
servicer before executing a servicing agreememti@Geg procedures will typically follow Fannie Magiidelines but will be specified in each
servicing agreement. All servicing agreements miglet standards for inclusion in highly rated mageghacked or asset-backed securitizations.
We have entered into a master servicing agreemiémMells Fargo, N.A. to assist us with managemsetyicing oversight, and other
administrative duties associated with managingnoortgage loans.

We expect that the loans we acquire lglfirst lien, single-family residential traditidrfaxed-rate, adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable
rate loans with original terms to maturity of nodra than 40 years and are either fully amortizingre interest-only for up to 10 years, and
fully amortizing thereafter. Fixed-rate mortgagars bear an interest rate that is fixed for treedifthe loan. All adjustable-rate and hybrid
adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans wilk lagsinterest rate tied to an interest rate intléost loans have periodic and lifetime
constraints on how much the loan interest ratect@mge on any predetermined interest rate reset Thae interest rate on each adjustable-rate
mortgage loan resets monthly, semi-annually or aliyand generally adjusts to a margin over a Ur8asury index or the LIBOR index.
Hybrid adjustable-rate loans have a fixed rateafoinitial period, generally 3 to 10 years, anchthenvert to adjustable-rate loans for their
remaining term to maturity.

We acquire residential mortgage loanfarportfolio with the intention of either secizibg them and retaining them in our portfolio as
securitized mortgage loans, or holding them inresidential mortgage loan portfolio. To facilitdbe securitization or financing of our loans,
we expect to generally create subordinate certégavhich provide a specified amount of creditamement. We expect to issue securities
through securities underwriters and either retagsé securities or finance them in the repurchgeement market. There is no limit on the
amount we may retain of these below-investmentggtbordinate certificates. Until we securitize msidential mortgage loans, we expect to
finance our residential mortgage loan portfolicotigh the use of warehouse facilities and repurchgesements.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to comtitaiinvest in RMBS which are typically patbseugh certificates created by the securitizatt
a pool of mortgage loans that are collateralizeddsydential real estate properties.

The securitization process is governedmxy or more of the rating agencies, includingtFRatings, Moody'’s Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s, which determine the respectedhclass sizes, generally based on a sequentiaigrd structure. Bonds that are rated
from AAA to BBB by the rating agencies are consatkfinvestment grade.” Bond classes that are suatelto the BBB class are considered
“below-investment grade” or “non-investment gradehe respective bond class sizes are determineditmsthe review of the underlying
collateral by the rating agencies. The paymentsived from the underlying loans are used to make#yments on the RMBS. Based on the
sequential payment priority, the risk of nonpaynfentthe investment grade RMBS is lower than tls& df nonpayment for the nanvestmen
grade bonds. Accordingly, the investment gradesdagypically sold at a lower yield compared te tion-investment grade classes which are
sold at higher yields.
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We invest in investment grade and norestment grade RMBS. We evaluate the credit chaisiits of these types of securities,
including, but not limited to, loan balance distrilon, geographic concentration, property type upancy, periodic and lifetime cap, weighted-
average loan-to-value and weighted-average FIC@sQualifying securities will then be analyzedngsbase line expectations of expected
prepayments and losses from given sectors, issnerthe current state of the fixed-income marketses and prepayments are stressed
simultaneously based on a credit risk-based m&#alurities in this portfolio are monitored for \arce from expected prepayments,
frequencies, severities, losses and cash flow.dlieediligence process is particularly important eastly with respect to newly formed
originators or issuers because there may be dittleo information publicly available about theséitess and investments.

We may invest in net interest margin siies, or NIMs, which are notes that are payabdenfand secured by excess cash flow that is
generated by RMBS or home equity line of creditkealcsecurities, or HELOCSs, after paying the debtise, expenses and fees on such
securities. The excess cash flow represents allpmrtion of a residual that is generally retaibgdhe originator of the RMBS or HELOCSs. 1
residual is illiquid, thus the originator will matiee the position by securitizing the residual &siing a NIM, usually in the form of a note t
is backed by the excess cash flow generated iortHerlying securitization.

We anticipate engaging in transactiortf wesidential mortgage lending operations of legdiommercial banks and other high-quality
originators in which we identify and r@derwrite residential mortgage loans owned by smthies, and rather than purchasing and secing
such residential mortgage loans ourselves, welandriginator will structure the securitization amé will purchase the resulting mezzanine
and subordinate non-Agency RMBS. We may also engagieilar transactions with non-Agency RMBS iniathwe would acquire AAA-
rated non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-securitimese securities. We would sell the resulting Afgted super senior RMBS and retain
the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS.

We may invest in mortgage pass-througtificates issued or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, laktae or Freddie Mac. We refer to these
U.S. government agencies as Agencies, and to thigage pass-through certificates they issue oragiiee as Agency Mortgage Pass-through
Certificates. We may invest in collateralized magg obligations issued by the Agencies. We reféndee types of securities as Agency
CMOs, and we refer to Agency Mortgage Pass-thratigttificates and Agency CMOs as Agency RMBS.

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We intend to invest in securities issuedarious CDO offerings to gain exposure to baydnks, corporate bonds, ABS, mortgages,
RMBS and CMBS and other instruments. To avoid artya or perceived conflicts of interest with ouaivager, an investment in any such
security structured or managed by our Managerheilapproved by a majority of our independent dinectTo the extent such securities are
treated as debt of the CDO issuer for federal ireetem purposes, we will hold the securities disgclbject to the requirements of our
continued qualification as a REIT as describeddertain Federal Income Tax Considerations — TarafdOur Company — Asset Tests.” To
the extent the securities represent equity intefiesh CDO issuer for federal income tax purposesmay be required to hold such securities
through a taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, whichuldacause the income recognized with respect th sacurities to be subject to federal
(and applicable state and local) corporate incameSee “Risk Factors — Tax Risks.” We could faiualify as a REIT or we could become
subject to a penalty tax if the income we recogfiiam certain investments that are treated or cbeltreated as equity interests in a foreign
corporation exceed 5% of our gross income in altigxgear.

In general, CDO issuers are special pgepehicles that hold a portfolio of income-prodwgcassets financed through the issuance of
rated debt securities of different seniority andigg The debt tranches are typically rated basedash flow structure, portfolio quality,
diversification and credit enhancement. The egsgtyurities issued by the CDO vehicle are the “fass” piece of the CDO vehicle’s capital
structure, but they are also generally entitledltoesidual amounts available for payment after@DO vehicle’s senior obligations have been
satisfied. Some CDO vehicles are “synthetic,” irichithe credit risk to the collateral pool is tréarsed to the CDO vehicle by a credit
derivative such as a credit default swap.

We also intend to invest in CMBS, which aecured by, or evidence ownership interests single commercial mortgage loan or a pool
of mortgage loans secured by commercial properfiegse securities may be senior, subordinatedsiment grade or non-investment grade.
We intend to invest in CMBS that will yield curranterest income and where we consider the retbipmiocipal to be likely. We intend to
acquire CMBS from
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private originators of, or investors in, mortgagaris, including savings and loan associations,gage bankers, commercial banks, finance
companies, investment banks and other entities.

We also intend to invest in consumer ABBese securities are generally securities for vttie underlying collateral consists of assets
such as home equity loans, credit card receivasidsauto loans. We also expect to invest in norsworer ABS. These securities are generally
secured by loans to businesses and consist obasset as equipment loans, truck loans and agriaikéquipment loans. Issuers of consumer
and non-consumer ABS generally are special purpoges owned or sponsored by banks and finano®waaies, captive finance subsidiaries
of nonfinancial corporations or specialized originatarstsas credit card lenders. We may purchase RMBSA&S which are denominated
foreign currencies or are collateralized by non-lh&ets.

Investment Sourcing

Our Manager takes advantage of the bne&agtork of relationships it and Annaly have esttidid over the past decade to identify
investment opportunities. Our Manager and Annaleh&lationships with a large and diverse groufin@ncial intermediaries, ranging from
major commercial and investment banks to speciaitgstment dealers and brokerage firms. In additinbelieve that a portion of our
Manager’s transaction pipeline, such as the CD®gadhsors, will generate appropriate investmenbdppities for us. Our Manager also
sources investments directly from third party orégors, such as in the case of CDOs and CLOs, spathby other asset management firms.

Investing in our targeted asset classésghly competitive. Our Manager competes with ynetier investment managers for profitable
investment opportunities in fixed-income assets#asand related investment opportunities.

Investment Process

Our investment process benefits fromrésaurces and professionals of our Manager. Thiegsimnals responsible for portfolio
management decisions are Matthew Lambiase, ourdergsand Chief Executive Officer and our Managé&skecutive Vice President,
Structured Products; William B. Dyer, our Head afdérwriting and our Manager’s Executive Vice Presig Christian J. Woschenko, our
Head of Investments and our Manager’s Executive Vresident; Eric Szabo, our Manager’s Senior Yiesident and Investment Strategist;
and Konstantin Pavlov, our Manager’s Senior VicesiRfent and Senior Repo Trader. Investments ams@se by an Investment Committee of
our Manager’s professionals, consisting of Michadl Farrell, Wellington J. Denahan-Norris, JameEdttescue, Kristopher Konrad, Rose-
Marie Lyght, Ronald Kazel, Jeremy Diamond, Ericl8rand Matthew Lambiase. This Investment Committesrsees our investment
guidelines and will meet periodically to discussefprences for sectors and sub-sectors.

Our investment process includes souraimg) screening of investment opportunities, assgssirestment suitability, conducting credit
and prepayment analysis, evaluating cash flow afidteral performance, reviewing legal structurd aervicer and originator information and
investment structuring, as appropriate, to seektactive return commensurate with the risk weberaring. Upon identification of an
investment opportunity, the investment is screear@imonitored by our Manager to determine its imhpaamaintaining our REIT qualificatic
and our exemption from registration under the 1840 We have and will seek to make investmentsirtars where our Manager has strong
core competencies and where we believe creditanskexpected performance can be reasonably qeahtifi

Our Manager evaluates each one of owgsimrent opportunities based on its expected righssetl return relative to the returns available
from other, comparable investments. In additioneweluate new opportunities based on their relaiygected returns compared to our
comparable securities held in our portfolio. Then® of any leverage available to us for use in fiogén investment purchase are also taken
into consideration, as are any risks posed byuildiify or correlations with other securities in thartfolio.

Once a potential residential loan packagestment has been identified, our Manager aind ffarties it engages perform financial,
operational and legal due diligence to assessghke of the investment. Our Manager and third parit engages analyze the loan pool and
conduct follow-up due diligence as part of the umdiing process. As part of this process, the feggors which the underwriters consider
include, but are not limited to, documentation, teéekincome ratio, loan-to-value ratios and propesdluation. Consideration is also given to
other factors such as price of the pool, geographicentrations and type of product. Our Managi@mes its underwriting criteria based upon
actual loan portfolio experience and as market itmmd and investor
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requirements evolve. Similar analysis is also penfed on securities, where the evaluation processiatludes relative value analyses base
yield, credit rating, average life, expected dunatioptiol-adjusted spreads, prepayment assumptions and eregiptions. Other considerati
in our investment process include analysis of fumelatal economic trends, suitability for investmlenta REIT, consumer borrowing trends,
home price appreciation and relevant regulatonetigments.

Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment ¢jneethat set out the asset classes, risk tolertawvels, diversification requirements and other
criteria used to evaluate the merits of specifiesiments as well as the overall portfolio compasitOur Manager’s Investment Committee
reviews our compliance with the investment guidediperiodically and our board of directors receme$nvestment report at each quarter-end
in conjunction with its review of our quarterly tdts. Our board also reviews our investment padfahd related compliance with our
investment policies and procedures and investmadetines at each regularly scheduled board ofttirs meeting.

Our board of directors and our Managbng&stment Committee have adopted the followinglglimes for our investments and
borrowings:

. No investment shall be made that would cause €altto qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrpases
. No investment shall be made that would cause be tegulated as an investment company under the Aé4
. With the exception of real estate and housing,ingls industry shall represent greater than 20%hefsecurities or aggrege

risk exposure in our portfolio; ar

. Investments in nc-rated or deeply subordinated ABS or other secsrttiat are nc-qualifying assets for purposes of the 7
REIT asset test will be limited to an amount nogxaeed 50% of our stockhold’ equity.

These investment guidelines may be chédibgea majority of our board of directors withotckholder approval.

Our board of directors has also adoptseparate set of investment guidelines and proesdaorgovern our relationship with FIDAC. \
have also adopted detailed compliance policieot@ign our interaction with FIDAC, including whenDAC is in receipt of material non-
public information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potentiakmstto our stockholders. We are not required tmtae any specific debt-to-equity ratio as we
believe the appropriate leverage for the particatsets we are financing depends on the credityjaald risk of those assets.

Subject to our maintaining our qualificatas a REIT, we expect to use a number of sodectisance our investments, including the
following:

* Repurchase Agreemer. We have financed and intend to continue to fiearertain of our assets through the use of repaecha
agreements. We anticipate that repurchase agresméhibe one of the sources we will use to achiewedesired amount of leverage
for our residential real estate assets. We intemdaintain formal relationships with multiple coergarties to obtain financing on
favorable terms. As of March 31, 2008, we wereypartrepurchase agreements with 13 counterpaitielsiding Annaly, for the
financing of our RMBS. As of March 31, 2008, we I%852.5 million outstanding with 4 of those couptaties. Additionally, as of
March 31, 2008 we were party to repurchase agretsmeéth two counterparties for the financing of eesidential mortgage loans. We
had $487.0 million outstanding with those counteipa as of March 31, 2008 and no borrowings aday 30, 2008. For a description
of the terms of our repurchase agreements, seeditanent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Giiordand Results of
Operation—Liquidity and Capital Resourc(”
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* Warehouse Facilitie. We intend to utilize credit facilities for caditeeeded to fund our assets. We intend to mairfitainal
relationships with multiple counterparties to maintwarehouse lines on favorable terms. As of M&Lh2008, we had no outstanding
warehouse facility balance

e Securitizatior. We acquire residential mortgage loans for outfptio with the intention of securitizing them anretaining the
securitized mortgage loans in our portfolio. Tailfeate the securitization or financing of our I&nve will generally create subordinate
certificates, providing a specified amount of ctesihancement, which we intend to retain in outfpbo. As of March 31, 2008, we
had no outstanding securitizatiol

On April 24, 2008 we sponsored a $619.7 millionusitization, a long-term financing transaction wétey we securitized our then-
current inventory of mortgage loans. In this tranise, we sold approximately $536.9 million of AAsxted fixed and floating rate
bonds to third party investors, and retained apprately $46.3 million of AA/-rated mezzanine bonds and $36.5 milliol



subordinated bonds. This transaction will be actedifor as a financing pursuant to SFAS 14€gounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liale#i.

Asse-Backed Commercial Pap. We may finance certain of our assets using -backed commercial paper, or ABCP, conduits, wi
are bankruptcy-remote special purpose vehiclesskae commercial paper and the proceeds of whiehised to fund assets, either
through repurchase or secured lending programam#eutilize ABCP conduits of third parties or ceeatir own conduit. As of March
31, 2008, we had no outstanding a-backed commercial paper balanc

Term Financing CDOsWe may finance certain of our assets using témenting strategies, including CDOs and other métclded
financing structures. CDOs are multiple class delsurities, or bonds, secured by pools of assgth, & mortgage-backed securities
and corporate debt. Like typical securitizatiomstures, in a CDC

o} the assets are pledged to a trustee for the berfi¢fie holders of the bond
o] one or more classes of the bonds are rated by rome@ rating agencies; a

o] one or more classes of the bonds are marketeavideavariety of fixerincome investors, which enables the CDO spc
to achieve a relatively low cost of lc-term financing

Unlike typical securitization structures, the urgieig assets may be sold, subject to certain litioites, without a corresponding pay-
down of the CDO, provided the proceeds are reimeest qualifying assets. As a result, CDOs endi@esponsor to actively
manage, subject to certain limitations, the podssfets. We believe CDO financing structures magrb&ppropriate financing
vehicle for our target asset classes because thlegnable us to obtain relatively low, long-termast of funds and minimize the risk
that we may have to refinance our liabilities beftre maturities of our investments, while givirggtie flexibility to manage credit
risk and, subject to certain limitations, to takiv@ntage of profit opportunities. As of March 3008, we had no outstanding term
financing CDOs

Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Stragy

We may, from time to time, utilize detiiv@ financial instruments to hedge all or a portad the interest rate risk associated with our

borrowings. Under the federal income tax laws ayatilie to REITS, we generally will be able to entéo certain transactions to hedge
indebtedness that we may incur, or plan to in@uadguire or carry real estate assets, althougkotalrgross income from such hedges and
other non-qualifying sources must not exceed 25%uofgross income.

We intend to engage in a variety of iagtrrate management techniques that seek to reitipainges in interest rates or other potential

influences on the values of our assets. The fedwraime tax rules applicable to REITs may requgeaaliimplement certain of these techniques
through a TRS that is fully subject to corporatecime taxation. Our interest rate management teabsiqay include:

. puts and calls on securities or indices of seas;
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. Eurodollar futures contracts and options on suctiracts;

. interest rate caps, swaps and swapti
. U.S. treasury securities and options on U.S. tmgasecurities; an
. other similar transaction

We expect to attempt to reduce interatgt risks and to minimize exposure to interestftattuations through the use of match funded
financing structures, when appropriate, wherebysegk (i) to match the maturities of our debt oliliges with the maturities of our assets and
(i) to match the interest rates on our investmevitk like-kind debt (i.e., floating rate assets financed with floating rate debt and fixed-rate
assets are financed with fixed-rate debt), direstlthrough the use of interest rate swaps, capsher financial instruments, or through a
combination of these strategies. We expect th@ltav us to minimize the risk that we have to rafine our liabilities before the maturities of
our assets and to reduce the impact of changiegesit rates on our earnings.

We may from time to time enter into irg&trrate swap agreements to offset the potentierad effects of rising interest rates under
short-term repurchase agreements. Interest rate agr@ements have historically been structured thattthe party seeking the hedge
protection receives payments based on a variatdecst rate and makes payments based on a fixagéttrate. The variable interest rate on
which payments are received is calculated baseddaus reset mechanisms for LIBOR. The repurclaseements generally have maturities
of 30 to 90 days and carry interest rates thaespiond to the LIBOR rates for those same perioks.sivap agreements will effectively fix our
borrowing cost and will not be held for speculatbrdrading purposes.

As of March 31, 2008, we had entered ir@nous amortizing interest rate swap agreemeittsamnumber of counterparties whereby we
swap a floating rate of interest in the liabilitgwwre hedging for a fixed rate of interest. Theragate notional amount of these agreements was
$1.6 billion. The weighted average fixed rate wigl mm these interest rate swaps was 3.78% as ofhviit, 2008.

Interest rate management techniques telmoinate interest rate risk but, rather, seefttigate it. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to
Our Business—Hedging against interest rate expasaseadversely affect our earnings, which couldioedour cash available for distribution
to you.” and “—Our hedging strategies may not becessful in mitigating the risks associated witieiast rates.”

Credit Analysis and Structuring

We benefit from our Managem®xperience in credit analysis and investmentsiring. The credit analysis process is driven xigmsive
research that focuses, where applicable, on therlymag collateral, servicer and structure of anl@a security, as well as the borrower or
issuer, its management team and overall conditioits industry. When conducting due diligence, blanager evaluates a number of
important business considerations, as well as aeletax, accounting, environmental and legal issuegtermining whether to proceed with an
investment.

Risk Management

Risk management is an integral componéntr strategy to deliver returns to our stockleodd Because we have invested and will
continue to invest primarily in fixed-income seti@s, investment losses from credit defaults, egerate volatility or other risks can
meaningfully reduce or eliminate our distributidnsstockholders. In addition, because we utilipaficial leverage in funding our portfolio,
mismatches in the maturities of our assets anditiab can create risk in the need to continuadlgew or otherwise refinance our liabilities.

Our net interest margins are dependent upon aiysipread between the returns on our asset portfat our overall cost of funding. To
minimize the risks to our portfolio, we actively ploy portfolio-wide and security-specific risk me@sment and management processes in our
daily operations. Our risk management tools inclsafitware and services licensed or purchased fhinah parties, in addition to proprietary
analytical methods developed by FIDAC. There candguarantee that these tools will protect us froanket risks.

Conflicts of Interest

We are dependent on our Manager for ayrtd-day management and do not have any indepenffexers or employees. Our officers
also serve as employees of our Manager or it§aaéf8. Our non-independent directors also serwrgdoyees of our Manager. Our
management agreement with our Manager was negbtieteveen related parties and its terms, inclutieg payable, may not be as favorable
to us as if it had been
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negotiated at arm’s length with an unaffiliateddhparty. In addition, the ability of our Managerdaits officers and employees to engage in
other business activities may reduce the time candger and its officers and employees spend magpagin

Our Manager has discretionary investnaemtority over a number of different funds and aets. Although currently none of these
funds or accounts have investment objectives tlaenally overlap with ours, it is possible in thiture that our Manager may manage funds
and accounts that may compete with us for investmgportunities. Also, to the extent our Managenages investment vehicles (other than
CDOs) that meet our investment objectives, our Manavill have an incentive to invest our funds urels investment vehicles because of the
possibility of generating an additional incrememteinagement fee. Our Manager may also invest in C@naged by it that could result in
conflicts with us, particularly if we invest in @gtion of the equity securities and there is a metation of value of such CDO before closing
could suffer an immediate loss equal to the deer@athe market value of the underlying investménaddition, to the extent we seek to in
in Agency RMBS, we may compete for investment oppaties with Annaly. Our Manager has an investnadluication policy in place so that
we may share equitably with other client accoufisus Manager and Annaly in all investment oppoities, particularly those involving an
asset with limited supply, that may be suitabledior account and such other accounts. Our Managelisy also includes other controls
designed to monitor and prevent any particular astor Annaly from receiving favorable treatmeneoany other fund or account. This
investment policy may be amended by our Managangatime without our consent. To the extent FIDA@snaly’s, or our business evolves
in such a way to give rise to conflicts not curhgaiddressed by our Manageihvestment allocation policy, our Manager maydhieerefine its
policy to handle any such situations. To avoid adtpal or perceived conflicts of interest with dleinager, an investment in any security
structured or managed by our Manager will be apgddsy a majority of our independent directors.

The ability of our Manager and its offis@nd employees to engage in other businesstagimay reduce the time our Manager spends
managing us. Further, during turbulent conditionthe mortgage industry, distress in the creditket@ror other times when we will need
focused support and assistance from our Manadeer entities for which or Manager also acts anaastment manager will likewise require
greater focus and attention, placing our Managessurces in high demand. In such situations, wemoareceive the necessary support and
assistance we require or would otherwise receiweifvere internally managed or if our Manager didact as a manager for other entities.

We have agreed to pay our Manager atasmgement fee that is not tied to our performamckincentive compensation that is based
entirely on our performance. This compensationreyeanent may cause our Manager to make high rigtssinvents. Investments with higher
yield potential are generally riskier or more spgative. The base management fee component mayffatisntly incentivize our Manager 1
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns for & ificentive compensation component may cause analyer to place undue emphasis on the
maximization of net income at the expense of othiéeria, such as preservation of capital, to ashigigher incentive compensation. This cc
result in increased risk to the value of our inmestt portfolio.

It is difficult and costly to terminateet management agreement we have entered into withklanager without cause. Our independent
directors will review our Manager’s performance dnel management fees annually, and following titairterm, the management agreement
provides that it may be terminated annually by itkout cause upon the affirmative vote of at léast-thirds of our independent directors or
by a vote of the holders of at least a majorityhaf outstanding shares of our common stock (otteer those shares held by Annaly or its
affiliates), based upon: (i) our Manager’s unsatisry performance that is materially detrimentali$ or (ii) our determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npstdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent terrtiovabased on unfair fees by accepting a
reduction of management fees agreed to by atteasthirds of our independent directors. Our Mamagdl be provided 180-daygrior notice
of any such termination. Upon such terminationwilepay our Manager a termination fee equal teethtimes the sum of (a) the average
annual base management fee and (b) the averagelamcentive compensation earned by our Managengdtine prior 24-month period before
such termination, calculated as of the end of thstmecently completed fiscal quarter. These piomgsmay increase the effective cost to us of
terminating the management agreement, thereby selyaaffecting our ability to terminate our Managéthout cause. In addition, we have
entered into a repurchase agreement with AnnalyMaunager’s parent, to finance our RMBS. This fitiag arrangement may make us less
likely to terminate our Manager. It could also grige to further conflicts because Annaly may lmeeitor of ours. As one of our creditors,
Annaly’s interests may diverge from the interedtewr stockholders.
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Our Manager may terminate the managemgmement if we become required to register ag@@stment company under the 1940 Act,
with such termination deemed to occur immediateliple such event, in which case we would not baired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may also decline to renew the managemeeégnt by providing us with 180-days’ written wetiin which case we would not be
required to pay a termination fee.

The management agreement provides thdflanager will not assume any responsibility ottien to provide the services called for by
the management agreement. It further providesaimaManager will not be responsible for any actiéiour board of directors in following or
declining to follow its advice or recommendatio@sir Manager, its officers, managers and employekset be liable to us, any subsidiary of
ours, our directors, our stockholders or any suasit stockholders or partners for acts or omissiperformed in accordance with and
pursuant to the management agreement, except leechasts constituting bad faith, willful miscondugross negligence, or reckless disregard
of their duties under the management agreementhdVe agreed to indemnify our Manager, its officetsgckholders, managers, directors,
employees, any person controlling or controlledhi®/Manager and any person providing sub-advisenyices to the Manager, with respect to
all expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demahdsges and claims arising from acts of our Menagt constituting bad faith, willful
misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregfaddties, performed in good faith in accordandd nd pursuant to the management
agreement.

Resolution of Potential Conflicts of Interest and Alocation of Investment Opportunities

FIDAC will abide by its allocation poli@gnd thus will offer us the right to participateaithinvestment opportunities that it determines
appropriate for us in view of our investment objees, policies and strategies and other relevartofs, subject to the exception that, in
accordance with FIDAC's allocation policy descridelow, we might not participate in each such oppoty but will on an overall basis
equitably participate with FIDAC's other clientsail such opportunities. FIDAC allocates investnsemteligible accounts, including us, based
on current demand according to the market validefaccount (which is the amount of available epitat, consistent with such account’s
investment parameters, may be invested in a propasestment). An account has current demandhifg positive market value. For certain
transactions that cannot be allocated on a prdoges, such as in the case of “whole pool” tradas Manager will endeavor to allocate such
purchases over time in a fair and equitable manf#re investment cannot fulfill the pro rata alédion or be allocated in marketable portions,
the investment is allocated on a rotational basactounts with current demand, with an emphasisaol on those accounts that were excluded
in prior allocations, but without any preferenceayi to accounts based on their market value. Ttatiooal system is determined by FIDAC'’s
chief investment officer and is overseen by its ptiamce officer to ensure fair and equitable inwestt allocation to all accounts in accordance
with the 1940 Act.

Operating and Regulatory Structure
REIT Qualification

We intend to elect and qualify to be telaas a REIT under Sections 856 through 859 ofifeenal Revenue Code commencing with
taxable year ending on December 31, 2007. Ourfipatlon as a REIT depends upon our ability to noees continuing basis, through actual
investment and operating results, various compeuirements under the Internal Revenue Code rgladinamong other things, the sources of
our gross income, the composition and values ofssets, our distribution levels and the diversitgwnership of our shares. We believe that
we have been organized in conformity with the regpaients for qualification and taxation as a REI@enthe Internal Revenue Code, and that
our manner of operation enables us to meet thermgants for qualification and taxation as a REIT.

As a REIT, we generally will not be sutijeo federal income tax on our REIT taxable incomeedistribute currently to you. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and do natlifjufor certain statutory relief provisions, wellbe subject to federal income tax at regular
corporate rates and may be precluded from quatifgma REIT for the subsequent four taxable yedl®aing the year during which we lost
our REIT qualification. Even if we qualify for tatien as a REIT, we may be subject to some fedstalle and local taxes on our income or

property.
1940 Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we ampkfrom registration under the 1940 Act. We idtémrely on the exemption from registration
provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act,ravision designed for companies

87



that do not issue redeemable securities and areafly engaged in the business of purchasing aratise acquiring mortgages and other liens
on and interests in real estate.

To qualify for the exemption, we makedstments so that at least 55% of the assets wecomsist of qualifying mortgages and other
liens on and interests in real estate, which alleavely referred to as “qualifying real estatsats,” and so that at least 80% of the assets we
own consist of real estate-related assets (inctudir qualifying real estate assets). We do nenidtto issue redeemable securities.

Based on no—action letters issued bystladf of the Securities and Exchange Commissiorlagsify our investment in residential
mortgage loans as qualifying real estate assetsngsas the loans are “fully secured” by an intere real estate. That is, if the loan—to—value
ratio of the loan is equal to or less than 100%ntie consider the mortgage loan a qualifying estdte asset. We do not consider loans with
loan—to—-value ratios in excess of 100% to be quialif real estate assets for the 55% test, but malestate-related assets for the 80% test.

We also consider RMBS such as Agency WiRdol Certificates to be qualifying real estateets By contrast, an agency certificate that
represents less than the entire beneficial intémetsie underlying mortgage loans is not considéoege a qualifying real estate asset for
purposes of the 55% test, but constitutes a réaleeselated asset for purposes of the 80% teshplGance with the 1940 Act may require us to
purchase Agency Whole Pool Certificates.

We treat our ownership interest in padlg/hole loan RMBS, in cases in which we acquire éhtire beneficial interest in a particular
pool, as qualifying real estate assets based oaatimn positions of the Staff of the Securities &xdéhange Commission. We generally do not
expect our investments in CMBS and other RMBS itaests to constitute qualifying real estate asetthe 55% test, unless such treatment
is consistent with guidance of the Staff of the8iies and Exchange Commission. Instead, thessstments generally will be classified as
real estate-related assets for purposes of thet@920/Ne do not expect that our investments in CBGxther ABS will constitute qualifying
real estate assets. We may, however, treat outydqgterests in a CDO issuer that we determine“ima@jority owned subsidiary” and that is
exempt from 1940 Act registration under Section(&(¢C) of the 1940 Act as qualifying real estaseds, real estate-related assets, and
miscellaneous assets in the same proportion aasges in such CDO are qualifying real estate sias=tl estate-related assets and
miscellaneous assets. We may in the future, howewedify our treatment of such CDO equity to confdo guidelines provided by the Staff
of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We also invest in other types of RMBS &MBS, which we will not treat as qualifying reatate assets for purposes of determining our
eligibility for the exemption from registration proed by Section 3(c)(5)(C) unless such treatmgbhnsistent with guidance of the Staff of
Securities and Exchange Commission. We have noestgd no—action or other interpretative guidancpplied for an exemptive order with
respect to the treatment of such assets. In thenabsf guidance of the Staff of the Securities Bxchange Commission that otherwise
supports the treatment of such investments asfgingireal estate assets, we will treat them, fmppses of determining our eligibility for the
exemption from registration provided by Section)@E}C), as real estate—related assets or misegllanassets as appropriate. Any additional
guidance from the Staff of the Securities and ErgeaCommission could provide additional flexibilttyus, or it could further inhibit our
ability to pursue the investment strategy we hawesen.

We monitor our assets to ensure thatat|55% of our assets consist of qualifying retdte assets, and that at least 80% of our assets
consist of qualifying real estate assets and rtate-related assets. We expect, when requiretbdhe mix of our investments, to acquire
pools of whole loan RMBS for compliance purposasestments in such pools may not represent an aptise of our investable capital
when compared to the available investments we t@gsuant to our investment strategy.

Licensing

We may be required to be licensed tolpage and sell previously originated residentialtgeagye loans in certain jurisdictions (including
the District of Columbia) in which we will conduectir business. We are currently in the process t#ioing those licenses, if required. Our
failure to obtain or maintain licenses will restrizir investment options. We may consummate tHexiofy even if we have not yet obtained
such licenses. Once we are fully licensed to pueland sell mortgage loans in each of the statehich we become licensed, we expect that
we will acquire previously originated residentia&hs in those states. We intend to be licensdubisetstates where licenses are required to
purchase or sell previously originated mortgag@doas soon as reasonably practicable.
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Policies with Respect to Certain Other Activities

If our board of directors determines thadlitional funding is required, we may raise sfustds through additional offerings of equity or
debt securities or the retention of cash flow (sabjo provisions in the Code concerning distribtiequirements and the taxability of
undistributed REIT taxable income) or a combinatbthese methods. If our board of directors deteesto raise additional equity capital, it
has the authority, without stockholder approvalstue additional common stock or preferred stackny manner and on such terms and for
such consideration as it deems appropriate, atiaey

We may offer equity or debt securitiesegpurchase or otherwise reacquire our shares, ligagtity obligations, or for working capital
purposes or other reasons. In addition, we mayolomoney to finance the acquisition of investmewe. intend to use traditional forms of
financing, such as repurchase agreements. Ourtinees guidelines and our portfolio and leveragepengodically reviewed by our board of
directors as part of their oversight of our Manager

We engage in the purchase and sale etments. We will not underwrite the securitiesthier issuers. We will not make loans to other
persons or invest in the securities of other issmrthe purpose of exercising control of thostties.

Our board of directors may change anthe$e policies without prior notice to you or aesby our stockholders.
Competition

Our net income depends, in large parpumability to acquire assets at favorable spres@s our borrowing costs. In acquiring real
estate-related assets, we will compete with othemtgage REITs, specialty finance companies, savamgsloan associations, banks, mortgage
bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, itistital investors, investment banking firms, finaténstitutions, governmental bodies and
other entities. In addition, there are numeroustgame REITs with similar asset acquisition objegsivincluding a number that have been
recently formed, and others that may be organizele future. These other REITs will increase catitipa for the available supply of
mortgage assets suitable for purchase. Many of@umpetitors are significantly larger than we ai@yéhaccess to greater capital and other
resources and may have other advantages over addition, some of our competitors may have higtskrtolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish more falte relationships than we can. Current
market conditions may attract more competitors,civimay increase the competition for sources ofifiigy. An increase in the competition
sources of funding could adversely affect the adlity and cost of financing, and thereby adversdfect the market price of our common
stock.

Staffing

We are managed by our Manager pursuahetmanagement agreement between our Managersaid of our officers are employees
of our Manager or its affiliates. We will have nmgloyees upon completion of this offering othemtloair officers. See “Our Manager and the
Management Agreement—Management Agreement.”

Legal Proceedings
Neither we nor our Manager is currentlpject to any legal proceedings which it considerse material.
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OUR MANAGER AND THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
General

We are externally advised and manageapyManager. All of our officers are employees of Manager or its affiliates. The executive
offices of our Manager are located at 1211 AverfubeAmericas, Suite 2902, New York, New York 18G8d the telephone number of our
Manager’s executive offices is (212) 696-0100.

Officers of Our Manager

The following sets forth certain inforruat with respect to the executive officers and epés of our Manager:

Name Age Position Held with our Manager
Michael A.J. Farrel 57 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeuificer
Wellington J. DenahéNorris 44  Vice Chairman of the Board, Chief Investment Offiaad Chief Operating Office
Kathryn F. Fagal 41  Chief Financial Officer and Treasui
Jeremy Diamoni 45 Managing Directo
Ronald Kaze 40 Managing Directo
R. Nicholas Sing| 49 Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Corpogaicretary and Chief Compliance Offi
James P. Fortesc! 34 Managing Director and Head of Liabiliti
Kristopher Konrac 33 Managing Director and (-Head Portfolio Manageme
RoseMarie Lyght 34 Managing Director and (-Head Portfolio Manageme
Matthew Lambias 42 Executive Vice President, Structured Prodi
Christian J. Woschenk 47 Executive Vice Presidel
William B. Dyer 61 Executive Vice Presidel
A. Alexandra Denaha 38 Controller
Konstantin Pavlo 36 Senior Vice President and Senior Repo Tr:
Eric Szabc 33 Executive President and Investment Strate

Michael A.J. Farrellis the Chief Executive Officer, President and foemadf FIDAC and Chairman, Chief Executive OfficBresident
and one of the founders of Annaly. Mr. Farrell vaafounder of FIDAC in July 1994 and since Novemb@®4 he has been its President and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Farrell was electedDacember 5, 1996 to serve as Chairman of the BaraddChief Executive Officer of
Annaly. Mr. Farrell was appointed as Annaly’s Pdesit effective January 1, 2002. Mr. Farrell is arber of our Manager’s Investment
Committee. Prior to founding FIDAC, from Februai§92 to July 1994, Mr. Farrell served as Presidéitadel Funding Corporation. From
April 1990 to January 1992, Mr. Farrell was a Mangd irector for Schroder Wertheim & Co. Inc., is Fixed Income Department. In
addition to being the former Chairman of the Prigni2aealers Operations Committee of the Public SéesrAssociation (from 1981 through
1985) and its Mortgage Backed Securities Divistumjs a former member of the Executive CommitteiésdPrimary Dealers Division (from
1983 through 1988). Mr. Farrell has served on therd of directors for the US Dollar Floating RatenB, Ltd. since August 1994 and the bc
of governors of the National Association of Realdss Investment Trusts since January 2000 andédes the Chairman of the board of trus
of the Oratory Preparatory School since June 2004.

Wellington J. Denahan-Norrigs the Vice-Chairman of Annaly, and Chief Investm@fficer and Chief Operating Officer of Annaly
and FIDAC. Ms. Denahan-Norris is a member of ounitger’'s Investment Committee. Ms. Denahan-Norris glacted on December 5, 1996
to serve as Vice Chairman of the Board and a diresftAnnaly. Ms. Denahan-Norris was appointed AniseChief Operating Officer in
January 2006. Ms. Denahan-Norris has been the Ghiestment Officer of Annaly since 1996. She wésumder of Annaly and has been the
Chief Operating Officer of FIDAC since January 2086e has been FIDAC’s Senior Vice President ditaech 1995, Treasurer since July
1994 and Chief Investment Officer since Februar§71%-rom July 1994 through March 1995 she was & Yiesident of FIDAC. She is also
responsible for the development of Annaly and FID8ANG-house portfolio systems. Ms. Denahdorris has been the Portfolio Manager for
U.S. Dollar Floating Rate Fund since its incepiimAugust 1994. Prior to joining FIDAC, from Mard®92 to July 1994, Ms. Denahan-Norris
had been Vice President responsible for assettgaieand financing at Citadel Funding CorporatiBrior to joining Citadel she had been a
trader on the mortgage-backed securities desktab8er Wertheim and Co. Inc. from July 1991 to Mat®92. She has a Bachelors Degree in
Finance from Florida State University and attenthedNew York Institute of Finance for intense magg-backed securities studies.
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Kathryn F. Faganis our Manager's and Annaly’s Chief Financial O#fiand Treasurer. Ms. Fagan was employed by Ararady
FIDAC on April 1, 1997 in the positions of Chiefriaincial Officer and Treasurer of each of Annaly &HIAC. From June 1, 1991 to February
28, 1997, Ms. Fagan was Chief Financial Officer @oahtroller of First Federal Savings & Loan Asstioia of Opelousas, Louisiana. First
Federal is a publicly owned savings and loan tbaterted to the stock form of ownership during éployment period. Ms. Fagan’s
responsibilities at First Federal included all fio&al reporting, including reports for internal uaed reports required by the SEC and the Office
of Thrift Supervision. During the period from Sepiger 1988 to May 1991, Ms. Fagan was employedssk and savings and loan auditol
John S. Dowling & Company, a corporation of CeetifiPublic Accountants. Ms. Fagan is a Certifiedlieukccountant and has an M.B.A.
from the University of Southwestern Louisiana.

Jeremy Diamonds one of our Directors. He is also a Managing Etwefor FIDAC and Annaly and a member of our Magreg)
Investment Committee. He joined Annaly and FIDAQMarch 2002. From 1990 to 2002 he was Preside@raht’s Financial Publishing, a
financial research company and publisher of Grdntarest Rate Observer. In addition to his resiilitees as principal business executive,
Mr. Diamond conducted security analysis and finahtiarket research. Mr. Diamond began his careanamalyst in the investment banking
group at Lehman Brothers. Mr. Diamond has an M.Brdm UCLA and a Bachelors Degree from Princetoriversity.

Ronald Kazeis a Managing Director for Annaly and FIDAC. Mr. & is a member of our Managethvestment Committee. Mr. Ka
joined these companies in December 2001. BefoningiAnnaly and FIDAC, Mr. Kazel was a Senior VReesident in Friedman Billing
Ramsey’s financial services investment banking gr&wring his tenure there, he was responsiblstfoicturing both the private and public
equity offerings for Annaly in 1997. From 1991 18985, Mr. Kazel served as a Vice President at Sa@ildeill & Partners where he was
involved in asset/liability management and mortghgeked securities analysis and sales. Mr. Kazebhachelor of Science in Finance and
Management from New York University.

R. Nicholas Singlis Executive Vice President and serves as Genenah€2l, Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliandie&ffor
Annaly and FIDAC. Before joining these companie§abruary 2005, Mr. Singh was a partner at thefiawMcKee Nelson LLP. Mr. Singh
has experience in a broad range of public and faritransactions. Before joining McKee Nelson, he waartner at the law firm of Sidley
Austin, LLP. Mr. Singh received a J.D. from the \Wagton College of Law, American University, an Mf#om Columbia University and a
Bachelors Degree from Carleton College.

James P. Fortescus a Managing Director and Head of Liabilities f/dDAC and Annaly. Mr. Fortescue is a member of Manager’'s
Investment Committee. He started with FIDAC in Ja885 where he was in charge of finding financingmortgage-backed and corporate
bonds for regional dealers. In September 1996 pareded his responsibilities for all financing aittés which included trading and structuring
all liabilities, coordinating trade settlementsiwiitroker dealers and maintaining the relationstiipis these dealers. Mr. Fortescue has been in
charge of liability management for Annaly sinceiiitseption, and continues to oversee all finaneiogyvities for FIDAC. Mr. Fortescue holds a
Bachelors Degree in Finance from Siena College.

Kristopher Konrad is a Managing Director and Co-Head of Portfolio gement for FIDAC and Annaly. Mr. Konrad is a membie
our Manager's Investment Committee. He has workedbéth companies since October 1997. Currently,Knrad is a portfolio manager for
Annaly and has served in this capacity since Deeer2800. Before this, he was head of financingHerUS Dollar Floating Rate Fund, Ltd.
and assisted with the management of FIDAC's highwaeth separate accounts. Mr. Konrad has a Bach@egree in Business from Ithaca
College and has attended the New York Institutein&nce for intense mortgage-backed securitiesestud

Rose-Marie Lyghtis a Managing Director and Co-Head of Portfolio Mgement for FIDAC and Annaly. Ms. Lyght is a membkour
Manager’s Investment Committee. She joined bothpaories in April 1999. Since that time she has beenlved in the asset selection and
financing for FIDAC’s funds and high net worth segte accounts. She has been a portfolio managkeddS Dollar Floating Rate Fund, Ltd.
since December 2000. Ms. Lyght has a Bachelor @r8e in Finance and an M.B.A. from Villanova Urrisigy.

Matthew Lambiases our President and Chief Executive Officer, and of our Directors. He is Executive Vice Presigd&ttuctured
Products for Annaly and FIDAC and a member of oanllger’s Investment Committee. He joined these amieg in June 2004. Before
joining Annaly and FIDAC, Mr. Lambiase was
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Director in Fixed Income Sales at Nomura Securitisrnational, Inc. Over his 11 year employmer¥lamura, Mr. Lambiase was responsible
for the distribution of commercial and residentiartgage-backed securities to a wide variety dftitisonal investors. Mr. Lambiase also held
positions at Bear, Stearns & Company as Vice Peasiih Institutional Fixed Income Sales and as atgage analyst in the Financial Analytics
and Structured Transaction Group. Mr. LambiaseshBachelors Degree in Economics from the Univemsitipayton.

A. Alexandra Denaharis our Chief Financial Officer and Secretary, amel €Controller of Annaly and FIDAC. Before joininghAaly
and FIDAC in October 2002, Ms. Denahan was a bssicensultant in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Ms. Demahas a Bachelors Degree in
Accounting and an M.B.A. from Florida Atlantic Urksity.

Konstantin Pavlovis Senior Vice President and Senior Repo Tradémaialy and FIDAC. He has worked for both compasiese
March of 2001. Since 2004, Mr. Pavlov has assistete financing for Annaly and oversees the finagdor the FIDAC accounts. Mr. Pavlov
has a Bachelors Degree from San Diego State Utitiyers

Eric Szabds an Executive Vice President and Investment &gist for Annaly and FIDAC. Mr. Szabo is a membiowar Manager’s
Investment Committee. Before joining these compmaimieApril 2004, he worked for Times Square Capifaihagement as a Mortgage Analyst
and Trader since 2001. Mr. Szabo has a Bachelatgd® from The College of New Jersey and a M.Aiirance from Boston College. Mr.
Szabo is a PRMIA certified Professional Risk Manaayel a CFA charterholder.

Christian J. Woschenkads our Manager’'s Executive Vice President and seageour Head of Investments. Before joining FIDAC
August 2007, Mr. Woschenko worked at PHH Mortgaigees2005 with responsibilities for arranging, miirtgand pricing the securitizations
of their non-Agency residential mortgage productide was a member of both PHH’s Credit Committes laterest Rate Risk Committee.
Previously, Mr. Woschenko was employed as Seniontdége Credit Trader at RBC Capital, Senior Assstk®d Securities Banker at BB&T
Capital Markets and as a Principal in Mortgage frgét Mariner Capital Management. Mr. Woschenks a@&achelors Degree in Accounting
from Widener University.

William B. Dyeris our Manager’'s Executive Vice President and seagour Head of Underwriting. Before joining FIDACAugust
2007, Mr. Dyer was Vice President, Credit Risk Mgeraent for PHH Mortgage Corporation from 1997 whégeresponsibilities included
supervision of the Credit Solutions Department. Dlyer was Vice President at the Fixed-Income Dorisbf Nomura Asset Capital
Corporation from 1994 to 1997, where he managetréésted activities critical for the securitizatior sale of the mortgage loans. Mr. Dyer
has an M.B.A. from St. John’s University and a Baoh of Science from St. Francis College.

Investment Committee

The role of our Investment Committeenisdview and approve our investment policies, auestment portfolio holdings and related
compliance with our investment policies. The Inwestit Committee meets as frequently as necessarylér for us to achieve our investment
objectives. Our Manager has an Investment Comnuitteeir Manager's professionals, consisting of MiehA.J. Farrell, Wellington J.
Denahan-Norris, James P. Fortescue, KristopherathrRose-Marie Lyght, Ronald Kazel, Jeremy Diamdtri; Szabo and Matthew
Lambiase. For biographical information on the mersloé our Investment Committee, see “Our Manageértae Management Agreement—
Officers of Our Manager.”

Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agreesith Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, danager, pursuant to which it
provides for the day-to-day management of our djmers.

The management agreement requires ouaiarto manage our business affairs in conformitly the policies and the investment
guidelines that are approved and monitored by oardof directors. Our Manager’s role as managender the supervision and direction of
our board of directors. Our Manager is respondii€i) the selection, purchase and sale of outfpliw investments, (ii) our financing
activities, and (iii) providing us with investmegdvisory services. Our Manager is responsible forday-to-day operations and performs (or
causes to be performed) such services and activéglating to our assets and operations as arepigte, which include, without limitation,
the following:
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0] serving as our consultant with respect to the pligiceview of the investment criteria and parangefer our investment:
borrowings and operations, any modifications toclkhwill be approved by a majority of our indepentdginectors;

(ii) investigating, analyzing and selecting possiblegtment opportunities and acquiring, financinggireng, selling, restructuring,
disposing of investments consistent with the inwestt guidelines

(i) with respect to prospective purchases, sales,aragges of investments, conducting negotiationsusrbehalf with sellers and
purchasers and their respective agents, represastaind investment banke

(iv) negotiating and entering into, on our behalf, drédance agreements, repurchase agreements, tsatiohs, commercial pape
CDOs, interest rate swaps, warehouse facilitiesadimther agreements and instruments required$do conduct our busines

(v) engaging and supervising, on our behalf and aerpense, independent contractors which providestnvent banking, mortgag
brokerage, securities brokerage, other financialices, due diligence services, underwriting reve@wices, and all other services
as may be required relating to our investme

(vi) coordinating and managing operations of any joariture or c-investment interests held by us and conductingnatters with the
joint venture or c-investment partner:

(vii) providing executive and administrative personnffice space and office services required in remdgservices to u:

(viii) administering the d«to-day operations and performing and supervising gr@opmance of such other administrative functi

necessary to our management as may be agreed ymam Manager and our board of directors, includimnghout limitation, the
collection of revenues and the payment of our dabtsobligations and maintenance of appropriatepeten services to perform
such administrative function

(ix) communicating on our behalf with the holders of ahpur equity or debt securities as required tsBathe reporting and other
requirements of any governmental bodies or agemcigading markets and to maintain effective ietes with such holder:

x) counseling us in connection with policy decisiom®é& made by our board of directc

(xi) evaluating and recommending to our board of dimsdedging strategies and engaging in hedgingitaegwn our behalf,

consistent with such strategies, as so modifiech flime to time, with our status as a REIT, and wlih investment guideline

(xii) counseling us regarding the maintenance of ouustt a REIT and monitoring compliance with theéotes REIT qualification tes
and other rules set out in the Internal RevenueeGoul Treasury Regulations thereunder and usingnesaially reasonable efforts
to cause us to qualify for taxation as a RE

(xiii) counseling us regarding the maintenance of our piemfrom the 1940 Act and monitoring compliancigwthe requirements for
maintaining an exemption from the 1940 Act and ggiommercially reasonable efforts to cause us totaia such exemption fro
registration from the status as an investment coyppader the 1940 Ac

(xiv) assisting us in developing criteria for asset pasehcommitments that are specifically tailoredubiovestment objectives and
making available to us its knowledge and experiewitie respect to mortgage loans, real estate a=tate-related securities, other
real estat-related assets and r-real estat-related asset:

(xv) furnishing reports and statistical and economieaesh to us regarding our activities and serviezfopmed for us by our Manage

(xvi) monitoring the operating performance of our investis and providing periodic reports with respeetéko to the board «
directors, including comparative information wittspect to such operating performance and budgetejected operating resul
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(xvii) investing and r-investing any moneys and securitiesours (including investing in shi-term investments pending investmen
other investments, payment of fees, costs and agsenr payments of dividends or distributionsupsiockholders and partners)
and advising us as to our capital structure andalapising;

(xviii) causing us to retain qualified accountants and lemansel, as applicable, to assist in developpmy@priate accounting procedur
compliance procedures and testing systems witheotdp financial reporting obligations and comptiawith the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code applicable to REITs and tmlaot quarterly compliance reviews with respecteteg

(xix) assisting us in qualifying to do business in aplagable jurisdictions and to obtain and maintdirappropriate license:

(xx) assisting us in complying with all regulatory regunents applicable to us in respect of our busiaessities, including preparing
causing to be prepared all financial statementsired under applicable regulations and contraatndertakings and all reports and
documents, if any, required under the ExchangethetSecurities Act, or by the NYS

(xxi) assisting us in taking all necessary actions tdlenas to make required tax filings and reportsluding soliciting stockholders for
required information to the extent provided by pihevisions of the Internal Revenue Code applicabIREITS;

(xxii) placing, or arranging for the placement of, allesdpursuant to the Manager’s investment deterioimafor us either directly with
the issuer or with a broker or dealer (including affiliated broker or dealer

(xxiii) handling and resolving all claims, disputes or coversies (including all litigation, arbitrationetdement or other proceedings
negotiations) in which we may be involved or to g¥hive may be subject arising out of our day-to-ojpgrations (other than with
the Manager of its affiliates), subject to suchitations or parameters as may be imposed from tintiene by the board of
directors;

(xxiv) using commercially reasonable efforts to cause esgeincurred by us or on our behalf to be comrakydieasonable or
commercially customary and within any budgeted peters or expense guidelines set by the boardedtdrs from time to time

(xxv) representing and making recommendations to usrinexion with the purchase and finance of, and citmemt to purchase and
finance, mortgage loans (including on a portfolésis), real estate, real estate-related securitiber real estate-related assets and
nor-real estat-related assets, and the sale and commitment telgsl asset:

(xxvi) advising us with respect to and structuring lomgatéinancing vehicles for our portfolio of asseaad offering and selling securities
publicly or privately in connection with any sudhustured financing

(xxvii) performing such other services as may be requimad fime to time for management and other actigitedating to our assets a
business as our board of directors shall reasomablyest or our Manager shall deem appropriatertthdeparticular circumstance
and

(xxviii) using commercially reasonable efforts to cause uwemply with all applicable law:

Pursuant to the management agreemenManager does not assume any responsibility olizer to render the services called for
thereunder and is not responsible for any actiosuofboard of directors in following or declining follow its advice or recommendations. Our
Manager, its officers, its stockholders, managdirectors, officers, employees, any person coritrglbr controlled by the Manager and any
person providing sub-advisory services to the Mangg not liable to us, any subsidiary of ours, divectors, our stockholders or any
subsidiary’s stockholders or partners for actsmissions performed in accordance with and pursteatite management agreement, except
because of acts constituting bad faith, willful ceisduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregatidedf duties under the management
agreement, as determined by a final non-appeatatiky of a court of competent jurisdiction. We hageeed to indemnify our Manager, its
members and its officers with respect to all expenksses, damages, liabilities, demands, chargkslaims arising from acts of our Manager
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, g®negligence, or reckless disregard of dutiesppeed in good faith in accordance with and
pursuant to the management agreement. Our Managexdreed to indemnify us, our directors and affieéth respect to all expenses, losses,
damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claisisg from acts of our Manager constituting baithfawillful misconduct, gross negligence
or reckless disregard of its duties under the mamamt agreement or any claims by our Manager’s @yapk relating to the terms and
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conditions of their employment by our Manager. ther avoidance of doubt, our Manager is not liabletifade errors that may result from
ordinary negligence, such as errors in the investrdecision making process (e.g., a transactioneffasted in violation of our investment
guidelines) or in the trade process (e.g., a bdgrowas entered instead of a sell order, or thegvsecurity was purchased or sold, or a sec
was purchased or sold in an amount or at a priver ahan the correct amount or price). Notwithstagdhe foregoing, our Manager carries
errors and omissions and other customary insuranitee time of this offering.

Pursuant to the terms of the managengrneeanent, our Manager is required to provide ub witr management team, including a
president, chief executive officer, head of undémg, head of investments, and chief financialagf, along with appropriate support
personnel, to provide the management services pydxéded by our Manager to us.

The management agreement may be amemadaddified by agreement between us and our Mandder initial term of the management
agreement expires on December 31, 2010 and wdlb@matically renewed for a one year term eachvanséry date thereafter unless
previously terminated as described below. Our irdepnt directors review our Manageperformance and the management fees annually
following the initial term, the management agreetmeay be terminated annually upon the affirmatigéevof a least two-thirds of our
independent directors or by a vote of the holdéesmajority of the outstanding shares of our comrstock (other than those shares held by
Annaly or its affiliates), based upon (1) unsatisbay performance that is materially detrimentalisoor (2) our determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npstdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent suechteation due to unfair fees by accepting
a reduction of management fees agreed to by attlgaghirds of our independent directors. We nqrstivide 180-days’ prior notice of any
such termination. Our Manager will be paid a teraion fee equal to three times the sum of (a) #eeame annual base management fee and
(b) the average annual incentive compensation ddyeur Manager during the 24-month period immeadlyjgpreceding such termination,
calculated as of the end of the most recently ceteglfiscal quarter before the date of termination.

We may also terminate the managementaggat, without the payment of any termination fei¢h 30 days’ prior written notice from
our board of directors for cause, which is defiasd

. our Manager’s continued material breach of any isiom of the management agreement following a pleoio30 days after
written notice thereof (or 45 days after writtertio® of such breach if our Manager, under certatumstances, has taken steps
to cure such breach within 30 days of the writtetiae);

. our Manage's fraud, misappropriation of funds, or embezzlenagyatinst us

. our Manage's gross negligence of duties under the managerges¢ment

. the occurrence of certain events with respectadtmkruptcy or insolvency of our Manager, inclgdam order for relief in an
involuntary bankruptcy case or our Manager autlngior filing a voluntary bankruptcy petitio

. our Manager is convicted (including a plea of ndmtendere) of a felon'

. the dissolution of our Manager; a

. change of control of our Manager or Anne

We may not assign our rights or respdlisds under the management agreement withoupthee written consent of our Manager,
except in the case of an assignment to another REbther organization which is our successor, liictv case such organization shall be bc
by the terms of such assignment in the same maswe are bound under the management agreementl@ager may generally only ass
the management agreement with the written appmfvalmajority of our independent directors. Our ldger, however, may assign certain of
its duties under the management agreement to aity affiliates without the approval of our indepent directors if such assignment does not
require our approval under the Investment Advigersof 1940.

Our Manager may terminate the managemgmement if we become required to register ag@@stment company under the 1940 Act,
with such termination deemed to occur immediateliple such event, in which case we would not baired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may decline to renew the management agrédmeroviding us with 180-days’ written notica,which case we would not be
required to pay a termination fee. In
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addition, if we default in the performance of angterial term of the agreement and the default naes for a period of 30 days after written
notice to us, our Manager may terminate the manageagreement upon 60 days, written notice. linlamagement agreement is terminated
by the Manager upon our breach, we would be reduodgay our Manager the termination fee descriizale.

Management Fees and Incentive Compensation

We do not maintain an office or employgoanel. Instead we rely on the facilities and veses of our Manager to conduct our
operations. Expense reimbursements to our Managanade in cash on a monthly basis following the @heach month.

Base Management Fee

We pay our Manager a base managemeujuiagerly in arrears in an amount equal to 1.75%@apaum, calculated quarterly, of our
stockholders’ equity. For purposes of calculatimg base management fee, our stockholdEmsity means the sum of the net proceeds fron
issuances of our equity securities since incep@tincated on a pro rata daily basis for such issaa during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus our retained earnings at the esdaf quarter (without taking into account any ash equity compensation expense incurred
in current or prior periods), less any amount thatpay for repurchases of our common stock, arsldag unrealized gains, losses or other
items that do not affect realized net income (rdlgas of whether such items are included in otbergrehensive income or loss, or in net
income). This amount is adjusted to exclude onetwents pursuant to changes in GAAP, and certaircash charges after discussions
between our Manager and our independent directatspproved by a majority of our independent doextThe base management fee is
reduced, but not below zero, by our proportionagrs of any CDO base management fees FIDAC reciivamnection with the CDOs in
which we invest, based on the percentage of egquéthold in such CDOs. The base management feg/ébfmindependent of the performance
of our investment portfolio. Our Manager uses tl@peds from its management fee in part to pay emsgtion to its officers and employees
who, notwithstanding that certain of them alsoa@ueofficers, receive no cash compensation dirdotiyn us. If we invest in any collateralized
debt obligation or investment fund managed by oankger or any of its affiliates, then the annuaklimanagement fee payable by us to our
Manager is reduced by an amount equal to the basagement fee allocable to the equity supportimgroiestment in such collateralized debt
obligation or investment fund, except in cases wloaerr Manager or any of its affiliates does noeree a fee in connection with the
management of such collateralized debt obligatioimeestment fund.

Our Manager’s base management fee isileadal by our Manager within 30 days after the ehelach quarter and such calculations are
promptly delivered to us. We are obligated to gayltase management fee in cash within five busitegs after delivery to us of our
Manager’s written statement setting forth the cotafion of the base management fee for such quarter.

Incentive Compensation

In addition to the base management feeManager is entitled to receive quarterly incemttompensation in an amount equal to 20% of
the dollar amount by which Core Earnings, on dmglfour-quarter basis and before the incentive agament fee, exceeds the product of (1)
the weighted average of the issue price per sHaak af our public offerings multiplied by the wgited average number of shares of common
stock outstanding in such quarter and (2) 0.50% phe-fourth of the average of the one month LIB@ite for such quarter and the previous
three quarters. For the initial four quarters faflog the initial public offering, Core Earnings atieé LIBOR rate is calculated on the basis of
each of the previously completed quarters on anaized basis. Core Earnings and LIBOR rate forintiteal quarter are each calculated from
the settlement date of this offering on an annedlizasis. Core Earnings is a non-GAAP measuresadefined as GAAP net income (loss)
excluding non-cash equity compensation expenséyding any unrealized gains, losses or other itdrasdo not affect realized net income
(regardless of whether such items are includedhiarccomprehensive income or loss, or in net ingoifige amount is adjusted to exclude one-
time events pursuant to changes in GAAP and cenaincash charges after discussions between ouadésirand our independent directors
and approved by a majority of our independent dimsc The incentive management fee is reducedpdiLibelow zero, by our proportionate
share of any CDO incentive management fees FIDA€ives in connection with the CDOs in which we stydased on the percentage of
equity we hold in such CDOs.

Our ability to achieve returns in excebthe thresholds noted above in order for our Mj@ndo earn the incentive compensation
described in the preceding paragraph is depengemt the level and volatility of interest
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rates, our ability to react to changes in interas#s and to utilize successfully the operatingtsgries described herein, and other factors, many
of which are not within our control.

Our Manager computes the quarterly ingerdcompensation within 30 days after the end ehdescal quarter, and we pay the quarterly
incentive compensation with respect to each figoakter within five business days following theidety to us of our Manager’s written
statement setting forth the computation of the mtize fee for such quarter.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Because our Manager’s employees perfamntain legal, accounting, due diligence tasks ahdrcservices that outside professionals or
outside consultants otherwise would perform, ounddger is paid or reimbursed for the documentedafgsérforming such tasks, provided
that such costs and reimbursements are in amoumth \@re no greater than those which would be daytaloutside professionals or
consultants engaged to perform such services purspagreements negotiated on an arm’s-lengttsbasi

We also pay all operating expenses, extege specifically required to be borne by ounisiger under the management agreement. Out
Manager is responsible for all costs incident plrformance of its duties under the managemeaeagent, including compensation of our
Manager’s employees and other related expenseeXpenses required to be paid by us include, leuhar limited to:

0] expenses in connection with the issuance and ttéiosacosts incident to the acquisition, dispositamd financing of our investmen

(i) costs of legal, tax, accounting, consulting, auaditiadministrative and other similar services reeddor us by providers retained by our
Manager or, if provided by our Manager's employ@esmounts which are no greater than those whizhlavbe payable to outside
professionals or consultants engaged to perforrh sevices pursuant to agreements negotiated ame s-length basis

(i)  the compensation and expenses of our directorshencbst of liability insurance to indemnify ouretitors and officers

(iv)  costs associated with the establishment and maintenof any of our credit facilities or other inteness of ours (includir
commitment fees, accounting fees, legal fees, mipand other similar costs) or any of our secwgitiferings;

v) expenses connected with communications to holdesarosecurities or of our subsidiaries and otlreokikeeping and clerical wol
necessary in maintaining relations with holderswfh securities and in complying with the contirsiceporting and other requirements
of governmental bodies or agencies, including, edtHimitation, all costs of preparing and filingquired reports with the SEC, the
costs payable by us to any transfer agent andtragia connection with the listing and/or tradioigour stock on any exchange, the fees
payable by us to any such exchange in connectitimitsilisting, costs of preparing, printing andilimg our annual report to our
stockholders and proxy materials with respect torareting of our stockholder

(vi)  costs associated with any computer software oneg electronic equipment or purchased informatéahnology services from thil
party vendors that is used solely for

(vii) expenses incurred by managers, officers, emplogegsagents of our Manager for travel on our bedradf other out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by managers, officers, employees and agdrdur Manager in connection with the purchaisencing, refinancing, sale or
other disposition of an investment or establishnagat maintenance of any of our credit facilitied ather indebtedness or any of our
securities offerings

(viii) costs and expenses incurred with respect to marla@mation systems and publications, researchipatibns and materials, al
settlement, clearing and custodial fees and expe

(ix) compensation and expenses of our custodian ansfeéraagent, if any
(x)  the costs of maintaining compliance with all fedestate and local rules and regulations or angmotbgulatory agenc

(xi) all taxes and license fee
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(xii) all insurance costs incurred in connection withdperation of our business except for the costibatable to the insurance that «
Manager elects to carry for itself and its emplay:

(xiii) costs and expenses incurred in contracting witld fharties, including affiliates of our Managen; the servicing and special
servicing of our asset

(xiv) all other costs and expenses relating to our basiaad investment operations, including, withouithtion, the costs and expense
acquiring, owning, protecting, maintaining, devétgpand disposing of investments, including ap@daieporting, audit and legal
fees;

(xv) expenses relating to any office(s) or office faigs, including but not limited to disaster backepovery sites and facilities,

maintained for us or our investments separate fr@office or offices of our Manage



(xvi) expenses connected with the payments of interiesdethds or distributions in cash or any other fauathorized or caused to be m.
by the board of directors to or on account of hidds our securities or of our subsidiaries, inahgd without limitation, in
connection with any dividend reinvestment pl

(xvii) any judgment or settlement of pending or threatgmwedeedings (whether civil, criminal or otherwisgjninst us or any subsidiary,
against any trustee, director or officer of us oarmy subsidiary in his capacity as such for whighor any subsidiary is required to
indemnify such trustee, director or officer by ammurt or governmental agency; &

(xviii) all other expenses actually incurred by our Managsgch are reasonably necessary for the performbapaair Manager of its duties
and functions under the management agreer

In addition, we are required to pay pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitieffice furniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses of our Managd its affiliates required for our operatiofiBese expenses are allocated between
FIDAC and us based on the ratio of our proportibgross assets compared to all remaining grosssassmaged by FIDAC as calculated at
each quarter end. We and FIDAC will modify thisoalition methodology, subject to our board of doetapproval if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levezdgompared to FIDAC's other funds and account§)AE has waived its right to request
reimbursement from us of these expenses until Boehas it determines to rescind that waiver.

From November 21, 2007, the date sraroenced operations, through December 31, 200A/lanager earned base management
of approximately $1.2 million, no incentive compatisn fees, and expense reimbursements of appreedyri719 thousand For the three
months ended March 31, 2008, our Manager earnedirbanagement fees of approximately $2.2 million mmihcentive compensation fees.
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M ANAGEMENT
Our Directors and Executive Officers

Our board of directors consists of fivembers. Our board of directors has determinedttineé of our directors satisfy the listing
standards for independence of the New York StoathBrge, or NYSE.

The following sets forth certain inforriwat with respect to our directors and executivéceff:

Name Age Position Held with Us
Matthew Lambias: 42 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Christian J. Woschenk 47 Head of Investment
William B. Dyer 61 Head of Underwriting
A. Alexandra Denaha 38 Chief Financial Officer and Secretz
Paul Donlin* 46 Nonexecutive Chairman of the Board of Direct
Jeremy Diamon 45 Director
Mark Abrams* 60 Director
Paul A. Keenan' 42 Director

*Independent director

Biographical Information
Executive Officers
For biographical information on our exte officers, see “Our Manager and the Managemaneement—Officers of Our Manager.”
Directors

Pursuant to our charter, the board adadors is divided into three classes of directows: Class | Directors (Messrs. Donlin and Abra
will serve until our annual meeting of stockholder2011, our Class Il Directors (Messrs. Lambiasd Keenan) will serve until our annual
meeting of stockholders in 2009; and our Clas®itector (Mr. Diamond) will serve until our annuaketing of stockholders in 2010. At each
annual meeting of the stockholders, the successdhe class of directors whose term expires &t sueeting are elected to hold office for a
term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholdisl in the third year following the year of thelection and until their successors are duly
elected and qualify. Our bylaws provide that a mgjof the entire board of directors may, at aagular or special meeting called for that
purpose, increase or decrease the number of dise¢élowever, unless our bylaws are amended, thévauof directors may never be less than
the minimum number required by the MGCL nor momnti5. Set forth below are the names and certéomiration on each of our directors.

Class | Directors

Paul Donlinis one of our Class | Directors and our Nonexeeu@hairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Donliceatly left Citigroup
after a career that spanned 21 years. For thelpastars at Citigroup, Mr. Donlin was in the setization business, with his most recent
position being the Head of Global Securitizationhia Global Securitized Markets Business withingixncome. Earlier in his career at
Citicorp, Mr. Donlin managed the Structured Finaaod Advisory Unit of Citicorp’s Private Bank. MDonlin has a B.S. from Georgetown
University and M.B.A. from Harvard University.

Mark Abramsis one of our Class | Directors. Mr. Abrams hawvedras Chief Investment Officer of the Presiderititd Insurance
Company since November 2003 and as Executive \Miesident since 2005. He was Senior Vice PresidetieoPresidential Life Insurance
Company from 2001 to 2005. Before that, Mr. Abresessed as Vice President of the Presidential lrifatance Company since October 1¢
Mr. Abrams currently serves as a director of trmutance Company. Mr. Abrams has a B.A. from HoGaitege.
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Class Il Directors

Matthew Lambiases one of our Class Il Directors. For biographicdibrmation on Mr. Lambiase, see “Our Manager drel t
Management Agreement—Executive Officers of Our Mgmd

Paul A. Keenaris one of our Class Il Directors. Mr. Keenan hasrbeith Kelley, Drye and Warren LLP since 2002 @&nd partner and
the head of Real Estate Finance at the law firm.Kenan has a J.D. from Seton Hall University af@IA. from Rutgers, the State University
of New Jersey.

Class Ill Directors

Jeremy Diamonds our Class Il Director. For biographical infortitan on Mr. Diamond, see “Our Manager and the Mamagnt
Agreement—Executive Officers of Our Manager.”

Corporate Governance—Board of Directors and Commitees

Our business is managed by our Managejest to the supervision and oversight of our dazrdirectors, which has established
investment guidelines for our Manager to followitgxday-to-day management of our business. A nigjofiour board of directors is
“independent,” as determined by the requirementh®New York Stock Exchange and the regulatiorth@fSEC. In connection with these
independence determinations, our board of directonsidered all of the relationships between easdtibr, our Manager, and us, including
those relationships deemed immaterial, and in @4 the following relationship:

Mr. Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmantioé Board of Directors, has a direct economic egkein a separate account managed on a
discretionary basis by FIDAC. The separate accomartaged on a discretionary basis by FIDAC hasaheesnvestment objectives and sim
management fees as other FIDAC managed accounfsiatisland amounts to less than 1% of the sepacatnts and funds managed by
FIDAC.

In light of the ordinary course of busiesature of these transactions, the size of trestment account as compared to the funds
managed by FIDAC, and the nature of Mr. Donlin’eras an investor in the investment account, tleedof directors determined that these
relationships are not material and that Mr. Doigifindependent” within the meaning of the rulegttd NY SE.

As a result of this review, our boarddoEctors, based upon the fact that none of oureroployee directors have any material
relationships with us other than as directors avlddrs of our common stock, affirmatively deterndrieat three of our directors are
independent directors under NYSE rules. Our inddpendirectors are Mark Abrams, Paul Donlin andl RatKeenan. Jeremy Diamond and
Matthew Lambiase are not considered independemiusecthey are employees of our Manager.

Our directors keep informed about ourifiess at meetings of our board and its committadslaough supplemental reports and
communications. Our independent directors meetlaglgun executive sessions without the presenceunfcorporate officers.

Audit Committet

Our board of directors has establisheduwatit committee, which is composed of each ofiodependent directors, Messrs. Donlin,
Abrams and Keenan. Mr. Abrams chairs our audit caétamand serves as our audit committee finangipéd, as that term is defined by the
SEC. Each of the members of the audit committéfniancially literate” under the rules of the NYSEhe committee assists the board in
overseeing:

. our accounting and financial reporting proces

. the integrity and audits of our financial statense

. our compliance with legal and regulatory requiretag

. the qualifications and independence of our indepanhtkegistered public accounting fir

. the performance of our independent registered pagicounting firm and any internal auditors; i
. acting as ¢ Qualified Legal Compliance Commit” as defined in the applicable rules of the S

The audit committee is also responsibleehgaging our independent registered public attiogi firm, reviewing with the independent
registered public accounting firm the plans andiltsf the audit engagement, approving professisaaices provided by the independent
registered public accounting firm, reviewing the

100




independence of the independent registered pubtiouating firm, considering the range of audit aod-audit fees and reviewing the
adequacy of our internal accounting controls.

Our board of directors has determined a&liaof the directors serving on the audit comegtare independent members of the audit
committee under the current NYSE independence reapgints and SEC rules. The audit committee meetsetfuirements for independence
under, and the functioning of the audit committemplies with, current rules of the SEC and NYSE.

Compensation Committee

Our board of directors has establishedrapensation committee, which is composed of e&oluindependent directors, Messrs.
Donlin, Abrams and Keenan. Mr. Keenan chairs themensation committee, whose principal functionstare

. evaluate the performance of our office

. evaluate the performance of our Manay

. review the compensation and fees payable to ouagl@mnunder our management agreen

. recommend to the board of directors the compensétioour independent directors; a

. a](cjf_rpinister the issuance of any securities undeequity incentive plan to our employees or the @ygés of our Manager or its
affiliates.

Our board of directors has determined &liaf the directors serving on the compensatiommittee are independent members of the
compensation committee under the current NYSE ieddpnce requirements and SEC rules. The compemgatiomittee meets the
requirements for independence under, and the fumioty of the committee complies with, current rubéshe NYSE.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commi

Our board of directors has establishadrainating and corporate governance committee, wisicomposed of each of our independent
directors, Messrs. Donlin, Abrams and Keenan. Mmlih chairs the committee, which is responsiblesteeking, considering and
recommending to the full board of directors quatificandidates for election as directors and recarnding a slate of nominees for election as
directors at the annual meeting of stockholderalsib periodically prepares and submits to the déaradoption the nominating and corporate
governance committee’s selection criteria for dmeaominees. It reviews and makes recommendationmaatters involving general operation
of the board and our corporate governance, andadlgmecommends to the board nominees for each dteerof the board. In addition, the
nominating and corporate governance committee diyrfaailitates the assessment of the board ofaiies’ performance as a whole and of the
individual directors and reports thereon to therboa

Our board of directors has determined &liaf the directors serving on the nominatingl @erporate governance committee are
independent members of the nominating and corpg@ternance committee under the current NYSE inaldgece requirements and SEC
rules. The nominating and corporate governance dtigermeets the requirements for independence uaddrthe functioning of the
committee complies with, current rules of the NYSE.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has establishedde of business conduct and ethics that appliesrtofficers, directors and employees and to
our Manager’s officers, directors and employeesmngwech individuals are acting for or on our beh&thong other matters, our code of
business conduct and ethics is designed to detargeping and to promote:

. honest and ethical conduct, including the ethiealdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of inteflestween personal al
professional relationship

. full, fair, accurate, timely and understandableltisure in our SEC reports and other public comations;

. compliance with applicable governmental laws, raled regulations
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. prompt internal reporting of violations of the cadeappropriate persons identified in the code;

. accountability for adherence to the co

Any waiver of the code of business condund ethics for our executive officers or direstoray be made only by our board of directors
or one of our board committees and will be prompiclosed as required by law or stock exchangelatgns.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Director Compensation

We compensate only those directors weadratependent under the NYSE listing standards. aynber of our board of directors who is
also an employee of our Manager is referred tmasxaluded director. Each excluded director doé¢sexeive additional compensation for
serving on our board of directors. Each independeattor receives an annual fee for their servafe®45,000. The chair of our audit
committee receives an additional annual fee of lMfor his service in such capacity. Each indepandirector receives a fee of $500 for
attendance at every in-person meeting of the bofditectors or committee of the board of directansl a fee of $250 for attendance at every
telephonic meeting of the board of directors or notree of the board of directors. Fees to our neelueled directors are paid in cash or shares
of our common stock at the election of each dinediée also reimburse our directors for their traasgbenses incurred in connection with their
attendance at full board and committee meetings.

Our non-excluded directors are eligiloedceive restricted common stock, option and aherk-based awards under our equity
incentive plan.

Director Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compemsataid by us to our non-employee directors forfibeal year ended December 31, 2007.

Non-Equity Change in
Fees Incentive Pension Value
Earned or Plan and Deferred All Other
Paid in Stock Option Compen- Compensation Compen-
Name Cash (1) Awards Awards sation Earnings sation Total

Mark Abrams $ 7,08 — — — — — $ 7,08
Paul Donlin $ 5,79¢ — — — — — $ 5,79¢
Paul A. Keenal $ 5,79¢ — — — — — $ 5,79¢

1) Reflects fees we paid each independent directan free date of their appointment as director on Maer 15, 2007 to December 31, 20
Executive Compensation

We have not paid, and we do not intengay, any annual cash compensation to our execotiieers for their services as executive
officers. Our executive officers are compensatedidnyManager. Our Manager has informed us thaglsethe services performed by these
executive officers or employees in their capacitiesuch are not performed exclusively for usaftrot segregate and identify that portion of
the compensation awarded to, earned by, or paditexecutive officers by our Manager that rela@egly to their services to us.

Equity Incentive Plan

We have adopted an equity incentive pdaprovide incentives to our independent directersployees of our Manager and its affiliates,
including Annaly, and other service providers imsiate their efforts toward our continued succéssy-term growth and profitability and to
attract, reward and retain personnel. The equitgntive plan is administered by the compensationmittee of our board of directors. Unless
terminated earlier, our equity incentive plan weitminate in 2017, but will continue to govern upiegd awards.

Our equity incentive plan provides foagts of restricted common stock and other equisetiawards up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stotk fully diluted basis and including shares tsblel to Annaly concurrently with this
offering and shares to be sold pursuant to theceseepf

102




the underwriters’ overallotment option) at the tiofehe award, subject to a ceiling of 40,000,008rss available for issuance under the plan.
Upon completion of this offering, the number ofued and outstanding shares of our common stockneilease and, therefore, the number of
shares available for issuance under our equityniinge plan will increase by 8% of the number ofralseof common stock issued in this
offering, including shares sold pursuant to thereise of the underwriters’ overallotment option,to ceiling of 40,000,000 shares. As of
March 31, 2008 we have granted 1,301,000 sharesstifcted stock under our equity incentive plan.

Our equity incentive plan permits thergiiag of options to purchase shares of common staekded to qualify as incentive stock
options under the Internal Revenue Code, and siptikns that do not qualify as incentive stock opsi. The exercise price of each stock
option may not be less than 100% of the fair maviebie of our shares of common stock on the datgarit. The compensation committee
determines the terms of each option, including wéeeh option may be exercised and the period o, tifrany, after retirement, death,
disability or termination of employment during whioptions may be exercised. Options become vestge@ercisable in installments and the
exercisability of options may be accelerated bydhmpensation committee.

Our equity incentive plan also permits ¢hianting of shares of our common stock in thenfof restricted common stock. A restricted
common stock award is an award of shares of constamk that may be subject to forfeiture (vestimgtrictions on transferability and such
other restrictions, if any, as the compensationrodtee may impose at the date of grant. The shamsvest and the restrictions may lapse
separately or in combination at such times, undeh €ircumstances, including, without limitationsecified period of employment or the
satisfaction of pre-established criteria, in sut$tallments or otherwise, as our compensation ctteenmay determine.

Unrestricted shares of common stock, Whie shares of common stock awarded at no cdisé tparticipant or for a purchase price
determined by the compensation committee, maykssgsued under our equity incentive plan. The areation committee may also grant
shares of our common stock, stock appreciatiortgjgierformance awards, dividend equivalent rigdutsl other stock and non-stock-based
awards under the incentive plan. These awards maybject to such conditions and restrictions astimpensation committee may determr
including, but not limited to, the achievement eftain performance goals or continued employmetit wé through a specific period. Each
award under the plan may not be exercisable maire 10 years after the date of grant.

Our board of directors may at any timeeadh alter or discontinue the incentive plan, arnrot, without a participant’s consent, take any
action that would diminish any of the rights of Bymarticipant under any award granted under the. flaproval of the stockholders, however,
is required for any amendment that would, othen thaough adjustment as provided in the incentiea:p

. increase the total number of shares of our comrtawk seserved for issuance under the incentive;|
. change the class of eligible participants undeiinbentive plan

. reprice any option or stock appreciation right

. otherwise require such approv

Our equity incentive plan provides tha tompensation committee of our board of diredtassthe discretion to provide that all or any
outstanding options and stock appreciation righlisb@come fully exercisable, all or any outstargistock awards will become vested and
transferable and all or any outstanding performaeges and incentive awards will be earned, ahgroutstanding awards may be cancelled
in exchange for a payment of cash or all or angtantling awards may be substituted for awardsahiasubstantially preserve the otherwise
applicable terms of any affected awards previogsiynted under the equity incentive plan if thera ehange in control of us.

Under our equity incentive plan, a chaimgeontrol is defined as the occurrence of antheffollowing events: (i) the acquisition of mc
than 50% of our voting shares by any person;H{#&)gale or disposition of all or substantiallyaflbur assets; (iii) a merger, consolidation or
statutory share exchange where our stockholdersfiately prior to such event hold less than 50%hefvoting power of the surviving or
resulting entity; (iv) during any two year periodralirectors, including subsequent directors recemshed or approved by our directors, at the
beginning of such period cease to constitute a mtgjof our board of directors; (v) stockholder apyal of
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our liquidation or dissolution; or (vi) the adoptiby our board of directors of a resolution to ¢fiect that, in its judgment, as a consequence of
any transaction or event, a change in control Fastesely occurred, except, in the case of claugethrough (vi), if the change of control

results from a transaction between us and our Mamagan affiliate of our Manager or from a terntioa of the management agreement for
cause.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have adopted a long term stock ingerlan, or Incentive Plan, to provide incentivestir independent directors, employees of our
Manager and its affiliates to stimulate their ef§diowards our continued success, long-term granthprofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. Tibertive Plan authorizes the compensation commoftéige board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as defineder Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-fiedlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Thentive Plan authorizes the granting of optionstbepawards for an aggregate of the greater
of 8% of the outstanding shares of our common stocB,016,445 shares (excluding shares from tifésing), up to a ceiling of 40,000,000
shares. For a description of our Incentive Plae,ete 8 to the Financial Statements.

The following table provides informatiea of December 31, 2007 concerning shares of aunmmm stock authorized for issuance under
our existing Incentive Plan.

Number of Securities to Weighted Average Number of Securities
be Issued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Available for Future
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Issuance Under Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockholdg — — 3,016,44!
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by StockésE(® — — —
Total — — 3,016,44!
1) The amount does not give effect to the 1,301,0@@eshof restricted common stock issued subsegadtember 31, 2007 to our Manager's employeesaodr independent

directors under our equity incentive plan or insesabecause of this offering. Each of our indepetindieectors was granted 3,000 shares of our ogstlicommon stock which fully
vested on January 2, 2008. The restricted comnumk stpproved as grants to our officers and othgrleyees of our Manager or its affiliates will véstqual installments on the
first business day of each fiscal quarter overriodeof 10 years beginning on January 2, 2008)lanastanding unvested shares will fully vest ba teath of the individue

2) We do not have any equity plans that have not bpenoved by our stockholde
Restricted Common Stock Awards

We approved making grants on Januanp@8af 1,301,000 shares of restricted common gtmckir executive officers and other
employees of our Manager or its affilaites, andiadependent director. Each independent directargvanted 3,000 shares of our restricted
common stock which fully vested on January 2, 200t restricted common stock granted to our exeeufficers and other employees of our
Manager or its affiliates vest in equal installngeon the first business day of each fiscal quanter a period of 10 years beginning on January
2, 2008. The restricted common stock granted teemacutive officers and other employees of our M@nar its affiliates that remain
outstanding and are unvested fully vest on thehdefathe individual. The 1,301,000 shares of ostrieted common stock granted to our
executive officers and other employees of our Manay its affiliates and to our independent direstepresent approximately % of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stock fully diluted basis after giving effect to thieares issued in this offering and including
shares to be sold to Annaly concurrently with tffering but excluding any shares to be sold purst@the exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option) based on the assumption thahares of our common stock will be issuedhis offering. We will not make distributio
on shares of restricted stock which have not vested
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Indemnification and Limitation on Liability; Insura nce

Maryland law permits a Maryland corpavatio include in its charter a provision limitirftetliability of its directors and officers to the
corporation and its stockholders for money damagpasept for liability resulting from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services;

. active and deliberate dishonesty established liyahjftidgment and which is material to the causaation.

Our charter contains such a provisionchlgliminates directors’ and officers’ liability the maximum extent permitted by Maryland
law.

Our charter also authorizes our comp#mihe maximum extent permitted by Maryland lawoltigate our company to indemnify any
present or former director or officer or any indiwal who, while a director or officer of our comgaand at the request of our company, serves
or has served another corporation, real estatesiment trust, partnership, joint venture, trustpkayee benefit plan or other enterprise as a
director, officer, partner or trustee, from andiagtany claim or liability to which that individuenay become subject or which that individual
may incur because of his or her service in any sagiacity and to pay or reimburse his or her realsienexpenses in advance of final
disposition of a proceeding.

Our bylaws obligate us, to the maximurteekpermitted by Maryland law, to indemnify anggent or former director or officer or any
individual who, while a director or officer of oubmpany and at the request of our company, senfeasoserved another corporation, real
estate investment trust, partnership, joint ventutst, employee benefit plan or other enterpaisa director, officer, partner or trustee and
is made, or threatened to be made, a party tortheepding because of his or her service in thaa@apfrom and against any claim or liability
to which that individual may become subject or vhhtieat individual may incur because of his or rewiEe in any such capacity and to pay or
reimburse his or her reasonable expenses in adwdffical disposition of a proceeding.

Maryland law requires a corporation (gslés charter provides otherwise, which our chattes not) to indemnify a director or officer
who has been successful, on the merits or otherimidke defense of any proceeding to which heheris made, or threatened to be made, a
party because of his or her service in such capadiryland law permits a corporation to indemrit/present and former directors and
officers, among others, against judgments, pemsalfiiees, settlements and reasonable expensedhadatearred by them in connection with &
proceeding to which they may be made, or threatémee made, a party because of their servicedsetlor other capacities unless it is
established that:

. the act or omission of the director or officer waaterial to the matter giving rise to the procegdind (i) was committed in bad
faith or (ii) was the result of active and delilterdishonesty

. the director or officer actually received an impgopersonal benefit in money, property or servioe

. in the case of any criminal proceeding, the dineotoofficer had reasonable cause to believe tiefatt or omission was
unlawful.

A court may order indemnification if ietérmines that the director or officer is fairlydareasonably entitled to indemnification, even
though the director or officer did not meet thesgrébed standard of conduct or was adjudged liablthe basis that personal benefit was
improperly received.

Under Maryland law, however, a Marylamdporation may not indemnify for an adverse judghiera suit by or in the right of the
corporation or for a judgment of liability on thadis that personal benefit was improperly receivetkss in either case a court orders
indemnification and then only for expenses. In &ddj Maryland law permits a corporation to advarezsonable expenses to a director or
officer upon the corporation’s receipt of:

. a written affirmation by the director or officer bis or her good faith belief that he or she hastirestandard of conduct
necessary for indemnification by the corporatiarg

. a written undertaking by him or her or on his or behalf to repay the amount paid or reimbursethkycorporation if it is
ultimately determined that the standard of condvas not met
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We have obtained, a policy of insuranedar which our directors and officers are insusedbject to the limits of the policy, against
certain losses arising from claims made againgi directors and officers because of any acts ossioms covered under such policy in their
respective capacities as directors or officerduitiog certain liabilities under the Securities Act
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

Immediately prior to the completion ofstioffering, there will be shares of commstock outstanding and stockholders of
record. The following table sets forth certain imh@tion, prior to and after this offering, regawglithe ownership of each class of capital stock

by:

. each of our director:

. each of our executive officer

. each holder of 5% or more of each class of ourtabgiock; anc
. all of our directors and officers as a gro

In accordance with SEC rules, each listed pe's beneficial ownership include
. all shares the investor actually owns beneficialpf record;

. all shares over which the investor has or sharéagor dispositive control (such as in the capaa& a general partner of an
investment fund); an

. all shares the investor has the right to acquithiwib0 days (such as shares of restricted comrnuomk shat are currently vest
or which are scheduled to vest within 60 da

Unless otherwise indicated, all sharesoavned directly and the indicated person has\smiag and investment power. Except as
indicated in the footnotes to the table below,libsiness address of the stockholders listed beddiei address of our principal executive off
1211 Avenue of the Americas, Suite 2902, New Ydhw York 10036.

Percentage of Common Stock Outstandin

Immediately Prior to This Immediately After This
Offering Offering(1)(2)
Name Shares Ownec Percentage Shares Ownec Percentage

Matthew Lambiase (= 90,00( * 90,00( *
Christian J. Woschenko (. 90,00( * 90,00( *
William B. Dyer (5) 70,00( * 70,00( *
A. Alexandra Denahan (t 70,00( * 70,00( *
Paul Donlin (7) 3,324 * 3,324 *
Jeremy Diamond (& 70,00( * 70,00( *
Mark Abrams (9 3,00(¢ * 3,00(¢ *
Paul A. Keenan (1C 3,324 * 3,324 *

All Directors and Officers as a Grol 399,64 1.1% 399,64 %
Annaly Capital Management, Inc.(1 3,621,58 9.6% %
LMM LLC; Legg Mason Opportunity Trust; Legg Masomital

Management, Inc.; and Legg Mason Special Investrhermt, Inc.

(22) 6,262,57! 16.€%
Marc C. Cohodes(1: 3,618,05 9.6%
FMR LLC(14) 3,589,26! 9.5%
ValueAct Capital Master Fund Ill, L.P.(1 3,109,97. 8.2%
Capital Research Global Investors( 2,239,80! 5.%%
Reed Conner & Birdwell, LLC(17 1,945,73 5.2%

* Less than 1 percer
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(1) Includes shares of restricted common stock appragegtants to our independent directors and emefgeéour Manager or i
affiliates.

(2) Assumesissuance of shares offered herebyhenshie of shares to Annaly in a concurrenapei placement. Does not include
shares of common stock reserved for issuance upenaise of the underwrite’ option.

(3) Mr. Lambiase, our Chief Executive Officer, Presidand one of our directors, is the beneficial ownfe®0,000 shares of restricted



common stock which vest in equal installments enfitst business day of each fiscal quarter ovyegréod of 10 years beginning on
January 2, 2008. Includes 6,750 shares of resdrzdenmon stock under our equity incentive plan thidtvest within 60 days after Jul
3, 2008 and 83,250 shares which vest more tharag® after June 3, 200

(4)  Mr. Woschenko, our Head of Investments, is the belaéowner of 90,000 shares of restricted commtwtk which vests in equal
installments on the first business day of eaclafigoarter over a period of 10 years beginningamudry 2, 2008. Includes 6,750 shares
of restricted common stock under our equity inaenplan that will vest within 60 days after Jun@308 and 83,250 shares which vest
more than 60 days after June 3, 2(

(5)  Mr. Dyer, our Head of Underwriting, is the benedicdwner of 70,000 shares of restricted commonksiddch vests in equs
installments on the first business day of eaclafigoarter over a period of 10 years beginningamudry 2, 2008. Includes 5,250 shares
of restricted common stock under our equity inaenplan that will vest within 60 days after Jun2808 and 67,750 shares which vest
more than 60 days after June 3, 2(

(6) Ms. Denahan, our Chief Financial Officer and Sexsgtis the beneficial owner of 70,000 shares sfrieted common stock which ve:
in equal installments on the first business dagauth fiscal quarter over a period of 10 years beggon January 2, 2008. Includes
5,250 shares of restricted common stock under quityeincentive plan that will vest within 60 dagfter June 3, 2008 and 67,750
shares which vest more than 60 days after Juneds.

(7)  Mr. Donlin is one of our director:

(8) Mr. Diamond, one of our directors, is the benefiolner of 70,000 shares of restricted common swicich vests in equal installmer
on the first business day of each fiscal quarter aperiod of 10 years beginning on January 282b@ludes 5,250 shares of restricted
common stock under our equity incentive plan thifitwest within 60 days after June 3, 2008 and 6@,Zhares which vest more than
days after June 3, 20C

(9)  Mr. Abrams is one of our directol
(10) Mr. Keenan is one of our directol
(11) Annaly owns our Manager. The business address$ifostockholder is 1211 Avenue of the Americas, Newk, NY 10036.

(12) The business address for these stockholders ititjp0 Street, Baltimore, MD 21202. Based solelyimiormation contained in a
Schedule 13G filed jointly by LMM LLC, Legg MasorpPortunity Trust, Legg Mason Capital Managemert, and Legg Mason
Special Investment Trust, Inc. on December 10, 200M LLC has shared voting and dispositive poween3,300,000 shares of
common stock, or 8.93%. Legg Mason Opportunity Thas shared voting and dispositive power over@BID shares of common
stock, or 8.93%. Legg Mason Capital Management,dhared voting and dispositive power over 2,962 &¥ares of common stock, or
8.02%. Legg Mason Special Investment Trust, Inaresth voting and dispositive power over 2,400,000 &h of common stock, or
6.49%. Legg Mason Opportunity Trust has been gdhateaiver to own up to 159

(13) The business address for this stockholder is cfgp€oRiver Management, L.P., 12 Linden Place, S#€door, Red Bank, NJ 0770
Based solely on information contained in a Sched@I8 filed by Marc C. Cohodes on February 12, 200® shares shown as
beneficially owned by Marc C. Cohodes reflect sharecommon stock held by Copper River Partnei,,la New York limited
partnership (“Copper River”), and the other investinfunds and accounts over which Marc C. Cohodéshnvestment control and
voting control with respect to their investmentsligctively the “Funds”). Mr. Cohodes by virtue loik position as (i) a managing
partner of Copper River, and (ii) the managing mends Copper River Management, L.L.C., the investtraglvisor to the Funds,
possesses the sole power to vote and the sole powleect the disposition of all 3,618,057 of thehares

(14) The business address for this stockholder is 82 Bshire Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02109. Badely on information contained
in a Schedule 13G dated February 14, 2008 fileBMR LLC. The
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(15)

(16)

7)

Schedule 13G reports that FMR LLC has sole disivesjtower over 3,589,266 shares and sole votingep@wer 253,900 shares, and
that Edward C. Johnson Il has sole dispositive grogwver 3,589,266 share

The business address for this stockholder is 33@Sdope Street, Los Angeles, CA 90071. Basedolelinformation contained in a
Schedule 13G filed by Capital Research Global Itoreson February 12, 2008. Capital Research Gloivaistors has sole dispositive
power and voting power over 2,239,800 shares ofrcomstock as a result of it acting as investmenisad to various investment
companies registered under Section 8 of the Invasti@ompany Act of 1941

The business address for this stockholder is clodAxt Capital, 435 Pacific Avenue, Fourth FlooanS-rancisco, CA 94133. Bas
solely on information contained in a Schedule 1B&lfby ValueAct Capital Master Fund Ill, L.P., Partners lll, LLC, ValueAct
Capital Management, L.P., ValueAct Capital Managetmel C, ValueAct Holdings, L.P., and ValueAct Haids GP, LLC on April 24
2008 as amended on May 14, 20

The business address for this stockholder is 18Hhta Monica Boulevard, Suite 1700, Los Angeles, 90825. Based solely on
information contained in a Schedule 13D filed bye&€onner & Birdwell, LLC on April 2, 200
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agreenith FIDAC, our Manager, pursuant to which ibpides the day-to-day management of
our operations. The management agreement requirddanager to manage our business affairs in camifgwith the policies and the
investment guidelines that are approved and madtby our board of directors. See “Our ManagertardMlanagement Agreement—
Management Agreement.”

Our chief executive officer and presidetiief financial officer, head of underwritinge&rsurer, controller, secretary, and head of
investments also serve as employees of our ManAgex.result, the management agreement betweemdusuet Manager negotiated between
related parties, and the terms, including fees Iplayanay not be as favorable to us as if it hachbregotiated with an unaffiliated third party.
See “Business—Conflicts of Interest “ and “Risk teas—Risks Associated with Our Management and Reslship with Our Manager—There
are conflicts of interest in our relationship withr Manager which could result in decisions thatrast in your best interests.”

Restricted Common Stock Awards

Our equity incentive plan provides foagts of restricted common stock and other equisetiawards up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stotk fully diluted basis and including shares tsblel to Annaly concurrently with this
offering and shares to be sold pursuant to theceseenf the underwriters’ overallotment option}ta time of the award, subject to a ceiling of
40,000,000 shares available for issuance undepléime Each independent director was granted 3,88€es of our restricted common stock
which fully vested on January 2, 2008. In additionr executive officers and other employees of\anager or its affiliates were granted
shares of our restricted common stock which, a®apyand together with the shares approved asgramur independent directors,
represented an aggregate of 1,301,000 shares ebounon stock. The restricted common stock grattexir executive officers and other
employees of our Manager or its affiliates vestsdnal installments on the first business day ohdecal quarter over a period of 10 years
beginning on January 2, 2008. The restricted comstack granted to our executive officers and otmeployees of our Manager or its
affiliates that remain outstanding and are unvesti#idully vest on the death of the individual. @4,301,000 shares of our restricted common
stock approved as grants to our executive offiaecsother employees of our Manager or its affiiadad to our independent directors repre
approximately % of the issued and outstandirages of our common stock (on a fully diluted basisr giving effect to the shares issued in
this offering and including shares to be sold tmaly concurrently with this offering but excludiagy shares to be sold pursuant to the
exercise of the underwriters’ overallotment optjdrgsed on the assumption that  shares of sumom stock will be issued in this offering.
We do not make distributions on shares of resttisteck which have not vested.

Purchases of Common Stock by Affiliates

Concurrent with this offering, we willls® Annaly  shares of common stock in a prévaffering at the same price per share as the
price per share of this public offering. Concurresith our initial public offering, in a private affing we sold Annaly approximately 3.6 milli
shares of our common stock at $15.00 per sharagigregate proceeds of approximately $54.3 milligmon completion of this offering,
Annaly will own approximately % of our outstang common stock (which percentage excludes shares sold pursuant to the exercise of
the underwriters’ overallotment option and sharfesup restricted common stock granted to our exeeudfficers and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates). We plan to invest tle proceeds of this offering and the concurrerg sékhares to Annaly in accordance with our
investment objectives and the strategies desciibtds prospectus.

Financings by Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBSurepase agreement with Annaly. This agreement getaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agrasmEnof March 31, 2008, we did not have any @umding obligations under the
agreement. We have, from time to time, receivedrfaing from Annaly under this facility. As of Ma,32008, we had $50 million outstand
under the repurchase agreement with a weightecdgedrorrowing rate of 3.96%.

In March 2008, we entered into a recdisisales agreement with Annaly. This agreementighed for the sale of approximately $127
million of receivables by Chimera to Annaly of theceeds that Chimera was due
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to receive under a mortgage loan purchase ancggedement with a third party. Annaly paid Chimedistounted amount of such receivables
due from the third party equal to less than oneg@rof such receivables due from the third partgxchange for Chimera receiving the
purchase price under the receivables sales agré@miemrmediately available funds from Annaly. Thgr@ement contained representations,
warranties and covenants by both parties. As ofth&1, 2008, each party had performed their oudétgnobligations under the agreement,
third party purchaser under the mortgage loan mseland sale agreement had paid the purchasaipdee the mortgage loan purchase and
sale agreement, and Chimera had remitted such @mtmAnnaly pursuant to the receivables saleseageat.

Other Relationships

Matthew J. Lambiase, our President ani@fxecutive Officer, one of our directors and Ereecutive Vice President, Structured
Products for Annaly and FIDAC, is the son of oné\ahaly’s directors, John A. Lambiase. A. AlexanB@nahan, our Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary and the Controller of Annaly and FID# the sister of Wellington J. Denahan-Nortig Vice Chairman of Annaly and Chief
Investment Officer and Chief Operating Officer afifaly and FIDAC.

Paul Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmarthef Board of Directors, has a direct economicreggein a separate account managed on a
discretionary basis by FIDAC. See “Management —pOmate Governance—Board of Directors and Committabsve for a description of t
transactions involving FIDAC and this separate aoto

Related Person Transaction Policies

Our code of business conduct and etleigsires all of our personnel to be scrupulous widiag a conflict of interest with regard to our
interests. The code prohibits us from entering anbsiness relationship with an immediate famignmber or with a company that the
employee or immediate family member has a subsiidiriancial interest unless such relationshipissldsed to and approved in advance by
our board of directors.

Each of our directors and executive efficis required to complete an annual disclosuestipnnaire and report all transactions with us
in which they and their immediate family memberd bawill have a direct or indirect material intstevith respect to us. We review these
guestionnaires and, if we determine it necessasguds any reported transactions with the entiegdof directors. We do not, however, ha\
formal written policy for approval or ratificatiosf such transactions, and all such transactions\ekiated on a case-by-case basis. If we
believe a transaction is significant to us andesjsarticular conflict of interest issues, we wiicuss it with our legal counsel, and if necess¢
we will form an independent board committee whiels the right to engage its own legal and finarmiainsel to evaluate and approve the
transaction.

In addition, we will not invest in anyltzderalized debt obligation or security structutednanaged by our Manager or any of its
affiliates unless the investment is approved inaabe by a majority of our independent directors.

Lack of Separate Representation

Kirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston Gates EILLP is counsel to us, our Manager and Annalyoinnection with this offering and may in the
future act as counsel to us, our Manager and Anfidlgre is a possibility that in the future theeneists of various parties may become adverse.
If such a dispute were to arise between us, ourdgenor Annaly, separate counsel for such mattérbevretained as and when appropriate
the event of a dispute or conflict between us, FIDAr Annaly, Kirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston Gatellis LLP will not represent any of the
parties in any such dispute or conflict.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary description of eapital stock does not purport to be complete anslibject to and qualified in its entirety by
reference to the MGCL and our charter and our bydaeopies of which will be available before thesalg of this offering from us upon
request. See “Where You Can Find More Information.”

General

Our charter provides that we may issuéoup00,000,000 shares of common stock having agdae of $0.01 per share and up to
50,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a plaevof $0.01 per share. Upon completion of thisrafg, = shares of common stock will be
issued and outstanding and no shares of prefetwell will be issued and outstanding. Our boardigfadors, with the approval of a majority of
the entire board and without any action on the phour stockholders, may amend our charter franetio time to increase or decrease the
aggregate number of shares of stock or the nunftarames of stock of any class or series that we hathority to issue. Under Maryland law,
our stockholders generally are not personally &idbl our debts and obligations solely as a refulteir status as stockholders.

Common Stock

All shares of our common stock have egigits as to earnings, assets, dividends andgyatinl, when they are issued, will be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assdle. Distributions may be paid to the holdersusfcommon stock if, as and when
authorized by our board of directors and declageddiout of funds legally available therefor. Slsaw€our common stock have no preemptive,
appraisal, preferential exchange, conversion cgmgation rights and are freely transferable, exedpre their transfer is restricted by federal
and state securities laws, by contract or by te&iotions in our charter. In the event of our ldption, dissolution or winding up, each share of
our common stock would be entitled to share ratabbll of our assets that are legally availabledistribution after payment of or adequate
provision for all of our known debts and other lidies and subject to any preferential rights ofders of our preferred stock, if any preferred
stock is outstanding at such time. Subject to darter restrictions on the transfer and ownershipuo stock and except as may otherwise be
specified in the terms of any class or series afrmon stock, each share of our common stock enthiesolder to one vote on all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders, including ¢lextion of directors. Except as provided with extgo any other class or series of stock, the
holders of our common stock will possess exclusiting power. There is no cumulative voting in tlection of directors, which means that
holders of a majority of the outstanding sharesasimon stock can elect all of our directors, anldérs of less than a majority of such shares
will be unable to elect any director.

Power to Reclassify Shares of Our Stock

Our charter authorizes our board of doesto classify and reclassify any unissued shafrstock into other classes or series of stock,
including preferred stock. Before issuance of shafeeach class or series, the board of direcsorsquired by Maryland law and by our charter
to set, subject to our charter restrictions ontthesfer and ownership of our stock, the termdepeaces, conversion or other rights, voting
powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividend®ther distributions, qualifications and termsonditions of redemption for each class or
series. Thus, the board of directors could autledtiz issuance of shares of common stock or pesfetock with terms and conditions which
could have the effect of delaying, deferring orvergting a transaction or a change in control thghtrinvolve a premium price for holders of
our common stock or otherwise be in their bestré@ss. No shares of our preferred stock are prgsentstanding and we have no present
to issue any preferred stock.

Power to Issue Additional Shares of Common Stock ahPreferred Stock

We believe that the power of our boardioéctors to amend the charter without stockhosggaroval to increase the total number of
authorized shares of our stock or any class oesefiour stock, to issue additional authorizedumissued shares of our common stock or
preferred stock and to classify or reclassify wmskshares of our common stock or preferred stodklzereafter to cause us to issue such
classified or reclassified shares of stock willpde us with increased flexibility in structuringgsible future financings and acquisitions an
meeting other needs which might arise. The additiolasses or series, as well as our common stgtiihe available for issuance without
further action by our stockholders, unless stoatt@ohction is required by applicable law or thesubf any stock exchange or automated
guotation system on which our securities may ledisr traded. Although our board of directors hasntention at the present time of doing
S0, it could authorize us to
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issue a class or series that could, depending tipoterms of such class or series, delay, defprearent a transaction or a change in control of
us that might involve a premium price for holdef®or common stock or otherwise be in their betriests.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

To qualify as a REIT under the InternavBnue Code for each taxable year beginning akeeBber 31, 2007, our shares of capital
stock must be beneficially owned by 100 or morespes during at least 335 days of a taxable yea? shonths or during a proportionate part
of a shorter taxable year. Also, beginning aftecé&eber 31, 2007, no more than 50% of the valuaipbatstanding shares of capital stock
may be owned, directly or constructively, by fivefewer individuals (as defined in the Internal Beue Code to include certain entities) du
the second half of any calendar year.

Our charter, subject to certain exce@i@ontains restrictions on the number of sharesiptapital stock that a person may own. Our
charter provides that (subject to certain exceptibescribed below) no person may own, or be deémedn by the attribution provisions of
the Internal Revenue Code, more than 9.8% in vatue number of shares, whichever is more restagtof any class or series of our capital
stock.

Our charter also prohibits any persomfi© beneficially or constructively owning sham@sour capital stock that would result in our
being “closely held” under Section 856(h) of theelnal Revenue Code or otherwise cause us toofajlialify as a REIT and (i) transferring
shares of our capital stock if such transfer waekllt in our capital stock being owned by fewemtti 00 persons. Any person who acquires or
attempts or intends to acquire beneficial or cartsive ownership of shares of our capital stock wi#l or may violate any of the foregoing
restrictions on transferability and ownership, drows the intended transferee of shares of ouksttnich are transferred to the trust (as
described below), will be required to give notioamediately to us and provide us with such othesrimfition as we may request to determine
the effect of such transfer on our status as a RHEH€ foregoing restrictions on transferability avanership will not apply if our board of
directors determines that it is no longer in owstlieterests to attempt to qualify, or to continogualify, as a REIT.

Our board of directors, in its sole dé&imn, may exempt a person from the foregoing it&ins. The person seeking an exemption must
provide to our board of directors such represemtaticovenants and undertakings as our board eftdiis may deem appropriate to conclude
that granting the exemption will not cause us &elour status as a REIT. Our board of directors ate&y require a ruling from the Internal
Revenue Service or an opinion of counsel to detegror ensure our status as a REIT.

Any attempted transfer of our securitidsch, if effective, would result in a violation tfe foregoing restrictions will cause the number
of securities causing the violation (rounded toribarest whole share) to be automatically transfielo a trust for the exclusive benefit of one
or more charitable beneficiaries, and the propasedsferee will not acquire any rights in such sities. The automatic transfer will be deen
to be effective as of the close of business orbtlgness day (as defined in our charter) beforel#he of the transfer. If, for any reason, the
transfer to the trust is ineffective, our chartesyides that the purported transfer in violatiortlad restrictions will be voidb initio . Shares of
our stock held in the trust will be issued and tutding shares. The proposed transferee will neéfitseconomically from ownership of any
securities held in the trust, will have no righigdividends and no rights to vote or other rightstautable to the shares of stock held in thett
The trustee of the trust will have all voting rigland rights to dividends or other distributionghwespect to shares held in the trust. These
rights will be exercised for the exclusive benefithe charitable beneficiary. Any dividend or atldéstribution paid before our discovery that
shares of stock have been transferred to thewilldie paid by the recipient to the trustee upemand. Any dividend or other distribution
authorized but unpaid will be paid when due totthstee. Any dividend or distribution paid to tiestee will be held in trust for the charitable
beneficiary. Subject to Maryland law, the trustetk mave the authority (i) to rescind as void arter cast by the proposed transferee before oul
discovery that the shares have been transferréietsust and (i) to recast the vote in accordanmitle the desires of the trustee acting for the
benefit of the charitable beneficiary. Howevenvé have already taken irreversible corporate acttmen the trustee will not have the authority
to rescind and recast the vote.

Within 20 days of receiving notice from that the securities have been transferred ttrisg the trustee will sell the securities to a
person designated by the trustee, whose ownersliig @ecurities will not violate the above owngpdimitations. Upon such sale, the interest
of the charitable beneficiary in the securitieslssill terminate and the trustee will distributeethet proceeds of the sale to the proposed
transferee and to the charitable beneficiary devi@. The proposed transferee will receive thedesé (i) the price paid by the proposed
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transferee for the securities or, if the proposeddferee did not give value for the securitiesdnnection with the event causing the securities
to be held in the trust (e.g., a gift, devise dreotsimilar transaction), the market price (asrdadiin our charter) of the securities on the day of
the event causing the securities to be held irirtrst and (ii) the price received by the trustesrfithe sale or other disposition of the securities.
The trustee may reduce the amount payable to tipoped transferee by the amount of dividends astdlalitions paid to the proposed
transferee and owed by the proposed transferdetustee. Any net sale proceeds in excess @rtiaint payable to the proposed transferee
will be paid immediately to the charitable benedigi. If, before our discovery that the securitiagénbeen transferred to the trust, the securities
are sold by the proposed transferee, then (i)ebarties shall be deemed to have been sold onfltedtihe trust and (i) to the extent that the
proposed transferee received an amount for theiiesithat exceeds the amount the proposed traesfeas entitled to receive, the excess
shall be paid to the trustee upon demand.

In addition, the securities held in thest will be deemed to have been offered for salgst or our designee, at a price per share equal t
the lesser of (i) the price per share in the trefisa that resulted in the transfer to the trust ifothe case of a devise or gift, the markete&t
the time of the devise or gift) and (ii) the margete on the date we, or our designee, acceptffee We may reduce the amount payable to
the proposed transferee, however, by the amousmtyflividends or distributions paid to the proposadsferee on the securities and owed by
the proposed transferee to the trustee. We wiletihe right to accept the offer until the trustae bold the securities. Upon a sale to us, the
interest of the charitable beneficiary in the séms sold will terminate and the trustee will distte the net proceeds of the sale to the prog
transferee.

All certificates representing the sedasitwill bear a legend referring to the restriciatescribed above or will state that we will fumés
full statement about certain transfer restrictitma stockholder upon request and without charge.

Every owner of more than 5% (or such lopercentage as required by the Internal Revenwe Gothe regulations promulgated
thereunder) in value of all classes or series ofsteck, including shares of common stock, withindays after the end of each taxable year,
will be required to give written notice to us statithe name and address of such owner, the numibbaces of each class and series of shares
of our stock which the owner beneficially owns andescription of the manner in which the shareshal#. Each owner shall provide to us
such additional information as we may request terdane the effect, if any, of the beneficial owstgp on our status as a REIT and to ensure
compliance with the ownership limitations. In adulit each such owner shall upon demand be reqtarptbvide to us such information as we
may request, in good faith, to determine our statua REIT and to comply with the requirementsnyf @xing authority or governmental
authority or to determine such compliance.

These ownership limitations could del@dgfer or prevent a transaction or a change in obtitat might involve a premium price for the
common stock or might otherwise be in your besriggts.

Listing

Our shares of common stock are listetherNew York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CIM”".
Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar forshares of common stock is Mellon Investor ServideS.
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CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORAT ION LAW
AND OUR CHARTER AND BYLAWS

The following description of the term®af stock and of certain provisions of Marylanavles only a summary. For a complete
description, we refer you to the MGCL, our chaed our bylaws, copies of which will be availab&fdye the closing of this offering from us
upon request.

The MGCL and our charter and bylaws cionpaovisions that could make it more difficult farpotential acquirer to acquire us by a
tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise. Theseigions are expected to discourage certain coetakeover practices and inadequate take
bids and to encourage persons seeking to acquiteotof us to negotiate first with our board ofetitors. We believe that the benefits of these
provisions outweigh the potential disadvantagedisfouraging any such acquisition proposals becaumseng other things, the negotiation of
such proposals may improve their terms.

Classification of Board of Directors

Pursuant to our charter, our board cfctors is divided into three classes of directBegjinning in 2008, directors of each class will be
chosen for three-year terms upon the expiraticth&if current terms and every year one class ofloactors will be elected by our
stockholders. We believe that classification of board of directors helps to assure the contirarity stability of our business strategies and
policies as determined by our board of directordErs of shares of our common stock do not hageight to cumulative voting in the
election of directors. Consequently, at each anmgadting of stockholders, the holders of a majaftthe shares of our common stock entitled
to vote are able to elect all of the successothetlass of directors whose terms expire at thetinmp

Currently the number of directors in eatdss and the expiration of each class term felksvs:

Class | Director: 2 Directors Expires 2011
Class Il Director: 2 Directors Expires 200¢
Class Il Directors 1 Director Expires 201(

The classified board provision in our tbacould have the effect of making the replaceneéincumbent directors more time consun
and difficult. Two separate meetings of stockhddderstead of one, are generally required to eHeztiange in a majority of our board of
directors. Thus, the classified board provisionldancrease the likelihood that incumbent directoiié retain their positions. The staggered
terms of directors may delay, defer or preveninaée offer or an attempt to change control of ugnethough a tender offer or change in
control might be in your best interests.

Number of Directors; Vacancies; Removal of Directos

Our charter provides that the numberidadors is set at five, which number may be inseebor decreased by the board of directors in
accordance with our bylaws. Our bylaws provide thatajority of our entire board of directors mayany regular or special meeting called for
that purpose, increase or decrease the numbereatalis. However, unless our bylaws are amendedjdimber of directors may never be less
than the minimum number required by the MGCL, norerthan 15.

Our bylaws provide that any vacancy ontmard of directors may be filled by a majoritytbé remaining directors. Any individual so
elected director will hold office for the unexpireefm of the director he or she is replacing. Charter provides that a director may be remc
at any time only for cause upon the affirmativeevot at least two-thirds of the votes entitled ¢éodast in the election of directors. These
provisions preclude stockholders from removing inbent directors, except for cause and upon a suigtaffirmative vote, and filling the
vacancies created by such removal with their owminees.

Our charter provides that, at such timeva have at least three independent directorsiataiss of our common or preferred stock is
registered under the Securities Exchange Act ofi188the Exchange Act, we will elect to be subjedhe provision of Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of
the MGCL regarding the filling of vacancies on th@ard of directors. Accordingly, at such time, gtcas may be provided by the board of
directors in setting the terms of any class oreseoif stock, any and all vacancies on the boadire€tors may be filled only by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the remaining directors ificd, even if the remaining directors do not can$ti a quorum, and any director elected to fill
a vacancy will serve for the remainder of the fetin of the class in which the vacancy occurredwantd a successor is duly elected and
qualified.
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Our charter provides that a director rhayemoved only for cause, as defined in our cheatel then only by the affirmative vote of at
least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be caghe election of directors.

Action by Stockholders

Under the MGCL, stockholder action cartdieen only at an annual or special meeting ofi$tolders or by unanimous written conser
lieu of a meeting (unless the charter providesaftasser percentage, which our charter does niogsd provisions, combined with the
requirements of our bylaws regarding the calling stockholder-requested special meeting of stddkh® discussed below, may have the
effect of delaying consideration of a stockholdepwsal until the next annual meeting.

Advance Notice Provisions for Stockholder Nominatins and Stockholder Proposals

Our bylaws provide that with respect toaamnual meeting of stockholders, nominations dividuals for election to the board of
directors and the proposal of business to be cersitlby stockholders may be made only (i) purst@atir notice of the meeting, (ii) by the
board of directors or (iii) by a stockholder whosaastockholder of record both at the time of giviri notice by such stockholder as provided
for in our bylaws and at the time of the annual timgeand who is entitled to vote at the meeting ahd has complied with the advance notice
procedures of the bylaws. With respect to specegdtings of stockholders, only the business spekifieour notice of the meeting may be
brought before the meeting. Nominations of indialufor election to the board of directors at acigdeneeting may be made only (i) pursuant
to our notice of the meeting, (ii) by the boarddotctors or (iii) provided that the board of dif@s has determined that directors will he ele
at the meeting, by a stockholder who was a stodéraif record both at the time of giving of notmesuch stockholder, as provided for in our
bylaws, and at the time of the special meeting igtentitled to vote at the meeting and who has dieupvith the advance notice provisions of
the bylaws.

The purpose of requiring stockholdergit@ us advance notice of nominations and otheinkss is to afford our board of directors a
meaningful opportunity to consider the qualificaoof the proposed nominees and the advisabiligngfother proposed business and, to the
extent deemed necessary or desirable by our bdalideators, to inform stockholders and make reca@ndations about such qualifications or
business, as well as to provide a more orderlygatore for conducting meetings of stockholders. édtdh our bylaws do not give our board of
directors any power to disapprove stockholder nations for the election of directors or proposalsommending certain action, they may
have the effect of precluding a contest for thetée of directors or the consideration of stockieslproposals if proper procedures are not
followed and of discouraging or deterring a thiedty from conducting a solicitation of proxies tea its own slate of directors or to approve
its own proposal without regard to whether congitlen of such nominees or proposals might be hdrarfbeneficial to us and our
stockholders.

Calling of Special Meetings of Stockholders

Our bylaws provide that special meetiofjstockholders may be called by our board of dimecand certain of our officers. Additionally,
our bylaws provide that, subject to the satisfactibcertain procedural and informational requiratseby the stockholders requesting the
meeting, a special meeting of stockholders shatldiled by our secretary upon the written requéstarkholders entitled to cast not less th.
majority of all the votes entitled to be cast atlsmeeting.

Approval of Extraordinary Corporate Action; Amendme nt of Charter and Bylaws

Under Maryland law, a Maryland corporatgenerally cannot dissolve, amend its chartergmesell all or substantially all of its assets,
engage in a share exchange or engage in simitaactions outside the ordinary course of businedess approved by the affirmative vote of
stockholders entitled to cast at least two-thirtithe votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Hamea Maryland corporation may provide in its
charter for approval of these matters by a lessegntage, but not less than a majority of alheftotes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our
charter, with certain exceptions, generally prosife approval of charter amendments and extraarditransactions, which have been first
declared advisable by our board of directors, leystockholders entitled to cast at least a majoffithe votes entitled to be cast on the matter.

Our bylaws provide that the board of dioes will have the exclusive power to adopt, afterepeal any provision of our bylaws and to
make new bylaws.
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No Appraisal Rights

As permitted by the MGCL, our charteryides that stockholders are not entitled to exerajgpraisal rights unless a majority of our
board of directors determines that such rightsyappl

Control Share Acquisitions

The Maryland Control Share AcquisitiontAcovides that control shares of a Maryland caaion acquired in a control share acquisi
have no voting rights except to the extent apprdwed vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled ®dast on the matter. Shares owned by the
acquirer, by officers or by directors who are empkes of the corporation are excluded from sharéeshto vote on the matter. Control shares
are voting shares of stock which, if aggregateth @it other shares of stock owned by the acquirémn cespect of which the acquirer is able to
exercise or direct the exercise of voting powecégpt solely by a revocable proxy), would entitle #tquirer to exercise voting power in
electing directors within one of the following rasgof voting power:

. one-tenth or more but less than «third;
. one-third or more but less than a majority;
. a majority or more of all voting powe

Control shares do not include sharesitfiiiring person is then entitled to vote as alte$inaving previously obtained stockholder
approval. A control share acquisition means theaisttipn of control shares, subject to certain gtoss.

A person who has made or proposes to raamntrol share acquisition may compel the bo&udirectors of the corporation to call a
special meeting of stockholders to be held witlirdays of demand to consider the voting rightdefdhares. The right to compel the callin
a special meeting is subject to the satisfactioceofain conditions, including an undertaking ty fflze expenses of the meeting. If no request
for a meeting is made, the corporation may itsedspnt the question at any stockholders meeting.

If voting rights are not approved at theeting or if the acquiring person does not delareecquiring person statement as required b
statute, then the corporation may repurchase fovédue any or all of the control shares, excépse for which voting rights have previously
been approved. The right of the corporation to refpase control shares is subject to certain canditand limitations. Fair value is determin
without regard to the absence of voting rightstfar control shares, as of the date of the lastrcbsihare acquisition by the acquirer or of any
meeting of stockholders at which the voting righitshe shares are considered and not approvedtitig/rights for control shares are approved
at a stockholders meeting and the acquirer becemtéted to vote a majority of the shares entitiedote, all other stockholders may exercise
appraisal rights. The fair value of the sharesedsrdhined for purposes of appraisal rights maybedess than the highest price per share paid
by the acquirer in the control share acquisition.

The Control Share Acquisition Act does apply (a) to shares acquired in a merger, codattin or share exchange if the corporation is
a party to the transaction or (b) to acquisitiopgraved or exempted by the charter or bylaws ottivporation.

Our bylaws contain a provision exempfiran the Control Share Acquisition Act any andaadbuisitions by any person of our shares of
stock. There can be no assurance that such prowisgibnot be amended or eliminated at any timéhia future. However, we will amend our
bylaws to be subject to the Control Share Acquisithct only if the board of directors determineattit would be in our best interests.

Business Combinations

Under Maryland law, “business combinatibbetween a Maryland corporation and an interesteckholder or an affiliate of an
interested stockholder are prohibited for five geater the most recent date on which the intedestieckholder becomes an interested
stockholder. These business combinations includerger, consolidation, share exchange, or, in gistances specified in the statute, an asset
transfer or issuance or reclassification of egségurities. An interested stockholder is defined as

. any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubng power of the corporati’s shares; ¢
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. an affiliate or associate of the corporation whargy time within the tw-year period before the date in question, was
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéthe then outstanding voting stock of the coggion.

A person is not an interested stockholdeter the statute if the board of directors appdown advance the transaction by which he, sl
it otherwise would have become an interested stadien. However, in approving a transaction, therbad directors may provide that its
approval is subject to compliance, at or aftertiime of approval, with any terms and conditionsedsiined by the board.

After the five-year prohibition, any bness combination between the corporation and aneisited stockholder generally must be
recommended by the board of directors of the catjpmr and approved by the affirmative vote of aste

. 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersut§tanding shares of voting stock of the corporgtand

. two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holdéngoting stock of the corporation other than skdreld by the intereste
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected or held bgffitiate or associate of the
interested stockholde

These super-majority vote requirementsaatoapply if the corporatios’common stockholders receive a minimum price gdised unde
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of castother consideration in the same form as prelaguaid by the interested stockholder for its
shares.

The statute permits various exemptioamfits provisions, including business combinatitired are exempted by the board of directors
before the time that the interested stockholdeolrexs an interested stockholder. Our board of diredtas adopted a resolution which prov
that any business combination between us and dy person is exempted from the provisions of thsifiess Combination Act, provided that
the business combination is first approved by therd of directors. This resolution, however, mayaltered or repealed in whole or in part at
any time. If this resolution is repealed, or thabof directors does not otherwise approve a legsisombination, the statute may discourage
others from trying to acquire control of us andré@ase the difficulty of consummating any offer.

Subtitle 8

Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL permasMaryland corporation with a class of equity seias registered under the Exchange Act and
at least three independent directors to elect tsubgect, by provision in its charter or bylawsaaresolution of its board of directors and
notwithstanding any contrary provision in the cbadr bylaws, to any or all of five provisions:

. a classified boarc

. a twc-thirds stockholder vote requirement for removirgjractor;

. a requirement that the number of directors be fixelg by vote of the director:

. a requirement that a vacancy on the board be filldyg by the remaining directors and for the rerdainof the full term of the

class of directors in which the vacancy occurrexd

. a majority requirement for the calling of a specisdeting of stockholder

Through provisions in our charter andcalmg unrelated to Subtitle 8, we already (a) requitwo-thirds stockholder vote for the removal
of any director from the board, as well as reqtheg such removal be for cause (as defined in barter), (b) unless called by our Chairman of
the Board, our President, our Chief Executive @ffior the board, require the request of holdees mfjority of outstanding shares to call a
special meeting and (c) vest in the board the ekadupower to fix the number of directorships. ©hbarter also provides that at such time as
Subtitle 8 becomes applicable to us, our boardhille the exclusive power to fill vacancies onlibard, by a vote of a majority of the
remaining directors, and such vacancies will Hediluntil the end of the term of the class of diegin which the vacancy occurred.
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Limitation on Liability of Directors and Officers; Indemnification and Advance of Expense:

Maryland law permits a Maryland corpavatio include in its charter a provision limitirftetliability of its directors and officers to the
corporation and its stockholders for money damagespt for liability resulting from (i) actual rdpeof an improper benefit or profit in
money, property or services or (ii) active and lasslate dishonesty established by a final judgmedtvehich is material to the cause of action.
Our charter contains such a provision which elirteésalirectors’ and officers’ liability to the maxinm extent permitted by Maryland law.

Our charter also authorizes our comp#mihe maximum extent permitted by Maryland lawoltigate our company to indemnify any
present or former director or officer or any indival who, while a director or officer of our compaand at the request of our company, serves
or has served another corporation, real estatesiment trust, partnership, joint venture, trustpkayee benefit plan or other enterprise as a
director, officer, partner or trustee, from andiaghany claim or liability to which that individuenay become subject or which that individual
may incur because of his or her service in any sagacity and to pay or reimburse his or her reasienexpenses in advance of final
disposition of a proceeding.

Our bylaws obligate us, to the maximurteekpermitted by Maryland law, to indemnify anggent or former director or officer or any
individual who, while a director or officer of oubmpany and at the request of our company, senessoserved another corporation, real
estate investment trust, partnership, joint ventust, employee benefit plan or other enterpgisa director, officer, partner or trustee and
is made, or threatened to be made, a party tortheepding because of his or her service in any saphcity from and against any claim or
liability to which that individual may become sutf@r which that individual may incur because & bi her service in any such capacity ar
pay or reimburse his or her reasonable expenszdvimnce of final disposition of a proceeding. Chairter and bylaws also permit our comp
to indemnify and advance expenses to any individim served a predecessor of our company in attyeofapacities described above and any
employee or agent of our company or a predecessuraompany.

Maryland law requires a corporation (gslés charter provides otherwise, which our chattes not) to indemnify a director or officer
who has been successful, on the merits or otherimiske defense of any proceeding to which heheris made a party because of his or her
service in that capacity. Maryland law permits gpooation to indemnify its present and former dioes and officers, among others, against
judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reddem®xpenses actually incurred by them in conoedtiith any proceeding to which they
be made, or are threatened to be made, a partysdecatheir service in those or other capacitidsess it is established that (i) the act or
omission of the director or officer was materiattte matter giving rise to the proceeding and (&% wommitted in bad faith or (2) was the
result of active and deliberate dishonesty, (i@ director or officer actually received an impropersonal benefit in money, property or serv
or (i) in the case of any criminal proceedingg ttirector or officer had reasonable cause to &elieat the act or omission was unlawful.

A court may order indemnification if ikgtrmines that the director or officer is fairlydar@asonably entitled to indemnification, even
though the director or officer did not meet thesgrébed standard of conduct or was adjudged liablthe basis that personal benefit was
improperly received. However, under Maryland lawjaryland corporation may not indemnify for an adeejudgment in a suit by or in the
right of the corporation or for a judgment of liyi on the basis that a personal benefit was impprty received, unless in either case a court
orders indemnification, and then only for expenseaddition, Maryland law permits a corporatioratdvance reasonable expenses to a dir
or officer upon the corporation’s receipt of (ijvaitten affirmation by the director or officer ofshor her good faith belief that he or she has met
the standard of conduct necessary for indemniticaby the corporation and (i) a written undertakby him or her or on his or her behalf to
repay the amount paid or reimbursed by the corjuorétit is ultimately determined that the standlaf conduct was not met.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

We cannot predict the effect, if any tthales of shares or the availability of sharesé&de will have on the market price of our common
stock prevailing from time to time. Sales of subitd amounts of our common stock in the public ke&ror the perception that such sales
could occur, could adversely affect the prevailingrket price of our common stock.

Upon completion of this offering, we whlve outstanding an aggregate of approximatelwillion of our common stock. In addition,
our equity incentive plan provides for grants aftrieted common stock and other equity-based awgsde an aggregate of 8% of the issued
and outstanding shares of our common stock (ofiyadiluted basis and including shares to be soldmnaly concurrently with this offering
and shares to be sold pursuant to the exercideafriderwriters’ overallotment option) at the tiofehe award, subject to a ceiling of
40,000,000 shares available for issuance undepléime On January 2, 2008, we granted 1,301,00@sldrour restricted common stock to our
independent directors and our Manager’'s employeash independent director was granted 3,000 slo&i@s restricted common stock which
fully vested on January 2, 2008. The restricted oom stock approved as grants to our executiveesfiand other employees of our Manager
or its affiliates vest in equal installments on tinst business day of each fiscal quarter oveerdod of 10 years beginning on January 2, 2008.
The restricted common stock approved as grantart@xecutive officers and other employees of ounddger or its affiliates that remain
outstanding and are unvested fully vest on thehdefathe individual. The 1,301,000 shares of ostrieted common stock approved as grants
to our executive officers and other employees of\anager or its affiliates and to our independiirdctors represent approximately % of
the issued and outstanding shares of our commak & a fully diluted basis after giving effectttee shares issued in this offering and
including shares to be sold to Annaly concurrentith this offering but excluding any shares to bllgpursuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option) based on theuagption that shares of our common staitikbe issued in this offering.

The shares of common stock sold in tHisrimg will be freely tradable without restrictiar further registration under the Securities Act
unless the shares are held by any of our “afftifitas that term is defined in Rule 144 under teeuBities Act. As defined in Rule 144, an
“affiliate” of an issuer is a person that directly,indirectly through one or more intermediariesntrols, is controlled by or is under common
control with the issuer. All shares of our commeock held by our affiliates, including our officesisd directors, are restricted securities as tha
term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securitiet Restricted securities may be sold in the publizket only if registered under the securities
laws or if they qualify for an exemption from reéion under Rule 144, as described below.

Rule 144

On November 15, 2007, the SecuritiesExchange Commission adopted amendments to Rulevhigh became effective on February
15, 2008. Rule 144, as amended, is described below.

In general, under Rule 144 under the Biesi Act, a person (or persons whose sharesggreegated) who is not deemed to have been at
affiliate of ours at any time during the three nfpreceding a sale, and who has beneficially owestilicted securities within the meaning of
Rule 144 for at least six months (including anyigetof consecutive ownership of preceding non-atfld holders), would be entitled to sell
those shares, subject only to the availabilitywfent public information about us. A non-affilidtperson who has beneficially owned
restricted securities within the meaning of Ruld 1@r at least one year would be entitled to $elke shares without regard to the provisions of
Rule 144.

A person (or persons whose shares anegatgd) who is deemed to be an affiliate of ondsweho has beneficially owned restricted
securities within the meaning of Rule 144 for aiskesix months would be entitled to sell within @hgee-month period a number of shares that
does not exceed the greater of one percent oh#redutstanding shares of our common stock orntbeage weekly trading volume of our
common stock reported through the New York Stoc&haxge during the four calendar weeks precedinly sale. Such sales are also subject
to certain manner of sale provisions, notice regqugnts and the availability of current public imf@tion about us.

No assurance can be given as to (i)ikedihood that an active market for our common ktadl develop, (ii) the liquidity of any such
market, (i) the ability of the stockholders tdisbe securities, or (iv) the prices that
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stockholders may obtain for any of the securitis prediction can be made as to the effect, if #mgt, future sales of shares, or the availability
of shares for future sale, will have on the magkate prevailing from time to time. Sales of subsig amounts of common stock, or the
perception that such sales could occur, may affécersely prevailing market prices of the commarlst See “Risk Factors—Risks Related
To Our Common Stock.”

Lock-Up Agreements

We, Annaly and each of our executivecsffs, and our directors agreed with the underveritet to offer, sell or otherwise dispose of
common stock or any securities convertible intexercisable or exchangeable for common stock orrighys to acquire common stock for a
period of 90 days after the date of this prospeatithout the prior written consent of Credit Swissecurities (USA) LLC, subject to specific
limited exceptions. See “Underwriting—No Sales ohifar Securities.”

In connection with the 90-day restricpetiod with the underwriters, if either (1) duritige last 17 days of the lock-up period, we release
earning results or material news, or a materiahexedating to us occurs or (2) before the expiratf the 90-day restricted period, we
announce that we will release earnings resultsdutie 16-day period beginning on the last dayefd0-day period, then in either case the
expiration of the lock-up will be extended untietBxpiration of the 18-day period beginning ondhee of the release of the earnings results or
the occurrence of the material news or event, picale, unless Credit Suisse Securities (USA) Miives, in writing, such an extension.

Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC hdsimed us that they do not have a present inteatrangement to release any of the securities
subject to the lock-up provisions agreed to with tinderwriters. The release of any lock-ups wiltbesidered on a case-by-case basis. Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC in its sole discretiom at any time without notice release some afdtie shares subject to lock-up agreements
before the expiration of the 90-day lock-up peridthen determining whether or not to release sHapes the lock-up agreements, Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC will consider, amonbestfactors, the stockholder’s reasons for requgslie release, the number of shares for
which the release is being requested and markeaitioms at such time.

Additionally, Annaly has agreed with osat further lock-up period in connection with thees purchased by Annaly concurrently with
our initial public offering that will expire at thearlier of (i) November 15, 2010 or (ii) the temation of the management agreement. Annaly
has further agreed with us to a further lock-upquein connection with the shares purchased by Anc@ancurrently with this offering that will
expire at the earlier of (i) the date which is thyears following the date of this prospectus idtife termination of the management agreement.
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CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This section summarizes the materialf@dacome tax considerations that you, as an O\aeedefined in the immediately succeeding
paragraph) of shares of common stock, may consédevant. McKee Nelson LLP has acted as our taxisel) has reviewed this section and is
of the opinion that the discussion contained hefi@ity summarizes the federal income tax consegegthat are likely to be material to an
Owner of our shares of common stock. Because #uitios is a summary, it does not address all asgédaxation that may be relevant to
particular Owners of our common stock in light loéir personal investment or tax circumstancesy aettain types of Owners that are subject
to special treatment under the federal incomeaws) such as insurance companies, tax-exempt aegaomis (except to the extent discussed in
“—Taxation of Owners,—Taxation of Tax-Exempt Owridselow), regulated investment companies, partripssand other pass-through
entities (including entities classified as parthgrs for federal income tax purposes), financiatitntions or broker-dealers, and non-U.S.
individuals and foreign corporations (except to ééent discussed in “—Taxation of Owners,—Taxatibiroreign Owners” below) and other
persons subject to special tax rules.

You should be aware that in this sectiginen we use the term:

. “Code” we mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ague

. “Disqualified organizatio” we mean any organization described in section 8§0&Y of the Code, including

i. the United State:
ii. any state or political subdivision of the Unite@8t;
iii. any foreign governmen
iv. any international organizatio
V. any agency or instrumentality of any of the foregp

vi. any charitable remainder trust or other-exempt organization, other than a far’'s cooperative described in section !
of the Code, that is exempt both from income taxatind from taxation under the unrelated busireessble income
provisions of the Code; ar

vii. any rural electrical or telephone cooperat

. “Domestic Owne” we mean an Owner that is a U.S. Per:

. “Foreign Owne” we mean an Owner that is not a U.S. Per

. “IRS.” we mean the Internal Revenue Serv

. “Owner” we mean any person having a beneficial ownershgréast in shares of our common stc

. “TMP,” we mean a taxable mortgage pool as that term isetkin section 7701(i)(2) of the Coc

. “U.S. Persorl” we mean (i) a citizen or resident of the United&a(ii) a corporation (or entity treated as goooation for

federal income tax purposes) created or organizélel United States or under the laws of the Urfitsdes or of any state
thereof, including, for this purpose, the Disto€tColumbia; (iii) a partnership (or entity treatasl a partnership for tax purposes)
organized in the United States or under the lawth@tnited States or of any state thereof, inclgdfor this purpose, the

District of Columbia (unless provided otherwisefbiure Treasury regulations); (iv) an estate whoseme is includible in gro:
income for federal income tax purposes regardlégs source; or (v) a trust, if a court within thimited States is able to exerc
primary supervision over the administration of thest and one or more U.S. Persons have authoritpiitrol all substantial
decisions of the trust. Notwithstanding the prengdilause, to the extent provided in Treasury r&gnis, certain trusts that we

in existence on August 20, 1996, that were treated.S. Persons prior to such date, and that elecintinue to be treated as
U.S. Persons, also are U.S. Pers
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The statements in this section and theiop of McKee Nelson LLP are based on the curfederal income tax laws. We cannot assure
you that new laws, interpretations of law or caletisions, any of which may take effect retroadyiveill not cause any statement in tl
section to be inaccurate. No assurance can be tgiaethe IRS would not assert, or that a courtldimot sustain, a position contrary to any of
the tax consequences described below. We haveuaghsand will not seek an advance ruling fromI&R® regarding any matter in this
prospectus.

This summary provides general informatioty and is not tax advice. We urge you to congaolltr tax advisor regarding the specific tax
consequences to you of the purchase, ownershipaladf our common stock and of our election téalxed as a REIT. Specifically, you
should consult your tax advisor regarding the feljetate, local, foreign, and other tax consegegmné such purchase, ownership, sale and
election, and regarding potential changes in appletax laws.

Taxation of Our Company

We plan to make an election to be taxseed REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the @odemencing with our short taxable year
ended on December 31, 2007, upon filing our fedaame tax return for that year. We believe thatwere organized and have operated and
will continue to operate in such a manner as tdifyuar taxation as a REIT under the federal in@tax laws, but no assurances can be given
that we will operate in a manner so as to qualifyemnain qualified as a REIT. This section discashke laws governing the federal income tax
treatment of a REIT and the owners of REIT stodiede laws are highly technical and complex.

In connection with this offering, McKeesNon LLP is rendering an opinion that, providedtineely elect to be taxed as a REIT on our
first federal income tax return, we will qualify be taxed as a REIT for our short taxable year @wotieDecember 31, 2007, and our
organization and current and proposed method afatipe will enable us to continue to meet the reguients for qualification and taxation ¢
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 280F subsequent taxable years. Investors should/iée=dahat Mckee Nelson LLBopinior
is based upon customary assumptions, is conditiaped certain representations made by us as todlactatters, including representations
regarding the nature of our assets and the comdwttr business, and is not binding upon the IR8nyrcourt.

In addition, McKee Nelson LLP’s opinicbased on existing federal income tax law govergimalification as a REIT, which is subject
to change either prospectively or retroactively.rétiver, our qualification and taxation as a REIPpeatal upon our ability to meet on a
continuing basis, through actual annual operatsglts, certain qualification tests set forth ie federal income tax laws. Those qualification
tests involve the percentage of income that we frlam specified sources, the percentage of outtsiisat falls within specified categories, the
diversity of our stock ownership, and the perceatagour earnings that we distribute. McKee NelsbR will not review our compliance with
those tests on a continuing basis. Accordinglyasgurance can be given that our actual resultperftions for any particular taxable year will
satisfy such requirements. For a discussion ofghe&onsequences of our failure to qualify as alREée “—Failure to Qualify.”

If we qualify as a REIT, we generally wibt be subject to federal income tax on our téx@come that we currently distribute to our
stockholders, but taxable income generated by onredtic TRSs, if any, will be subject to reguladdeal (and applicable state and local)
corporate income tax. However, we will be subjediederal tax in the following circumstances:

. We will pay federal income tax on our taxable inegrimcluding net capital gain, that we do not distie to stockholders durin
or within a specified time period after, the calengear in which the income is earn

. We may be subject to the “alternative minimum tar”any items of tax preference including any deidustof net operating
losses

. We will pay federal income tax at the highest cogpe rate on

0 netincome from the sale or other disposition afpgrty acquired through foreclosure, which we réfeas foreclosure
property, that we hold primarily for sale to custasnin the ordinary course of business,

o other nol-qualifying income from foreclosure proper
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We will pay a 100% tax on net income earned frotassar other dispositions of property, other thareélosure property, that \
hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinaourse of busines

If we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income testh@ 95% gross income test, as described below “—Gross Income Tes”
but nonetheless continue to qualify as a REIT beeawe meet other requirements, we will be subfeat100% tax or

o the greater of the amount by which we fail the 7§%ss income test or the 95% gross income testjptied, in either
case, by

o a fraction intended to reflect our profitabili

If we fail to satisfy the asset tests by more thate minimis amount, as described below ul*—Asset Test” as long as th
failure was due to reasonable cause and not teulvileglect, we dispose of the assets or otheragseply with such asset tests
within six months after the last day of the quaitewhich we identify such failure and we file dhedule with the IRS describing
the assets that caused such failure, we will pax &qual to the greater of $50,000 or 35% of #teimcome from the non-
qualifying assets during the period in which weefdito satisfy such asset te:

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements REIT qualification, other than the gross incomeasesd the asset tests, and ¢
failure was due to reasonable cause and not dwéltiol neglect, we will be required to pay a petyabf $50,000 for each such
failure.

We may be required to pay monetary penalties tdRISein certain circumstances, including if we tailmeet recordkeepir
requirements intended to monitor our compliancé wides relating to the composition of a REIT sctioolders, as described
below in“—Requirements for Qualificatic”

If we fail to distribute during a calendar yeatestst the sum of: (i) 85% of our REIT ordinary inw®for the year, (ii) 95% of o
REIT capital gain net income for the year and @iy undistributed taxable income from earlier pasi we will pay a 4%
nondeductible excise tax on the excess of the reg@istribution over the amount we actually disited, plus any retained
amounts on which income tax has been paid at tipocate level

We may elect to retain and pay federal income tagur net long-term capital gain. In that case paBstic Owner would be
taxed on its proportionate share of our undistedubng-term capital gain (to the extent that wéenatimely designation of
such gain to the stockholder) and would receiveeditor refund for its proportionate share of tae we paid

We will be subject to a 100% excise tax on tranisastbetween us and any of our TRSs that are matumied on an arm’s-
length basis

If (&) we recognize excess inclusion income faaaable year as a result of our ownership of a 18Q%ity interest in a TMP or
our ownership of a REMIC residual interest anddie® or more Disqualified Organizations is the rdamwner of shares of our
common stock during that year, then we will be sabjo tax at the highest corporate federal inctareate on the portion of the
excess inclusion income that is allocable to thegDalified Organizations. We do not anticipate oWgriREMIC residual
interests; we may, however, own 100% of the equtgrests in one or more CDO offerings or one orariusts formed in
connection with our securitization transactiong,ibtend to structure each CDO offering and eaciggzation transaction so
that the issuing entity would not be classifiedha@MP. Se¢“‘—Taxable Mortgage Poo”

If we acquire any asset from a C corporation, oomoration that generally is subject to full caigie-level tax, in a merger «
other transaction in which we acquire a basis énasset that is determined by reference eithéret@tcorporation’s basis in the
asset or to another asset, we will pay tax at tjledst corporate federal income tax rate if we gatoe gain on the sale or
disposition of the asset during the 10-year pesifver we acquire the asset. The amount of gaininhwe will pay tax is the
lesser of:

o the amount of gain that we recognize at the timihefsale or disposition, ai
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o the amount of gain that we would have recognizedeifhad sold the asset at the time we acquiregstiming that the
corporation will not elect in lieu of this treatmdn an immediate tax when the asset is acqu

In addition, notwithstanding our qualiton as a REIT, we may also have to pay certaite sthd local income taxes, because not all
states and localities treat REITs in the same nrathia¢ they are treated for federal income tax pses. Moreover, as further described below,
any domestic TRS in which we own an interest wélldubject to federal, state and local corporatenectax on its taxable income. We could
also be subject to tax in situations and on traiwa not presently contemplated.

Requirements for Qualification
A REIT is a corporation, trust, or association tmetets each of the following requirements:

1. It is managed by one or more trusteatirectors

2. Its beneficial ownership is evidenbgdransferable shares or by transferable certédgaf beneficial interes

3. It would be taxable as a domestic cmatfion, but for the REIT provisions of the federalome tax laws

4. It is neither a financial institutiolor an insurance company subject to special pravisof the federal income tax lav
5. At least 100 persons are beneficiahens of its shares or ownership certifica

6. Not more than 50% in value of its ¢ansling shares or ownership certificates is owdaéctly or indirectly, by five or fewer
individuals, which the federal income tax laws defto include certain entities, during the last bhhny taxable year. For purposes of this
requirement, indirect ownership will be determitgdapplying attribution rules set out in sectiort ®f the Code, as modified by section 856
(h) of the Code

7. It elects to be taxed as a REIT, arimade such election for a previous taxable year satisfies all relevant filing and ot
administrative requirements that must be met toteled maintain REIT qualificatio

8. It meets certain other qualificatiests, described below, regarding the nature afdtsme and asset

We must meet requirements 1 throughrihdwur entire taxable year and must meet requérgr during at least 335 days of a taxable
year of twelve months, or during a proportionate p&a taxable year of less than twelve monthgjukements 5 and 6 will apply to
beginning with our 2008 taxable year. If we compiyh all the requirements for ascertaining the okghg of our outstanding stock in a
taxable year and have no reason to know that watei requirement 6, we will be deemed to havesati requirement 6 for that taxable year.
For purposes of determining share ownership uretgrirement 6, an “individual” generally includesupplemental unemployment
compensation benefits plan, a private foundatiom portion of a trust permanently set aside oduselusively for charitable purposes. An
“individual” generally does not include a trust tiga qualified employee pension or profit shatingt under the federal income tax laws,
however, and beneficiaries of such a trust wiltdeated as owning our stock in proportion to tlaetuarial interests in the trust for purposes of
requirement 6.

We believe that we will issue in thisesfhg common stock with sufficient diversity of oamhip to satisfy requirements 5 and 6. In
addition, our charter restricts the ownership aaddfer of our stock so that we should continusatisfy these requirements. The provisions of
our charter restricting the ownership and transféghe common stock are described in “Descriptib@apital Stock—Restrictions on
Ownership and Transfer.”

To monitor compliance with the share omh@ requirements, we generally are required tmtai records regarding the actual
ownership of our shares. To do so, we must demaitté statements each year from the record holofesgynificant percentages of our stock
pursuant to which the record holders must disclbseactual owners of the shares (i.e., the penmsamnsred to include our dividends in their
gross income). We must maintain a list of thoseqes failing or refusing to comply with this demaasdpart of our records. We could be
subject to monetary penalties if we fail to compith these record keeping requirements. If youdaitefuse to comply with the demands, you
will be required by Treasury Regulations to subarstatement with your tax return disclosing youvakcownership of our shares and other
information. In addition, we must satisfy all re¢ex filing
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and other administrative requirements that mushbeto elect and maintain REIT qualification and ascalendar year for federal income tax
purposes. We intend to continue to comply with ¢hegjuirements.

Qualified REIT Subsidiaries

A corporation that is a “qualified REIUlssidiary” is not treated as a corporation sepdrata its parent REIT. All assets, liabilities, and
items of income, deduction and credit of a qualifiREIT subsidiary are treated as assets, lials)i@d items of income, deduction and credit
of the REIT. A qualified REIT subsidiary is a corption, other than a TRS, all of the capital sto€khich is owned, directly or indirectly, by
the REIT. Thus, in applying the requirements désctiherein, any qualified REIT subsidiary that wexavill be ignored, and all assets,
liabilities, and items of income, deduction andditref such subsidiary will be treated as our asdetbilities, and items of income, deduction
and credit. If we own 100% of the equity interéata CDO issuer or other securitization vehicle thdreated as a corporation for tax purpa
that CDO issuer or other securitization vehicle lddae a qualified REIT subsidiary, unless we arel@pO issuer or other securitization
vehicle jointly elect to treat the CDO issuer dneatsecuritization vehicle as a TRS. It is antitgpathat CDO financings we enter into will be
treated as qualified REIT subsidiaries.

Other Disregarded Entities and Partnepshi

An unincorporated domestic entity, suslagartnership, limited liability company, or trtisat has a single owner generally is not tre
as an entity separate from its parent for fedex@me tax purposes. An unincorporated domestityeniih two or more owners generally is
treated as a partnership for federal income tapgres. In the case of a REIT that is a partnempiarmership that has other partners, the REIT
is treated as owning its proportionate share oid®ets of the partnership and as earning itsaddlecshare of the gross income of the
partnership for purposes of the applicable REITli§joation tests. For purposes of the 10% valué¢ ese “—Asset Tests”), our proportionate
share is based on our proportionate interest irtjuity interests and certain debt securities bdyethe partnership. For all of the other asset
and income tests, our proportionate share is baseair proportionate interest in the capital inéésén the partnership. Our proportionate share
of the assets, liabilities, and items of incomeum§ partnership, joint venture or limited liabilitpmpany that is treated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes in which we acquirstarest, directly or indirectly, will be treated aur assets and gross income for purposes of
applying the various REIT qualification requirenent

If a disregarded subsidiary of ours cedede wholly-owned-fer example, if any equity interest in the subsigis acquired by a pers
other than us or another disregarded subsidiaoudf—the subsidiary’s separate existence wouldngdr be disregarded for federal income
tax purposes. Instead, the subsidiary would havépteiowners and would be treated as either anpaship or a taxable corporation. Such an
event could, depending on the circumstances, aelyesffect our ability to satisfy the various asaetl gross income requirements applicab
REITs, including the requirement that REITs gergnalay not own, directly or indirectly, more thafi% of the securities of another
corporation. See “—Asset Tests” and “—Gross Incdrests.”

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

A REIT is permitted to own up to 100%tloé stock of one or more TRSs. A TRS is a fullyatsle corporation that may earn income that
would not be qualifying income if earned directly the parent REIT. The subsidiary and the REIT nuistly elect to treat the subsidiary as a
TRS. A corporation with respect to which a TRS dliyeor indirectly owns more than 35% of the votipgwer or value of the stock will
automatically be treated as a TRS. We generally masaywn more than 10%, as measured by voting powealue, of the securities of a
corporation that is not a qualified REIT subsidiantess we and such corporation elect to treat sagboration as a TRS. Overall, no more
than 20% of the value of a REIT’s assets may copnéistock or securities of one or more TRSs.

The separate existence of a TRS or d¢éha@ble corporation, unlike a qualified REIT sultesig or other disregarded subsidiary as
discussed above, is not ignored for U.S. fedei@nme tax purposes. Accordingly, a domestic TRS dgeherally be subject to federal (and
applicable state and local income tax) corporaterime tax on its earnings, which may reduce the ftaghgenerated by us and our subsidia
in the aggregate and our ability to make distritmasito our stockholders.

A REIT is not treated as holding the &sséa TRS or other taxable subsidiary corporatioas receiving any income that the subsidiary
earns. Rather, the stock issued by the subsidiaagp asset in the hands of the REIT,
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and the REIT generally recognizes as income thidelvs, if any, that it receives from the subsigidihis treatment can affect the gross
income and asset test calculations that applyadrtBIT, as described below. Because a parent R&#$ dot include the assets and income of
such subsidiary corporations in determining theepgs compliance with the REIT requirements, sutfities may be used by the parent REIT
to undertake indirectly activities that the REITesumight otherwise preclude it from doing direatlythrough pass-through subsidiaries or
render commercially unfeasible (for example, atiéigithat give rise to certain categories of inca@meh as non-qualifying hedging income or
inventory sales).

Certain restrictions imposed on TRSsistended to ensure that such entities will be stthijeappropriate levels of U.S. federal income
taxation. First, a TRS may not deduct interest payimade in any year to an affiliated REIT toaktent that such payments exceed,
generally, 50% of the TRS'’s adjusted taxable incéon¢hat year (although the TRS may carry forwtardand deduct in, a succeeding year the
disallowed interest amount if the 50% test is §iatilsin that year). In addition, if amounts arec¢otd a REIT or deducted by a TRS due to
transactions between the REIT and a TRS that extbeeamount that would be paid to or deducted pgréy in an arm’dength transaction, tt
REIT generally will be subject to an excise taxadn 100% of such excess. We intend to scrutialzef our transactions with any of our
subsidiaries that are treated as a TRS in an @ff@hsure that we do not become subject to thisestax; however, we cannot assure you that
we will be successful in avoiding this excise tax.

Gross Income Tests

We must satisfy two gross income testsially to maintain qualification as a REIT. Firat,least 75% of our gross income for each
taxable year must consist of defined types of inedhat we derive from investments relating to praperty or mortgages on real property, or
from qualified temporary investments. Qualifying@me for purposes of the 75% gross income testrgynancludes:

. rents from real propert

. interest on debt secured by a mortgage on reakpippr on interests in real proper

. dividends or other distributions on, and gain fribra sale of, shares in other REI

. gain from the sale of real estate ass

. any amount includible in gross income with resgiec regular or residual interest in a REMIC, usliess than 95% of tt

REMIC's assets are real estate assets, in which casa pniportionate amount of such income will qualdpnd

. income derived from certain temporary investme

Second, in general, at least 95% of sasgincome for each taxable year must consisianfime that is qualifying income for purpose
the 75% gross income test, other types of interedtdividends, gain from the sale or dispositiostotk or securities (provided that such stock
or securities are not inventory property, i.e.,qemty held primarily for sale to customers in thidioary course of business) or any combination
of these.

Gross income from the sale of inventagperty is excluded from both the numerator anddr@ominator in both income tests. Income
and gain from hedging transactions that we entertmhedge indebtedness incurred or to be incuoredquire or carry real estate assets will
generally be excluded from both the numerator aeddenominator for purposes of the 95% gross indestebut not the 75% gross income
test). We intend to monitor the amount of our noiadifying income and manage our investment pouxftdi comply at all times with the gross
income tests but we cannot assure you that webeiuccessful in this effort.

Interest

The term “interest,” as defined for pusps of both gross income tests, generally excladgsamount that is based in whole or in part on
the income or profits of any person. However, ies¢generally includes the following: (i) an amotirat is based on a fixed percentage or
percentages of gross receipts or sales and (@naunt that is based on the income or profits lmdr@ower, where the borrower derives
substantially all of its income from the real prayesecuring the debt by leasing substantiallyo&lts interest in the property, but only to the
extent that the amounts received by the borrowerddvbe qualifying “rents from real property” if reiwed directly by a REIT.
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If a loan contains a provision that desita REIT to a percentage of the borrower’s gaionuthe sale of the real property securing the
loan or a percentage of the appreciation in thpgnyg’s value as of a specific date, income atteble to that loan provision will be treated as
gain from the sale of the property securing theeghich generally is qualifying income for purpes# both gross income tests.

Interest on debt secured by a mortgagealhproperty or on interests in real propertgaserally qualifying income for purposes of the
75% gross income test. However, if the highestqggpisl amount of a loan outstanding during a taxgblar exceeds the fair market value of the
real property securing the loan as of the datdBE agreed to originate or acquire the loan, diponf the interest income from such loan
will not be qualifying income for purposes of thg%4 gross income test, but will be qualifying incofaepurposes of the 95% gross income
test. The portion of the interest income that wilt be qualifying income for purposes of the 75%sgrincome test will be equal to the portion
of the principal amount of the loan that is notwsed by real property (i.e., the amount by whioh ltten exceeds the value of the real estats
is security for the loan).

Interest, including original issue disnbor market discount, that we accrue on our refdte-related investments generally will be
qualifying income for purposes of both gross incdests. However, many of our investments will ntskcured by mortgages on real property
or interests in real property. Our interest incdroen those investments will be qualifying income paurposes of the 95% gross income tes
not the 75% gross income test. In addition, asudised above, if the fair market value of the retdte securing any of our investments is less
than the principal amount of the underlying loappation of the income from that investment will pgalifying income for purposes of the 9
gross income test but not the 75% gross income test

Fee Income

We may receive various fees in conneactiih our operations. The fees will be qualifyimgome for purposes of both the 75% gross
income and 95% gross income tests if they arevedeén consideration for entering into an agreememake a loan secured by a mortgage on
real property or an interest in real property drelfees are not determined by income or profisngfperson. Other fees are not qualifying
income for purposes of either gross income tesy. f&es earned by our TRS will not be included forgmses of the gross income tests.

Dividends

Our share of any dividends received faomg corporation (including any TRS that we formdualing the completion of this offering, and
any other TRS, but excluding any REIT or any qiedifREIT subsidiary) in which we own an equity net&t will qualify for purposes of the
95% gross income test but not for purposes of 8% @ross income test. Our share of any dividendsived from any other REIT in which we
own an equity interest will be qualifying income faurposes of both gross income tests.

Rents from Real Property
We currently do not intend to acquirel gaperty with the proceeds of this offering.
Hedging Transactions

We may, from time to time, enter into §ied) transactions with respect to the interestrigteassociated with our borrowings. To the
extent that we enter into a contract to hedge @sterate risk on indebtedness incurred to acquioawoy real estate assets, any income and gain
from such hedging transaction will be excluded frgmoss income for purposes of the 95% gross indestebut will be treated as non-
qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gros®ine test. To the extent that we hedge for othepgames, the resultant income or gain wil
treated as income that does not qualify under 5 8ross income or 75% gross income test unlessiceequirements are met. We intend to
structure any hedging transaction in a mannerdbas not jeopardize our status as a REIT but weatarssure you that we will be successful
in this regard. We may conduct some or all of cedlding activities through a TRS, the income froniclvimay be subject to federal income
tax, rather than participating in the arrangemdiresctly or through a partnership, qualified RELbsidiary or other disregarded subsidiary. No
assurance can be given, however, that our hedgingties will not give rise to income that doest gpialify for purposes of either or both of
the REIT gross income tests, and will not advera#figct our ability to satisfy the REIT qualificati requirements.

Failure to Satisfy Gross Income Tests

We intend to monitor the amount of ounsgualifying income and manage our assets to convjilythe gross income tests for each
taxable year for which we seek to maintain ounustats a REIT. We cannot assure you,
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however, that we will be able to satisfy the griome®me tests. If we fail to satisfy one or botttted gross income tests for any taxable year, we
may nevertheless qualify as a REIT for such yewaeifqualify for relief under certain provisionstbe Code. These relief provisions will be
generally available if (i) our failure to meet suelts was due to reasonable cause and not dudftd meglect, and (ii) we file with the IRS a
schedule describing the sources of our gross indnraecordance with Treasury Regulations. We capresdict, however, whether in all
circumstances, we would qualify for the benefitti#se relief provisions. In addition, as discussieove under “—Taxation of Our Company,”
even if the relief provisions apply, a tax wouldibosed upon the amount by which we fail to satiké particular gross income test.

Asset Tests

To qualify as a REIT, we also must sgtthe following asset tests at the end of eachtquaf each taxable year. First, at least 75% of
the value of our total assets must consist of soonebination of “real estate assets,” cash, casisitgovernment securities, and, under some
circumstances, stock or debt instruments purchastadhew capital. For this purpose, the term “restiate assets” includes interests in real
property (including leaseholds and options to aegreal property and leaseholds), stock of otheparations that qualify as REITs and
interests in mortgage loans secured by real proiextiuding certain types of mortgage backed siées). Assets that do not qualify for
purposes of the 75% test are subject to the additiasset tests described below.

Second, the value of our interest in ang issuer’s securities (other than debt and egeityrities issued by any of our TRSs, qualified
REIT subsidiaries, any other entity that is disrdgd as an entity separate from us, and any eouégest we may hold in a partnership) may
not exceed 5% of the value of our total assetsd] e may not own more than 10% of the voting poerel0% of the value of any one
issuer’s outstanding securities (other than debtesuity securities issued by any of our TRSs, ifjedIREIT subsidiaries, any other entity that
is disregarded as an entity separate from us, ap@@uity interest we may hold in a partnershipuih, no more than 20% of the value of our
total assets may consist of the securities of smaare TRSs. For purposes of the 10% value testieim “securities” does not include certain
“straight debt” securities.

Notwithstanding the general rule that,darposes of the gross income and asset tes|aiRtreated as owning its proportionate share
of the underlying assets of a partnership in witittolds a partnership interest, if a REIT holddehtedness issued by a partnership, the
indebtedness will be subject to, and may causelation of the asset tests, unless it is a qualifynortgage asset or otherwise satisfies the
rules for “straight debt.” Similarly, although stoof another REIT qualifies as a real estate dsseturposes of the REIT asset tests, non-
mortgage debt issued by another REIT may not stifgua

Any regular or residual interest thataven in a REMIC will generally qualify as real egtassets. However, if less than 95% of the
assets of a REMIC consist of assets that qualifgakestate assets, then we will be treated artgptlirectly our proportionate share of the
assets of such REMIC for purposes of the asset test

We believe that most of the real estatated securities that we expect to hold will baltdying assets for purposes of the 75% asset test
However, our investment in other asset-backed ge&xsjrbank loans and other instruments that ates@cured by mortgages on real property
will not be qualifying assets for purposes of thé6rasset test.

We will monitor the status of our asdetspurposes of the various asset tests and wak $& manage our portfolio to comply at all times
with such tests. There can be no assurance, howteatmwe will be successful in this effort. Indhiegard, to determine our compliance with
these requirements, we will need to estimate thgevaf our assets to ensure compliance with thetassts. We will not obtain independent
appraisals to support our conclusions concerniag/gttiues of our assets, and we will generally oslyepresentations and warranties of sellers
from whom we acquire mortgage loans concerninddae-to-value ratios for such mortgage loans. Meegpsome of the assets that we may
own may not be susceptible to precise valuatiothddigh we will seek to be prudent in making thestereates, there can be no assurance that
the IRS will not disagree with these determinatiand assert that a different value is applicalbleyhich case we might not satisfy the 75%
asset test and the other asset tests and would faialify as a REIT.

Failure to Satisfy Asset Tests
If we fail to satisfy the asset testdtssend of a quarter, we will not lose our REIT Ification if:
. we satisfied the asset tests at the end of thegireg calendar quarter; a
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. the discrepancy between the value of our assetthaenaksset test requirements arose from chandbe market values of ol
assets and was not wholly or partly caused by ¢lyeiaition of one or more n-qualifying assets

If we did not satisfy the condition débed in the second bullet above, we still couldidwisqualification by eliminating any
discrepancy within 30 days after the close of @leredar quarter in which it arose.

If we violate the 5% value test, 10% wgttest or 10% value test described above at thetany calendar quarter, we will not lose our
REIT qualification if (i) the failure is de minimi@p to the lesser of 1% of our total assets oriilllon) and (ii) we dispose of these assets or
otherwise comply with the asset tests within sixithe after the last day of the quarter. In the eeéa more than de minimis failure of any of
the asset tests, as long as the failure was digasmnable cause and not to willful neglect, wé wat lose our REIT qualification if we (i) file
with the IRS a schedule describing the assetscthated the failure, (i) dispose of these assetgsharwise comply with the asset tests within
six months after the last day of the quarter aiidp@y a tax equal to the greater of $50,000 pédurfe or an amount equal to the product of the
highest corporate income tax rate (currently 358@) the net income from the non-qualifying assetinduthe period in which we failed to
satisfy the asset tests.

Annual Distribution Requirements

To qualify as a REIT, we are requiredligtribute dividends (other than capital gain dérnds) to our stockholders in an amount at least
equal to:

(A) the sum of
(i) 90% of our “REIT taxalilrcome” (computed without regard to the dividepd#&d deduction and our net capital gains), and
(i) 90% of the net inconadtér tax), if any, from foreclosure property (&sdribed below), minus

(B) the sum of certain items of non-castome.

In addition, if we were to recognize “Inin-gain” (as defined below) on disposition ofyaassets acquired from a “C” corporation in a
transaction in which our basis in the assets wéarigéned by reference to the “C” corporation’s Bg$or instance, if the assets were acquired
in a tax-free reorganization), we would be requieedistribute at least 90% of the built-in-gailcegnized net of the tax we would pay on such
gain. “Built-in-gain” is the excess of (a) the failarket value of an asset (measured at the tinaeafisition) over (b) the basis of the asset
(measured at the time of acquisition).

Such distributions must be paid in theatde year to which they relate, or in the followitaxable year if either (i) we declare the
distribution before we file a timely federal incotae return for the year and pay the distributidthwr before the first regular dividend
payment after such declaration or (ii) we declagedistribution in October, November or Decembetheftaxable year, payable to stockholc
of record on a specified day in any such month,wadctually pay the dividends before the end nfiday of the following year. The
distributions under clause (i) are taxable to then€rs of our common stock in the year in which part the distributions in clause (ii) are
treated as paid on December 31 of the prior taxgdde. In both instances, these distributions ediatour prior taxable year for purposes of the
90% distribution requirement.

We will pay federal income tax at corfgertax rates on our taxable income, including agital gain, that we do not distribute to
stockholders. Furthermore, if we fail to distribdii¢ring each calendar year, or by the end of Jgrfellowing the calendar year in the case of
distributions with declaration and record dateBrfglin the last three months of the calendar yagleast the sum of (i) 85% of our REIT
ordinary income for such year, (ii) 95% of our REldpital gain income for such year and (iii) angligtributed taxable income from prior
periods, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductibdeise tax on the excess of such required distdioubiver the amounts actually distributed.
We generally intend to make timely distribution$fisient to satisfy the annual distribution requirents and to avoid corporate federal income
tax and the 4% nondeductible excise tax.

We may elect to retain, rather than diste, our net capital gain and pay tax on suchgydn this case, we could elect to have our
stockholders include their proportionate shareushsundistributed capital gains in income and teiee a corresponding credit or refund, as
the case may be, for their share of the tax paidshystockholders would then increase the adjussi of their stock by the difference
between the designated amounts
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of capital gains from us that they include in thiakable income, and the tax paid on their behalidwith respect to that income.

To the extent that a REIT has availateeaperating losses carried forward from priorytears, such losses may reduce the amount of
distributions that it must make to comply with REIT distribution requirements. Such losses, howewdl generally not affect the character,
in the hands of stockholders, of any distributitivet are actually made by the REIT, which are galhetaxable to stockholders to the extent
that the REIT has current or accumulated earningspaofits. See “—Taxation of Stockholders, —Taaatof Taxable Domestic
Stockholders.”

We may find it difficult or impossible toeet distribution requirements in certain circiamses. Due to the nature of the assets in which
we will invest, we may be required to recognizeatalg income from those assets in advance of oeipecf cash flow on or proceeds from
disposition of such assets. For instance, we magdpgired to accrue interest and discount incommorigage loans, mortgage backed
securities, and other types of debt securitiest@résts in debt securities before we receive agynents of interest or principal on such assets.
Moreover, in certain instances we may be requivegttrue taxable income that we may not actuatiggeize as economic income. For
example, if we own a residual equity position imartgage loan securitization, we may recognizelitexancome that we will never actually
receive due to losses sustained on the underlyortgage loans. Although those losses would be didadleidor tax purposes, they would likely
occur in a year subsequent to the year in whichewegnized the taxable income. Thus, for any taxgbhr, we may be required to fund
distributions in excess of cash flow received froan investments. If such circumstances arise, théand our distribution requirement and
maintain our status as a REIT we may have to ss#ta at unfavorable prices, borrow at unfavortdstes, make taxable stock dividends, or
pursue other strategies. We cannot be assuredveoyvany such strategy would be successful if ashdlow were to become insufficient to
make the required distributions.

Under certain circumstances, we may e @hrectify a failure to meet the distributiorgterement for a year by paying “deficiency
dividends” to stockholders in a later year, whicaynbe included in our deduction for dividends pfaidthe earlier year. Thus, we may be able
to avoid being taxed on amounts distributed ascagfcy dividends; however, we will be required &y pnterest and a penalty to the IRS based
on the amount of any deduction taken for deficietieydends.

Failure to Qualify

If we falil to satisfy one or more requirents for REIT qualification, other than the grogsome tests and the asset tests, we could avoid
disqualification if our failure is due to reasorabhuse and not to willful neglect and we pay aftgrof $50,000 for each such failure. In
addition, there are relief provisions for a failafethe gross income tests and asset tests, aslobt “—Gross Income Tests” and “—Asset
Tests.”

If we fail to qualify for taxation as &Rl in any taxable year, and the relief provisidiesnot apply, we will be subject to tax (including
any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our tdgancome at regular federal corporate incomea#es. Distributions to stockholders in
year in which we fail to qualify will not be dedilde by us nor will they be required to be madesiich event, to the extent of current
accumulated earnings and profits, all distributitmstockholders will be taxable as ordinary incoared, subject to certain limitations of the
Code, corporate stockholders may be eligible ferdividends received deduction, and individual lshatders and other non-corporate
stockholders may be eligible to be taxed at theced 15% rate currently applicable to qualifieddind income (through 2010). Unless
entitled to relief under specific statutory prowiss, we will also be disqualified from taxationsaREIT for the four taxable years following the
year during which qualification was lost. We canpadict whether in all circumstances we would betled to such statutory relie

Prohibited Transactions

Net income derived by a REIT from a pbiteid transaction is subject to a 100% exciseTae.term “prohibited transaction” generally
includes a sale or other disposition of propertiéothan foreclosure property) that is held “pnityefor sale to customers in the ordinary
course of a trade or business.” Although we doempect that our assets will be held primarily falesto customers or that a sale of any of our
assets will be in the ordinary course of our bussnéhese terms are dependent upon the partiadts dnd circumstances, and we cannot a
you that we will never be subject to this excise Ehe 100% tax does not apply to gains from the sbproperty that is held through a TRS
other taxable corporation, although such incomébeilsubject to tax in the hands of the corporasibregular federal corporate income tax
rates.

131




Foreclosure Property

A REIT is subject to tax at the maximuanporate rate (currently 35%) on any income fromeétosure property, including gain from 1
disposition of such foreclosure property, othentircome that otherwise would be qualifying incofmepurposes of the 75% gross income
test. Foreclosure property is real property andmergonal property incident to such real propdjtsh@t is acquired by a REIT as result of the
REIT having bid on such property at foreclosurehaving otherwise reduced the property to ownershipossession by agreement or process
of law, after there was a default (or default wasinent) on a lease of such property or a mortd@ae held by the REIT and secured by the
property, (ii) for which the related loan or leaga&s acquired by the REIT at a time when default m@smminent or anticipated and (iii) for
which such REIT makes a proper election to treafpitoperty as foreclosure property. Any gain friwe $ale of property for which a
foreclosure election has been made will not beesathip the 100% excise tax on gains from prohibitadsactions described above, even if the
property would otherwise constitute inventory oaleée property in the hands of the selling REIT. Bdenot expect to receive income from
foreclosure property that is not qualifying incofoe purposes of the 75% gross income test. Howeéf/@e do receive any such income, we
intend to make an election to treat the relateg@my as foreclosure property.

Taxable Mortgage Pools

An entity, or a portion of an entity, miag classified as a TMP under the Code if (i) sattslly all of its assets consist of debt
obligations or interests in debt obligations, fiipre than 50% of those debt obligations are raat@snortgage loans, interests in real estate
mortgage loans or interests in certain mortgageked securities as of specified testing dati@sth@ entity has issued debt obligations thatd
two or more maturities and (iv) the payments rezplito be made by the entity on its debt obligatitiesr a relationshipto the payments to t
received by the entity on the debt obligations thholds as assets. Under Treasury Regulatiomsssfthan 80% of the assets of an entity (or a
portion of an entity) consist of debt obligatiotieese debt obligations are considered not to caagsubstantially all” of its assets, and
therefore the entity would not be treated as a TMP.

We do not intend to structure or entéo Becuritization or financing transactions that eause us to be viewed as owning interests in
one or more TMPs. Generally, if an entity or a jporof an entity is classified as a TMP, then thétg or portion thereof is treated as a taxable
corporation and it cannot file a consolidated fatlercome tax return with any other corporationhbwever, a REIT owns 100% of the equity
interests in a TMP, then the TMP is a qualified REUbsidiary and, as such, ignored as an entitgraggpfrom the REIT.

If, notwithstanding our intent to avoidving the issuing entity in any of our securitigator financing transactions classified as a TMP,
one or more of such transactions was so classifiet, as long as we owned 100% of the equity isteti@ the issuing entity, all or a portion of
the income that we recognize with respect to ovestment in the issuing entity will be treated ssess inclusion income. Section 860E(c) of
the Code defines the term “excess inclusion” withpect to a residual interest in a REMIC. The IIR8yever, has yet to issue guidance on the
computation of excess inclusion income on equitgrests in a TMP held by a REIT. Generally, howgegcess inclusion income with respect
to our investment in any TMP and any taxable yaliraqual the excess of (i) the amount of incomeagerue on our investment in the TMP
over (ii) the amount of income we would have acdrifi@ur investment were a debt instrument havingsaue price equal to the fair market
value of our investment on the day we acquiredd a yield to maturity equal to 120% of the long¥teapplicable federal rate in effect on the
date we acquired our interest. The term “applicéddieral rate” refers to rates that are based aghted average yields for treasury securities
and are published monthly by the IRS for use iiousrtax calculations. If we undertake securitmatiransactions that are TMPs, the amount
of excess inclusion income we recognize in anylikxgear could represent a significant portion wf ital taxable for that year.

Although we intend to structure our s@@ation and financing transactions so that we nat recognize any excess inclusion income,
we cannot assure you that we will always be sufgkissthis regard. If, notwithstanding our intemte recognized excess inclusion income,
then under guidance issued by the IRS we woulegeired to allocate the excess inclusion incomegntmnately among the dividends we
pay to our stockholders and we must notify ourlgtotders of the portion of our dividends that regemgts excess inclusion income. The portion
of any dividend you receive that is treated as ex@eclusion income is subject to special rulesstFyour taxable income can never be less
the sum of your excess inclusion income for the;yeecess inclusion income cannot be offset withaperating losses or other allowable
deductions. Second, if you are a tax-exempt orgdioiz and your excess inclusion income is subthié¢ unrelated business income tax, then
the excess inclusion portion of any dividend yazeiee will be treated as unrelated business taxabtame. Third,
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dividends paid to Foreign Owners who hold stockifiwestment and not in connection with a tradeusitess conducted in the United Sates
will be subject to United States federal withholgiblax without regard to any reduction in rate otfiee allowed by any applicable income tax
treaty.

If we recognize excess inclusion incoarg] one or more Disqualified Organizations areneébolders of shares of common stock, we
will be taxable at the highest federal corporat®ine tax rate on the portion of any excess inclugioome equal to the percentage of our s
that is held by Disqualified Organizations. In seittumstances, we may reduce the amount of otnitlisons to a Disqualified Organization
whose stock ownership gave rise to the tax. Textent that our common stock owned by Disqualiftedanizations is held by a broker/de:
or other nominee, the broker/dealer or other nomimeuld be liable for a tax at the highest corpotak rate on the portion of our excess
inclusion income allocable to our common stock hmldhe broker/dealer or other nominee on behatfiefDisqualified Organizations.

If we own less than 100% of the equitgiasts in a TMP, the foregoing rules would notiapRather, the entity would be treated as a
corporation for federal income tax purposes andlevpatentially be subject to federal corporate mectax. This could adversely affect our
compliance with the REIT gross income and assé&t tisscribed above. We currently do not have, anctotly do not intend to enter into any
securitization or financing transaction that isMFin which we own some, but less than all, ofelqeity interests, and we intend to monitor
structure of any TMPs in which we have an inteteginsure that they will not adversely affect datiss as a REIT. We cannot assure you that
we will be successful in this regard.

Taxation of Owners
Taxation of Taxable Domestic Owners

DistributionsAs long as we qualify as a REIT, distributions wake to our taxable Domestic Owners out of currertocumulated
earnings and profits (and not designated as cagaial dividends) will be taken into account by thasnordinary income. Dividends we pay to a
corporation will not be eligible for the dividendsceived deduction. In addition, distributions wek® to individuals and other Owners that are
not corporations generally will not be eligible the 15% reduced rate of tax currently (through®@0d effect for “qualified dividend income.”
However, provided certain holding period and otteguirements are met, an individual or other nomarmate Owner will be eligible for the
15% reduced rate with respect to (i) distributiattsibutable to dividends we receive from certa@i torporations, such as our TRSs, and (ii)
distributions attributable to income upon which meve paid corporate income tax.

Distributions that we designate as capién dividends will be taxed as long-term capifains (to the extent that they do not exceed our
actual net capital gain for the taxable year) withegard to the period for which you have ownedeammmon stock. However, corporate
Owners may be required to treat up to 20% of aextapital gain dividends as ordinary income. Loagrt capital gains are generally taxable at
maximum federal rates of 15% (through 2010) indage of individuals, trusts and estates, and 35#teicase of corporations.

Rather than distribute our net capitahgawe may elect to retain and pay the federairime tax on them, in which case you will (i)
include your proportionate share of the undistelutet capital gains in income, (ii) receive a itriedt your share of the federal income tax we
pay and (iii) increase the basis in your commoglstay the difference between your share of thetabgain and your share of the credit.

Distributions in excess of our currentl @tcumulated earnings and profits will not be bdeo you to the extent that they do not exceed
your adjusted tax basis in our common stock you,dwhrather, will reduce your adjusted tax basigaur common stock. Assuming that -
common stock you own is a capital asset, to thergxhat such distributions exceed your adjustedé#asis in the common stock you own, you
must include them in income as long-term capitéh gar short-term capital gain if the common stbels been held for one year or less).

If we declare a dividend in October, NoNeer or December of any year that is payable tokimlders of record on a specified date in
any such month, but actually distribute the ama@diared in January of the following year, then youst treat the January distribution as
though you received it on December 31 of the yeavhich we declared the dividend. In addition, wayrelect to treat other distributions after
the close of the taxable year as having been paidglthe taxable year, but you will be treatedhaging received these distributions in the
taxable year in which they are actually made.

To the extent that we have availableopefrating losses and capital losses carried fordvard prior tax years, such losses may reduce
the amount of distributions that we must make tmgly with the REIT distribution
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requirements. See “—Annual Distribution Requirersénbuch losses, however, are not passed througbu@nd do not offset your income
from other sources, nor would they affect the ctigraof any distributions that you receive from ysy will be subject to tax on those
distributions to the extent that we have curreraarumulated earnings and profits.

Although we do not expect to recognizg excess inclusion income, if we did recognize sgdaclusion income, we would identify a
portion of the distributions that we make to yole&sess inclusion income. Your taxable income @renbe less than the sum of your excess
inclusion income for the year; excess inclusioroine cannot be offset with net operating losseglerallowable deductions. See “—Taxable
Mortgage Pools.”

Dispositions of Our Stockny gain or loss you recognize upon the sale oemwdlisposition of our common stock will generally dapita
gain or loss for federal income tax purposes, aitico@ long-term capital gain or loss if you heltetcommon stock for more than one year. In
addition, any loss you recognize upon a sale onaxge of our common stock that you have ownedixamenths or less (after applying cert
holding period rules) will generally be treatedsdsng-term capital loss to the extent of distribug received from us that you are required to
treat as long-term capital gain.

If you recognize a loss upon a disposittbour common stock in an amount that exceedgscpbed threshold, it is possible that the
provisions of recently adopted Treasury Regulatiomslving “reportable transactions” could applyithwva resulting requirement to separately
disclose the loss-generating transaction to the WRislle these regulations are directed towards Staelters,” they are written quite broadly,
and apply to transactions that would not typichllyconsidered tax shelters. In addition, recenthceed legislation imposes significant
penalties for failure to comply with these requiests. You should consult your tax advisor concey@iny possible disclosure obligation with
respect to the receipt or disposition of our comrstmrtk, or transactions that might be undertakegctly or indirectly by us. Moreover, you
should be aware that we and other participantsaérnransactions involving us (including our advionay be subject to disclosure or other
requirements pursuant to these regulations.

Amounts that you are required to inclidéaxable income with respect to our common stgmk own, including taxable distributions
and the income you recognize with respect to uribiged net capital gain, and any gain recognizeshuyour disposition of our common
stock, will not be treated as passive activity meo You may not offset any passive activity loggas may have, such as losses from limited
partnerships in which you have invested, with inegrou recognize with respect to our shares of comstack. Generally, income you
recognize with respect to our common stock wiltieated as investment income for purposes of thestment interest limitations.

Information Reporting and Backup Withtio¢d We will report to our stockholders and to the IR8 amount of distributions we pay
during each calendar year and the amount of tawitdnold, if any. Under the backup withholding rsilegou may be subject to backup
withholding at a current rate of 28% with respectlistributions unless you:

l. are a corporation or come within certain other gxecategories and, when required, demonstratdabisor

Il. provide a taxpayer identification number, certista no loss of exemption from backup withholdiagd otherwise comply with
the applicable requirements of the backup withimgdiles.

Any amount paid as backup withholdingl wé creditable against your federal income talsility. For a discussion of the backup
withholding rules as applied to foreign owners, ‘sed axation of Foreign Owners.”

Taxation of Tax-Exempt Owners

Tax-exempt entities, including qualifiechployee pension and profit sharing trusts andviddal retirement accounts, are generally
exempt from federal income taxation. However, tasy subject to taxation on their unrelated busiteesable income (“UBTI"). Provided that
a tax-exempt Owner (i) has not held our commonksésc‘debt financed property” within the meaningted Code and (ii) has not used our
common stock in an unrelated trade or businessyatadhat we distribute to tax-exempt Owners gelyesaould not constitute UBTI.
However, a tax-exempt Owner’s allocable share gfeatess inclusion income that we recognize wilsblject to tax as UBTI. See “—
Taxable Mortgage Pools.” We intend to structuresmauritization and financing transactions so Weatvill avoid recognizing any excess
inclusion income.

134




Tax-exempt Owners that are social clubgjntary employee benefit associations, suppleatememployment benefit trusts and
qualified group legal services plans, exempt fraxation under special provisions of the federabme tax laws, are subject to different UBTI
rules, which generally will require them to chagaie distributions that they receive from us asTUB

In certain circumstances, a qualified Eyge pension trust or profit sharing trust thahewnore than 10% of our stock could be reqt
to treat a percentage of the dividends that itivesefrom us as UBTI if we are a “pension-held REMe will not be a pension-held REIT
unless either (a) one pension trust owns more 268 of the value of our stock or (b) a group ofgien trusts individually holding more than
10% of our stock collectively owns more than 50%haf value of our stock. However, the restrictionsownership and transfer of our stock
described under “Description of Capital Stock—Resbns on Ownership and Transfer” are designedraather things to prevent a tax-
exempt entity from owning more than 10% of the eatdi our stock, thus making it unlikely that we Mikcome a pension-held REIT.

Taxation of Foreign Owners

The following is a summary of certain Uf€deral income and estate tax consequences ofithership and disposition of our common
stock applicable to a Foreign Owner.

If a partnership, including for this poge any entity that is treated as a partnership) #8r federal income tax purposes, holds our
common stock, the tax treatment of a partner irpiénership will generally depend upon the stafube partner and the activities of the
partnership. An investor that is a partnership hguikoreign Owners as partners should consultitadaisors about the U.S. federal income
consequences of the acquisition, ownership anasligpn of our common stock.

The discussion is based on current lagvisufior general information only. The discussiaidi@sses only certain and not all aspects of
U.S. federal income and estate taxation.

Ordinary Dividend Distributiong.he portion of dividends received by a Foreign Ompegyable out of our current and accumulated
earnings and profits that are not attributableupaapital gains and that are not effectively cated with a U.S. trade or business of the
Foreign Owner will be subject to U.S. withholdiraxtat the rate of 30% (unless reduced by an afgdidacome tax treaty). In general, a
Foreign Owner will not be considered engaged in& ttade or business solely as a result of itsessitip of our common stock. In cases
where the dividend income from a Foreign Ownenrgestment in our common stock is (or is treateceffectively connected with the Foreign
Owner’s conduct of a U.S. trade or business, threigfp Owner generally will be subject to U.S. taxgeaduated rates, in the same manner as
Domestic Owners are taxed with respect to suclddivds (and may also be subject to the 30% brarmdhsptax in the case of a foreign owner
that is a foreign corporation). If a Foreign Owitethe record holder of shares of our common staekplan to withhold U.S. income tax at the
rate of 30% on the gross amount of any distribugaid to a Foreign Owner unless:

. a lower income treaty rate applies and the For@gmer provides us with an IRS Form W-8BEN evidegaéfigibility for that
reduced rate; c

. the Foreign Owner provides us with an IRS Forl-8ECI certifying that the distribution is effectiyetonnected incom:e

Under some income tax treaties, lowehkagtding tax rates do not apply to ordinary dividerirom REITs. Furthermore, reduced treaty
rates are not available to the extent that distidiog are treated as excess inclusion income. Sekakable Mortgage Pools.” We intend to
structure our securitization and financing transast so that we will avoid recognizing any excessusion income.

Non-Dividend Distribution®istributions we make to a Foreign Owner that areaonsidered to be distributions out of our currd
accumulated earnings and profits will not be sutjed).S. federal income or withholding tax unléss distribution exceeds the Foreign
Owner’s adjusted tax basis in our common stocketitne of the distribution and, as described betbe Foreign Owner would otherwise be
taxable on any gain from a disposition of our commatock. If it cannot be determined at the timeéstrihution is made whether or not such
distribution will be in excess of our current arcd@mulated earnings and profits, the entire distiim will be subject to withholding at the rate
applicable to dividends. A Foreign Owner may, hogregeek a refund of such amounts from the IRSsfsubsequently determined that the
distribution was, in fact, in excess of our current accumulated earnings and profits, providegtbper forms are timely filed with the IRS
by the Foreign Owner.
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Capital Gain Dividend®istributions that we make to Foreign Owners thiatadtributable to our disposition of U.S. realpeay
interests (“USRPI,” which term does not includeehaists in mortgage loans and mortgage backed 8esydre subject to U.S. federal income
and withholding taxes pursuant to the Foreign Itmesit in Real Property Act of 1980, or FIRPTA, andy also be subject to branch profits
tax if the Foreign Owner is a corporation thatas entitled to treaty relief or exemption. Althougle do not anticipate recognizing any gain
attributable to the disposition of USRPI, as dediby FIRPTA, Treasury Regulations interpreting BiRPTA provisions of the Code impose a
withholding tax at a rate of 35% on all of our ¢apgain dividends (or amounts we could have degighas capital gain dividends) paid to
Foreign Owners, even if no portion of the capit@ihg we recognize during the year are attributeblzur disposition of USRPI. However, in
any event, the FIRPTA rules will not apply to distitions to a Foreign Owner so long as (i) our camratock is regularly traded (as definec
applicable Treasury Regulations) on an establisieedrities market, and (ii) the Foreign Owner oatiually or constructively) no more than
5% of our common stock at any time during the oearyperiod ending with the date of the distribution

Dispositions of Our Stoddnless our common stock constitutes a USRPI, acdadar common stock by a Foreign Owner generally w
not be subject to U.S. federal income tax undeiPHIR. We do not expect that our common stock witisttute a USRPI. Our common stock
will not constitute a USRPI if less than 50% of assets throughout a prescribed testing periodstasfsinterests in real property located
within the United States, excluding, for this pusppinterest in real property solely in the capyaast a creditor. Even if the foregoing test is not
met, our common stock will not constitute a USRRVé are a domestically controlled REIT. A “domeatly controlled REIT” is a REIT in
which, at all times during a specified testing pdriless than 50% in value of its shares is hefecdy or indirectly by foreign owners.

Even if we do not constitute a domesljcabntrolled REIT, a Foreign Owner’s sale of oonumon stock generally will still not be
subject to tax under FIRPTA as a sale of a USR&Viged that (i) our stock is “regularly traded” @efined by applicable Treasury
Regulations) on an established securities marke&{igrthe selling Foreign Owner has owned (actual constructively) 5% or less of our
outstanding common stock at all times during a igelctesting period.

If gain on the sale of our stock werejsabto taxation under FIRPTA, the Foreign Owneuldogenerally be subject to the same
treatment as a Domestic Owner with respect to gadah (subject to applicable alternative minimum daxi a special alternative minimum tax
in the case of nonresident alien individuals) drelgurchaser of the common stock could be reqairedthhold 10% of the purchase price and
remit such amount to the IRS.

Capital gains not subject to FIRPTA witinetheless be taxable in the United States taeidfoOwner in two cases. First, if the Foreign
Owner’s investment in our common stock is effedfivannected with a U.S. trade or business condueyesuch Foreign Owner, the Foreign
Owner will generally be subject to the same treatnas a Domestic Owner with respect to such ganofd, if the Foreign Owner is a
nonresident alien individual who was present inUinied States for 183 days or more during thelibexgear and has a “tax home” in the
United States, the nonresident alien individual & subject to a 30% tax on the individual's calpgain.

Estate TaxOur common stock owned or treated as owned bydimidual who is not a citizen or resident of theitdd States (as
specially defined for U.S. federal estate tax pags) at the time of death will be includible in thdividual's gross estate for U.S. federal es
tax purposes, unless an applicable estate tay tpeavides otherwise. Such individual's estate thaysubject to U.S. federal estate tax on the
property includible in the estate for U.S. federstiate tax purposes.

Other Tax Consequences

Possible Legislative or Other Actionsesfing Tax Consequencégospective investors should recognize that thegmtefederal income
tax treatment of an investment in our common stoely be modified by legislative, judicial or adminigive action at any time, and that any
such action may affect investments and commitmgregiously made. The rules dealing with federabme taxation are constantly under
review by persons involved in the legislative psxand by the IRS and Treasury Department, regutinevisions of regulations and revised
interpretations of established concepts as wedtatsitory changes. Revisions in federal tax lavesiaterpretations thereof could adversely
affect the tax consequences of an investment irconmmon stock.

State and Local Taxé&§e and our stockholders may be subject to staliecal taxation in various state or local jurisdicts, including
those in which we or they transact business odeeSihe state and local tax treatment may not eonfo the federal income tax consequences
discussed above. Consequently, prospective investor
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should consult their own tax advisors regardingetfiect of state and local tax laws on an investnreour common stock.
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UNDERWRITING

Under the terms and subject to the c@nitcontained in an underwriting agreement dated2008, we have agreed to sell to the
underwriters named below, for whom Credit SuisseuSges (USA) LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenr& Smith Incorporated are acting
representatives, the following respective numbéshares of common stock:.

Number
Underwriter of Shares

Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LL

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporal
Deutsche Bank Securities Ir

J.P. Morgan Securities In

Citigroup Global Markets Inc

UBS Securities LLC

Total

The underwriting agreement provides thatunderwriters are obligated to purchase alkttees of common stock in the offering if any
are purchased, other than those shares coverde: lmyérallotment option described below. The undéng agreement also provides that if an
underwriter defaults, the purchase commitmentsofdefaulting underwriters may be increased ooffering may be terminated.

We have granted to the underwriters @&@option to purchase on a pro rata basis updiiadal shares from us at the public offering
price less the underwriting discounts and commissidhe option may be exercised only to cover amyailotments of common stock.

The underwriters propose to offer therab@f common stock at the public offering pricetlom cover page of this prospectus at that price
less a selling concession of $ per share. Alftepublic offering the representatives may chahgepublic offering price and concession.

The following table summarizes the congagion and estimated expenses we will pay:

Per Share Total
Without With Without With
Over-allotment Over-allotment Over-allotment Over-allotment
Underwriting Discounts an
Commissions paid by t $ $ $ $
Expenses payable by $ $ $ $

We estimate that our out of pocket expsrisr this offering will be approximately $

Pursuant to certain “lock-up” agreements, Annaly and our officers and directors haveeadr subject to certain exceptions, not to
offer, sell, contract to sell, announce any intemtio sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of, diyectlindirectly, or file with the SEC a registrati
statement under the Securities Act relating to,@mmon shares or securities convertible into shargeable or exercisable for any common
shares without the prior written consent of Cré&litsse Securities (USA) LLC for a period of 90 daftsr the date of this prospectus.
Specifically, we and these other individuals hageead, with certain exceptions, not to directlyralirectly:

. offer, pledge, sell or contract to sell any comrstock;

. sell any option or contract to purchase any comstook;

. purchase any option or contract to sell any comstook;

. grant any option, right or warrant for the saleany common stocl

. lend or otherwise dispose of or transfer any comstook;

. request or demand that we file a registration state related to the common stock;
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. enter into any swap or other agreement that tresysfewhole or in part, the economic consequeriaamership of any commc
stock whether any such swap or transaction is teeltéed by delivery of shares or other securifiesash or otherwist

This lock-up provision applies to commatack and to securities convertible into or excleside or exercisable for or repayable with
common stock. It also applies to common stock owred or acquired later by the person executingatireement or for which the person
executing the agreement later acquires the poweispbsition.

The 90-day restricted period will be an&ically extended if (1) during the last 17 dajshe lock-up restricted period, we issue an
earnings release or material news or a materialteedating to us occurs or (2) before the exparmf the 90-day restricted period, we
announce that we will release earnings resultsooimes aware that material news or a material evilrdaccur during the 16-day period
beginning on the last day of the €@y restricted period, in which case the restmdidescribed above will continue to apply until éx@iratior
of the 18-day period beginning on the issuancéefarnings release or the occurrence of the rahtenvs or material event. The exceptions
permit us, among other things and subject to giris, to issue common stock or options pursuaout long term equity incentive plan or
pursuant to the exercise of employee stock optioragher awards.

Additionally, Annaly has agreed with osat further lock-up period in connection with theses purchased by Annaly concurrent with
our initial public offering that will expire at thearlier of (i) November 15, 2010 or (ii) the temation of the management agreement. Annaly
has further agreed with us to a further lock-upquein connection with the shares purchased by Anoc@ncurrent with this offering that will
expire at the earlier of (i) the date which is thyears following the date of this prospectus idtife termination of the management agreement.

We have agreed to indemnify the undeessifigainst liabilities under the Securities Actgantribute to payments that the underwriters
may be required to make in that respect.

The shares of common stock have beeroapgdrfor listing on the New York Stock Exchangejeabto official notice of issuance, under
the symbol “CIM”.

In connection with the offering the undgdters may engage in stabilizing transactions ralltment transactions, syndicate covering
transactions, and penalty bids in accordance wigufation M under the Securities Exchange Act &41@he “Exchange Act”).

. Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchaseuhderlying security so long as the stabilizingskdo not exceed a specified
maximum.
. Overallotment involves sales by the underwriterstdres in excess of the number of shares the writtes are obligated to

purchase, which creates a syndicate short posifioa.short position may be either a covered shasitjpn or a naked short
position. In a covered short position, the numideshares over-allotted by the underwriters is metater than the number of
shares that they may purchase in the @lletment option. In a naked short position, thenber of shares involved is greater t
the number of shares in the over-allotment opfidre underwriters may close out any covered shaitipa by either exercising
their ove-allotment option and/or purchasing shares in trenaparket

. Syndicate covering transactions involve purchagéssocommon stock in the open market after theitigtion has been
completed in order to cover syndicate short pas#tion determining the source of shares to clos¢haushort position, the
underwriters will consider, among other things, phiee of shares available for purchase in the aparket as compared to the
price at which they may purchase shares througbvheallotment option. If the underwriters sellmahares than could be
covered by the over-allotment option, a naked shosition, the position can only be closed out byibg shares in the open
market. A naked short position is more likely todbeated if the underwriters are concerned thaetbeuld be downward
pressure on the price of the shares in the opekeanafter pricing that could adversely affect inees who purchase in the
offering.

. Penalty bids permit the representatives to reckaselling concession from a syndicate member wherdmmon stock
originally sold by the syndicate member is purclasea stabilizing or syndicate covering transattio cover syndicate short
positions.
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These stabilizing transactions, syndicate covetriagsactions and penalty bids may have the effetising or maintaining the market price of
our common stock or preventing or retarding a deciin the market price of the common stock. Assalteéhe price of our common stock may
be higher than the price that might otherwise érishe open market. These transactions may betetfeon the New York Stock Exchange or
otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinueshgatime.

This prospectus does not constitute & of, or an invitation by or on behalf of us,lyr or on behalf of the underwriters, to subscribe
for or purchase, any of the shares in any jurigglicto any person to whom it is unlawful to makefsan offer or solicitation in that
jurisdiction. The distribution of this prospectusdahe offering of the shares in certain jurisdio may be restricted by law. We and
underwriters require persons into whose possesisisprospectus comes to inform themselves abalit@observe any such restrictions.

In relation to each Member State of thueopean Economic Area which has implemented thegeeius Directive (each, a Relevant
Member State), each underwriter represents aneésghnat with effect from and including the dateadrich the Prospectus Directive is
implemented in that Relevant Member State (the\Relelmplementation Date) it has not made andwatlmake an offer of shares of comr
stock to the public in that Relevant Member Staiergo the publication of a prospectus in relatiorthe shares of common stock which has
been approved by the competent authority in thégR@t Member State or, where appropriate, appravedother Relevant Member State
notified to the competent authority in that Relevsiember State, all in accordance with the Prospsebirective, except that it may, with eff
from and including the Relevant Implementation Datake an offer of shares of common stock to th#ipin that Relevant Member State at
any time,

(&) tolegal entities which are authorized or reguldatedperate in the financial markets or, if notsthorized or regulated, who
corporate purpose is solely to invest in securi

(b)  to any legal entity which has two or more of (1)aaterage of at least 250 employees during thditestcial year; (2) a tot:
balance sheet of more than €43,000,000 and (3)amad net turnover of more than €50,000,000, agslhin its last annual or
consolidated account

(c) to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (othan tyualified investors as defined in the Prosmebivective) subject t
obtaining the prior consent of the manager for sugh offer; ol

(d) in any other circumstances which do not requirepthiglication by the Issuer of a prospectus purst@Atticle 3 of the
Prospectus Directive

For the purposes of this provision, thpression an “offer of shares of common stock eghblic” in relation to any shares of common
stock in any Relevant Member State means the conmaion in any form and by any means of sufficiefibormation on the terms of the offer
and the shares of common stock to be offered o @sable an investor to decide to purchase orcsiblesthe shares of common stock, as the
same may be varied in that Member State by any uneasplementing the Prospectus Directive in thanMder State and the expression
Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/ECiadddes any relevant implementing measure in &glbvant Member State.

Each of the underwriters severally repnés, warrants and agrees as follows:

(@) it has only communicated or caused to be commuedcand will only communicate or cause to be comieated an invitation ¢
inducement to engage in investment activity (witthie meaning of section 21 of FSMA) to persons Waee professional
experience in matters relating to investmentsrfglivith Article 19(5) of the Financial Services avldrkets Act 2000 (Financial
Promotion) Order 2005 or in circumstances in wigehtion 21 of FSMA does not apply to us; i

(b) it has complied with, and will comply with all ajgrble provisions of FSMA with respect to anytholgne by it in relation to tt
shares of common stock in, from or otherwise inwgwhe United Kingdom

A prospectus in electronic format maynteede available on the web sites maintained by omeooe of the underwriters, or selling group
members, if any, participating in this offering amtke or more of the underwriters participatinghiis offering may distribute prospectuses
electronically. The representatives may agreeltzale a number of shares to underwriters for teatkeir online brokerage account holders.
Internet distributions will be allocated by the endriters that will make internet distributions thre same basis as other allocations.
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Other Relationships

Certain of the underwriters and theipegive affiliates have, from time to time, perfauhn and may in the future perform, various
financial advisory and investment banking serviceur affiliates and us, for which they receivadwill receive customary fees and expen
including acting as underwriters for Annaly’s pubdifferings and providing financing to Annaly. Iddition, we have entered into repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities and interestsraggps with one or more of the following underwster their affiliates: Credit Suisse
Securities (USA) LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenn®iSmith Incorporated, Deutsche Bank Securities, l0BS Securities LLC, and J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. whereby, among other thimgsporrow funds to finance the purchase of RMB®& r@sidential mortgage loans.
Furthermore, certain of the underwriters and trespective affiliates are or have been countegmtt securities and other trading activities
with us. Finally, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. &rddit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, or their &ffies, were lead bookrunners for the $6:
million securitization we sponsored on April 24,080
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to thitedhg will be passed upon for us by Kirkpatricki&ckhart Preston Gates Ellis LLP, Washington,
D.C. In addition, the description of federal incotag consequences contained in the section ofriteppctus entitled “Certain Federal Income
Tax Considerations” is based on the opinion of MelIson LLP. Certain legal matters relating ts thfering will be passed upon for the
underwriters by Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & dason LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of Decemtie2B807, and for the period November 21, 2007 (dpgrations commenced) through
December 31, 2007, included in this prospectus baea audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an indepemdegistered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report appearing herein. Su@nfiial statements are included in reliance upemghort of such firm given upon their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the Securities and liaxege Commission a registration statement on Fefrh, $cluding exhibits and schedules fi
with the registration statement of which this pedps is a part, under the Securities Act of 18933%mended, with respect to the shares of
common stock to be sold in this offering. This pestus does not contain all of the informationfgeh in the registration statement and
exhibits and schedules to the registration staténfem further information with respect to us ahd shares of common stock to be sold in this
offering, reference is made to the registratiotesteent, including the exhibits and schedules tadigéstration statement. Copies of the
registration statement, including the exhibits aoldedules to the registration statement, may beieveal without charge at the public refere
room of the Securities and Exchange Commission,FL8@eet, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 2054f@®rmation about the operation of
the public reference room may be obtained by aaliire Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-&0-3300. Copies of all or a portion of
the registration statement may be obtained fronpthsic reference room of the Securities and Exgea&bommission upon payment of
prescribed fees. Our Securities and Exchange Caosioniéilings, including our registration statemearte also available to you, free of charge,
on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s websitevw.sec.gov.

We are subject to the information ancbrépg requirements of the Securities Exchangedhdi934, as amended, and file periodic
reports, proxy statements and make available tstmakholders annual reports containing auditednfafal information for each year and
quarterly reports for the first three quartersadtefiscal year containing unaudited interim finahmformation.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by refece” information into this prospectus which haetbpreviously filed, which means that we
can disclose important information to you by rafegryou to another document filed separately whiia SEC. The information incorporated by
reference is deemed to be part of this prospeetuspt for any information superseded by informmatiothis prospectus. We have filed the
documents listed below with the SEC (File No. 1-837under the Exchange Act, and these documenis@rgorated herein by reference:

— Our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2007 as filetMarch 3, 2008

— Our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filed on Nldy2008; an

— Our Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 5, 2008

Any statement contained in this prospgciuin a document incorporated by reference ffeatieemed to be modified or superseded for
all purposes to the extent that a statement caedaimthis prospectus or in any other document Wwhi@lso incorporated by reference modi
or supersedes that statement.
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We will provide to each person, includengy beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this pexdps is delivered, a copy of any or all of the
information that has been incorporated by referémdkis prospectus but not delivered with thisgpectus (other than the exhibits to such
documents which are not specifically incorporatgddference herein); we will provide this infornmatiat no cost to the requester upon written
or oral request to Investor Relations, Chimera $tment Corporation, 1211 Avenue of the AmericasteS2002, New York, New York 10036,

telephone number (212) 696-0100.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying statement of dinhoondition of Chimera Investment Corporatidme(tCompany”) as of December 31,
2007 and the related statements of operations @amgrehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and flasVs for the period from November
21, 2007 (date operations commenced) to Decemh&0BT . These financial statements are the redpititysof the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isriral control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrawnglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evideopparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presailyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of Chimera Investment Corporation as of
December 31, 2007, and the results of its operatgoml its cash flows for the period from NovemberZD07 (date operations commenced) to
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accountinmg@iples generally accepted in the United State&mérica.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
March 3, 2008
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands)

March 31, 2008

(unaudited) December 31, 200
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 91,37 % 6,02¢
Restricted cas 102,83: 1,35(
Mortgage-Backed Securities, at fair vali 1,229,78I 1,124,29i
Loans held for investment, net of allowance fonldé@sses of $8 361,59 162,37:
Reverse repurchase agreem 113,58: 265,00(
Accrued interest receivab 9,99: 6,03¢
Other asset 89z 56%
Total asset $ 1,910,04. $ 1,565,63!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel $ 143953 $ 270,58«
Payable for Mortga¢-Backed Securities purchas — 748,92
Accrued interest payab 3,207 41k
Dividends payabli 9,81¢ 945
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 2,52¢ 1,72¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 35,64¢ 4,15¢
Total liabilities 1,490,73 1,026,74
Commitments and Contingencies (Note
Stockholder Equity:
Common stock: par value $.01 per share; 500,000s88¢€es authorized, 37,744,918 and 37,705
shares issued and outstanding, respect 371 371
Additional pait-in capital 532,81¢ 532,20¢
Accumulated other comprehensive inca (45,28%) 10,15
Accumulated defici (68,599 (3,849
Total stockholder equity 419,31: 538,88¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 1,910,04 $ 1,565,63

See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ( LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Period November

For the Quarter Ended 21, 2007 (date operations

March 31, 2008

commenced) through

(unaudited) December 31, 2007
Interest incom: $ 28,19« $ 3,49z
Interest expens 14,022 41F
Net interest incom 14,17: 3,071
Unrealized losses on interest rate sw (31,499 (4,156
Realized losses on sales of investm: (32,819 —
Net Investment Income (Expens (50,140 (1,079
Expense:
Management fe 2,22 1,217
General and administrative expen 2,56¢ 60%
Total expense 4,792 1,822
Loss before income tax (54,937 (2,907
Income tax 3 5
Net loss (% 54,93F) ($ 2,90¢)
Net loss per shar basic and dilute: (% 1.4¢) ($ 0.0¢)
Weighted average number of shares outstar— basic and dilute 37,744,48 37,401,73
Comprehensive Incom
Net loss (% 54,93F) ($ 2,90¢)
Other comprehensive inconr
Unrealized gain on availat-for-sale securitie (88,259 10,15:¢
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossetuited in net incom 32,81¢
Other comprehensive (loss) incol (55,43%) —
Comprehensive (loss) incor ($ 110,379 $ 7,247

See notes to financial statements.

F-4



CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (2008 AMOUNTS UN AUDITED)
(dollars in thousands)
(Information with respect to 2008 is unaudited)

Accumulated

Common Additional Other
Stock Par Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Value Capital Income Deficit Total
Balance, November 21, 2007 (date operations
commenced $ — 3 — $ — $ — 3 —
Proceeds from common stock offerir 377 532,19° — — 532,57-
Net income — — — (2,906 (2,906
Other comprehensive incor — — 10,15 — 10,15
Proceeds from direct purchas — 11 — 11
Common dividends declared, $0.025 per sl — — — (943) (943)
Balance, December 31, 20 371 532,20¢ 10,15: (3,849 538,88¢
Net loss — — (54,93%) (54,935
Other comprehensive (loss) incol — — (55,439 — (55,439
Costs associated with Common stock offel — (87) — — (87)
Restricted stock gran — 697 — — 697
Common dividends declared, $0.26 per sl — — — (9,819 (9,819
Balance, March 31, 20( $ 377 $ 532,81¢ (% 45,285 (% 68,59¢) $ 419,31:

See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

For the Quarter Ended For the period November 21
March 31, 2008 (date operations commenced)
(unaudited) through December 31, 2007

Cash Flows From Operating Activitie
Net loss ($ 54,935 (% 2,906
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Amortization of investment (615) (98)
Unrealized loss on interest rate sw 31,49: 4,15¢
Realized losses on interest rate sw 32,81¢ —
Allowance for loan losse 1,17¢ 81
Restricted stock gran 697 —
Changes in operating ass
Increase in accrued interest receive (5,877 (4,337%)
Increase in other ass¢ (329 (563)
Changes in operating liabiliti¢
Increase in accounts payal 837 1,43
Increase in accrued interest paye 2,792 41F
Increase in other liabilitie (398) 292
Net cash used in operating activit 8,02¢ (1,527
Cash Flows From Investing Activitie
Mortgage-backed securities portfolit
Purchase (1,228,57) (368,597)
Sales 248,01 —
Principal payment 49,19( 1,78¢
Loans held for investment portfoli
Purchase (329,61() (162,46))
Principal payment 6,857 —
Reverse repurchase agreem 265,00( (265,000)
Restricted cas (101,489 (1,350
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,090,60) (795,62()
Cash Flows From Financing Activitie
Net proceeds from repurchase agreem 5,448,19. 270,58«
Net payments on repurchase agreem (4,279,24) —
Net proceeds from common stock offerit — 532,57:
Costs associated with net proceeds from commork stiderings (87) —
Dividends (9493 —
Net proceeds from direct purchases of common ¢ — 11
Net cash provided by financing activiti 1,167,92 803,16
Net increase in cash and cash equival 85,34« 6,02¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 6,02¢ —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 91,37( $ 6,02¢
Supplemental disclosure of ash flow informat
Interest paic $ 11,23( —
Taxes paic 45 —
Non cash investing activitie
Receivable for investments sc $ 113,58 —
Payable for securities purchas — $ 748,92
Net change in unrealized gain on available for safaurities ($ 55,43¢) $ 10,15
Non cash financing activitie
Dividends declared, not yet pz $ 9,18¢ $ 942



See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Information with respect to 2008 is unaudited)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Chimera Investment Corporation, or the Company, evganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Comgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial fubffering. The Company intends to elect and dyab be taxed as a real esti

investment trust or REIT under the Internal ReveBode of 1986, as amended, commencing with the @ogip taxable year ending on
December 31, 2007. As such, the Company is reqtiréistribute substantially all of the income gexted from its operations to its
stockholders. As long as the Company qualifies REH’, the Company will generally not be subjectt&. federal or state corporate taxes on
its income to the extent that the Company distabut least 90% of its net income to its stockhsldénnaly Capital Management, Inc., or
Annaly, purchased 3,621,581 shares of the Compamyisnon shares in a private offering concurrenhie Company’s initial public
offering. The Company is managed by Fixed Incomsdiint Advisory Company, or FIDAC, an investmentisor registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and a whollyensubsidiary of Annaly.

A summary of the Company’s significant accountimjqies follows:
Basis of Presentation of Unaudited Financial Stateents

The accompanying unaudited financial statements baen prepared in conformity with the Article Rye 10-01 of Regulation S-X for
interim financial statements. Accordingly, theyrat include all of the information and footnoteguiged by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAFe interim financial statements are unaudited;dw®, in the opinion of the Company’s
management, all adjustments, consisting only ofr@birecurring accruals, necessary for a fair staterof the financial positions, results of
operations, and cash flows have been included.eThieaudited financial statements should be readrnjunction with the audited financial
statements for the period ended December 31, 20@¥ nature of the Company’s business is such tigatesults of any interim period are not
necessarily indicative of results for a full year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hanthandy market funds.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes cash held by countergaatiecollateral for repurchase agreements andsiteate swaps.
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Company may invest its daily available caslabeds via reverse repurchase agreements to pradditonal yield on its assets. These
investments will typically be recorded as shortrténvestments, will mature daily, and are refetieeds receivables for reverse repurchase
agreements in the statement of financial conditReverse repurchase agreements are recorded ancbate collateralized by residential
mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing interiestbligations backed by pools of mortgage loars @rries those securities at fair value
which is determined by obtaining independent pgain the Company’s investments and perform a eatifin of those sources to the
Company’s own internal estimate of fair market ealin the current market, it may be difficult ordossible to obtain third party pricing on the
investments the Company purchases. In additioijatahg third party pricing for the Company’s inteeents may be more subjective as fewer
participants may be willing to provide this servtoeghe Company. Moreover, the current market iseniliquid than in recent history for some
of the investments the Company purchases. llliguigstments typically experience greater price Mitlaas a ready market does not exist. As
volatility increases or liquidity decreases, ther@any may have greater difficulty financing its éstments which may negatively impact its
earnings and the execution of its investment sisate

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SA¥0. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg8iecuritiesrequires the
Company to classify its investment securities #seeitrading investments, available-for-sale innesits or held-to-maturity investments. The
Company intends to hold most of its RMBS as avéglab
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for-sale and as such may sell any of its RMBS asqfats overall management of its portfolio. Alksets classified as available-for-sale are
reported at estimated fair value, based on mankegpfrom independent sources, with unrealizedgand losses included in other
comprehensive income.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-eeanp impairment at least on a quarterly basis,rance frequently when economic or
market concerns warrant such evaluation. Considera given to (1) the length of time and the axt® which the fair value has been lower
than carrying value, (2) the financial conditiordarearterm prospects of the issuer, (3) credit qualitgt eash flow performance of the secu
and (4) the intent and ability of the Company tiaireits investment in the issuer for a periodiwfe sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value. Unrealized losses on inwesit securities that are considered other thandesmp as measured by the amount of de:
in fair value attributable to other-than-temporgagtors, are recognized in income and the cossliddhe investment securities is adjusted.

Securities transactions are recorded on the tratte Realized gains and losses from securitiesdions are determined based on the specific
identification method and recorded as a gain (loss3ale of available for sale securities in tlaeshent of operations. Accretion of discounts
or amortization of premiums on available-for-saegities and mortgage loans is computed usingffieetive interest yield method and is
included as a component of interest income in thesent of operations.

Residential Mortgage Loans

The Company’s residential mortgage loans are caegrof fixed-rate and variable-rate loans. The Camgpurchases pools of residential
mortgage loans through a select group of origisatéiortgage loans are designated as held for imezst recorded on trade date, and are
carried at their principal balance outstandingsgay premiums or discounts which are amortizeztoreted over the estimated life of the I
less allowances for loan losses. Loans are evaldateredit losses. The Company has created atocated provision for loan losses
estimated as a percentage of the remaining prihaipthe loans as of December 31, 2007 and MarcR@18. Managemerst’estimate is bast
on historical experience of similarly underwrittean pools. There were no specific losses as béebecember 31, 2007 or March 31, 2008.

Fair Value Disclosure

SFAS No. 107Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrumentequires disclosure of the fair value of finahaistruments for which it
is practicable to estimate that value. The estith&de value of investment securities and interaté swaps is equal to their carrying value
presented in the consolidated statements of fiahwnondition. The estimated fair value of cash eash equivalents, accrued interest
receivable, reverse repurchase agreements, regarelgaecements with maturities shorter than one pegables for mortgageacked securitie
purchased, dividends payable, accounts payableacorded interest payable, generally approximaissas of the dates presented due to the
short term nature of these financial instruments.

Interest Income

Interest income on available-feale securities and loans is recognized over th®lithe investment using the effective interestmod. Intere:
income on mortgage-backed securities is recognizewy the effective interest method as describe8HB4&S No. 91Accounting for
Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Catgig or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Cost$ loeasesfor securities of high credit
quality and Emerging Issues Task Force No. 99R&g0gnition of Interest Income and Impairment orcRased and Retained Beneficial
Interests in Securitized Financial Ass¢for all other securities. Income recognition ispersded for loans when, in the opinion of management
a full recovery of income and principal becomesltitul. Income recognition is resumed when the Ibaoomes contractually current and
performance is demonstrated to be resumed.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is agelgased on an evaluation of known and
inherent risks related to the Company'’s loan ptidfdhe estimate is based on a variety of faciecfiding, but not limited to, current
economic conditions, industry loss experience, itaility trends, loan portfolio composition, dejuency trends, national and local econc
trends, national unemployment data, changes inihg@appreciation and whether specific geograpreasihere the Company has significant
loan concentrations are experiencing adverse ecienmnditions and events such as natural disatatsnay affect the local economy or
property values. Upon purchase of the pools ofdpitte Company obtained written
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representations and warranties from the selletstieaCompany could be reimbursed for the valutefoan if the loan fails to meet the agr
upon origination standards. While the Company h#e history of its own to establish loan trendsjinquency trends of the originators and
current market conditions aided in determiningatewance for loan losses. The Company also peddrdue diligence procedures on a
sample of loans that met its criteria during thechase process. As of December 31, 2007, the afiogvéor loan losses was $80,745 and as of
March 31, 2008, the allowance for loan losses vila2 illion. The allowance consisted of unallocdtseh losses with no provision for
specific loans. Management periodically reviewsghbefolio of loans for credit worthiness.

When it is probable that contractually due spedfiounts are deemed uncollectible, the accoumtrisidered impaired. Where impairment is
indicated, a valuation write-off is measured bagedn the excess of the recorded investment overghéair value of the collateral, reduced by
selling costs. Any deficiency between the carryangount of an asset and the net sales price of sepsad collateral is charged to the allow
for loan losses.

Derivative Financial Instruments/Hedging Activity

The Company economically hedges interest ratethisiugh the use of derivative financial instrumeuotsgrently limited to interest rate swaps.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on ihtexttesswaps are recognized in earnings.

Credit Risk

The Company retains the risk of potential credisks on all of the residential mortgage loansldsim its portfolio. Additionally, some of its
investments in RMBS may be qualifying interestsgarposes of maintaining its exemption from the@84t if it retains a 100% ownership
interest in the underlying loans. If the Companycpases all classes of these securitizationssitt@credit exposure on the underlying loans.
It intends to mitigate the risk of potential creldi$ses through its diligence in the asset selegfiocess.

Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT aredetbre, the Company generally will not be subjeatorporate federal or state income tax
to the extent that qualifying distributions are mad stockholders and the REIT requirements aremokiding certain asset, income,
distribution and stock ownership tests. If the Campfailed to qualify as a REIT and did not qualfidy certain statutory relief provisions, the
Company would be subject to federal, state and locame taxes and may be precluded from qualifgag REIT for the subsequent four
taxable years following the year in which the RELTlification was lost.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxesjahrequires the recognition of
deferred income taxes for differences between #sistnf assets and liabilities for financial stagetrand income tax purposes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities represent the future taxsequence for those differences, which will eithetdxable or deductible when the assets and
liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taaee also recognized for operating losses thaaiable to offset future taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the amount esghéztoe realized. In July 2006, the FA
issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting fardgrtainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation ofSBAStatement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in inedtaxes recognized in a companfihancial statements and prescribes a recogrtiisholc
and measurement attribute for the financial statgmerognition and measurement of a tax positi&artaor expected to be taken in an income
tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on degettion, classification, interest and penaltiegsaunting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. FIN 48 was effective for the Companyupnception and its effect was not material fa period ended December 31, 2007 and the
quarter ended March 31, 2008.

Net Income Per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadé/tding net income for the period by weightedeeage shares of its common stock

outstanding for that period. Diluted net income gleaire takes into account the effect of dilutivrmments, such as stock options and unveste
restricted common stock, but uses the average ghiaesfor the period in determining the numbemafemental shares that are to be added to
the weighted average number of shares outstan@ivegCompany had no potentially dilutive securitesstanding during the period presented.
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Stock Based Compensatio

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaccordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128&tounting for Stock-Based
Compensation which establishes accounting and disclosure remeénts using fair value based methods of accayiftinstock-based
compensation plans. Compensation expense relaggants of stock and stock options are recognized the vesting period of such grants
based on the estimated fair value on the grant date

Stock compensation awards granted to the emplafdedDAC are accounted for in accordance with EB@-18,Accounting For Equity
Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Emplof@e&cquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods and Sersgicehich requires the
Company to measure the fair value of the equitirumsent using the stock prices and other measureassnmptions as of the earlier of either
the date at which a performance commitment by thenterparty is reached or the date at which thetoparty’s performance is complete.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Comgaanted restricted stock awards in the amouidt 21,000 shares to FIDAC's
employees and the Company’s independent dire@®6r855 shares of restricted stock vested duringjtizeter ended March 31, 2008. The
awards to the independent directors vested onatedaf grant, and the awards to FIDAC's employesest guarterly over a period of 10 years.
The Company did not grant any incentive awardsnguttfie period ended December 31, 2007.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with accounting principles generally accebite the United States, or GAAP, requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeansl the reported amounts of revenues and expduoseg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stestsl&oard, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 1bdir Value Measurementsy SFAS 157. SFAS
157 defines fair value, establishes a frameworlafeasuring fair value and requires enhanced disidssabout fair value measurements. S
157 requires companies to disclose the fair vafuber financial instruments according to a faawe hierarchy (i.e., levels 1, 2, and 3, as
defined). Additionally, companies are required toyide enhanced disclosure regarding instrumentisarievel 3 category (which require
significant management judgment), including a redation of the beginning and ending balances smpdy for each major category of assets
and liabilities. SFAS 157 did not significantly iagt the manner in which management estimates &hiley but it requires additional
disclosures, which are included in Note 4.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T3% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities,or SFAS 159. SFAS
159 permits entities to choose to measure manydiahinstruments and certain other items at falug. Unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been electellllvé recognized in earnings at each subsequenttieg date. SFAS 159 became effective
the Company January 1, 2008. The Company did ect #ie fair value option for any existing eligifiileancial instruments.

In February 2008,the FASB issued FASB Staff Pasitim. FAS 140-Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets angirehase Financin
Transactions or FSP FAS 140-3. FSP FAS 140-3 addresses wheetimsiactions where assets purchased from a gartmunterparty and
financed through a repurchase agreement with tine saunterparty can be considered and accountex$ feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered “linked” transactions aray be considered derivatives under SFAS No. A88punting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activitiesor SFAS 133. FSP FAS 140-3 requires purchasesuamgkquent financing through repurchase agreerbents
considered linked transactions unless all of ttleviong conditions apply: (1) the initial purchaared the use of repurchase agreements to
finance the purchase are not contractually contihngpon each other; (2) the repurchase financingred into between the parties provides full
recourse to the transferee and the repurchaseipfiiced; (3) the financial assets is readily amadle in the market; and (4) the financial
instrument and the repurchase agreement are revntiobus. This FSP was effective for the Companyamuary 1, 2008. The Company is
currently evaluating FSP FAS 140-3 but does notekijts application to have a significant impactitsrfinancial reporting.
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2. Residential Mortgag«-Backed Securities
The following table represents the Company’s atéeéldor sale RMBS portfolio as of March 31, 2008 daecember 31, 2007 at fair value.

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)

MortgageBacked securities, at amortized ¢ $  1,275,06! $ 111413
Gross unrealized ga — 10,67¢
Gross unrealized los (45,28%) (522)
Fair value $ 1,229,78 $ 1,124,291

The following table presents the gross unrealipsdés, and estimated fair value of the Companyigagebacked securities by length of ti
that such securities have been in a continuousaliregl loss position at March 31, 2008 and Decer8the007.

Unrealized Loss Position For:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(dollars in thousands)
March 31, 200¢ $ 1,229,781 ($ 45,28 $— $— $ 1,229,78 ($ 45,289
December 31, 200 $ 87,04 ($ 522) $— $— $ 87,04 ($ 5272)

The decline in value of these securities is sallelyg to market conditions and not the quality ofdlsets. All of the mortgage-backed securities
are “AAA” rated or carry an implied “AAA” rating. fie investments are not considered other-than-teampoimpaired because the Company
currently has the ability and intent to hold thedstments to maturity or for a period of time stiéfnt for a forecasted market price recovery up
to or beyond the cost of the investments.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgaeerally shorter than stated contractual magsrithctual maturities of the Company’s
RMBS are affected by the contractual lives of thderlying mortgages, periodic payments of princgrad prepayments of principal.

The following table summarizes the Company’s RMB®larch 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 accordittigetio estimated weighted-
average life classifications:

March 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)
Weighted Average
Weighted Average Life Fair Value Amortized Cost Coupon

Less than one ye: — — —
Greater than one year and less than five y $ 1,229,78 $1,275,06! 6.27%
Greater than five yea — — —

Total $ 1,229,78 $1,275,06! 6.27%

F-11



December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Weighted Average

Weighted Average Life Fair Value Amortized Cost Coupon
Less than one yei $ 45,86¢ $ 46,10: 6.31%
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,078,42 1,068,03! 6.32%

Greater than five yea — — _

Total $ 1,124,29 $1,114,13 6.32%

The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrgies in the tables above are based on datédea through dealer quotes, assuming
constant prepayment rates to the balloon or resetfdr each security. The prepayment model corsidarent yield, forward yield, steepness
of the curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage m@téhe outstanding loan, loan age, margin andtiity.

During the three months ended March 31, 2008, tragany sold RMBS with a carrying value of $272.3iom for proceeds of $248.0 millic
realizing a loss of $24.3 million. The Company dat sell any RMBS during the period ended Decendtie2007.

3. Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company'’s regidemortgage loans classified as held for investtrat March 31, 2008 and December 31,
2007. At March 31, 2008 approximately 10.7% of @@mpany’s investments are adjustable rate mortlpeges and 11.2% are fixed rate
mortgage loans. All of the adjustable rate loarld fer investment are hybrid ARMs. Hybrid ARMs arertgages that have interest rates that
are fixed for an initial period (typically threayé, seven or 10 years) and thereafter reset ataegntervals subject to interest rate caps. The
loans held for investment are carried at theirgpal balance outstanding less an allowance far losses:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans, at principal balar $ 362,85: $ 162,45:
Less: allowance for loan loss (1,260 (812)
Mortgage loans held for investme $ 361,59 $ 162,37:

The following table summarizes the changes in tlwsvance for loan losses for the mortgage loanfpbiotduring the periods ended March 31,
2008 and December 31, 2007:

March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of peric $ 81 $ —
Provision for loan losse 1,17¢ 81
Charge-offs — —
Balance, end of peric $ 1,26( $ 81

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguady of its allowance for loan losses. Based anahalysis, the Company recorded a
provision for loan losses of $1.2 million for theagter ended March 31, 2008, representing 33 Ipagits of the Company’s mortgage loan
portfolio. For the period ended December 31, 288& Company recorded a provision for loan losse&Bafthousand representing 5 basis
points of the Company’s mortgage loan portfolio.Déicember 31, 2007, there were no loans 90 dagwoe past due and all loans were
accruing interest. At March 31, 2008, there werdoams 60 days or more past due and all loans a@meling interest.

The geographic distribution of the Company’s lohakl for investment at March 31, 2008 was as fadtow
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(dollars in thousands)
Unpaid Principal
State Number of Loans Balance




Other states, individually less
than 1% of aggregate curre

balance

Unamortized premiur
Provision for loan losse

Total*

CA
NJ
NY
FL
IL
WA
AZ
VA
X
CG
GA
MD
MA
CT
MI
NC
DC

172
42
31
30
21
24
19
23

15
13
15

=
ONNO DN

58

$

124,80«
26,12
21,21t
19,67!
17,581
14,88¢
12,90
12,63:
12,21¢
10,71«

9,26¢
8,77:
8,70z
7,521
6,57¢
4,22¢
4,12¢

36,58¢
3,39:
(1,260)

$

360,66:

* Total varies from Statements of Financial Positiue to repayment of residential mortgage loatts so

The geographic distribution of the Company’s lohakl for investment at December 31, 2007 was dawsl

State

(dollars in thousands)

Number of Loans

Balance

CA
NJ
NY
IL
VA
WA
TX
MA
FL
MD
GA
Cco
CT
AZ
Ml
uT
DC
PA
NC
NH

Other states, individually les
than 1% of aggregate
current balanc

Unamortized premiur

Provision for loan losse

Total

52
25
18
15
20
13
12
11
11

Arhrobbhrpoobhoau

N
~
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$

36,59:
14,36¢
12,06!
11,33(
10,51:
7,111
6,72
6,62
5,79¢
5,011
4,66%
3,68¢
3,601
3,30¢
3,121
2,78¢
2,62¢
2,57¢
2,481
2,402

14,10¢
962
(81)

162,37:



During the three months ended March 31, 2008, tagany sold residential mortgage loans with a dagryalue of $121.9 million for
proceeds of $113.4 million realizing a loss of $8ulion. The Company did not sell any mortgagen®auring the period ended December 31,
2007.

4. Fair Value Measurement

SFAS 157, defines fair value, establishes a framefay measuring fair value, establishes a tHese! valuation hierarchy for disclosure of 1
value measurement and enhances disclosure requiteifioe fair value measurements. The valuationandty is based upon the transparency
of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability of the measurement date. The three levelsefireed as follow:

Level 1- inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedgsrilunadjusted) for identical assets and liagdith active market

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imdwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eithieectly or indirectly, for substantially the fuktm of the financial instrumer

Level 3—inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservabld significant to fair valu

Mortgage-Backed Securities and interest rate s\wegpsalued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdel incorporates such factors as
coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the Treamsdrgwap curves, convexity, duration, periodic lffieccaps, and credit enhancement.
Interest rate swaps are modeled by incorporaticg factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,thadeceive rate on the interest rate swaps.
Management reviews the fair values determined byptiting model and compares its results to depletes received on each investment to
validate reasonableness. The dealer quotes wilporate common market pricing methods, includimgpi@ad measurement to the Treasury
curve or interest rate swap curve as well as uyithericharacteristics of the particular securityliming coupon, periodic and life caps, rate
reset period, issuer, additional credit supportexpkcted life of the security. The Company’s ficiahassets and liabilities carried at fair value
on a recurring basis are valued as follows at M&d;2008:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Mortgage-Backed Securitie $ — $1,229,78 $ —
Liabilities:
Interest Rate Swaj $ — $ 3564¢ $ —

5. Repurchase Agreements
(A) Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company had outstanding $1.0 billion and $2#tilBon of repurchase agreements with weightedage borrowing rates of 4.78% and
5.02% and weighted average remaining maturitiesiadnd 22 days as of March 31, 2008 and Decemh@0BY respectively. At March 31,
2008, RMBS pledged as collateral under these répgragreements had an estimated fair value offilich, carrying value of $1.0 billion,
including accrued interest, and
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cash totaling $67.7 million. At December 31, 20B®)BS pledged as collateral had an estimated fdirevaf $271.7 million. The interest rates
of these repurchase agreements are generally iddexbe one-month LIBOR rate and repriced accaigtin

At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the rdmase agreements collateralized by RMBS had theviiallg remaining maturities:

March 31, December 31
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Within 30 days $ 598,16¢ $ 270,58
30 to 59 day: 384,96« —
60 to 89 day: — —
90 to 119 day — —
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 24,51« —
Total $ 1,007,64 $ 270,58

(B) Loans Held for Investment

The Company has entered into two master repurdg®ements pursuant to which it finances mortgaged. One agreement is a $500 mil
lending facility of which $200 million is on an usimmitted basis. This agreement terminates Janu&r20d09. The second agreement is a §
million committed lending facility. This agreemertminates January 29, 2010. Repurchase agreefoemiBole mortgage loans contain
negative covenants requiring the Company to mairgaitain levels of net asset value, tangible rettwand available funds and comply with
interest coverage ratios, leverage ratios andiloligion limitations. As of March 31, 2008, the Coamy had $487.0 million borrowed against
these facilities which included $55.2 million of B8 at an effective rate of 4.41%. The amount boeawan the loans held for investment at
March 31, 2008 was collateralized by mortgage loaitis a carrying value of $433.3 million, includirgcrued interest, and cash totaling $:
million. During the quarter, the Company amended ohits financing agreements twice. These faesithave covenants that are standard for
industry practice and the Company was in compliamitie all such covenants at March 31, 2008.

At March 31, 2008, the repurchase agreements eddliided by mortgage loans had the following renmgimaturities:

March 31, 2008

(dollars in thousands)
Within 30 days $ —
30 to 59 day: —
60 to 89 day: —
90 to 119 day —
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 431,88t

Total $ 431,88

The average days to maturity on the Company’s ragedoans held for investment is 399 days. At Ddmar81, 2007 there were no
borrowings outstanding.

The Company had an amount at risk equal to 15%u0&quity with Bear Stearns and 11% of our equityh\€redit Suisse as of March 31,
2008. At December 31, 2007 we did not have an amatnisk greater than 10% of equity with any ceuparty.

Currently the sub-prime mortgage sector is expeimgnunprecedented losses and there is weaknéss broader mortgage market that has
increased volatility in market valuation of investnts and the availability of credit which may adbedy affect one or more of the Company’s
lenders and could cause one or more of the Compdaaytiers
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to be unwilling or unable to provide it with additial financing. This could potentially increase @@mpany’s financing costs and reduce
liquidity. If one or more major market participarfiadl, it could negatively impact the marketabiliy all fixed income securities and this could
negatively impact the value of the securities m @ompany’s portfolio, thus reducing its net boakue. Furthermore, if many of the
Company’s lenders are unwilling or unable to previidwith additional financing, the Company couklforced to sell its investments at an
inopportune time when prices are depressed.

On January 18, 2008, the Company entered into gem@purchase agreement with Credit Suisse Fostdh Mortgage Capital LLC. The
agreement is a $500 million lending facility of whi$200 million is on an uncommitted basis. Thesagrent terminates January 16, 2009.

On January 31, 2008, the Company entered into tem@&purchase agreement with DB Structured Pradint. and Deutsche Bank Securil
Inc. The agreement is a $350 million committed iegdacility. The agreement terminates January2240.

6. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate rigknagement strategy, the Company economicallygsedgportion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument caatis. As of December 31, 2007, such instruments@rgrised of interest rate swaps, whic
effect modify the cash flows on repurchase agre¢sndime Company’s swaps are used to liocthe fixed rate related to a portion of its cuai
and anticipated future 30-day term repurchase aggats. The Company accounts for interest rate sasfreestanding derivatives with
changes in fair value recorded in earnings.

The table below represents the Company’s swapsamulisg at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

(dollars in thousands)

Weighted Average Weighted Average Net Estimated Fair
Notional Amount Pay Rate Receive Rate Value/Carrying Value
March 31, 200¢ $1,626,377 3.7¢% 2.6€% ($35,649)
December 31, 200 $1,235,00( 4.04% 4.94% ($4,15¢)

7. Common Stock

The Company commenced operations on November 2%, 20lowing the completion of its initial publioiwhich it sold approximately 34.1
million shares of its common stock and raised pedseof $479.3 million before offering expenses. @worent with its initial public offering, in
a private offering the Company sold Annaly apprcadety 3.6 million shares of its common stock fogaagate proceeds of approximately
$54.3 million. The Company had 37,705,363 sharemonfmon stock outstanding as of December 31, 2D0& Company had 37,744,918
shares of common stock outstanding as of Marct2308.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Coypagclared dividends to common shareholders tag@mh8 million or $0.26 per share,
which were paid on April 30, 2008. During the pérended December 31, 2007, the Company declar@teds to common shareholders
totaling $0.9 million or $0.025 per share, whichrevpaid on January 25, 2008.
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8. Net Loss Per Common Shar

The following table presents a reconciliation o tiet loss and shares used in calculating basidiartdd earnings per share for the period
ended December 31, 2007:

(dollars in thousands)

For the period

For the Quarter ended November 21, 2007 to
March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Net Loss ($ 54,93f) ($ 2,906
Net loss per weighted average shares of commok stgstandine— basic and
diluted ($ 1.46) ($ 0.0¢)
Weighted average number of shares of common statstamdinc 37,744,48 37,401,73

9. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentates, employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to stimulate their efforts towards tBempany’s continued success, loegm growth and profitability and to attract, redv@nd retail
personnel and other service providers. The IncerRian authorizes the compensation committee dfdlhed of directors to grant awards,
including incentive stock options, non-qualifiedak options, restricted shares and other typesaafitive awards. The Incentive Plan
authorizes the granting of options or other awfodsin aggregate of the greater of 8% of the onthitey shares of its common stock, or
3,019,593 shares, up to a ceiling of 40,000,000esha

During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Compgaanted restricted stock awards in the amouit 21,000 shares to FIDAC's
employees and the Company'’s independent dire@6r855 shares of restricted stock vested duringjtizeter ended March 31, 2008. The
awards to the independent directors vested ondteaf grant, and the awards to FIDAC’s employeest gyuarterly over a period of 10 years.
The Company did not grant any incentive awardsndputtie period ending December 31, 2007.

At March 31, 2008 there are approximately 1.3 millunvested shares of restricted stock issued pdogees of FIDAC. For the three months
ended March 31, 2008, compensation expense lessajemd administrative costs associated with therization of the fair value of the
restricted stock totaled $697 thousand. For theogeanded December 31, 2007, compensation expess@éneral and administrative costs
associated with the amortization of the fair vadfi¢he restricted stock totaled $0.

10. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to federabine tax on earnings distributed to its sharehelddost states recognize REIT status as
well. The Company has decided to distribute theonitgjof its income. During the quarter ended MaBdh 2008, the Company recorded
$2.813 million of income tax expense related tdeséand federal tax liabilities on undistributeddnee for an effective tax rate of .01%. During
the period ended December 31, 2007, the Compawyded $4,960 of income tax expense related to exais The statutory combined fede
state, and city corporate tax rate is 49.3%.

11. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Companys primary components of market risk are credit @sll interest rate risk. The Company is subjectedit risk in connection wi
its investments in residential mortgage loans arditsensitive mortgageacked securities. When the Company assumes cisddiit attempt:
to minimize interest rate risk through asset selachedging and matching the income earned ongage assets with the cost of related
liabilities. The Company is subject to intereserask, primarily in connection with its investmesrin fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage
backed securities and residential mortgage loamenthe Company assumes interest rate risk, itnnideis credit risk through asset selection.
The Company’s strategy is to purchase loans undéewito agreed-upon specifications of selectedioaitors in an effort to mitigate credit
risk. The Company has established a whole loaretangrket including prime borrowers with FICO scogenerally greater than 650, Alt-A
documentation,
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geographic diversification, owner-occupied propentpderate loan size and moderate loan-to-valie rEthese factors are considered to be
important indicators of credit risk.

12. Management Agreement and Related Party Transaicns

The Company has entered into a management agreeuriteitIDAC, which provides for an initial term mgh December 31, 2010 with
automatic one-year extension options and subjex¢tiain termination rights. The Company pays FIDéAGuarterly management fee equal to
1.75% per annum of the gross Stockholders’ Eqaisydefined in the management agreement) of the @oynFIDAC is also entitled to a
guarterly incentive fee equal to 20% of the dadlarount by which Core Earnings (as defined in theaagament agreement) on a rolling four-
guarter basis and before the incentive managereenekceeds the product of (1) the weighted aveshtie issue price per share of all of our
public offerings multiplied by the weighted averagember of shares of common stock outstanding ¢h swarter and (2) 0.50% plus one-
fourth of the average of the one month LIBOR ratesiuch quarter and the previous three quartersthéanitial four quarters following the
Companys initial public offering, Core Earnings and théBIOR rate will be calculated on the basis of eacthefpreviously completed quart
on an annualized basis. Core Earnings and LIBO&faatthe initial quarter will each be calculatedr the settlement date of the offering on
an annualized basis. At March 31, 2008 quarterlpagament fees in the amount of $2.2 million we@wed and $2.3 million was payable to
FIDAC. At December 31, 2007 quarterly managemees fa the amount of $1.2 million were accrued asyhple to FIDAC.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcibsts incurred under the management agreemeaddition, the management agreement
permits FIDAC to require the Company to pay forite rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitiesfic# furniture, equipment, machinery and
other office, internal and overhead expenses of&ncurred in the operation of the Company. Theggenses are allocated between FIDAC
and the Company based on the ratio of the Compamgjsortion of gross assets compared to all remgigross assets managed by FIDAC as
calculated at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Cosnpéll modify this allocation methodology, subjeotthe Company’s board of directors’
approval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifehe Company becomes very highly leveragedganad to FIDAC's other funds and
accounts). For the quarter ending March 31, 2003AE has waived its right to request reimbursenfesrn the Company for these expenses.
The Company was required to reimburse FIDAC focafits FIDAC paid on behalf of the Company incuiiredonnection with the formation,
organization and initial public offering of the Cpamy, which amounted to $697,947.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Comjssued shares of restricted stock to FIDAC’s ayeés, as discussed in Note 8.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a RMBS nefpase agreement and a receivables sales agreeitteAinnaly. These agreements
contain customary representations, warranties amdrants. As of March 31, 2008, the Company dichawe any outstanding obligations
under either agreement.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoivedharious claims and legal actions arising in ¢h@inary course of business.
Management is not aware of any reported or unredarontingencies at March 31, 2008 or Decembe2®07.

14. Subsequent Events

On April 24, 2008 the Company sponsored a $619llfomisecuritization, a long-term financing transan whereby we securitized our then-
current inventory of mortgage loans. In this tratiee, the Company sold approximately $536.9 millaf AAA-rated fixed and floating rate
bonds to third party investors, and retained apprately $46.3 million of AAA-rated mezzanine boratsd $36.5 million in subordinated
bonds. This transaction will be accounted for fimancing pursuant to SFAS 148ccounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities

On June 2, 2008, our board of directors declargdaaterly distribution of $6.0 million, or $0.16m%hare of our common stock. This dividend
will be paid on July 31, 2008 to stockholders afarel on June 12, 2008. Purchasers in this offesifighot participate in this quarterly
distribution.
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PART Il
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
Item 31. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribut

The following table shows the fees and expenségrdhan underwriting discounts and commissionbetpaid by us in connection with the
sale and distribution of the securities being regéxl hereby. All amounts except the SEC regisindée are estimated.

Securities and Exchange Commission registratiol $13,558.5(
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inking fee $35,000.0(
New York Stock Exchange listing fi *
Legal fees and expenses (including Blue Sky f
Accounting fees and expens
Printing and engraving expens
Transfer agent fees and expen
Miscellaneou:

Total

* Ok X X X *

* To be furnished by amendme

Item 32. Sales to Special Parti
None

Item 33. Recent Sales of Unregistered Secur

Annaly, an affiliate of our Manager, fmschased 1,000 shares of our common stock forehpse price of $1,000 in a private offering.
Such issuance was exempt from the registrationineagents of the Securities Act pursuant to Secfi@®) thereof.

In a private offering concurrent with dnitial public offering, we sold Annaly 3,621,58hares of our common stock at a price of $15
per share, for aggregate proceeds of approxim&&y3 million. We did not pay any underwriting feesmmissions or discounts with respect
to the shares we sold Annaly. We relied on the gtiem from registration provided by Section 4(2)tleé Securities Act for the sale of the
shares to Annaly.

Item 34. Indemnification of Directors and Office

Section 2-418 of the Corporations ando&&gions Article of the Annotated Code of Marylajod Maryland General Corporation Law or
MGCL) provides that a Maryland corporation may imgtéfy any director or officer of a corporation wheomade a party to any proceeding
because of service in that capacity unless ittebtished that the act or omission of the direotoofficer was material to the matter giving rise
to the proceeding and was committed in bad faitwas the result of active and deliberate dishonestthe person actually received an
improper personal benefit in money, property ovises; or, in the case of any criminal proceedthg,person had reasonable cause to believe
that the act or omission was unlawful. Indemnifimatmay be against judgments, penalties, fineiegatnts, and reasonable expenses actually
incurred by the director or officer in connectioitwthe proceeding, but if the proceeding was onerhn the right of the corporation,
indemnification may not be made in respect of amecpeding in which the director or officer shal/bdeen adjudged to be liable to the
corporation. Such indemnification may not be madless authorized for a specific proceeding aftéetarmination has been made, in the
manner prescribed by the law, that indemnificattopermissible in the circumstances because tleetdir or officer has met the applicable
standard of conduct. On the other hand, unlessdiriy the corporation’s charter, the director ficer must be indemnified for expenses if he
has been successful in the defense of the
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proceeding or as otherwise ordered by a court.|@lelso prescribes the circumstances under whieltorporation may advance expenses to,
or obtain insurance or similar protection for, diags and officers.

Our charter provides that our directard afficers will, and our employees and agenthiendiscretion of our board of directors may, be
indemnified to the fullest extent required or peted from time to time by the laws of Maryland.

The Maryland General Corporation Law pigsrithe charter of a Maryland corporation to in@wdprovision limiting the liability of its
directors and officers to the corporation and tiegkholders for money damages except to the extent(i) it is proved that the person actually
received an improper benefit or profit in moneyperty or services for the amount of the benefprafit in money, property or services
actually received, or (ii) a judgment or other fiadjudication is entered in a proceeding based finding that the person’s action, or failure to
act, was the result of active and deliberate disktynor committed in bad faith and was materigh®cause of action adjudicated in the
proceeding. Our charter contains a provision priogdor elimination of the liability of our directe and officers to us or our stockholders for
money damages to the maximum extent permitted bylisiad law.

We maintain policies of insurance undéiol our directors and officers are insured, witthie limits and subject to the limitations of the
policies, against expenses in connection with #fertse of actions, suits or proceedings resultiogp fsuch director or officer being or having
been a director or officer, and certain liabilitigkich might be imposed as a result of these astisuits or proceedings.

Item 35. Treatment of Proceeds from Stock Beingifteged.
None of the proceeds will be creditedoaccount other than the appropriate capital shazeunt.
Item 36. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(@) Financial Statements. See pa¢-1 for an index to the financial statements incluthethe registration statemel

(b)  Exhibits. The following is a complete list of exhgfiled as part of the registration statementicltare incorporated herei

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

1.1* Form of Underwriting Agreement among Chimera Inwesit Corporation and the underwriters named the

1.2 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement between Chimeestment Corporation and Annaly Capital Managenient, datec

November 21, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 1.2 to the Camy's Registration Statement on Amendment No. 2 tonF8¢11 (File No.
33:-145525) filed on November 2, 2007 and incorpordteckin by reference

1.3* Form of Stock Purchase Agreement between Chimeestment Corporation and Annaly Capital Management,

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimevas$tment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to thentpanys Registratiot
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmated herein by
reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investmerp&ation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companysgistration
Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incaafedt herein by
reference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimera Inwesit Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Comyla Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmated herein by
reference

5.1* Opinion of Kirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston GatesiEILLP (including consent of such firr
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8.1*

10.1

10.2t

10.3t

10.4t

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

23.1
23.2*
23.3*
24.1

Tax Opinion of McKee Nelson LLP (including consefisuch firm)

Form of Management Agreement between Chimera Imesst Corporation and Fixed Income Discount AdvisGompany
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registrattatement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (Fde383-145525) filed
on September 27, 2007 and incorporated hereinfeyerce)

Form of Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 2@o the Company’s Registration Statement on AmemdriNo. 1 to Form S-
11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdraézein by referenc:

Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (filed as iBitHL0.3 to the Compar's Registration Statement on Amendment N
to Form &11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenct

Form of Stock Option Grant (filed as Exhibit 1004the Compar’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to F%-11
(File No. 33:-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragein by referenct

Form of Master Securities Repurchase Agreemeetd(fils Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registratiate®hent on
Amendment No. 3 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 13, 2007 and incorporateein by reference

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Janua®0@8, between Credit Suisse First Boston Mortdaggeital LLC and
Chimera Investment Corporation (filed as Exhibitlltd the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdfiten January 24, 2008
and incorporated herein by referen

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of JanuaB08&, among DB Structured Products, Inc., De@®dnk Securities
Inc., and Chimera Investment Corp. (filed as Exhiloi.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form fid€l on February 4,
2008 and incorporated herein by referer

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 14, 2008, tdvthster Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Jan@aB088, among DB
Structured Products, Inc., Deutsche Bank Secuiities and Chimera Investment Corp. (filed as E#Hib.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed on March 19, 2008 and incorporated hersjrrdference

Amendment No. 2, dated as of March 26, 2008, tdvthster Repurchase Agreement, dated as of JantaB088, among DB
Structured Products, Inc., Deutsche Bank Secullities and Chimera Investment Corp. (filed as EitHib.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed on March 26, 2008 and incorporated hersgirrdference

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL
Consent of Kirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston Gates€HlILP (included in Exhibit 5.1
Consent of McKee Nelson LLP (included in Exhibit)t

Power of Attorney (included on signature page ts tlgistration statemer

T Represents a management contract or compengaaorgr arrangement.

* To be filed by amendment.

Item 37. Undertakings.

(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakpsotdde to the underwriters at the closing spediiin the underwriting agreeme
certificates in such denominations and registemezsich names as required by the underwriters mipprompt delivery to each
purchaser

(b) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arig under the Securities Act of 1933, as amendetheoSecurities Act, may be permitt
to directors, officers or controlling persons of tiegistrant pursuant to the foregoing provisiamstherwise, the registrant has been
advised that in the opinion of the Securities ardnange Commission such indemnification is agginstlic policy as expressed in the
Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceabla.dfaim for indemnification against such liab##i(other than the payment by the
registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a diredfficer or controlling person of the registramthe
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successful defense of any action, suit or procegdiasserted by such director, officer or cofitiglperson in connection with tt
securities being registered, the registrant willegs in the opinion of its counsel the mattertheen settled by controlling precedent,
submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction thesgtion whether such indemnification by it is agajpublic policy as expressed in the
Securities Act and will be governed by the fingluaication of such issuu

(c) The undersigned registrant hereby further uadtes that

(1) For purposes of determining any liability untiee Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the indtion omitted from the form ¢
prospectus filed as part of this registration steget in reliance under Rule 430A and containedfiorm of prospectus filed by the

registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4), or@9 under the Securities Act shall be deemed tbgfahis registration statement as of
the time it was declared effecti\

(2) For the purpose of determining any liabilityden the Securities Act, each post-effective amemdtiat contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registrstid@ment relating to the securities offered thesnd the offering of such securities
at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bitseoffering thereof
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the SéesiAct of 1933, the registrant certifies thahéts reasonable grounds to believe that it mekts al
of the requirements for filing on Form S-11 and Haly caused this registration statement to beesigim its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New Yo8tate of New York, on June 3, 2008.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
By: /s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:
President and Chief Executive Offic

Each person whose signature appears edogby authorizes Matthew Lambiase and A. Alexafnahan, and each of them, as
attorney-in-fact and agents, each with full powkswubstitution and resubstitution, to sign on hisier behalf, individually and in each capacity
stated below, any amendment, including post-effe@mendments to this registration statement apcad all related registration statements
pursuant to Rule 462(b) of the Securities Act d33,9and to file the same, with all exhibits theretod all documents in connection therewith,
with the SEC hereby ratifying and confirming alattsaid attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any ahtbetheir substitute or substitutes, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SeesiAct of 1933, this registration statement hasn signed below by the following persons in
the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Matthew Lambias Chief Executive Officer, President a June 3, 200:
Director (principal executive office

Matthew Lambias:

/sl Alexandra Denahz Chief Financial Officer (principe June 3, 200!
financial and accounting office

A. Alexandra Denaha

s/ Paul Donlir Nonexecutive Chairman of the Boe June 3, 200:
of Directors
Paul Donlin
Director
Mark Abrams
/sl Jeremy Diamon Director June 3, 200!
Jeremy Diamon
Director

Paul A. Keenai
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the use in this Registration Statémefrorm S-11 of our report dated March 3, 2008&tirgy to the financial statements of
Chimera Investment Corporation appearing in thespotus, which is part of this Registration Stateime

We also consent to the reference to us under thdifg "Experts" in such Prospectus.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
June 3, 2008




